

Learning Outcomes-based Curriculum Framework (LOCF) for BA (Honours) Programme



BA Hons. (Public Administration) with Research

(Syllabus with effect from 2024 Admission onwards)

UNIVERSITY OF KERALA

CONTENTS

Sl. No.	Title	Page No.
01	About the BA Hons. Programme	3
02	About the BA (Hons) Public Administration Programme	3
03	Graduate Attributes	5
04	Programme Outcomes	6-7
05	Programme Specific Outcomes	8-9
06	Abbreviations	10
07	Programme Structure	11-13
08	Semester I	14-37
09	Semester II	38-59
10	Semester III	60-100
11	Semester IV	101-154
12	Semester V	155-202
13	Semester VI	203-258
14	Semester VII	259-277
15	Semester VIII	278

ABOUT THE BA HONS. PROGRAMME

This unique and intellectually stimulating program is designed to empower the students with a deep understanding of the interplay between politics, economics, and history, while also honing the research skills. It is an educational journey that will not only broaden the horizons but also prepare the students for a multitude of opportunities in the ever-evolving global landscape.

ABOUT THE BA (HONS) PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION MAJOR PROGRAMME

This unique and intellectually stimulating program is designed to develop knowledge in professional administration and allied areas which would foster a career in central and state-level public and private services, engagement in NGOs, and global administrative institutions. It would further enable them to pursue higher education and hone their research skills thereby preparing the students for a multitude of opportunities in the ever-evolving global landscape.

PROGRAM OVERVIEW

The BA Honours in Public Administration (Major) is a dynamic and comprehensive program that delves into the complexities of administrative theories, political systems and administrative developments. The program offers eight Discipline Specific Core Courses on employability enhancing areas. The course also includes practical exposure to students through field visits, organisational visits, group discussions, case analysis, role plays and so on.

KEY PROGRAM FEATURES

Interdisciplinary Approach and Diverse Course Offerings: This program encourages to explore the connection between politics, administration, public policies, participative governance, and finance which fosters a holistic understanding of the world's socio-political and economic dynamics.

Civil Services: The major benefit of pursuing Public Administration (minor) is that it increases their chances of qualifying for the Central and State Indian Civil Services examinations

Research Enthusiasm: The students will be able to work closely with esteemed faculty members on research projects aligning with their interests. This will not only enhance critical thinking and analytical skills but also prepare them for further academic pursuits or careers in research.

Practical Experience: Beyond the classroom, students can engage in internships, and fieldwork, providing them with real-world exposure and a global perspective. BA Honours in Public Administration would equip students with a versatile skill set that is highly valued in various fields. Whether the students aspire to work in government, academia, international organisations, or the private sector, this program provides a solid foundation for success.

Open Modules: All the courses are designed with six modules. The last module is exclusively for internal examination purpose. This will enhance the practical as well as the communication skill of the learner.

GRADUATE ATTRIBUTES

Graduate attributes bridge the gap between academia and the real world, fostering lifelong learning and meaningful contributions. They denote the skills, competencies and high-level qualities that a student should acquire during their university education. Apart from gathering content knowledge, these attributes go beyond the assimilation of information to its application in various contexts throughout a graduate's life. It aims in inculcating the art of critical thinking, problem solving, professionalism, leadership readiness, teamwork, communication skills and intellectual breadth of knowledge. The University of Kerala envisages to pave the path in guiding the student's journey to shape these attributes uniquely, making them integral to personal growth and success in various spheres of life. The University strives to ensure that these graduate attributes are not just checkboxes, but they play a pivotal role in shaping the students into capable, compassionate and responsible individuals with a high degree of social responsibility.

The GAs of University of Kerala

- Continuously strive for excellence in education
- Apply and nurture critical and creative thinking
- Promote sustainable development practices
- Balance rights with duties
- Understand and respect diversity & difference
- Not be prejudiced by gender, age, caste, religion, or nationality.
- Use education as a tool for the emancipation and empowerment of humanity
- Identify, comprehend and solve complex issues of contemporary relevance.
- The acquisition of a body of disciplinary knowledge
- Develop interdisciplinary and transdisciplinary perspectives
- Community engagement services
- The commitment to ethical action and social responsibility,
- Developing capacity for employment and lifelong learning.

PROGRAMME OUTCOMES (PO)

No.	Programme Outcomes (POs)
PO-1	Critical thinking analyze information objectively and make a reasoned judgment draw reasonable conclusions from a set of information, and discriminate between useful and less useful details to solve problems or make decisions dentify logical flaws in the arguments of others evaluate data, facts, observable phenomena, and research findings to draw valid and relevant results that are domain- specific
PO-2	Complex problem-solving output solve different kinds of problems in familiar and no-familiar contexts and apply the learning to real-life situations analyze a problem, generate and implement a solution and to assess the success of the plan understand how the solution will affect both the people involved and the surrounding environment
PO-3	Creativity o produce or develop original work, theories and techniques think in multiple ways for making connections between seemingly unrelated concepts or phenomena add a unique perspective or improve existing ideas or solutions generate, develop and express original ideas that are useful or have values
PO-4	Communication skills o convey or share ideas or feelings effectively use words in delivering the intended message with utmost clarity engage the audience effectively be a good listener who are able to understand, respond and empathize with the speaker confidently share views and express himself/herself
PO-5	Leadership qualities o work effectively and lead respectfully with diverse teams o build a team working towards a common goal o motivate a group of people and make them achieve the best possible solution. o help and support others in their difficult times to tide over the adverse situations with courage

PO-6	Learning 'how to learn' skills
	 acquire new knowledge and skills, including 'learning how to learn skills, that are necessary for pursuing learning activities throughout life, through self-paced and self-directed learning work independently, identify appropriate resources required for further learning acquire organizational skills and time management to set self-defined goals and targets with timelines inculcate a healthy attitude to be a lifelong learner
PO-7	Digital and technological skills
	 use ICT in a variety of learning and work situations, access, evaluate, and use a variety of relevant information sources use appropriate software for analysis of data understand the pitfalls in the digital world and keep safe from them
PO-8	Value inculcation
	 embrace and practice constitutional, humanistic, ethical, and moral values in life including universal human values of truth, righteous conduct, peace, love, nonviolence, scientific temper, citizenship values formulate a position/argument about an ethical issue from multiple perspectives identify ethical issues related to work, and follow ethical practices, including avoiding unethical behaviour such as fabrication, falsification or misrepresentation of data, or committing plagiarism, and adhering to intellectual property rights adopt an objective, unbiased, and truthful actions in all aspects of work

PROGRAMME SPECIFIC OUTCOMES (PSO)

No.	Upon completion of the programme the graduate will be able to	PO No.
PSO-1	Equip with ability to analyze and apply various administrative theories in real-world scenarios, as well as evaluate and adapt to the evolving trends in public administration.	
PSO-2	Ensure a career in Civil Service/Other Government Services/ Private Sector/ National and International Agencies. It also mould the talent to be a perfect fit into Entrepreneurship, Policy Analysis and NGOs.	
PSO-3	Mould talents by engaging in experiential learning thereby shaping responsible citizens with social commitment and leadership qualities.	
PSO-4	Developing a deep understanding of Indian constitution and public policy process students will be able to critically analyze and apply these concepts in practical situations, demonstrating necessary skills for governance and public administration in India.	
PSO-5	Inculcation of necessary skills in using research tools to undertake research and analyse information for knowledge advancement and problem solving.	
PSO-6	Develop the necessary skills to critically evaluate governance structures and policies around the globe. Propose solutions for governance challenges, and contribute to the advancement of sustainable and inclusive growth.	
PSO-7	Enhance the ability for digital governance through the application of Information Technology and Artificial Intelligence.	
PSO-8	Equip with ability to analyze, evaluate, and implement policies and practices that promote development, gender equality, social welfare, and human rights in administrative contexts.	
PSO-9	Equip students with the knowledge and skills to critically evaluate the role of media, CSOs, and citizen-centric initiatives like Social Audit in promoting accountability in governance, and to contribute to the advancement of transparent, participatory, and responsive governance practices.	

PSO-10	Examine how various institutions shape governance processes and policies at the national and international levels, and evaluate their impact on development, human rights, and environmental sustainability.	
PSO-11	Equip students with the knowledge and skills to critically analyze and evaluate public finance policies and the GST, and to contribute to the development of effective and sustainable fiscal policies and practices in India.	
PSO-12	Equip with knowledge of administrative literacy, office automation, and public relations, preparing students for effective communication and management in various organizational settings.	

ABBREVIATIONS

OBTLE	Outcome-Based Teaching and Learning Education
CL	Cognitive Level
Cr	Create
Ev	Evaluate
An	Analyse
Ap	Apply
Un	Understand
Re	Remember

PROGRAMME STRUCTURE

COURSE CODE	NAME OF THE COURSE	CREDIT		
	SEMESTER I Discipline Specific Core			
UK1DSCPAN100	Introduction to Public Administration	4		
UK1DSCPAN101	Introduction to Public Policy	4		
UK1DSCPAN102	Indian Constitution	4		
N	Multi-Disciplinary Course (Can Select One)			
UK1MDCPAN100	Fundamentals of Public Administration	3		
UK1MDCPAN101	Introduction to Indian Administration	3		
	SEMESTER II Discipline Specific Core			
UK2DSCPAN100	Administrative Thinkers – I	4		
UK2DSCPAN101	Comparative Public Administration	4		
UK2DSCPAN102	Indian Administration	4		
N	Multi-Disciplinary Course (Can Select One)			
UK2MDCPAN100	Civil Service and Personnel Administration	3		
UK2MDCPAN101	Local Governance	3		
	SEMESTER III Discipline Specific Core			
UK3DSCPAN200	Administrative Thinkers – II	4		
UK3DSCPAN201	Public Policy – Models and Theories	4		
UK3DSCPAN202	Decentralized Administration in India	4		
D	iscipline Specific Elective (Can Select One)			
UK3DSEPAN200	Urban Governance	4		
UK3DSEPAN201	Social Welfare Administration	4		
N	Multi-Disciplinary Course (Can Select One)			
UK3MDCPAN200	Administration in Kerala	3		
UK3MDCPAN201	Web Based Administration	3		
	Value Added Course (Can Select One)			
UK3VACPAN200	Urban Planning	3		
UK3VACPAN201	Administrative Literacy	3		
SEMESTER IV Discipline Specific Core				
UK4DSCPAN200	Public Policy Analysis	4		
UK4DSCPAN201	Fundamentals of Governance	4		

Discipline Specific Elective (Can Select either One or Two)				
UK4DSEPAN200	Energy Governance	4		
UK4DSEPAN201	Police Administration	4		
UK4DSEPAN202	Administrative Law	4		
UK4DSEPAN203	Public Sector Management	4		
UK4INTPAN204	Summer Internship (Mandatory)	2		
S	kill Enhancement Course (Can Select One)			
UK4SECPAN200	Training in Local Administration	3		
UK4SECPAN201	Office Automation and Administration	3		
UK4VACPAN202	Ethics in Academic Writing and Publication	3		
UK4VACPAN203	Public Health Administration in India	3		
UK4VACPAN204	Planning And Development of Tourism in Kerala	3		
UK4VACPAN205	Waste Management and Sustainable Development	3		
	SEMESTER V Discipline Specific Core			
UK5DSCPAN300	Public Finance and GST	4		
UK5DSCPAN301	E Governance	4		
UK5DSCPAN302	Public Personnel Administration	4		
UK5DSCPAN303	Research Methodology- I	4		
D	iscipline Specific Elective (Can Select Two)			
UK5DSEPAN300	Human Rights and Administration	4		
UK5DSEPAN301	Human Resource Management	4		
UK5DSEPAN302	Media, Civil Society and Governance	4		
UK5DSEPAN303	Land Governance	4		
S	kill Enhancement Course (Can Select One)			
UK5SECPAN300	Project Planning and Proposal Management	3		
UK5SECPAN301	Social Auditing	3		
UK5SECPAN302	Disaster Management	3		
	SEMESTER VI Discipline Specific Core			
UK6DSCPAN300	Green Governance	4		
UK6DSCPAN301	Ethics in Governance	4		
UK6DSCPAN302	Labour Law and Administration in India	4		
D	Discipline Specific Elective (Can Select Two)			
UK6DSEPAN300	Rural Governance in Kerala	4		
UK6DSEPAN301	Water Governance	4		

UK6DSEPAN302	Cyber Laws and Administration	4
UK6DSEPAN303	International Institutions and Governance	4
S	kill Enhancement Course (Can Select One)	
UK6SECPAN300	Organisational Behaviour	3
UK6SECPAN301	Public Relations and Communication	3
UK6SECPAN302	Research Methodology -II	
	Value Added Course (Can Select One)	
UK6VACPAN300	Exploring Governance through Cinema	3
UK6VACPAN301	Youth and Entrepreneurship Management	3
UK6VACPAN302	Tribal Administration in Kerala	3
	SEMESTER VII	
	Discipline Specific Core	_
UK7DSCPAN400	Artificial Intelligence (AI) in Public Administration	4
UK7DSCPAN401	Emerging Trends in Public Administration	
D	iscipline Specific Elective (Can Select One)	
UK7DSEPAN400	Governance in Kerala	4
UK7DSEPAN401	Gender and Administration	4
UK7DSEPAN402	Development Administration	
	SEMESTER VIII	
UK7DSCPAN400	Online Course	
UK7DSCPAN401	Online Course	
	Mandatory for UG Hons with Research	
UK8RPHPAN400	Research Project	12
	Mandatory for UG Hons	
UK8CIPPAN400	Internship Project	12
	•	•

SEMESTER I

DISCIPLINE-SPECIFIC CORE

- 1. Introduction to Public Administration
- 2. Introduction to Public Policy
- 3. Indian Constitution

Discipline	PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION				
Course Code	UK1DSCPAN100)			
Course Title	INTRODUCTIO	N TO PUBI	LIC ADMIN	ISTRATION	N
Type of Course	DSC / DSE / MDG	C / SEC / VA	AC / AEC		
Semester	I				
Academic Level	100 -199				
Course Details	Credit	Lecture hrs	Tutorial hrs	Practical hrs	Total Hours/Week
	4	30	20	10	60
Pre-requisites	Curiosity towards the general administrative systems Aptitude on working in administrative jobs				
Course Summary	Familiarising the origin, scope, and approaches of Public Administration. Ensure their knowledge in the paradigm shifts and components of Public Administration				

DETAILED SYLLABUS

Module	Unit	Content	Hrs	
I		Public Administration: Meaning, Evolution and Scope		
	1	Public Administration: Meaning, Nature and Scope		
	2	Public and Private Administration		
	3	Evolution of the discipline: Different Stages-Politics-Administration Dichotomy- Ongoing Concerns		
II		Approaches to Public Administration	10	
	4	Classical Approach		
	5	Marxist Approach		
	6	Ecological Approach		
	7	Public Choice Approach		
	8	Feminist Approach		
III	I Paradigm Shift in Public Administration		10	
	9	New Public Administration		
	10	New Public Management		
	11	New Public Service		
	12	New Public Governance		
IV		Comparative and Development Administration	10	
	13	Comparative Administration: Evolution		
	14	Importance and Challenges of Comparative Administration		
	15	Development Administration		
	16	Development and its Features		

V		Contemporary Discourses		
	17	Issues of Governance, Good governance, E-Governance, M-Governance		
	18	Citizen-Centric Administration,		
	19	Challenges of Liberalisation, Privatisation and Globalisation (LPG)		
	20	State, Market and Civil Society debate in Administration - PPP – Issues-Organizational, Governance and Political		
VI		Open Module		
		(This module is exclusively designed for internal evaluation only. Choose any two activities.)	10	
	21	 Activity 1 Group Discussion- The Minnowbrook Conferences Activity 2 Article Review- Revisiting Fred W. Riggs' Model in the context of 'Prismatic' Societies Today by Rumki Basu Activity 3 Case study- Identify and examine any of the issues of Governance and submit a report 		

COURSE OUTCOMES

No.	Upon completion of the course the graduate will be able to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO-1	Define the evolution and ongoing debates to the discipline of Public Administration	Re Un An	PSO1 PSO2
CO-2	Identify and analyse different approaches to the study of Public Administration	Un An	PSO1 PSO2
СО-3	Introduce and evaluate various theories of Public Administration	Un An Ev	PSO1 PSO2
CO-4	Survey and discuss the paradigm shift in the field of Public Administration	Un An Ev	PSO1 PSO2
CO5	Compare and estimate the changing nature and challenges to the study of Comparative and Development Administration	Un An Cr	PSO3 PSO4
CO6	Acquire a thorough understanding of contemporary governance challenges	Un An Cr	PSO4

 $R-Remember,\,U-Understand,\,Ap-Apply,\,An-Analyse,\,E-Evaluate,\,C-Create$

CO No.	СО	PO/ PSO	Cognitive Level	Knowledge Category	Lecture (L)/ Tutorial (T)	Practical (P)
CO1	Define the evolution and ongoing debates to the discipline of Public Administration	PO1 PSO1 PSO2	Re Un An	С	Tutorial Assignment and Discussion, LMS	
CO2	Identify and analyse different approaches to the study of Public Administration	PO3 PSO1 PSO2	Un An	С	Tutorial Assignment, Debates, Book Review, Presentation, LMS	
CO3	Introduce and evaluate various theories of Public Administration	PO1 PSO2	Un An Ev	P	Tutorial Assignment, Discussion on various theories, Book Review, LMS	
CO4	Survey and discuss the paradigm shift in the field of Public Administration	PO1 PO3 PSO1 PSO2	Un An Ev	P	Tutorial Assignment, Case Analysis, Debates, LMS	
CO5	Compare and estimate the changing nature and challenges to the study of Comparative and Development Administration	PO3 PSO3 PSO4	Un An Cr	P	Book /Article Review, Case studies, Discussion on comparative analysis of administrative systems, debates, LMS	
CO6	Acquire a thorough understanding of contemporary governance challenges	PO1 PO3 PSO4	Un An Cr	М	Group Discussion, Case Studies, Article Review	

F-Factual, C- Conceptual, P-Procedural, M-Metacognitive

Mapping of COs with PSOs and POs:

	PSO1	PSO2	PSO3	PSO4	PO1	PO3	PO5
CO 1	3	-	-	-	2	2	2
CO 2	2	3	-	-	1	1	1
CO 3	2	2	-	-	1	1	1
CO 4	2	2	1	-	1	2	2
CO 5	2	2	3	3	3	3	1
CO 6	3	3	-	3	3	3	3

Mapping of COs to Assessment Rubrics:

	Internal Exam	Assignment	Project Evaluation	End Semester Examinations
CO 1	√			✓
CO 2	√			✓
CO 3	√			✓
CO 4		✓		✓
CO 5		✓		✓
CO 6			✓	

REFERENCES

- Alaka Dhameja (Ed.) (2003). Contemporary Debates in Public Administration. New Delhi.
- Amanda, M. Olejarski, Sue, M. Neal (2024). Empowering Public Administrators: Ethics and Public Service Values. Routledge; 1st edition
- Arora, R. K., & Sharma, S. (Eds.) (1992). Comparative and Development Administration: Ideas and Action. Jaipur: Arihant.
- Arora, R., & Goyal. (1989). Indian Public Administration: Institutions and Issues. New Delhi: Wishwa Publications.
- Avasthi, A., & Maheshwari, S. (2016). Public Administration. Agra: Lakshmi Narain Agarwal.
- Basu, R. (2018). Public Administration, Concepts and Theories. New Delhi: Sterling.
- Basu, R. (2019). Public Administration in the 21st Century: A Global South Perspective. New York and London: Routledge.
- Bava, N. (2010). Public Administration in the 21st Century. New Delhi: Kanishka Publishers.
- Bhagwan, V., & Bhushan, V. (2005). Public Administration. New Delhi: S. Chand & Co. Ltd.
- Bhattacharya, M. (2013). Restructuring Public Administration: A New Look New Delhi: Jawahar Publishers.
- Bhattacharya, M. (2016). New Horizons of Public Administration. Willford Press.
- Bidyut Chakrabarty (2008). The Governance Discourse: A Reader. Oxford University Press.
- Chakrabarty, B., & Bhattacharya, M. (2005). Public Administration: A Reader. New Delhi: OUP.
- Chakravarty, B., & Chand, P. (2018). Public Administration in a Globalizing World. New Delhi: Sage.
- Chandler, J. A. (2017). Public Policy and Private Interest: Ideas, Self-Interest, and Ethics in Public Policy. Routledge.
- Dahiya, S. S., & Singh, R. (2014). Comparative Public Administration. New Delhi: Sterling

- Dhameja. Alka (2003), Contemporary Debates in Public Administration, Prentice Hall India Learning Private Limited; Standard Edition
- Donald Menzel and Harvey White (Eds.) (2011). The State of Public Administration: Issues, Challenges and Opportunity. New York: M. E. Sharpe.
- Grant. Duncan (2023). Government and Political Trust: The Quest for Positive Public Administration .Routledge; 1st edition
- Esping-Andersen, G. (1990). The Three Worlds of Welfare Capitalism. Cambridge: Polity.
- Fadia, B. L., & Fadia, K. (2008). Public Administration: Administrative Theories and Concepts. Agra: Sahitya Bhawan Publications.
- Fox, C. J., & Miller, H. T. (1995). Postmodern Public Administration: Toward Discourse. London: Sage Publications.
- Frederickson, H. G. (1990). New Public Administration. Alabama: University of Alabama Press.
- Fry, B. R. (1989). Mastering Public Administration: From Max Weber to Dwight Waldo. New Jersey: Chatham House.
- Ghai, K. K. (2013). Major Governments, Political System of U.K., USA, Switzerland, France, and China. New Delhi: Kalyani Publishers.
- Gulick, L., & Urwick, L. (Eds.) (1937). Papers on the Science of Administration. New York: Institute of Public Administration.
- Henry, N. (2004). Public Administration and Public Affairs. New Delhi: Prentice-Hall of India.
- Iversen, T., & Cusack, T. (2000). 'The causes of welfare state expansion'. World Politics.
- Learg (Ed.), R. O'. (2011). The Future of Public Administration Around the World: The Minnowbrook Perspective. Washington, D.C.: Georgetown University Press.
- Miluwi, J. O. (2014). Public Administration: Theory and Practice. Delhi: Mangalam Publications.
- Monkelbaan, J. (2019). Governance for the Sustainable Development Goals: Exploring an Integrative Framework of Theories, Tools, and Competencies. Springer.
- Morgan, B. N., Cok, R. W., Back, S. J. (2011). Public Administration in Theory and Practice. Delhi: Pearson.
- Nigro, F. A. (1965). Modern Public Administration. New York: Harper and Row.
- Ongaro, E. (2017). Philosophy and Public Administration. Edward Elgar Publishing.
- Robbins, S. (2008). Organisational Behaviour. New Delhi: PHI.
- Sabir Kuhalmann (2014). Introduction to Comparative Public Administration. Edward Elgar Publishing.
- Sahni, P., & Vayunandan, E. (2010). Administrative Theory. PHI, New Delhi.
- Sapru, R. K. (2014). Development Administration. New Delhi: Sterling Publishers.
- Schwester, R. W., & Hozler, M. (2011). Public Administration: An Introduction. New Delhi: PHI Learning Ltd.
- Shafritz, J. M. (2017). Introducing Public Administration. New York: Routledge.
- Shafritz, J. M., & Hyde, A. C. (Eds.) (1987). Classics of Public Administration. Chicago, Illinois: The Dorsey Press.
- Sharma, M. P., & Sadana, B. L. (2015). Public Administration in Theory and Practice. Allahabad: Kitab Mahal.
- Shrivastava, V. B. (2016). Theory and Practice in Public Administration. New Delhi: Sterling Publishers.
- Tyagi, A. R. (2001). Public Administration: Principles and Practice. Delhi: Atma Ram and Sons

Discipline	PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION						
Course Code	UK1DSCPAN101						
Course Title	INTRODUCTION	N TO PUBL	IC POLICY	Y			
Type of Course	DSC / DSE / MDC	C / SEC / VA	C / AEC				
Semester	Ι						
Academic Level	100- 199						
Course Details	Credit	Lecture Hours	Tutorial Hrs	Practical Hours	Total Hours		
	4	30	18	12	60		
Pre-requisites	Basic understanding on Public Policy Field experience and basic elements required to make a policy document						
Course Summary	The course would thereby making bet	-		_	•		

DETAILED SYLLABUS

Module	Unit	Content	Hrs
I		Fundamentals of Public Policy	8
	1	Meaning, Nature, Definition, Scope and Importance of Public Policy	
	2	Scope of Public Policy Research in India	
	3	Types of Public Policy (Theodore Lowi and James Anderson)	
II		Evolution and Approaches of Public Policy	10
	4	Evolution of Public Policy and Policy Sciences (Period before 1950- from 1950-70, After 1970s)	
	5	Approaches to Public Policy	
	6	Public Policy and Public Administration	
	7	Globalisation and Public Policy	
Ш		Public Policy Making/ Policy Process	14
	8	Process Approach: 6 Stages of Policy Process (James Anderson)	
	9	Policy Environment- Policy Factors: Political Culture -Socio- economic Conditions- Policy Actors (Official and Unofficial Actors)	
	10	Policy Subsystems	
	11	Policy Instruments	
IV		Policy Process- Stage 1 to 3	8
	12	Stage 1- Problem Identification	
	13	Stage 2- Agenda Setting	
	14	Stage 3- Policy Formulation	

V		Policy Process- Stage 4 to 6	8					
	15	15 Stage 4- Policy Legitimation/ Adoption/ Public Policy Decision Making						
	16	16 Stage 5- Policy Implementation						
	17	Stage 6- Policy Evaluation						
		Open Ended						
VI		(This module is exclusively designed for internal evaluation only.	12					
		Choose any two activities)						
	18	Activity 1						
		• Field Study: Arrange visits to Govt. offices/society/target groups to know more about the major policy initiatives undertaken and its impact on the target groups.						
		Activity 2						
		Design and propose innovative policy solutions for the issues in your locality/institution based on the principles learned in the course.						
		Activity 3						
		Develop a model policy document followed by classroom presentation and discussions						

COURSE OUTCOMES

No.	Upon completion of the course the graduate will be able to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO1	Understand the meaning, concept and evolution of Public Policy and explain its nature, scope and importance. Explore the scope of policy research in India	U Ap	PSO-4
CO2	Identify and examine the types of public policy by Theodore Lowi and James Anderson	Ap An	PSO-3 PSO-4 PSO-8
CO3	Analyse the role of policy research in public administration and the impact of globalization on public policy	Un An	PSO-4 PSO-5 PSO-6 PSO-8 PSO-10
CO4	Examine the process approach to public policy with a focus on policy environment	Un An	PSO-4 PSO-8 PSO-10
CO5	Proficiency in various stages of policy making process from Problem Identification to Policy Evaluation	U Ap An	PSO-4 PSO-5 PSO-6 PSO-8 PSO-10 PSO-11
CO6	Integrate theoretical knowledge in Public Policy with practical application through Real-World Applications:	E An Ap C	PSO-4 PSO-5 PSO-6 PSO-8 PSO-10 PSO-11

R-Remember, U-Understand, Ap-Apply, An-Analyse, E-Evaluate, C-Create

CO No.	СО	PO/ PSO	Cognitive Level	Knowledge Category	Lecture (L)/ Tutorial (T)	Practical (P)
CO1	Understand the meaning, concept and evolution of Public Policy and explain its nature, scope and importance. Explore the scope of policy research in India	PSO-4 PO1 PO2 PO3	U Ap	F, C	Book Review Seminars	
CO2	Identify and examine the types of public policy by Theodore Lowi and James Anderson	PSO-3 PSO-4 PSO-8 PO1 PO3 PO8	Ap An	F, C	Assignment	
CO3	Analyse the role of policy research in public administration and the impact of globalization on public policy	PSO-4 PSO-5 PSO-6 PSO-8 PSO-10 PO1 PO2 PO3 PO7 PO8	Un An	F, M	Debate	
CO4	Examine the process approach to public policy with a focus on policy environment	PSO-4 PSO-8 PSO-10 PO1 PO2 PO6 PO8	Un An	F, C, M	Seminar	
CO5	Proficiency in various stages of policy making process from Problem Identification to Policy Evaluation	PSO-4 PSO-5 PSO-6 PSO-8 PSO-10 PSO-11 PO1 PO2 PO6 PO8	U Ap An	F, P	Case Analysis	
CO6	Integrate theoretical knowledge in Public Policy with practical application through Real-World Applications:	PSO-4 PSO-5 PSO-6 PSO-8 PSO-10 PSO-11 PO1 PO2 PO3 PO6 PO7	E An Ap C	P, M	Field Visit Case Study	

	PSO3	PSO4	PSO5	PSO6	PSO8	PSO10	PSO11	PO1	PO2	PO3	PO6	PO7	PO8
CO 1	-	3	-	-	1	1	-	2	1	3	ı	-	ı
CO 2	2	3	-	-	2	-	-	3	-	2	-	-	2
CO 3	-	3	1	1	3	3	2	3	3	1	-	2	2
CO 4	-	3	-	-	2	3	-	1	2	-	3	-	2
CO 5	-	3	2	3	3	3	2	3	3	-	2	-	2
CO 6	1	2	3	3	3	3	2	3	3	3	2	3	-

Mapping of COs to Assessment Rubrics:

	Internal Exam	Assignment	Project Evaluation	End Semester Examinations
CO 1	✓			✓
CO 2	✓			✓
CO 3	✓			✓
CO 4		✓		✓
CO 5		√		√
CO 6			√	

REFERENCES

- Anderson J.E., (2006) Public Policy-Making: An Introduction, Boston, Houghton
- Bergerson, Peter J. (ed.), (1991), Teaching Public Policy: Theory, Research and Practice, Westport, RI: Greenwood Press
- Birkland Thomas A., (2005), An Introduction to The Policy Process: Theories, Concepts, And Models of Public Policy Making, Armonk; M.E. Sharpe
- Brewer, Gary D., and Peter de Leon (1983), The Foundations of Policy Analysis, Homewood, IL.: The Dorsey Press.
- Dahl, Robert and Charles Lindblom, (1976), Politics, Economics and Welfare, New York, Harper.
- Dror.Y, (1989), Public Policy making Re-examined, 2nd ed., San Francisco, Chandler. Dye
- Hill Michael, (2005), The Public Policy Process, Harlow, UK; Pearson Education, 5th Edition.
- Howlett, Michael, and M. Ramesh, (1995), Studying Public Policy: Policy Cycles and Policy Subsystems, OUP, Toronto.
- Jay M. Shafritz (ed) (1998), International Encyclopedia of Public Policy and Administration, Westview Press.
- John, Peter, (2012), Analysing Public Policy, 2nd ed., Routlidge, Taylor and Francis Group, London.
- Jones, C.O., (1970), An Introduction to the Study of Public Policy, Belmont, Prentice -Hall. Lerner,
- Lasswell Harold, (1971), A Preview of Policy Sciences, New York, Elsevier.
- Kindon's J.W (1984), Agendas, Alternatives, and public policy, Harper Collians, New York.
- Lerner, D. and H.D.Lasswell (eds.), (1951), The Policy Sciences, Stanford, Stanford University Press.
- Lindblom, C.E., and E.J., Woodhouse, (1993), The Policy making Process, 3rd ed., New Jersey., Prentice Hall.
- McCool, Daniel C. (ed.), (1995), Public Policy Theories, Models, and Concepts: An Anthology, NJ: Prentice-Hall.
- Moran Mitchel and Robert Goodin, (2006), The Oxford Handbook of Public Policy, Oxford University Press, New York.
- Nachmias, David, (1979), Public Policy Evaluation: Approaches and Methods,
- New York: St. Martin's Press.
- Thomas R Dye, (2008), Understanding Public Policy, Singapore, Pearson Education
- Wildwasky, Aaron (1980), The Art and Craft if Policy Analysis, Palgrave Macmillan, NY
- Wildwasky, Aaron (1987), The Speaking truth of power, Transaction Publication, New Jersey.
- Sapru RK, (2004), Public Policy: Formulation, Implementation and Evaluation, Sterling Publishers, New Delhi.

Discipline	PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION								
Course Code	UK1DSCPAN102	2							
Course Title	INDIAN CONST	FITUTION							
Type of Course	DSC / DSE / MD	C / SEC / V	AC / AEC						
Semester	I								
Academic Level	100 - 199	100 - 199							
Course Details	Credit	Lecture Hours	Tutorial Hrs	Practical Hours	Total Hours				
	4	32	16	12	60				
Pre-requisites	1. Fundamental understanding on Democracy and Indian Constitution 2. An insight into rights and duties of Indian citizen								
Course Summary	The course will Constitution and t				g of Indian				

DETAILED SYLLABUS

Module	Unit	Content	Hrs
I		Constitution in the Making	10
	1	Historical Background- Organisation of the Constituent Assembly	
	2	The Social and Ideological Base of Indian Constitution	
	3	Philosophy of the Constitution	
	4	Features of the Constitution	
II		Key aspects in Indian constitution	12
	5	Preamble	
	6	Citizenship	
	7	Fundamental Rights and Duties	
	8	Directive Principles of State Policy	
III		Organs of Government	6
	9	Legislature: Lok Sabha and Rajya Sabha	
	10	Executive: President-Prime Minister - Council of Ministers	
	11	Judiciary: Composition- Judicial Review and Judicial Activism	
	12	Separation of Powers- Checks and Balances	
IV		Federal Process in India	10
	13	Features of Federalism in India	
	14	Centre-State Relations: Federal Provisions and Experiences	
	15	Issues in Centre-State Relations	
	16	Changing Nature of Indian Federalism	
	17	Asymmetric Federalism	

V		Constitutional Bodies	10					
	18	Union Public Service Commission						
	19	Election Commission of India						
	20	Comptroller and Auditor General						
	21	Finance Commission						
	22	Minority Commission						
	23	Scheduled Castes and Scheduled Tribes Commission						
VI		Open Ended (This module is exclusively designed for internal evaluation only. Choose any two activities.)	12					
	24	Activity 1: Mock Parliament						
		Activity 2: Filing of RTI (Right to Information)						
		Activity 3: Case studies in relation to conflict between individual rights and group rights						

COURSE OUTCOMES

No.	Upon completion of the course the graduate will be able to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO-1	Understand the Indian Constitution, its Evolution, Social, Ideological Bases and Philosophy	U	PSO-1 PSO-4
CO-2	Examine Relationship between State and Individual in Relation to Fundamental Rights and the Directive Principles of State Policy in India	Ap E	PSO-3 PSO-4
CO-3	Critically Evaluate the Changing Roles and Interplay of the Three Pillars of Indian Democracy: Executive, Legislature and Judiciary.	E An	PSO-4 PSO-10
CO-4	Assess the features of Federalism in India.	E Ap	PSO-4 PSO-10
CO-5	Explore the Role of various Constitutional Bodies	U E	PSO-4 PSO-8
CO-6	Experience the Functioning of the organs of the State and Constitutional Parameters in the Real World	An Ap C	PSO-4 PSO-8

R-Remember, U-Understand, Ap-Apply, An-Analyse, E-Evaluate, C-Create

CO No.	СО	PO/PSO	Cognitive Level	Knowledge Category	Lecture (L)/ Tutorial (T)	Practical (P)
CO-1	Understand the Indian Constitution, its Evolution, Social, Ideological Bases and Philosophy	PSO-1 PSO-4 PO-1	U	F, C	Book Review	
CO-2	Examine Relationship between State and Individual in Relation to Fundamental Rights and the Directive Principles of State Policy in India	PSO-3 PSO-4 PO-8	Ap E	F, C	Case Analysis	
CO-3	Critically Evaluate the Changing Roles and Interplay of the Three Pillars of Indian Democracy: Executive, Legislature and Judiciary.	PSO-4 PSO-10 PO-3	E An	C, P	Debate	
CO-4	Assess the features of Federalism in India.	PSO-4 PSO-10 PO-3	E Ap	F, C, M	Seminar	
CO-5	Explore the Role of various Constitutional Bodies	PSO-4 PSO-8 PO-8	U E	F, P	Assignment	
CO-6	Experience the Functioning of the organs of the State and Constitutional Parameters in the Real World	PSO-4 PSO-8 PO-8	An Ap C	P, M	Field Visit Case Study	

Mapping of COs with PSOs and POs:

	PSO-1	PSO-3	PSO-4	PSO-8	PSO-10	PSO-6	PO-1	PO-3	PO-8
CO-1	2	-	3	-	-	-	3		
CO-2		3	2	-	-	-			3
CO-3	-	-	2	-	3			3	
CO-4	-	-	2	-	2	-		3	
CO-5	-		3	3	-	-			2
CO-6	-	-	2	3	-	-			3

Mapping of COs to Assessment Rubrics:

	Internal Exam	Assignment	Project Evaluation	End Semester Examinations
CO-1	✓			✓
CO-2	✓			✓
CO-3	✓			✓
CO-4		✓		✓
CO-5		✓		✓
CO-6			✓	

26

REFERENCES

- Rajasekhar, D. (2023). Handbook of Decentralised Governance and Development in India. Routledge India.
- Jayal, N. G. (2006). Local Governance in India: Decentralization and Beyond. Oxford University Press.
- Baud, I. S. A. (2008). New Forms of Urban Governance in India: Shifts, Models, Networks and Contestations. SAGE Publications.
- Sachdeva, P. (2011). Local Government in India. India: Pearson.
- Mathur, K. (2013). Panchayati Raj: Oxford India Short Introductions. India: OUP India.
- Venkatesu, E. (2016). Democratic Decentralization in India: Experiences, Issues and Challenges. Routledge, Taylor & Francis Group.
- Rao, P. S. N. (2006). Urban Governance and Management: Indian Initiatives. Indian Institute of Public Administration.
- Chakrabarty, B., Pandey, R. K. (2019). Local Governance in India. India: SAGE Publications.
- Biju, M. R. (1997). Politics of democracy and decentralisation in India. Atlantic Publishers.
- Johnson, C. (2003). Decentralisation in India: Poverty, Politics and Panchayati Raj. Overseas Development Institute.
- Venkatesu, E. (2016). Democratic Decentralization in India: Experiences, Issues and Challenges. Routledge: New Delhi.
- Das, P. K. (2017). Decentralisation, Governance & Development. Orient Blackswan Private Limited
- Prakash, A., Jayal, P. S., & Gopal, N. (2007). Local Governance in India: Decentralization and Beyond. Oxford India.
- Singh, S. (2004). Decentralised Governance in India: Myth and Reality. Deep and Deep Publications.
- Biju, M. R. (2019). Politics of Grassroot Democracy in India. Concept Publishing Company Pvt. Ltd.

MULTI-DISCIPLINARY COURSE

- 1. Fundamentals of Public Administration
- 2. Introduction to Indian Administration

Dissiplins	DUDI IC ADMINI	PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION						
Discipline	PUBLIC ADMIN	FUBLIC ADMINISTRATION						
Course Code	UK1MDCPAN10	0						
Course Title	FUNDAMENTA	FUNDAMENTALS OF PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION						
Type of Course	DSC / DSE / MD	C / SEC / VA	AC / AEC					
Semester	I	I						
Academic Level	100 - 199							
Course Details	Credit	Lecture per week	Tutorial per week	Practical per week	Total Hours/Week			
	3	20	15	10	45			
Pre-requisites	1. General Unders 2. Civil Service/ I	_	•	emocracy				
Course Summary	Administration. E Administration ar	2. Civil Service/ Public Service Aspiration Create awareness on the origin and development of the discipline Public Administration. Ensure the Learner's Competency in Principles of Administration and recent trends. Build an analytical knowledge in Approaches of Public Administration						

DETAILED SYLLABUS

Module	Unit	Content	Hrs					
I	-	Development of Public Administration as a Subject of Study	5					
	1	Public Administration- Meaning, Nature, Scope and Significance						
	2	2 Evolution and Present Status of the Discipline						
	3	Politics Administration Dichotomy						
	4	Globalization and Public Administration						
	5	Paradigm shift from Government to Governance.						
II		Public Administration and Social Sciences	5					
	6	Political Science						
	7	Law						
	8	Economics						
	9	Sociology and Psychology						
	10	Management Sciences						
III		Principles of Administration	5					
	11	Principles of Administration						
	12	Division of Work; Hierarchy; Coordination; Unity of Command; Span of Control						
	13	Authority, Power and Responsibility; Delegation,						
	14	Centralization and Decentralization; Line, Staff and Auxiliary Agencies						
	15	Leadership and Supervision; Decision-making and Communication						

IV		Approaches to Public Administration	10					
	16	Classical Approach: Henri Fayol						
	17 Bureaucratic Approach: Max Weber and Karl Marx							
	18 Administrative Ecology: F.W.Riggs							
	19	Public Choice Approach: Vincent Ostrom						
V		Modern Concepts in Administration	10					
	20	Comparative Administration						
	21 Development Administration							
	22	New Public Management						
	23	Good Governance						
	24	E-Governance, Sustainable Governance						
VI	25	Open Module (This module is exclusively designed for internal evaluation only. Choose any two activities.)	10					
		Activity 1- Discussion with a Civil Servant Activity 2- Visit to a Public Office Activity 3- Seminar on Modern Concepts in Administration evaluated by an External Expert						

COURSE OUTCOMES

No.	Upon completion of the course the graduate will be able to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO-1	Gain a basic understanding of the nature, evolution and concept of Public Administration in practice	Re Un An	PSO1 PSO2
CO-2	Have clarity on the relationship of Public Administration with other disciplines	Un An	PSO1 PSO2
CO-3	Familiarise with common administrative principles in everyday administration	Un An Ev	PSO1 PSO2
CO-4	Have a concise understanding of the relevant approaches in administrative evolution	Un An Ev	PSO1 PSO2
CO5	Develop a general understanding of Modern administrative approaches, concepts and International practices	Un An Cr	PSO3 PSO4
CO6	A practical understanding of the administrative practices in modern societies globally	Un An Cr	PSO4

R-Remember, U-Understand, Ap-Apply, An-Analyse, E-Evaluate, C-Create

CO No.	СО	PO/ PSO	Cognitive Level	Knowledge Category	Lecture (L)/ Tutorial (T)	Practical (P)
CO1	Gain a basic understanding of the nature, evolution and concept of Public Administration in practice	PO1 PSO1 PSO2	Re Un An	С	Tutorial Assignment and Discussion, LMS	
CO2	Have clarity on the relationship of Public Administration with other disciplines	PO3 PSO1 PSO2		F	Tutorial Assignment, Debates, Book Review, Presentation, LMS	
CO3	Familiarise with common administrative principles in everyday administration	PO1 PSO2	Un An Ev	С	Tutorial Assignment, Discussion on various principles, Book Review, LMS	
CO4	Have a concise understanding of the relevant approaches in administrative evolution	PO1 PO3 PSO1 PSO2	Un An Ev	F	Tutorial Assignment, Case Analysis, LMS	
CO5	Develop a general understanding of Modern administrative approaches, concepts and International practices	PO3 PSO3 PSO4	Un An Cr	P	Book /Article Review, Case studies, Discussion on comparative analysis of administrative systems, debates, LMS	
CO6	A practical understanding of the administrative practices in modern societies globally	PO1 PO3 PSO4	Un An Cr	Р	Group Discussion, Case Studies, Article Review	

Mapping of COs with PSOs and POs:

	PSO1	PSO2	PSO3	PSO4	PO1	PO3	PO4	PO5
CO 1	3	3	-	1	3	-	1	1
CO 2	3	3	-	1	-	3	-	-
CO 3	-	3	-	2	3	-	2	-
CO 4	3	3	-	1	3	3	-	1
CO 5	1	_	3	3	-	3	-	-
CO 6	-	1	-	3	3	3	-	1

Mapping of COs to Assessment Rubrics:

	Internal Exam	Assignment	Project Evaluation	End Semester Examinations
CO 1	√			✓
CO 2	√			√
CO 3	√			✓
CO 4		√		✓
CO 5		√		✓
CO 6			√	

References

- Alaka Dhameja (Ed.) (2003). Contemporary Debates in Public Administration. New Delhi.
- Amanda, M. Olejarski, Sue, M. Neal (2024). Empowering Public Administrators: Ethics and Public Service Values. Routledge; 1st edition
- Arora, R. K., & Sharma, S. (Eds.) (1992). Comparative and Development Administration: Ideas and Action. Jaipur: Arihant.
- Arora, R., & Goyal. (1989). Indian Public Administration: Institutions and Issues. New Delhi: Wishwa Publications.
- Avasthi, A., & Maheshwari, S. (2016). Public Administration. Agra: Lakshmi Narain Agarwal.
- Basu, R. (2018). Public Administration, Concepts and Theories. New Delhi: Sterling.
- Basu, R. (2019). Public Administration in the 21st Century: A Global South Perspective. New York and London: Routledge.
- Bava, N. (2010). Public Administration in the 21st Century. New Delhi: Kanishka Publishers.
- Bhagwan, V., & Bhushan, V. (2005). Public Administration. New Delhi: S. Chand & Co. Ltd.
- Bhattacharya, M. (2013). Restructuring Public Administration: A New Look. New Delhi: Jawahar Publishers.
- Bhattacharya, M. (2016). New Horizons of Public Administration. Willford Press.
- Bidyut Chakrabarty (2008). The Governance Discourse: A Reader. Oxford University Press.
- Chakrabarty, B., & Bhattacharya, M. (2005). Public Administration: A Reader. New Delhi: OUP.
- Chakravarty, B., & Chand, P. (2018). Public Administration in a Globalizing World. New Delhi: Sage.
- Chandler, J. A. (2017). Public Policy and Private Interest: Ideas, Self-Interest, and Ethics in Public Policy. Routledge.
- Dahiya, S. S., & Singh, R. (2014). Comparative Public Administration. New Delhi: Sterling

- Dhameja. Alka (2003), Contemporary Debates in Public Administration, Prentice Hall India Learning Private Limited; Standard Edition
- Donald Menzel and Harvey White (Eds.) (2011). The State of Public Administration: Issues, Challenges and Opportunity. New York: M. E. Sharpe.
- Grant. Duncan (2023). Government and Political Trust: The Quest for Positive Public Administration. Routledge; 1st edition
- Esping-Andersen, G. (1990). The Three Worlds of Welfare Capitalism. Cambridge: Polity.
- Fadia, B. L., & Fadia, K. (2008). Public Administration: Administrative Theories and Concepts. Agra: Sahitya Bhawan Publications.
- Fox, C. J., & Miller, H. T. (1995). Postmodern Public Administration: Toward Discourse. London: Sage Publications.
- Frederickson, H. G. (1990). New Public Administration. Alabama: University of Alabama Press.
- Fry, B. R. (1989). Mastering Public Administration: From Max Weber to Dwight Waldo. New Jersey: Chatham House.
- Ghai, K. K. (2013). Major Governments, Political System of U.K., USA, Switzerland, France, and China. New Delhi: Kalyani Publishers.
- Gulick, L., & Urwick, L. (Eds.) (1937). Papers on the Science of Administration. New York: Institute of Public Administration.
- Henry, N. (2004). Public Administration and Public Affairs. New Delhi: Prentice-Hall of India.
- Iversen, T., & Cusack, T. (2000). 'The causes of welfare state expansion'. World Politics.
- Learg (Ed.), R. O'. (2011). The Future of Public Administration Around the World: The Minnowbrook Perspective. Washington, D.C.: Georgetown University Press.
- Miluwi, J. O. (2014). Public Administration: Theory and Practice. Delhi: Mangalam Publications.
- Monkelbaan, J. (2019). Governance for the Sustainable Development Goals: Exploring an Integrative Framework of Theories, Tools, and Competencies. Springer.
- Morgan, B. N., Cok, R. W., Back, S. J. (2011). Public Administration in Theory and Practice. Delhi: Pearson.
- Nigro, F. A. (1965). Modern Public Administration. New York: Harper and Row.
- Ongaro, E. (2017). Philosophy and Public Administration. Edward Elgar Publishing.
- Robbins, S. (2008). Organisational Behaviour. New Delhi: PHI.
- Sabir Kuhalmann (2014). Introduction to Comparative Public Administration. Edward Elgar Publishing.
- Sahni, P., & Vayunandan, E. (2010). Administrative Theory. PHI, New Delhi.
- Sapru, R. K. (2014). Development Administration. New Delhi: Sterling Publishers.
- Schwester, R. W., & Hozler, M. (2011). Public Administration: An Introduction. New Delhi: PHI Learning Ltd.
- Shafritz, J. M. (2017). Introducing Public Administration. New York: Routledge.
- Shafritz, J. M., & Hyde, A. C. (Eds.) (1987). Classics of Public Administration. Chicago, Illinois: The Dorsey Press.
- Sharma, M. P., & Sadana, B. L. (2015). Public Administration in Theory and Practice. Allahabad: Kitah Mahal
- Shrivastava, V. B. (2016). Theory and Practice in Public Administration. New Delhi: Sterling Publishers.
- Tyagi, A. R. (2001). Public Administration: Principles and Practice. Delhi: Atma Ram and Sons.

Discipline	PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION					
Course Code	UK1MDCPAN101					
Course Title	INTRODUCTIO	N TO INDI	AN ADMIN	ISTRATION	V	
Type of Course	DSC / DSE / MD	C / SEC / VA	AC / AEC			
Semester	I					
Academic Level	100- 199					
Course Details	Credit	Lecture Hours	Tutorial Hrs	Practical Hours	Total Hours	
	3	25	10	10	45	
Pre-requisites	 Basic Understanding on the Administrative Activity in India. A Basic Knowledge on Indian System of Administration 					
Course Summary	The Course will Provide a Holistic Understanding of the Structural Functional Aspects of Indian Administrative System.					

DETAILED SYLLABUS

Module	Unit	Content	Hrs
I		Evolution Of Indian Administration	7
	1	Historical development of administrative systems in India	
	2	Ancient. Medieval, British Legacy	
	3	Indianisation of Public Service.	
II		Administration At Union Level	7
	4	Administration at Central Level- Structures and Powers.	
	5	Central Secretariat- Structure and Functions.	
	6	Cabinet Secretariat.	
	7	PMO	
	8	Administration at Central Level- Structures and Powers.	
Ш		Administration At State Level	
	9	State Secretariat – Organization and Role	
	10	Role and Functions of Chief Secretary	
	11	District Administration- District Collector	
IV	Issues In Administration		
	12	Minister Civil Servant Relation- Generalist Vs Specialists	
	13	Corruption in Administration - Administrative Reforms Commissions in India	
	14	Cast- Class- Gender- Regional and Geographical Differences	

V		Recent Trends In Administration	7			
	15	Privatization- Public Private Partnership				
	16	Corporate Social Responsibility				
	17	Digitalization of Administration				
	18	Participatory Governance- Inclusive Administration				
	19	Responsive Policies- Monitoring and Evaluation				
	20	Social Cohesion				
VI	21	Open Ended (This module is exclusively designed for internal evaluation only. Choose any two activities.)				
		Activity 1: Field Visit to State Secretariat Department to Understand the Administrative Hierarchy and the Functioning.				
		Activity 2: Interview with District Collector or Some other Higher Bureaucratic Functionaries.				
		Activity 3: Debate on the issues currently running in the Indian Administrative system.				

COURSE OUTCOMES

No.	Upon completion of the course the graduate will be able to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO-1	Understand the Historical Development of Indian Administrative System	U An	PSO-1 PSO-4
CO-2	Examine the Structure and Functioning of Administration at Central Level	U Ap	PSO-6
CO-3	Analyze the Structure and Functioning of Administration at State Level	Ap An	PSO-6
CO-4	Examine the Issues in Administration	An E	PSO-6
CO-5	Identify Recent Trends in Indian administration	U Ap An	PSO-2 PSO-4
CO-6	Experience the Functioning of Administration at Centre and State Levels and Understand the Issues and Recent Trends in Indian Administration	E An Ap C	PSO-4

R-Remember, U-Understand, Ap-Apply, An-Analyse, E-Evaluate, C-Create

CO No.	СО	PO/ PSO	Cognitive Level	Knowledge Category	Lecture (L)/ Tutorial (T)	Practical (P)
CO-1	Understand the Historical Development of Indian Administrative System	PSO-1 PSO-4 PO-1	U Ap	F, C	Book Review	
CO-2	Examine the Structure and Functioning of Administration at Central Level	PSO-6 PO-1	Ap An	F, C	Assignment	
CO-3	Analyze the Structure and Functioning of Administration at State Level	PSO-6 PO-1	Ap An	F, M	Assignment	
CO-4	Examine the Issues in Indian Administration	PSO-6 PO-3	An E	F, C, P, M	Debate	
CO-5	Identify Recent Trends in Indian administration	PSO-2 PSO-4 PO-5	U Ap An	F, P, C	Case Analysis	
CO-6	Experience the Functioning of Administration at Centre and State Levels and Understand the Issues and Recent Trends in Indian Administration	PSO-3 PSO-4 PO-8	E An Ap C	С, М	Field Visit Case Study Debate	

Mapping of COs with PSOs and POs:

	PSO-1	PSO-2	PSO-4	PSO-6	PO-1	PO-3	PO-5	PO-8
CO-1	1	-	2	1	2			
CO-2			1	3	2			
CO-3	-	-		3	2			
CO-4	-	-		3		3		
CO-5	-	1	-	3			2	
CO-6	-	-	1	3				3

Mapping of COs to Assessment Rubrics:

	Internal Exam	Assignment	Project Evaluation	End Semester Examinations
CO-1	✓			✓
CO-2	√			✓
CO-3	√			✓
CO-4		✓		✓
CO-5		✓		✓
CO-6			√	

- 1. Chakrabarthy Bidyut and Prakashh Chand (2016), Indian Administration: Evolution and Practice, New Delhi, Sage Publishers
- 2. The Oxford Companion to Politics in India. (2010). India: Oxford University Press.
- 3. Routledge Handbook of Indian Politics. (2013). United Kingdom: Routledge.
- 4. Arora Ramesh k and Goyal Rajni (2007), Indian Administration: Institutions and Issue, New Delhi, New Age International
- 5. Administrative Change and Innovation: A Reader. (2005). India: Oxford University Press.
- 6. Subhash C Kashyap (1989), Indian Polity: Retrospect and Prospect Allahabad University Alumini Association, National Public House
- 7. Subash C Kashyap (2010), Indian Constitution: Conflicts and Controversies, Vitasta
- 8. Jodhka, S. S., Naudet, J. (2023). The Oxford Handbook of Caste. United Kingdom: Oxford University Press.
- 9. Politics and Ethics of the Indian Constitution. (2008). India: Oxford University Press.
- 10. Chakrabarty, B. (2008). Indian Politics and Society Since Independence: Events, Processes and Ideology. (n.p.): Taylor & Francis.

SEMESTER II

DISCIPLINE-SPECIFIC CORE

- 1. Administrative Thinkers I
- 2. Comparative Public Administration
- 3. Indian Administration

Discipline	PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION						
Course Code	UK2DSCPAN100	UK2DSCPAN100					
Course Title	ADMINISTARTIVE THINKERS - I						
Type of Course	DSC / DSE / MDC	DSC / DSE / MDC / SEC / VAC / AEC					
Semester	II						
Academic Level	100-199						
Course Details	Credit	Lecture hrs	Tutorial hrs	Practical hrs	Total hrs		
	4	30	20	10	60		
Pre-requisites	Need to complete introduction to Public Administration Habit of reading biopics.						
Course Summary Providing knowledge on Classical, Oriental, Bureauc Neoclassical and Behavioural thinkers. Given ample important Indian Thinkers							

Module	Unit	Contents	Hrs
I		Ancient Thinkers	10
	1	Introduction to Administrative Thinkers	
	2	Need and Importance of the Study of Thinkers	
	3	Kautilya – Saptanga Theory in Arthasastra	
	4	Sun Tzu – Diplomatic Theory	
II		Classical Thinkers	10
	5	F W Taylor – Early interventions (till 1910)	
	6	F W Taylor - Scientific Management and Mental Revolution	
	7	Henry Fayol – Principles of Administration	
	8	Gullick and Urwick - Principles of Administration	
III		Bureaucratic Thinkers	10
	9	Max Weber - Bureaucratic Theory	
	10	Karl Marx - Bureaucracy	
	11	Donald Kingsley - Representative Bureaucracy	
	12	Samuel Krislov – Representative Bureaucracy	
IV		Neo-Classical Thinkers	10
	13	Mooney and Reiley – Principles of Organisation	
	14	Mary Parker Follet – Constructive Conflict	
	15	Elton Mayo – Human Relations Theory	
	16	Chester Bernard – Formal and Informal Organisations	
	17	Mahatma Gandhi – Swaraj and Trusteeship	
	18	Jawaharlal Nehru – Citizen Centric Administration	

V		Behavioural Thinkers	10			
	19	Robert Dahl – The Science of Public Administration				
	20	Herbert Simon - Decision making				
	21	wight Waldo – Administrative State				
	22	W Riggs – Ecology of Administration				
VI	VI Open Ended Module (This module is used for internal evaluation. Can select any two activities)		10			
		Activity 1: Book Review Book of any one thinker from the syllabus Activity 2: Seminars On an efficient administrative practice On the contributions of a living administrative thinker Activity 3: Quiz On core subject				

No.	Upon completion of the course the graduate will be able to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO1	Understanding the growth of administrative thought.	U	PSO1
CO2	Discuss elaborately the thoughts of ancient thinkers	U	PSO1
CO3	Discuss elaborately the contributions of Classical Thinkers	U	PSO1
CO4	Understand and critically evaluate the idea of Bureaucracy.	U & An	PSO2
CO5	Understanding Behavioural thought	U	PSO2
CO6	Enable to present their understanding	С	PSO3

$R-Remember,\,U-Understand,\,Ap-Apply,\,An-Analyse,\,E-Evaluate,\,C-Create$

CO No.	СО	PO/ PSO	Cognitive Level	Knowledge Category	Lecture (L)/ Tutorial (T)	Practical (P)
1	Understanding the growth of administrative thought.	PO5/PSO1	U	С	Book review	
2	Discuss elaborately the thoughts of ancient thinkers	PO5/PSO1	U	С	Videos	
3	Discuss elaborately the contributions of Classical Thinkers	PO5/PSO1	U	С	Discussions	
4	Understand and critically evaluate the idea of Bureaucracy.	PO5/PSO2	U &An	С	Book review	
5	Understanding Behavioural thought	PO5/PSO2	U	С	Discussion	
6	Enable to present their understanding	PO5/PSO3	С	M	Debate	

F-Factual, C- Conceptual, P-Procedural, M-Metacognitive

	PSO1	PSO2	PSO3	PO1	PO4	PO5	PO8
CO 1	3	1	1	2	1	3	1
CO 2	3	1	1	2	1	3	1
CO 3	3	1	1	1	1	3	1
CO 4	1	3	1	2	1	3	1
CO 5	1	3	1	2	1	3	1
CO 6	1	1	3	1	1	3	1

Mapping of COs to Assessment Rubrics:

	Book reviews	Assignment	Debates	End Semester Examinations
CO 1	√			√
CO 2	√			✓
CO 3	√			✓
CO 4		✓		√
CO 5		✓		√
CO 6			√	

- Avasthi, A., & Maheshwari, S. R. (2013). Public Administration. Lakshmi Narain Agarwal, Agra.
- Basu, R. (2008). Public Administration: Concepts and Theories. Sterling Publishers, New Delhi.
- Bhagwan, V., Bhushan, V., & Mohla, V. (2010). Public Administration. S. Chand, Jalandhar.
- Bhambri, C. P. (2010). Public Administration Theory and Practice (21st Edition). Educational Publishers. Meerut.
- Bhattacharaya, M. (2008). New Horizons of Public Administration. Jawahar Publishers and Distributors, New Delhi.
- Bhattacharya, M. (2000). Public Administration. World Press, Calcutta.
- Bhattacharya, M. (2012). Public Administration: Issues and Perspective. Jawahar Publishers and Distributors, New Delhi.
- Chakrabarty, B., & Chand, P. (2012). Public Administration in a Globalizing World: Theories and Practices. Sage, New Delhi.
- Denhardt, J. V., & Denhardt, R. B. (2015). The New Public Service: Serving, Not Steering (4th Edition). Routledge, New York.
- Drucker, P. F. (1993). Management: Tasks, Responsibilities, Practices. Harper Collins, New York.
- Drucker, P. F. (2008). The Essential Drucker. Harper Collins, New York.
- Dunleavy, P. (1992). Democracy, Bureaucracy and Public Choice. Harvester Wheatsheaf, Aldershot, UK.
- Fesler, J. W. (2007). Elements of Public Administration. Read Books, Worcestershire, UK.
- Ghuman, B. S. (2001). "New Public Management: Theory and Practice." Indian Journal of Public Administration, 47(4), 769-779.

- Golembiewsky, R. T. (1977). Public Administration as a Developing Discipline Part 2. Marcel Dekker, New York.
- Goodnow, F. J. (2009). Politics and Administration: A Study in Government Originally published by MacMillan in 1900, Fifth Printing. Transaction Publishers, New Brunswick, New Jersey.
- Henry, N. (2013). Public Administration and Public Affairs (13th Edition). Taylor and Francis, New York.
- Hood, C. (1989). "Public Administration and Public Policy: Intellectual Challenges for the 1990s." Australian Journal of Public Administration, 48, 34-66.
- Hood, C., & Dixon, R. (2015). A Government That Worked Better and Cost Less?: Evaluating three Decades of Reform and Change in UK Central Government. Oxford University Press, Oxford.
- Koontz, H., & O'Donnell, C. (1986). Principles of Management (4th Edition). McGraw Hill education, Tokyo.
- Marx, F. M. (Ed.). (1946). Elements of Public Administration. Prentice Hall, New York.
- Laxmikanth, M. (2011). Public Administration. Tata McGraw, New Delhi.
- Marini, F. (1971). Towards a New Public Administration. Chandler, Scranton, PA.
- Medury, U. (2010). Public Administration in the Globalization Era The New Public Management Perspective. Orient Blackswan, New Delhi.
- Nigro, F. A., & Nigro, L. G. (1988). Modern Public Administration (7th Edition). HarperCollins, New York.
- Niskanen Jr., W. A. (2007). Bureaucracy and Representative Government. Aldine-Atherton, Chicago.
- Osborne, D., & Gaebler, T. (1992). Reinventing Government. Penguin Press, New York.
- Osborne, D., & Gaebler, T. (1992). Re-inventing Government: How the Entrepreneurial Spirit is Transforming the Public Sector. Addison Wesley, New York.
- Ostrom, E. (2015). Governing the Commons: The Evolution of Institutions for Collective Action. Cambridge University Press, Cambridge.
- Pfiffner, J. M. (1960). Administrative Organization. Prentice Hall, New York.
- Raadschelders, J. C. N. (2011). Public Administration: The Interdisciplinary Study of Government. Oxford University Press, New York

Discipline	PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION					
Course Code	UK2DSCPAN101					
Course Title	COMPARATIVE PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION					
Type of Course	DSC / DSE / MDC / SEC / VAC / AEC					
Semester	II					
AcademicLevel	100 – 199					
Course Details	Credit	Lecture Hours	Tutorial Hours	Practical Hours	Total Hours/Week	
	4	30 hours	18 hours	12 hours	60	
Pre-requisites	1. Basic Understan 2. Geographical Un	_			ping Nations.	
Course Summary	This course provides a comparative exploration of Public Administration in different countries. It also provides knowledge on the theories and approaches, functions of the executive, legislature, judiciary; peculiarities, trends, and innovative administrative practices.					

Module	Unit	Content	Hrs		
I		Fundamentals of Comparative Public Administration	10		
	1	Meaning, Nature, Scope, and Importance of Comparative Public Administration			
	2	Evolution of Comparative Public Administration, Normative- Empirical, Idiographic – Nomothetic – Ecological			
	3	3 Structural-Functional Approach, Institutional Approach, Ecological Approach			
	4	Contributions of David Easton			
II		Comparative Analysis of functions of Executive	10		
	5	Different types of Executives			
	6	Presidential System in USA- Powers and Functions			
	7	Parliamentary System in UK- Powers and Functions			
	8	Collegiate Executive in Switzerland- Powers and Functions			
III		Legislature	10		
	9	Bicameral and Unicameral Legislatures – features and differences			
	10	Functions of National People's Congress in China			
	11	Legislative System of France			

IV		Judiciary	10					
	12	Define and Differentiate Rule of Law, Judicial Review, AdministrativeLaw, Judicial Activism						
	13	Functions and structure of Judiciary in UK						
	14	Functions and structure of Judiciary in USA						
	15 Functions and structure of Judiciary in France							
V		Types of Civil Service and Local Governments	10					
	16	Spoils System in USA						
	17	Functions and role of Civil service in France						
	18	Structure and functions of local government institutions in France						
	19	Structure and functions of local government institutions in Switzerland						
	20	Structure and functions of local government institutions in Germany						
VI	21	Open Ended Module (This module is exclusively designed for internal evaluation only. Choose any two activities.)	10					
		 Activity - 1 Familiarise with law-making process, international policy-making and changes in judiciary Activity - 2 Analyse current trends in Public Administration in the context of practical challenges worldwide Activity - 3 Develop a model administrative framework considering trends and principles discussed internationally 						

No.	Upon completion of the course the graduate will beable to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO1	Understand the meaning, concept and historical development of Comparative Public Administration and explain its nature, scope, and importance.	U	PSO-1 PSO-2
CO2	Understand various theories and approaches in the study of Comparative Public Administration, specialfocus on David Easton's contribution and systems theory.	R, U	PSO-1 PSO-3
CO3	Analyse the functions of major governments in UK, USA, Switzerland, and China - Executive, Legislature, Judiciary	An	PSO-4 PSO-6
CO4	Critically examine the working of Governmental systems and their comparison	Ap, E	PSO-1 PSO-8
CO5	Demonstrate a comprehensive understanding of the various structures, functions, and roles within civil service systems and local government entities in different countries	Ap, E	PSO-1 PSO-8
CO6	Acquire a practical understanding in policy making and current trends in public administration	С	PSO3 PSO6

R-Remember, U-Understand, Ap-Apply, An-Analyse, E-Evaluate, C-Create

CO No.	СО	PO/PSO	Cognitive Level	Knowledge Category	Lecture (L)/ Tutorial(T)	Practical (P)
CO1	Understand the meaning, concept and historical development of Comparative Public Administration and explain its nature, scope, and importance.	PO-1 PO-8 PSO-1 PSO-2	R, U	F, C	L	
CO2	Understand various theories and approaches in the study of Comparative Public Administration, special focus on David Easton's contribution and systems theory.	PO-2 PO-8 PSO-1 PSO-3	U	F.C	L	
CO3	Analyse the functions of major governments in UK, USA, Switzerland, and China - Executive, Legislature, Judiciary	PO-1 PO-8 PSO-4 PSO-6	An, E	P	L	Library
CO4	Critically examine the working of Governmental systems and their comparison	PO-3 PO-8 PSO-1 PSO-8	An, E	P	L	
CO5	Demonstrate a comprehensive understanding of the various structures, functions, and roles within civil service systems and local government entities in different countries	PO6 PSO-1 PSO-8	Ap, E	C,P	L	
CO6	Acquire a practical understanding in policy making and current trends in public administration	PO1 PO3 PSO3 PSO6	С	P, M		

F-Factual, C- Conceptual, P-Procedural, M- Metacognitive Mapping

	PSO1	PSO2	PSO3	PSO4	PSO 6	PSO8	PSO10	PSO12	PO1	PO2	PO3	PO8
CO1	2	3	3	-	-	1		2	2	1	2	1
CO2	2	2	2	-	-	2	2	1	1	1	3	1
CO3	3	3	1	1	-	-	-	1	3	1	-	1
CO4	2	3	2	ı	2	-		2	1	1	1	2
CO5	3	1	1	-	-	3	-	-	1	_	-	1
CO6	1	1	3	-	3	-	1		3	-	3	-

Mapping of COs to Assessment Rubrics:

	Quiz	Assignment	Project Evaluation	End Semester Examinations
CO 1	✓			✓
CO 2	✓			✓
CO 3	✓			✓
CO 4		✓		✓
CO 5		✓		✓
CO 6			✓	

- 1. Almond, Gabriel & Well G. B., (1976), Comparative Politics: A Developmental Approach, New Delhi, Oxford and IBH Pub. Co
- 2. Arora R. K., (2000), Comparative Public Administration, New Delhi, Associated Publishing House
- 3. Baker RJS (1972), Administrative Theory and Public Administration: London: Hutchinson & Co. Ltd.
- 4. Bekke, H., Perry J. L., Toonen T. A. J., (1996), Civil Service Systems in ComparativePerspective, Bloomington: Indiana University Press.
- 5. Breton le, Preston., (1968), Comparative Administrative Theory, University of Washington Press, Seattle.
- 6. Breton, le Preston, (1968)., Comparative Administrative Theory, University of Washington Press, Seattle.
- 7. Chandler, J. A., (2014) Comparative Public Administration, Routledge, London. Chaturvedi T. N., (2003), Comparative Public Administration, Jaipur, College BookDepot
- 8. Evan M. Berman, (2010), Public Administration in East Asia: Mainland China, Japan, South Korea, Taiwan, Routledge, New York.
- 9. Farazmand, Ali, (2001)., Handbook of Comparative and Development PublicAdministration, New York, Marcel Dekker Publishers
- 10. Heady F(ed), Comparative Public Administration, Michigan, Michigan University.

Discipline	PUBLIC ADMIN	PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION						
Course Code	UK2DSCPAN103	3						
Course Title	INDIAN ADMIN	NISTRATIC	ON					
Type of Course	DSC / DSE / MD	OC / SEC / V	AC / AEC					
Semester	II	II						
Academic Level	100 - 199							
Course Details	Credit	Lecture Hours	Tutorial Hrs	Practical Hours	Total Hours			
	4	30	18	12	60			
Pre-requisites	Basic Understanding on the Administrative Activities in India. A Basic Knowledge on Indian System of Administration							
Course Summary	The Course will Functional Aspec	•		_	the Structural			

Module	Unit	Content	Hrs				
I		Evolution of Indian Administration	10				
	1	Historical development of administrative systems in India					
	2	Ancient. Medieval, British Legacy					
	3	Indianisation of Public Service.					
II		Administration at Union Level	12				
	4	Administration at Central Level- Structure and Powers.					
	5	5 Central Secretariat- Structure and Functions.					
	6	6 Cabinet Secretariat					
	7	Prime Minister's Office (PMO)					
III		Administration at State Level					
	8	State Secretariat – Organization and Role					
	9	Role and Functions of Chief Secretary					
	10	District Administration- District Collector					
IV		Issues in Administration	10				
	11	Minister - Civil Servant Relationship (Generalist vs Specialists)					
	12	Corruption in Administration - Administrative Reforms Commissions in India					
	13	Caste – Class – Gender - Regional and Geographical Differences					
	14	Digital Divide					
	15	Integrity in Administration: Lokpal, Lokayukta, Central Vigilance Commission					

V		Recent Trends in Administration	10
	16	Privatization, Public Private Partnership (PPP)	
	17	Corporate Social Responsibility	
	18	Digitalization of Administration	
	19	Participatory Governance- Inclusive Administration	
	20	Responsive Policies- Monitoring and Evaluation	
	21	Social Cohesion	
VI	22	Open Ended Module (This module is exclusively designed for internal evaluation only. Choose any two activities.)	
		Activity 1: Field visit to State Secretariat department to understand the administrative hierarchy and the functioning	
		Activity 2: Interview with a civil servant or some other higher bureaucratic functionaries	
		Activity 3: Debate on the issues currently running in the Indian Administrative system.	

No.	Upon completion of the course the graduate will be able to	Cognitive	PSO
110.	Upon completion of the course the graduate will be able to	Level	addressed
CO-1	Understand the Historical Development of Indian Administrative System	U	PSO-1
		An	PSO-4
CO-2	Explore the organizational framework and operational roles of the central	Е	PSO-6
	administrative system.	U	
CO-3	Analyze the Structure and Functions of Administration at State Level	U	PSO-6
		An	
CO-4	Examine and Understand different issues related to Administration in India	An	PSO-6
		Е	
CO-5	Identify the recent trends in Administration	Е	PSO-2
		Ap	PSO-4
		An	
CO-6	Experience the functioning of administration at Central and State levels and	Е	PSO-4
	understand the issues.	An	
		Ap	
		С	

R-Remember, U-Understand, Ap-Apply, An-Analyse, E-Evaluate, C-Create

CO No.	СО	PO/PSO	Cognitive Level	Knowledge Category	Lecture (L)/ Tutorial (T)	Practical (P)
CO-1	Understand the Historical Development of Indian Administrative System	PSO-1 PSO-4 PO-1	U An	F, C	Book Review	
CO-2	Explore the organizational framework and operational roles of the central administrative system.	PSO-6 PO-1	E U	С	Assignment	
CO-3	Analyze the Structure and Functions of Administration at State Level	PSO-6 PO-1	U An	С	Assignment	
CO-4	Examine and Understand different issues related to Administration in India	PSO-6 PO-3	An E	F, C, M	Debate	
CO-5	Identify the recent trends in Administration	PSO-2 PSO-4 PO-5	E Ap An	F, C	Case Analysis	
CO-6	Experience the functioning of administration at Central and State levels and understand the issues.	PSO-3 PSO-4 PO-8	E An Ap C	F, C, M	Field Visit Case Study Debate	

F-Factual, C- Conceptual, P-Procedural, M-Metacognitive

	PSO-1	PSO-2	PSO-4	PSO-6	PO-1	PO-3	PO-5	PO-8
CO- 1	1	-	2	-	2	-	-	-
CO- 2	-	-	-	3	2	-	-	-
CO-3	-	-	-	3	2	-	-	-
CO- 4	-	-	-	3	-	3	-	-
CO- 5	-	1	-	3	-	-	2	-
CO- 6	-	-	1	3	-	-	-	3

Mapping of COs to Assessment Rubrics:

	Internal Exam	Assignment	Project Evaluation	End Semester Examinations
CO-1	√			✓
CO-2	√			✓
CO-3	√			✓
CO-4		✓		✓
CO-5		✓		✓
CO-6			✓	

- Chakrabarthy Bidyut and Prakash Chand (2016), Indian Administration: Evolution and Practice, New Delhi, Sage Publishers
- The Oxford Companion to Politics in India. (2010). India: Oxford University Press.
- Routledge Handbook of Indian Politics. (2013). United Kingdom: Routledge.
- Arora Ramesh k and Goyal Rajni (2007), Indian Administration: Institutions and Issue, New Delhi, New Age International
- Administrative Change and Innovation: A Reader. (2005). India: Oxford University Press.
- Jodhka, S. S., Naudet, J. (2023). The Oxford Handbook of Caste. United Kingdom: Oxford University Press.
- Politics and Ethics of the Indian Constitution. (2008). India: Oxford University Press.
- Chakrabarty, B. (2008). Indian Politics and Society Since Independence: Events, Processes and Ideology. (n.p.): Taylor & Francis.
- Chakrabarthy Bidyut and Prakash Chand (2016), Indian Administration: Evolution and Practice, New Delhi, Sage Publishers
- Ramchandran, P. (2021). Public Administration in India. National Book Trust India.
- Garg, S. C. (2023). We Also Make Policy: An Insider's Account of How the Finance Ministry Functions. India: HarperCollins India.
- Howes, S., Lahiri, A. K., Stern, N. H. (2003). State-level Reforms in India: Towards More Effective Government. India: Macmillan India.
- Mathur, K. (2019). Recasting Public Administration in India: Reform, Rhetoric, and Neoliberalism. India: Oxford University Press.
- Laxmikanth, M. (n.d.). Governance in India. India: McGraw Hill Education (India) Private Limited.
- Magbook Indian Polity & Governance 2020. (2020). (n.p.): Arihant Publications India limited.

MULTI-DISCIPLINARY COURSE

- 1. Civil Service and Personnel Administration
- 2. Local Governance

Discipline	PUBLIC AD	MINISTRATIO	N				
Course Code	UK2MDCPA	AN100					
Course Title	CIVIL SER	VICE AND PE	RSONNEL A	DMINISTRA	ΓΙΟΝ		
Type of Course	DSC / DSE /	MDC / SEC / V	VAC / AEC				
Semester	II						
Academic Level	100-199						
Course Details	Credit	Lecture Hours	Tutorial Hrs	Practical Hours	Total Hours		
	3	25	10	10	45		
Pre-requisites		dge of administ dge of Indian A	•	n India			
Course Summary	and manage	quips you with a their workforce of civil service	to achieve their	goals. The cou	rse deals with		

Module	Unit	Content	Hrs
I		Civil Services: Concept and Evolution	7
	1	Civil Service - Concept and Significance	
	2	Historical evolution of Indian Civil Service	
	3	Classification of Civil Service (All India Service, Central Service, State Service and Local Service)	
II		Personnel Administration in India	7
	4	Recruitment- Methods Recruiting- Recruiting Agencies in India- Union Public Service Commission (UPSC) -State PSC – Joint PSC	
	5	Training of Public Servants in India - Major Training Institutes	
	6	Promotion System in India	
	7	Disciplinary Procedure for Civil Servants	
	8	Performance Appraisal System for Central Civil Servants	
III		Service Rules in India	7
	9	Pay and Service Conditions: Pay Principles, Pay Determination and Pay Commissions	
	10	Allowances – Dearness Allowance -House Rent Allowance	
	11	Social Security Benefits – Pension, Gratuity, Health Insurance	
	12	Retirement - Retirement Benefits	
	13	New Pension Scheme (NPS)	

IV		Emerging Concepts in Personnel Administration	7
	14	Lateral Entry into Higher Civil Service- Skill Development and Mission Karma Yogi.	
	15	Administrative Vigilance, Administrative Tribunals	
	16	Good Governance Initiatives in India- Online recruitment portals, Digital Signatures and Biometric Authentication	
	17	Online Performance Appraisal Systems- Online Training Platforms, Whistleblower Protection Platforms.	
V		Indian Civil Services: Major Issues	
	18	Generalists and Specialists Controversy	
	19	Civil Services in the context of Globalisation	
	20	Civil Service Reforms- II nd Administrative Reforms Commission recommendations	
VI	21	Open Ended (This module is exclusively designed for internal evaluation only. Choose any two activities.)	10
		 The Lal Bahadur Shastri National Academy of Administration (LBSNAA) in Mussoorie introduces specialized training modules focused on areas like egovernance, citizen-centric service delivery, and public policy. Evaluate the effectiveness of these modules in equipping civil servants with the skills needed for modern governance challenges. In 2011, the UPSC launched a comprehensive online application system. Analyse its effectiveness. 	
		 Activity 2: Group Discussion Discussion with experienced Civil Servants and experts in Public Administration Panel discussions on emerging trends in Civil Service Administration. Activity 3: Participatory Observation Participation in panel discussions on Administrative Reforms Participation in analysing the use of technology e.g., online applications, e-governance in improving civil service recruitment and performance. 	

No.	Upon completion of the course the graduate will be able to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO1	Examine the historical evolution, concepts, and classification of Indian Civil Service.	U Ap	PSO1
CO2	Analyse and evaluate recruitment policies, selection processes, disciplinary procedures, and service rules of Indian Civil Service.	U Ap	PSO1 PSO2
СОЗ	Assess and analyse pay principles, the role of Pay Commissions in Indian Civil Service, retirement benefits and Pension scheme.	Ap An	PSO3
CO4	Evaluate the impact of globalization, civil service reforms, and emerging concepts in personnel administration	An E	PSO3
CO5	Analyse and assess the issues in administration	U Ap An	PSO10
CO6	Analyse the gap between theoretical knowledge and real-world application in the field of Indian Civil Service administration, providing participants with a comprehensive understanding of historical developments, current issues, and emerging trends.	E An Ap C	PSO8

R-Remember, U-Understand, Ap-Apply, An-Analyse, E-Evaluate, C-Create

CO No.	СО	PO/ PSO	Cognitive Level	Knowledge Category	Lecture (L)/ Tutorial (T)	Practical (P)
CO1	Examine the historical evolution, concepts, and classification of Indian Civil Service.	PO 1 PSO1	U Ap	F, C	Assignment	
CO2	Analyse and evaluate recruitment policies, selection processes, disciplinary procedures, and service rules of Indian Civil Service.	PO2 PSO1 PSO2	Ap An	F, C	Discussion Interviews	
CO3	Assess and analyse pay principles, the role of Pay Commissions in Indian Civil Service, retirement benefits and Pension scheme.	PO3 PSO3	Ap An	F, M	Assignments	
CO4	Evaluate the impact of globalization, civil service reforms, and emerging concepts in personnel administration	PO5 PSO3	An E	F, C, P, M	Case Analysis Group Discussion	
CO5	Analyse and assess the issues in administration	PO8 PSO10	U Ap An	F, P, C	Seminar	
CO6	Analyse the gap between theoretical knowledge and real-world application in the field of Indian Civil Service administration, providing participants with a comprehensive understanding of historical developments, current issues, and emerging trends.	PO6 PSO8	E An Ap C	C, M	Case Study Field Visit	

F-Factual, C- Conceptual, P-Procedural, M-Metacognitive

	PSO1	PSO2	PSO3	PSO-8	PSO-10	PO1	PO2	PO3	PO5	PO6	PO8
CO 1	2	-	-	-	-	2	-	-	-	-	-
CO 2	1	2	-	-	-	-	2	-	-	-	-
CO 3	-	-	2	1	-	1	-	2	-	-	-
CO 4	-	-	2	-	-	-	-	-	3	-	-
CO 5	-	-	-	-	2	-	-	-	-	-	1
CO 6	-	-	-	1	-	-	-	-	-	2	-

Mapping of COs to Assessment Rubrics:

	Internal Exam	Assignment	Project Evaluation	End Semester Examinations
CO 1	√			✓
CO 2	√			✓
CO 3	√			✓
CO 4		✓		✓
CO 5		✓		✓
CO 6			✓	

- 1. Bhayana, S., & Singh, S. S. (2016). Public personnel and financial administration (4th ed.).
- 2. Davar, R. S. (2008). Personnel management and industrial relations in India (2nd ed.). Vikas Publishing House.
- 3. Flippo, E. B. (2008). Principles of personnel management (4th ed.). McGraw-Hill.India.
- 4. Commission on Centre-State Relations (Sarkaria Commission). (1988). Report of the Commission on Centre-State Relations [Report]. Government of India. Retrieved from interstatecouncil.nic.in/report-of-the-Sarkaria-commission/Sarkaria commission report
- 5. India. Second Administrative Reforms Commission. (2010). Refurbishing of personnel administration: Scaling new heights (10th report). Government of India.
- 6. Koontz, H., & O'Donnell, C. (2008). Principles of management (5th ed.). McGraw-Hill.
- 7. Pigors, P., & Myers, C. A. (1969). Personnel administration: A point of view and a method (6th ed.). McGraw-Hill.
- 8. Rabin, J., Vocino, T., Hildreth, W. B., & Miller, J. G. (2008). Handbook of public personnel administration. Taylor & Francis.
- 9. Saxena, A. P. (2010). Training and development in government. Indian Institute of Public Administration.
- 10. Stahl, O. G. (1971). Public personnel administration (6th ed.). Oxford & IBH Publishing

Discipline	PUBLIC	ADMINISTRATIC	N					
Course Code	UK2MD0	UK2MDCPAN101						
Course Title	LOCAL	GOVERNANCE						
Type of Course	DSC / DS	SE / MDC / SEC / V	/AC / AEC					
Semester	II							
Academic Level	100-199							
Course Details	Credit	Lecture Hours	Tutorial Hrs	Practical Hours	Total Hours			
	3	25	10	10	45			
Pre-requisites		Jnderstanding of Ru Knowledge in Susta						
Course Summary	of Gover	rse aims at providir nance and Develog le Development.	•	_				

Module	Unit	Content	Hrs						
I		Governance and Development	7						
	1	1 Concepts- Governance and Development							
	2	Evolution and Significance of Governance and Development							
	3	Various Dimensions - Political, Constitutional- Social- Administrative- Economic- Geographic							
II		Rural Governance	7						
	4 Evolution - 73 rd Constitutional Amendment- Organisational Structure- Rural Local Bodies								
	5	Stakeholders of Rural Governance							
	6	Issues in Rural Governance							
	7	Initiatives and Development Programs							
III		Urban Governance	7						
	8	Evolution-74 th Constitutional Amendment- Organisational Structure- Urban local bodies							
	9	Stakeholders of Urban Governance							
	10	Issues in Urban Governance							
	11	Initiatives and Development Programs							

IV		Inclusive Measures in Decentralisation	7					
	12	Poverty Alleviation						
	13	Development and Welfare of Persons with Disabilities (PwD) and Geriatric Care						
	14	Welfare Economy						
	15 Women Empowerment							
	16	Social Capital Development						
	17	Self Help Groups and Thrift						
V		District Administration and Democratic Decentralization	10					
	20	Changing Role of District Collector						
	21	District and Metropolitan Planning Committee						
	22	District Development Authority						
VI	23	Open Ended (This module is exclusively designed for internal evaluation only. Choose any two activities.)	10					
		Activity 1: Field Study: Working of nearby Local Self-Government Institutions Activity 2: Portioinatory Observation Grama Sabba						
		Activity 2: Participatory Observation – Grama Sabha Activity 3: Case Study: • Punsari Model Village, Gujarat (India's first Adarsh Gram) • Indore Municipal Corporation (Cleanest city in India) • Eraviperoor Grama Panchayat, Pathanamthitta, Kerala (Complete Digitization)						

No.	Upon completion of the course the graduate will be able to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO1	Understand the Concepts of Governance and Development	U An	PSO3
CO2	Evaluate and Understand Governance at Rural Level	U An	PSO3
CO3	Assess and Understand Governance at Urban Level.	U An	PSO3
CO4	Identify the Connection between Sustainable Development Goals and Implementation Strategies at Local Level	U E	PSO8
CO5	Critically Examine the Involvement of Civil Society in Local Governance	U Ap An	PSO9
CO6	Understand the Emerging Trends in Local Governance and Critically Analyse the Impact of its Sustainability.	An Ap C	PSO3

R-Remember, U-Understand, Ap-Apply, An-Analyse, E-Evaluate, C-Create

CO No.	СО	PO/PSO	Cognitive Level	Knowledge Category	Lecture (L)/ Tutorial (T)	Practical (P)
CO1	Understand the Concepts of Governance and Development	PO6 PSO3	U An	С	Book Review	
CO2	Evaluate and Understand Governance at Rural Level	PO6 PSO3	An Ap	F, C	Assignment	
СОЗ	Assess and Understand Governance at Urban Level.	PO6 PSO3	An Ap	F, C	Assignment	
CO4	Identify the Connection between Sustainable Development Goals and Implementation Strategies at Local Level	PO6 PO8 PSO8	U E	F, C, M	Case Analysis	
CO5	Critically Examine the Involvement of Civil Society in Local Governance	PO6 PSO9 PO8	U An	F, C	Seminar	
CO6	Understand the Emerging Trends in Local Governance and Critically Analyse the Impact of its Sustainability.	PO1 PO3 PSO3	An Ap C	Р, М	Field Visit Debate	

F-Factual, C- Conceptual, P-Procedural, M-Metacognitive

	PSO1	PSO2	PSO3	PSO4	PSO8	PSO9	PO1	PO2	PO3	PO4	PO6	PO8
CO 1	1	1	3	-	ı	2	_	-	2	-	3	-
CO 2	-	1	3	-	1	-	-	1	-	1	3	-
CO 3	-	1	3	-	ı	-	2	-	-	-	3	3
CO 4	1	1	-	-	3	-	_	1	-	1	3	3
CO 5	-	1	-	-	-	3	_	-	2	-	3	-
CO 6	-	-	3	-	2	-	3	-	3	-	1	1

Mapping of COs to Assessment Rubrics:

	Internal Exam	Assignment	Project Evaluation	End Semester Examinations
CO 1	√			✓
CO 2	√			✓
CO 3	√			✓
CO 4		✓		✓
CO 5		✓		✓
CO 6			√	

- Sahni, P., Medury, U. (2004). Governance For Development: Issues and Stategies. India: PHI Learning.
- Yaday, L. (2011). Panchayati Raj Institutions and Rural Development. India: Anmol Publications.
- Pal, M. (2020). Rural Local Governance and Development. India: SAGE Publications, Incorporated.
- New Forms of Urban Governance in India: Shifts, Models, Networks and Contestations. (2008). India: SAGE Publications.
- Urban Infrastructure and Governance. (2020). India: Taylor & Francis.
- Resource Management, Sustainable Development and Governance: Indian and International Perspectives. (2022). Switzerland: Springer International Publishing.
- Reference Books
- Governance, Development, and Social Work. (2013). United Kingdom: Taylor & Francis.
- Urban Governance and Management: Indian Initiatives. (2006). India: Indian Institute of Public Administration.
- Jha, G. (2018). Fragile Urban Governance: Evolution, Decline, and Empowerment of Local Self-Government in India. United Kingdom: Taylor & Francis.
- Monkelbaan, J. (2018). Governance for the Sustainable Development Goals: Exploring an Integrative Framework of Theories, Tools, and Competencies. Germany: Springer Nature, Singapore.

SEMESTER III

DISCIPLINE-SPECIFIC CORE

- 1. Administrative Thinkers II
- 2. Public Policy Theories
- 3. Decentralized Administration in India

Discipline	PUBLIC A	ADMINISTRATION	ON				
Course Code	UK3DSCF	PAN200					
Course Title	ADMINIS	STARTIVE THI	NKERS II				
Type of Course	DSC / DS	E/MDC/SEC/	VAC / AEC				
Semester	III						
Academic Level	200-299						
Course Details	Credit	Lecture hrs	Tutorial hrs	Practical hrs	Total hrs		
	4	30	20	10	60		
Pre-requisites		complete Introdu f reading Bio pics	ction to Publi	c Administrati	on		
Course Summary	Organisati	nderstanding on onal Theories. Proministration.		1 1			

Module	Unit	Content	Hrs				
I		Motivational Theories-I	10				
	1	Abraham Maslow – Need Hierarchy Theory					
	2	Fredrick Herzberg-Hygiene and Motivation Factors					
	3	Douglas Mc Gregor – X-Y theory					
II		Motivational Theories-II					
	4	Stacy Adams – Equity Theory					
	5	Chris Argyris- Maturity – Immaturity Theory					
	6	David McClleland-Acquired Needs Theory					
III		Leadership and Market Theories					
	7	Robert R. Blake and Jane S. Mouton – Managerial Grid					
	8	Rensis Likert- Four system theory					
	9	Alderfer's ERG theory					
	10	Peter Drucker - Knowledge Based Organization					
IV		Organisational Change and Learning	10				
	11	Elinor Ostrom - Governing the Commons					
	12	Peter M. Senge - The Fifth Discipline					
	13	Vincent Ostrom - Public Choice					
	14	Schumacher, E .F - Small is Beautiful					

V		Emerging Trends	10						
	15	Paul J. DiMaggio and Walter W. Powell – Neo Institutionalism							
	16	Amartya Sen- Capability and Economic Development							
	17	Verghese Kurien- White Revolution							
	18	18 M S Swaminathan – Green Revolution							
	19 Fox and Miller - Post Modern Public Administration								
	20	Jurgen Habermas - Critical Social Theory							
VI	21 Open Ended Module (This module is for internal evaluation only. Can select any two activities)								
		Book Review On any one of the thinker Seminars On a live model or a live thinker. Quiz Make them thorough in the topic Helpful in multiple-choice based competitive examinations							

No.	Upon completion of the course, the graduate will be able to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO-1	Interpret various thoughts of Motivational thinkers	U, An	PSO1
CO-2	Examine Motivational Theories and thinkers	U,An	PSO1
CO3	Understand and evaluate the role of Leadership and Market theories in administrative thought	Ap, An	PSO1
CO4	Analyse the different thoughts on organisational change	U, An	PSO6
CO5	Understand and Critically evaluate emerging trends in administration	U, E	PSO2
CO6	Develop an ability to communicate what they learned and experience	E, C	PSO3

R-Remember, U-Understand, Ap-Apply, An-Analyse, E-Evaluate, C-Create

CO No.	СО	PO/PSO	Cognitive Level	Knowledge Category	Lecture (L)/ Tutorial (T)	Practical (P)
1	Interpret various thoughts of Motivational thinkers	PO1 PSO1	U, An	С	Case Studies	
2	Examine Motivational Theories and thinkers	PO1 PSO1	U,An	С	Case Studies	
3	Understand and evaluate the role of Leadership and Market theories in administrative thought	PO5 PSO1	Ap, An	С	Debates	
4	Analyse the different thoughts on organisational change	PO2 PSO6	U, An	С	Role plays	
5	Understand and Critically evaluate emerging trends in administration	PO2 PSO2	U, E	С	Discussions	
6	Develop an ability to communicate what they learned and experience	PO3 PSO3	E, C	С	Discussions Seminars	

F-Factual, C- Conceptual, P-Procedural, M-Metacognitive

	PSO1	PSO2	PSO3	PO1	PO2	PO3	PO5
CO 1	3	2	2	3	1	1	1
CO 2	2	3	1	3	1	1	1
CO 3	3	2	1	2	2	1	1
CO 4	2	2	1	2	1	2	1
CO 5	2	1	1	2	1	1	2
CO 6	3	3	3	3	1	1	1

Mapping of COs to Assessment Rubrics:

	Internal Exam	Assignment	Project Evaluation	End Semester Examinations
CO 1	√			✓
CO 2	√			✓
CO 3	√			✓
CO 4		✓		✓
CO 5		✓		✓
CO 6			✓	

- 1. Avasthi, A., & Maheshwari, S. R. (2013). Public Administration. Lakshmi Narain Agarwal, Agra.
- 2. Basu, R. (2008). Public Administration: Concepts and Theories. Sterling Publishers, New Delhi.
- 3. Bhagwan, V., Bhushan, V., & Mohla, V. (2010). Public Administration. S. Chand, Jalandhar.
- 4. Bhambri, C. P. (2010). Public Administration Theory and Practice (21st Edition). Educational Publishers, Meerut.
- 5. Bhattacharaya, M. (2008). New Horizons of Public Administration. Jawahar Publishers and Distributors, New Delhi.
- 6. Bhattacharya, M. (2000). Public Administration. World Press, Calcutta.
- 7. Bhattacharya, M. (2012). Public Administration: Issues and Perspective. Jawahar Publishers and Distributors, New Delhi.
- 8. Chakrabarty, B., & Chand, P. (2012). Public Administration in a Globalizing World: Theories and Practices. Sage, New Delhi.
- 9. Denhardt, J. V., & Denhardt, R. B. (2015). The New Public Service: Serving, Not Steering (4th Edition). Routledge, New York.
- 10. Drucker, P. F. (1993). Management: Tasks, Responsibilities, Practices. Harper Collins, New York.
- 11. Drucker, P. F. (2008). The Essential Drucker. Harper Collins, New York.
- 12. Dunleavy, P. (1992). Democracy, Bureaucracy and Public Choice. Harvester Wheatsheaf, Aldershot, UK.
- 13. Fesler, J. W. (2007). Elements of Public Administration. Read Books, Worcestershire, UK.
- 14. Ghuman, B. S. (2001). "New Public Management: Theory and Practice." Indian Journal of Public Administration, 47(4), 769-779.
- 15. Golembiewsky, R. T. (1977). Public Administration as a Developing Discipline Part 2. Marcel Dekker, New York.
- 16. Goodnow, F. J. (2009). Politics and Administration: A Study in Government Originally published by MacMillan in 1900, Fifth Printing. Transaction Publishers, New Brunswick, New Jersey.
- 17. Henry, N. (2013). Public Administration and Public Affairs (13th Edition). Taylor and Francis, New York.
- 18. Hood, C. (1989). "Public Administration and Public Policy: Intellectual Challenges for the 1990s." Australian Journal of Public Administration, 48, 34-66.
- 19. Hood, C., & Dixon, R. (2015). A Government That Worked Better and Cost Less?: Evaluating three Decades of Reform and Change in UK Central Government. Oxford University Press, Oxford.
- 20. Koontz, H., & O'Donnell, C. (1986). Principles of Management (4th Edition). McGraw Hill education, Tokyo.
- 21. Marx, F. M. (Ed.). (1946). Elements of Public Administration. Prentice Hall, New York.
- 22. Laxmikanth, M. (2011). Public Administration. Tata McGraw, New Delhi.
- 23. Marini, F. (1971). Towards a New Public Administration. Chandler, Scranton, PA.
- 24. Medury, U. (2010). Public Administration in the Globalization Era The New Public Management Perspective. Orient Blackswan, New Delhi.
- 25. Nigro, F. A., & Nigro, L. G. (1988). Modern Public Administration (7th Edition). HarperCollins, New York.
- 26. Niskanen Jr., W. A. (2007). Bureaucracy and Representative Government. Aldine-Atherton, Chicago.
- 27. Osborne, D., & Gaebler, T. (1992). Reinventing Government. Penguin Press, New York.
- 28. Osborne, D., & Gaebler, T. (1992). Re-inventing Government: How the Entrepreneurial Spirit is Transforming the Public Sector. Addison Wesley, New York.
- 29. Ostrom, E. (2015). Governing the Commons: The Evolution of Institutions for Collective Action. Cambridge University Press, Cambridge.

- 30. Pfiffner, J. M. (1960). Administrative Organization. Prentice Hall, New York.
- 31. Raadschelders, J. C. N. (2011). Public Administration: The Interdisciplinary Study of Government. Oxford University Press, New York.
- 32. Robinson, M. (2015). "From Old Public Administration to the New Public Service Implications for Public Sector Reform in Developing Countries." UNDP Global Centre for Public Service Excellence, Singapore.
- 33. Rosenbloom, D. H., Kravchuk, R. S., & Clerkin, R. M. (2009). Public Administration: Understanding Management, Politics and Law in Public Sector (8th Edition). McGraw Hill, New Delhi.
- 34. Shafritz, J. M., & Hyde, A. C. (Eds.). (2012). Classics of Public Administration (8th Edition). Cengage Learning, Singapore.
- 35. Shafritz, J. M., Russel, E. W., Borick, C. P., & Hyde, A. C. (2017). Introducing Public Administration (9th Edition). Routledge, New York.
- 36. Sharma, M. P., & Sadana, B. L. (2000). Public Administration in Theory and Practice. Kitab Mahal, New Delhi.
- 37. Simon, H. A. (1947). Administrative Behaviour: A Study of Decision Making Processes in Administrative Organizations (4th Edition). Free Press, New York.
- 38. Stivers, C. M. (2002). Gender Images in Public Administration: Legitmacy and the Administrative State. Sage Publications, Thousand Oaks, CA.
- 39. Urwick, L. F., & Gulick, L. (Eds.). (1937). Papers in the Science of Administration. Columbia University Press, New York.
- 40. Vickers, J., & Yarrow, G. (1988). Privatization: An Economic Analysis. MIT Press, Cambridge.
- 41. Waldo, D. (1955). The Study of Public Administration. Random House, New York.
- 42. White, L. D. (1948). Introduction to the Study of Public Administration (Originally published in 1926) (3rd Edition). MacMillan, New York.

Discipline	PUBLIC ADMIN	PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION						
Course Code	UK3DSCPAN20	JK3DSCPAN201						
Course Title	PUBLIC POLIC	Y: MODEI	LS AND TH	EORIES				
Type of Course	DSC / DSE / MD	C / SEC / V	AC / AEC					
Semester	III							
Academic Level	200 - 299							
Course Details	Credit	Lecture Hours	Tutorial Hrs	Practical Hours	Total Hours			
	4	30	18	12	60			
Pre-requisites	 Provides basic public policy It helps the studentheories to anal 	dents to find	out and und	erstand suitab				
Course Summary	The course would theories and mode real-life policy ex	els of public	policy and th					

Module	Unit	Content	Hrs
I		Theories of Public Policy-I	8
	1	Political Systems Theory (Black Box Model)	
	2	Institutionalism	
	3	Process Theory	
	4	Game Theory	
II		Theories of Public Policy-II	8
	5	Group Theory	
	6	Elite Theory	
	7	Public Choice Theory	
	8	Systems Theory	
III		Decision Making Theories/Models	8
	9	Rationalism- Herbert Simon	
	10	Incrementalism- Charles Lindblom	
	11	Mixed Scanning Model- Amitai Etzioni	
	12	Garbage Can Model- Michael D. Cohen, James G. March, and Johan P. Olsen	
IV		Models of Public Policy-I	12
	13	Yehezkel Dror: Mega Policy and Meta Policy	
	14	Aaron Wildavsky: Speaking Truth to Power	
	15	Geoffrey Vickers: Art of Judgment	
	16	J.W. Kindon: Streams and Windows model	12

V		Models of Public Policy-II								
	17	John Rawls: A Theory of Justice								
	18	Almond Gabriel: Interest Aggregation and Articulation								
	19	Amartya Sen: Development as Freedom								
	20	Vilfredo Pareto: Optimality and Improvement								
	21	Elinor Ostrom: Institutional Rational Choice Theory								
VI	22	Open Ended (This module is exclusively designed for internal evaluation only. Choose any two activities.)	12							
		Activity 1: Arrange visits to Govt. offices/ society/target groups to know more about the major policy initiatives undertaken and analyse those with the models. Activity 2: Design and propose innovative policy solutions for the issues in your locality/institution based on the concepts/theories/models learned in the course Activity 3: Use various theories and to find out its application in different policies (Group assignments)								

No.	Upon completion of the course the graduate will be able to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO1	Examine the theories like Political Systems Theory Black Box Model, Institutionalism, Process Theory and Game Theory	U An	PSO-3 PSO-4 PSO-5 PSO-6
CO2	Understand various concepts of Public Policy: Rationalism, Incrementalism, Mixed Scanning Model and Garbage Can Model	U An	PSO-4 PSO-5 PSO-6 PSO-8
CO3	Analyse various theories like Group Theory, Elite Theory, Public Choice Theory, Systems Theory	U An	PSO-4 PSO-5 PSO-6 PSO-8
CO4	Examine relevant policies using theories and models	An Ap E	PSO-5 PSO-6 PSO-8 PSO-10
CO5	Proficient at various models of Public Policy and its application	U Ap An	PSO-5 PSO-6 PSO-8 PSO-10 PSO-11
CO6	Integrate theoretical knowledge in Public Policy with practical application through Real-World Applications	E An Ap C	PSO-3 PSO-5 PSO-6 PSO-8 PSO-10 PSO-11

R-Remember, U-Understand, Ap-Apply, An-Analyse, E-Evaluate, C-Create

CO No.	СО	PO/PSO	Cognitive Level	Knowledge Category	Lecture (L)/ Tutorial (T)	Practical (P)
CO1	Examine the theories like Political Systems Theory (Black Box Model, Institutionalism, Process Theory and Game Theory)	PSO-3 PSO-4 PSO-5 PSO-6 PO1 PO2 PO3	U An	F, C, P	Book Review	
CO2	Understand various concepts of Public Policy: Rationalism, Incrementalism, Mixed Scanning Model and Garbage Can Model	PSO-4 PSO-5 PSO-6 PSO-8 PO1 PO2 PO3 PO6	U An	F, C, P	Assignment	
CO3	Analyse various theories like Group Theory, Elite Theory, Public Choice Theory, Systems Theory	PSO-4 PSO-5 PSO-6 PSO-8 PO1 PO2 PO3 PO6	U An	F,C,P	Debate	
CO4	Examine relevant policies using theories and models	PSO-5 PSO-6 PSO-8 PSO-10 PO1 PO2 PO3 PO6	An Ap E	F, C, M	Case Analysis	
CO5	Proficient at various models of Public Policy and its application	PSO-5 PSO-6 PSO-8 PSO-10 PSO-11 PO1 PO2 PO3 PO6	U Ap An	F, C,M	Seminar	
CO6	Integrate theoretical knowledge in Public Policy with practical application through Real-World Applications	PSO-3 PSO-5 PSO-6 PSO-8 PSO-10 PSO-11 PO1 PO2 PO3 PO6 PO7	E An Ap C	C, M	Field Visit Case Study Presentations	

F-Factual, C- Conceptual, P-Procedural, M-Metacognitive

	PSO3	PSO4	PSO5	PSO6	PSO8	PSO10	PSO11	PO1	PO2	PO3	PO6	PO7
CO 1	3	2	3	3	-	-	-	2	3	3	-	-
CO 2	-	3	3	2	2	-	-	3	3	2	2	-
CO 3	1	3	3	2	2	1	-	3	3	2	1	-
CO 4	ı	1	3	3	2	3	-	2	3	2	3	-
CO 5	-	-	2	3	3	3	2	3	3	2	2	-
CO 6	1	-	3	3	3	3	2	3	3	3	2	3

Mapping of COs to Assessment Rubrics:

	Internal Exam	Assignment	Project Evaluation	End Semester Examinations
CO 1	√			✓
CO 2	√			✓
CO 3	√			✓
CO 4		✓		✓
CO 5		✓		√
CO 6			✓	

- 1. Anderson J.E., (2006) Public Policy-Making: An Introduction, Boston, Houghton
- 2. Barker, Anthony, and B. Guy Peters (eds.), (1993), The Politics of Expert Advice: Creating, Using, and Manipulating Scientific Knowledge for Public Policy, Ithica, NY: University of Pittsburgh Press.
- 3. Bergerson, Peter J. (ed.), (1991), Teaching Public Policy: Theory, Research and Practice, Westport, RI: Greenwood Press
- 4. Birkland Thomas A., (2005), An Introduction to The Policy Process: Theories, Concepts, And Models of Public Policy Making, Armonk; M.E. Sharpe
- 5. Dror.Y, (1989), Public Policy making Re-examined, 2nd ed., San Francisco, Chandler.
- 6. Dye Thomas (2008), Understanding Public Policy, Singapore, Pearson Education
- 7. Hill Michael, (2005), The Public Policy Process, Harlow, UK; Pearson Education, 5th Edition.
- 8. Kindon's J.W (1984), Agendas, Alternatives, and public policy, Harper Collians, New York.
- 9. Westview Press John Rawls (1971), A Theory of Justice, Harvard University Press.
- 10. John, Peter, (2012), Analysing Public Policy, 2nd ed., Routlidge, Taylor and Francis Group, London. Lasswell Harold, (1971), A Preview of Policy Sciences, New York, Elsevier.
- 11. Lerner, D. and H.D.Lasswell (eds.), (1951), The Policy Sciences, Stanford, Stanford University Press. Lindblom, C.E., and E.J., Woodhouse, (1993), The Policy making Process, 3rd ed., New Jersey., Prentice Hall.
- 12. McCool, Daniel C. (ed.), (1995), Public Policy Theories, Models, and Concepts: An Anthology, NJ: Prentice-Hall.
- 13. Wildwasky, Aaron (1980), The Art and Craft if Policy Analysis, Palgrave Macmillan, NY
- 14. Wildwasky, Aaron (1987), The Speaking truth of power, Transaction Publication, New Jersey.

Discipline	PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION							
Course Code	UK3DSCPAN202							
Course Title	DECENTRALISED ADMINISTRATION IN INDIA							
Type of Course	DSC / DSE / MD	C / SEC / V	AC / AEC					
Semester	III							
Academic Level	200 - 299							
Course Details	Credit	Lecture Hours	Tutorial Hrs	Practical Hours	Total Hours			
	4	30	18	12	60			
Pre-requisites	 Basic understanding on polity and governance Attend a Grama Sabha meeting or visit a Local Self-Government institution. 							
Course Summary	The course would provide a holistic understanding of decentralised governance thereby promoting grassroots democracy and ensuring inclusive and participatory governance at the local level.							

Module	Unit	Content	Hrs					
I		Introduction to Decentralized Administration	10					
	1	Evolution of Decentralisation in India – Ancient practices – Sabha and Samiti, Village administration of Cholas, Lord Mayo's Resolution 1878, Contribution of Lord Ripon						
	2	Concepts and Principles of Democratic Decentralisation						
	3	Significance and Benefits of Local Self-Governance						
II		Panchayati Raj Institutions	12					
	4	4 Gandhian Thought on Panchayati Raj						
	5	Major Committees on Democratic Decentralization in India— BR Mehta, Ashok Mehta, GVK Rao, LM Singhvi, S B Sen Committee on Democratic Decentralisation in Kerala						
	6	73 rd Constitutional Amendment Act 1992						
	7	Composition, Powers and Functions of Panchayati Raj Institutions – Grama Sabha and Grama Panchayat, Panchayat Samiti, Zilla Parishads						
III		Urban Local Bodies	6					
	Urban Local Government under the British Post independent Era Initiatives in Creation of Urban Local Bodies, Committees and Legislations.							
	9	74 th Constitutional Amendment Act, 1992						
	10	Composition, Powers and Functions of Urban Local Bodies – Municipal Corporation, Municipal Councils and Nagar Panchayats						

IV	Inclusive Measures in Decentralisation							
	11	Poverty Alleviation						
	12	Development and Welfare of Differently Abled Persons and Geriatric Care						
	13 Welfare Economy							
	14	Women Empowerment						
	15	Self Help Groups and Thrift						
V		District Administration and Democratic Decentralization	10					
	16	Changing Role of District Collector						
	17 District and Metropolitan Planning Committee							
	18	District Development Authority						
VI	19	Open Ended (This module is exclusively designed for internal evaluation only. Choose any two activities.)	12					
		Activity 1: Field Study: Working of Local Self-Governance Institutions nearby. Activity 2: Participatory Observation – Grama Sabha Assemblies Activity 3: Case Study: Punsari Model Village, Gujarat (India's first Adarsh Gram) Indore Municipal Corporation (Cleanest City in India) Eraviperoor Grama Panchayat, Pathanamthitta, Kerala						

No.	Upon completion of the course the graduate will be able to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO1	Provide a holistic understanding of concepts, significance and development of democratic decentralisation in India.	U Ap	
CO2	Analyse the dynamics and constitutional provisions of Panchayati Raj systems in India	Ap An	
CO3	Analyse the constitutional provisions, structure and functions of urban local bodies in India	Ap An	
CO4	Develop critical thinking skills to understand the issues and challenges in decentralisation thereby promoting inclusive and sustainable development.	An E	
CO5	Provide a holistic understanding of the dynamics of administration, and development planning at the district level.	U Ap An	
CO6	Equip with knowledge and skills in engaging informed discussions about decentralisation and its role in governance through real world examples.	E An Ap C	

 $R-Remember,\,U-Understand,\,Ap-Apply,\,An-Analyse,\,E-Evaluate,\,C-Create$

CO No.	СО	PO/PSO	Cognitive Level		Lecture (L)/ Tutorial (T)	
CO1	Provide a holistic understanding of concepts, significance and development of democratic decentralisation in India.		U Ap	F, C	Book Review	
CO2	Analyse the dynamics and constitutional provisions of Panchayati Raj systems in India		Ap An	F, C	Assignme nt	
СОЗ	Analyse the constitutional provisions, structure and functions of urban local bodies in India		Ap An	F	Debate	
CO4	Develop critical thinking skills to understand the issues and challenges in decentralisation thereby promoting inclusive and sustainable development.		An E	F, C, M	Case Analysis	
CO5	Provide a holistic understanding of the dynamics of administration, and development planning at the district level.		U Ap An	F, C	Seminar	
CO6	Equip with knowledge and skills in engaging informed discussions about decentralisation and its role in governance through real world examples.		E An Ap C	C, M	Field Visit Case Study	

F-Factual, C- Conceptual, P-Procedural, M-Metacognitive

	PSO1	PSO2	PSO3	PSO4	PSO5	PSO6	PO1	PO2	PO3	PO4	PO5	PO6
CO 1	1	-	-	-	-	-						
CO 2	2	3	-	-	-	-						
CO 3	-	-	1	-	-	-						
CO 4	-	-	2	3	-	-						
CO 5	-	1	-	-	-	-						
CO 6	-	-	-	3	-	-						

Mapping of COs to Assessment Rubrics:

	Internal Exam	Assignment	Project Evaluation	End Semester Examinations
CO 1	√			✓
CO 2	√			✓
CO 3	√			✓
CO 4		✓		✓
CO 5		✓		✓
CO 6			✓	

72

- 1. Rajasekhar, D. (2023). Handbook of Decentralised Governance and Development in India. Routledge India.
- 2. Jayal, N. G. (2006). Local Governance in India: Decentralization and Beyond. Oxford University Press.
- 3. Baud, I. S. A. (2008). New Forms of Urban Governance in India: Shifts, Models, Networks and Contestations. SAGE Publications.
- 4. Sachdeva, P. (2011). Local Government in India. India: Pearson.
- 5. Mathur, K. (2013). Panchayati Raj: Oxford India Short Introductions. India: OUP India.
- 6. Venkatesu, E. (2016). Democratic Decentralization in India: Experiences, Issues and Challenges. Routledge, Taylor & Francis Group.
- 7. Rao, P. S. N. (2006). Urban Governance and Management: Indian Initiatives. Indian Institute of Public Administration.
- 8. Chakrabarty, B., Pandey, R. K. (2019). Local Governance in India. India: SAGE Publications.
- 9. Biju, M. R. (1997). Politics of democracy and decentralisation in India. Atlantic Publishers.
- 10. Johnson, C. (2003). Decentralisation in India: Poverty, Politics and Panchayati Raj. Overseas Development Institute.
- 11. Venkatesu, E. (2016). Democratic Decentralization in India: Experiences, Issues and Challenges. Routledge: New Delhi.
- 12. Das, P. K. (2017). Decentralisation, Governance & Development. Orient Blackswan Private Limited
- 13. Prakash, A., Jayal, P. S., & Gopal, N. (2007). Local Governance in India: Decentralization and Beyond. Oxford India.
- 14. Singh, S. (2004). Decentralised Governance in India: Myth and Reality. Deep and Deep Publications.
- 15. Biju, M. R. (2019). Politics of Grassroot Democracy in India. Concept Publishing Company Pvt. Ltd.

DISCIPLINE SPECIFIC ELECTIVE

- 1. Urban Governance
- 2. Social Welfare Administration

Discipline	PUBLIC ADMINI	STRATION			
Course Code	UK3DSEPAN200				
Course Title	URBAN GOVER	NANCE			
Type of Course	DSC / DSE / MDC	C / SEC / VA	C / AEC		
Semester	III				
Academic Level	200-299				
Course Details	Credit	Lecture hrs	Tutorial hrs	Practical hrs	Total Hours
	4	30	18	12	60
Pre-requisites	Basic Knowled Analytical knowled	_			
Course Summary	2. Analytical knowledge in Decentralised Governance Urban Governance explores the principles and practices of managing cities, focusing on policy formulation, stakeholder engagement, and sustainable development strategies. The paper discusses case studies and simulations, real-world urban challenges and develop practical solutions to promote effective governance and inclusive urban development				

Module	Unit	Content	Hrs					
Ι		Urban Governance- An Introduction	12					
	1	Introduction to Urban Governance in India.						
	2	Constitutional History of the 74th Constitutional Amendment.						
	3	3 Urbanization: Concept; Trends; Challenges.						
	4	4 Overview of Legislation on Urban Local Bodies						
II	Organizational Framework for Urban Governance							
	5	Types of Urban Local Bodies.						
	6 Structure, Composition and Functions of Metropolitan Committe Municipal Councils and Nagar Panchayats.							
	7	Overview of Municipal Finances, State Finance Commission						
	8	Devolution of Functions from State Governments to Urban Local Bodies.						
	9	Participatory Processes in Democratic Governance -Ward Committees; Ward/Area Sabha						
III		Urban Development Policies	8					
	10	Evolution of Urban Development Policies and Programs in India.						
	11	Ministry of Housing and Urban Affairs						
	12	National Urban Development Mission						
	13	Urban Development Departments						
	14	Planning authorities and Regulatory bodies						

IV		Urban Development Programmes	8
	15	Urban Rejuvenation Mission- AMRUT Swachh Bharat Mission	
	16	Housing and Urban Poverty Alleviation Programs - Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana- Deendayal Antyodaya Yojana	
	17	Infrastructural Development Initiatives-Smart Cities Mission- UIDSSMT	
V		Challenges in Urban Governance	10
	18	Rapid Urbanization: Managing Population Growth, Migration and Urban Sprawl	
	19	Infrastructure Deficits: Water Supply, Sanitation, Solid Waste Management and Transportation.	
	20	Fiscal Challenges: Revenue Generation, Budgeting, and Financial Management	
	21	Social Challenges: Slums, Poverty and Inequality.	
	22	Environmental Challenges: Pollution, Waste Management, and Climate Change Resilience	
VI	23	Open Ended (This module is exclusively designed for internal evaluation only. Choose any two activities.)	12
		Activity 1: Case Studies on Social Urbanism/ Urban Crisis Management/ Smart City Initiatives.	
		Activity 2: Conduct a simulation of a participatory budgeting process, where students role-play as residents, government officials, and community leaders.	
		Activity 3: Visit to local government offices or urban development projects	
		Activity 4: Guest lectures by practitioners in the field of urban governance	
		Activity 4: Community Engagement Projects on developing solutions to urban issues	

No.	Upon completion of the course the graduate will be able to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO-1	Understand the concept of urban governance	U	PSO2
CO-2	Developing an awareness of the organizational framework for urban governance	U	PSO2
CO3	Analysing urban development plans and policies	Ap	PSO6
CO4	Develop critical thinking skills that will help participants to recognize issues in urban governance	An	PSO10
CO5	Identifies various issues and challenges in urban governance	Е	PSO10
CO6	Students will evaluate real-world development challenges by integrating theoretical knowledge, critical thinking, and practical skills, demonstrating the ability to assess and propose effective solutions.	С	PSO3

R-Remember, U-Understand, Ap-Apply, An-Analyse, E-Evaluate, C-Create

CO No.	СО	PO/PSO	Cognitive Level	Knowledge Category	Lecture (L)/ Tutorial (T)	Practical (P)
CO1	Understand the concept of urban governance	PO2	U	С	Instructor- created exams / Discussion	
CO2	Developing an awareness of the organizational frame work for urban governance	PO1	U	F	Group Discussions / Seminar	
CO3	Analysing urban development plans and policies	PO3	Ap	F	Quiz/ Group Tutorial Work	
CO4	Develop critical thinking skills that will help participants to recognize issues in urban governance	PO1	An	P	Practical Assignments	
CO5	Identifies various issues and challenges in urban governance	PO2	An	M	Assignments Group Discussions	
CO6	Students will evaluate real-world development challenges by integrating theoretical knowledge, critical thinking, and practical skills, demonstrating the ability to assess and propose effective solutions.	PO5 PO6	Е	Р	Role plays Discussions Case Studies Field visits	

F-Factual, C- Conceptual, P-Procedural, M-Metacognitive

	PSO2	PSO3	PSO6	PSO10	PO2	PO3	PO6	PO8
CO 1	2	2	2	1	1	1	1	1
CO 2	2	1	1	2	1	2	2	2
CO 3	3	1	2	1	2	2	2	2
CO 4	3	2	3	2	2	2	2	2
CO 5	1	2	3	3	2	2	3	3
CO 6	1	1	3	3	3	3	3	3

Mapping of COs to Assessment Rubrics:

	Debates	Assignment	Field visits	End Semester Examinations
CO 1	√			✓
CO 2	✓			✓
CO 3	✓			✓
CO 4		✓		✓
CO 5		√		✓
CO 6			√	

- 1. Carter, H (1972): The Study of Urban Geography, Edward Arnold.
- 2. A. Latham, D. McCormack, K. McNamara, D. McNeill (2009): Key Concepts in Geography, Sage.
- 3. Harvey, D. (1973): Social Justice and the City, Arnold
- 4. Abu-Lughod, J. and Hay, R. Jr. (1977): Third World Urbanisation, Maarouta Press.
- 5. Gugler. J. (ed.) (1988): The Urbanisation of the Third World, O.U.P
- 6. Sassen, S. (1991): The Global City, Princeton University Press.
- 7. Clarke, D. (1982): Urban Geography: An Introductory Guide, Groom Helm.
- 8. Marcuse, P. and Kempen, R.V. (eds.), (2000): Globalizing Cities: A New Spatial Order, Blackwell,
- 9. Short, J. R. (1996): The Urban Order, Basil Bleckwell.
- 10. Smith, N. (1996): The New Urban Frontier, Routledge
- 11. King A. D. (1990): Global Cities, Routledge.
- 12. Simmonds, R. and Hack, G. (2000): Global City Regions, Spon Press.
- 13. Markusen, A.R., et al. (1991): Second Tier Cities- Rapid Growth beyond the Metropolis, University of Minnesota Press.
- 14. Allen J. Scott (ed.), (2001): Global City Regions, Trends, Theory & Policy, Oxford University Press
- 15. David Harvey (1985): The Urbanization of Capital, John Hopkins University Press.
- 16. Edward Soja (2000): Postmetropolis, Critical Studies of cities and Regions, Blackwell Publisher Ltd.
- 17. G. P. Chapman, A.K. Dutt and R.W. Bradnock (ed.) (1999): Urban growth & Development in Asia, Vol.2: Living in the Cities, Ashgate Publishing Ltd.
- 18. Pieterse E, (2008): City Futures, Confronting the Crisis of Urban Development, Zed Books Ltd, London and New York.
- 19. Latham A, et.al. (2009): Key Concepts in Urban Geography, Sage, Los Angeles, London, New Delhi, Singapore, Washington.

Discipline	PUBLIC ADMINIS	PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION					
Course Code	UK3DSEPAN201	UK3DSEPAN201					
Course Title	SOCIAL WELFAR	RE ADMINI	STRATION				
Type of Course	DSC / DSE / MDC /	SEC / VAC	/ AEC				
Semester	III						
Academic Level	200 - 299						
Course Details	Credit	Lecture Hours	Tutorial Hrs	Practical Hours	Total Hours		
	4	30 hours	18 hours	12 hours	60		
Pre-requisites	1. Empathy and Sens 2. Ethical Awareness	•					
Course Summary	The Course would equip the Students with the Knowledge, Skills, and ethical principles necessary for effective Leadership and Practice in the field of Social Welfare Administration, preparing them for a career in Government Agencies, Community Development Projects, Advocacy and Social Policy Analysis.						

Module	Unit	Content	Hrs		
I		Introduction to Social Welfare Administration	10		
	1	Meaning, Definition, Nature & Scope of Social Welfare			
	2	Concepts of Social Welfare, Sarvodaya Movement			
	3	Evolution of Social Welfare Administration in India, Central Social Welfare Board			
	4	Models of Welfare-Familial, Institutional, Titmus.			
	5	Public and Social Welfare Administration			
II		Social Policy	10		
	6	Definition, Meaning and Nature of Social Policy,			
	7	Objectives of Social Policy, Types of Social Policy,			
	8	National Women's Policy, National Children's Policy and National Youth Policy			
	9	Tribal Policy, Policy for the Aged, Disability Policy and Population Policy			
III		Social Planning	10		
	10	Meaning &Definition, Significance			
	11	Types of Planning - Tactical, Operational & Strategic			
	12	Types of Plans- Five-Year, Annual, Short-Term, and Long-Term Plans.			
	13	Social Welfare Planning and Social Security, Meaning-Scope- Nature and Methods.			
	14	NITI Aayog, Features and Objectives.			

IV		Constitutional Provisions and Roles of Social Managers				
	15	Fundamental Rights, Directive Principles of State Policy				
	16	Developmental concerns				
	17	Role of Social Managers in Welfare Administration, Policy Formulation and Development,				
V		Social Welfare Administration in Kerala	10			
	18	Evolution of Welfare Policies in Kerala- Land and Education Reforms				
	19	Social Security Programmes: Welfare Pensions, Welfare Boards etc.				
	20	Gender-Sensitive Social Welfare Programmes in Kerala				
VI	21	Open Ended Module (This module is exclusively designed for internal evaluation only. Choose any two activities.)	10			
		Activity 1: Simulation Exercises: Roleplay				
		Activity 2: Field Visit – Government Agencies, NGOs Community-Based Organisations.				
		Activity 3: Spent a Day with MGNREGA Workers				

No.	Upon completion of the course, the graduate will be able to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO1	Ability to Understand the Necessity of the Social Welfare Administration in Society	U Ap	PSO-1
CO2	Conceive the Performance of the Social Security Programmes in a Society like India	Ap An	PSO-4
CO3	Investigate the Fundamentals of the Planning Process in India	Ap An	PSO-6
CO4	Evaluate the Role of Social Managers and the Major Concerns of Development	An E	PSO-6
CO5	Evaluate the Social Welfare Administration System in Kerala with Special Reference to its Unique Welfare Schemes	U Ap An	PSO-8
CO6	Equip with Knowledge and Skills in Engaging in Informed Discussions about Social Welfare Administration Through Real-World Examples and Evaluate the Outcomes.	E An Ap C	PSO-3

R-Remember, U-Understand, Ap-Apply, An-Analyse, E-Evaluate, C-Create

CO No.	СО	PO/PSO	Cognitive Level	Knowledge Category	Lecture (L)/ Tutorial (T)	Practical (P)
CO1	Ability to Understand the Necessity of Social Welfare Administration in Society	PO-2 PSO-1	U Ap	F, C	Quiz	
CO2	Conceive the Performance of the Social Security Programmes in a Society like India	PO-1 PSO-4	Ap An	F, C	Assignment	
CO3	Investigate the Fundamentals of the Planning Process in India	PO-1 PSO-6	Ap An	F	Roleplay	
CO4	Evaluate the Role of Social Managers and the Major Concerns of Development	PO-1 PSO-6	An E	F, C, M	Case Analysis	
CO5	Evaluate the Social Welfare Administration System in Kerala with Special Reference to its Unique Welfare Schemes	PO-6 PSO-8	U Ap An	F, C	Seminar	
CO6	Equip with Knowledge and Skills in Engaging in Informed Discussions about Social Welfare Administration Through Real-World Examples and Evaluate the Outcomes.	PO-3 PSO-3	E An Ap C	C, M	Field Visit Case Study	

F-Factual, C- Conceptual, P-Procedural, M-Metacognitive

	PSO1	PSO2	PSO3	PSO4	PSO5	PSO6	PSO8	PO1	PO2	PO3	PO4	PO5	PO6	PO7
CO 1	1	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	2	-	-	-	-	-
CO 2	-	-	-	2	-	1		2	-	-	-	-	-	-
CO 3	-	-	-	-	-	2	-	2	-	-	-	-	-	-
CO 4	-	-	-	-	-	3	-	2	-	-	-	-	-	-
CO 5	-	-	-	-	-	-	2	-	-	-	-	-	3	-
CO 6	-	-	3	-	-	-	-	-	-	3	-	-	-	-

Mapping of COs to Assessment Rubrics:

	Internal Exam	Assignment	Project Evaluation	End Semester Examinations
CO 1	√			✓
CO 2	√			✓
CO 3	√			✓
CO 4		✓		✓
CO 5		✓		✓
CO 6			✓	

- 1. Desai, M., & Shah, G. (Eds.). (2017). Social Welfare in India. Oxford University Press.
- 2. Roy, S. (2018). Theoretical perspectives on social justice and welfare administration. Journal of Social Work, 18(4), 421-435
- 3. Sen, A. (2000). Development as Freedom. Oxford University Press.
- 4. George, P. M. (Ed.). (2019). Social Welfare Administration: Concept, Practice, and Challenges. PHI Learning Pvt. Ltd.
- 5. Yeates, N., & Holden, C. (2019). Global Social Policy and Governance. Sage Publications.
- 6. Bhattacharya, D., & Basu, S. (2022). Social Welfare Administration: The Indian Context. Sage Publications.
- 7. Midgal, K. S. (2016). Social Welfare Administration in India. Rawat Publications.
- 8. Haubey, P. K. (2019). Political economy of social welfare policies in India. Journal of Social and Economic Development, 21(1), 98-115.
- 9. Pillai, A. S., & Menon, R. (2017). Social welfare in Kerala: A gender perspective. International Journal of Gender and Women's Studies, 5(1), 67-82.
- 10. Sen, A. (2017). Poverty and inequality in India: Trends and challenges. World Development, 98, 520-528
- 11. Singh, R. (2019). Indigenous systems of social welfare in Kerala: A case study. Journal of Community Development, 22(3), 321-335.
- 12. Menon, A., & Nair, S. (2023). Assessing the Impact of Fiscal Policies on Social Welfare: A Case Study of Kerala's Budget Allocation. Journal of Public Economics, 45(2), 201-218.
- 13. Johnson, C. (2019). Social Policy in the Modern World: A Comparative and International Analysis. Routledge.

Multi-Disciplinary Course

- 1. Administration in Kerala
- 2. Web Based Administration

Discipline	PUBLIC ADMINIS	TRATION						
Course Code	UK3MDCPAN200							
Course Title	ADMINISTRATIO	ON IN KER	ALA					
Type of Course	DSC / DSE / MDC	/ SEC / VAC	C / AEC					
Semester	III							
Academic	200-299	200-299						
Level								
Course Details	Credit	Lecture	Tutorial	Practical	Total Hours			
		Hours	Hrs	Hours				
	3	25	10	10	45			
Pre-requisites	A knowledge of the	system of ac	dministration	in Kerala.				
_	A knowledge of hist	tory of Keral	a.					
Course	This course examine	es the histori	cal evolution	n, current stru	ctures, and			
Summary	future challenges of	Kerala's gov	ernance sys	tem and also l	nelps to			
	understand the inno	vative use of	technology	in e-governan	ice initiatives.			

Module	Unit	Content	Hrs				
I		Historical Development	7				
	1	Contributions of Europeans- History of Travancore, Cochin and Malabar					
	2	Social and Religious Reform movements- National Movement in Kerala					
	3	Political and Social History of Kerala after 1956.					
II		Administrative System of Kerala	7				
	4	Kerala Legislature - Council of Ministers -Government Secretariat					
	5	istrict Administration					
	6	State Planning Board- KPSC					
	7	Commissions- Human Rights Commission, Women's Commission- Child Rights Commission- State Election Commission - Kerala Law Commission - Administrative Reform Commission					
	8	Kerala Lokayuktha, Kerala Administrative Tribunal					
III		Development Initiatives in Kerala					
	9	Literacy - Saksharatha Mission					
	10	Health- ASHA - Community Healthcare, Karunya Arogya Suraksha					
	11	Gender Equality- kerala State Women Development Corporatio - Shakti program					
	12	Poverty Alleviation-ICDS -Mid Day Meal Programme- and Kudumbashree Mission programs					
	13	Senior Citizen Care: Old Age Homes and Social Security Pensions					

IV		E-Governance in Kerala	7
	14	E- Governance in KeralaGovernance initiatives in Kerala.	
	15	Digital Divide, E-Literacy: 'Akshaya' in Kerala	
	16	SPARK, CERT-K, KSITM, KSUM,ICFOSS,Digital University of Kerala.	
	17	Citizen and Government interface- LSGs and E- Governance, E-District-, FRIENDS- Sutharyakeralam-e -Office, DDFS	
V		Citizen Engagement and Governance	7
	18	Social Audit and Community Participation	
	19	Civil Society Activism	
	20	Gender Representation in Politics.	
VI		Open Ended	10
		(This module is exclusively designed for internal evaluation only.	
		Choose any two activities.)	
		Activity 1: Case Study Analysis-	
		1 A case study on Kudumbasree Project	
		2 A case study on the Mid Day Meal Programme	
		Activity 2: Participatory Observation	
		The students can participate in Social Audit	
		Students can participate in Community Health Care Programmes	
		Activity 3: Field study	
		A visit to the Digital University	
		A visit to the Old Age Home	

No.	Upon completion of the course the graduate will be able to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO1	Examine the Historical Development of Administration in Kerala	U Ap	PSO2
CO2	Developing awareness on the System of Administration in Kerala.	Ap An	PSO3
CO3	Understand and analyse the Development Initiatives in Kerala.	Ap An	PSO3
CO4	Analyse the impact of the new dynamics and initiatives of E-Governance.	An	PSO7
CO5	Examine the need and importance of Citizen Engagement in Administration	U Ap An	PSO9
CO6	Experience and analyse the system of governance in Kerala.	E An Ap C	PSO9

R-Remember, U-Understand, Ap-Apply, An-Analyse, E-Evaluate, C-Create

CO No.	СО	PO/PSO	Cognitive Level	Knowledge Category	Lecture (L)/ Tutorial (T)	Practical (P)
CO1	Examine the Historical Development of Administration in Kerala	PSO2 PO1	U Ap	F, C	Discussion	
CO2	Developing awareness on the System of Administration in Kerala.	PSO3 PO8	Ap An	F, C	Assignment Field Visit	
CO3	Understand and analyse the Development Initiatives in Kerala.	PSO3 PO8	Ap An	F	Debate, CaseStudies	
CO4	Analyse the impact of the new dynamics and initiatives of E-Governance.	PSO7 PO7	An E	F, C, M	Case Analysis	
CO5	Examine the need and importance of Citizen Engagement in Administration	PSO9 PO8	U Ap An	F, C	Seminar Role Play	
CO6	Experience and analyse the system of governance in Kerala.	PSO9 PO6	E An Ap C	C, M	Field Visit Case Study	

F-Factual, C- Conceptual, P-Procedural, M-Metacognitive

	PSO1	PSO2	PSO3	PSO4	PSO5	PSO6	PSO7	PO1	PO2	PO3	PO4	PO5	PO6
CO 1	-	-	1	-	-	-	3	1	2	2	-	-	3
CO 2	-	-	2	-	-	-	2	2	3	1	-	-	2
CO 3	-	-	1	-	-	-	3	1	1	1	1	1	1
CO 4	-	-	2	-	-	-	2	1	1	2	-	-	2
CO 5	-	-	1	-	-	-	3	2	2	1	2	2	2
CO 6	-	-	2	-	-	-	3	3	3	3	-	-	3

Mapping of COs to Assessment Rubrics:

	Internal Exam	Assignment	Project Evaluation	End Semester Examinations
CO 1	✓			✓
CO 2	✓			✓
CO 3	✓			✓
CO 4		✓		√
CO 5		✓		✓
CO 6			✓	

86

- 1. Ahuja Kanta, A., & Ojha, A. K. (Eds.). (2008). Governance and reforms. Aalekh Publishers.
- 2. Baghel, C. L., & Kumar, Y. (2006). Good governance: Concept and approaches. Kanishka Publications.
- 3. Banerjee, A. M., & Chandrasekharan, K. A. (1996). Renewing governance: Issues and options. McGraw-Hill.
- 4. Chaudhary, K. (Ed.). (2007). Globalization, governance reforms and development in India. Sage Publications.
- 5. Dey, B. K. (2002). Good governance, parametric issues: A futures vision. Uppal Publishing House.
- 6. Godbole, M. (2003). Public accountability: the imperatives of good governance. Orient Longman.
- 7. Heeks, R. (Ed.). (2011). Information and communication technology for development: Case studies from India.
- 8. Jain, R. B. (2001). Public administration in India: 21st century challenges for good governance. Deep & Deep Publications Pvt. Ltd.
- 9. Jørgensen, J., & Sørensen, C. (Eds.). (2010). Handbook of e-government: Emerging theories, practices, and applications
- 10. Mehta, V. (Ed.). (2000). Reforming administration in India. Har Anand Publications & Indian Council of Social Science Research.
- 11. Ramachandran Nair, K. (2007). Governance reforms and development in Kerala in the context of globalization. In K. Chaudhary (Ed.), Globalization, governance reforms and development in India (pp. 181-202). Sage Publications.

Discipline	PUBLIC ADMIN	IISTRATION	V					
Course Code	UK3MDCPAN20	UK3MDCPAN201						
Course Title	WEB BASED A	WEB BASED ADMINISTRATION						
Type of Course	DSC / DSE / MD	DSC / DSE / MDC / SEC / VAC / AEC						
Semester	III	III						
Academic Level	200 - 299							
	Credit	Lecture	Tutorial	Practical	Total			
Course Details	Credit	Hours	Hours	Hours	Hours/Week			
	3	25 hours	10 hours	10 hours	45			
D	1. Basic computing skills							
Pre-requisites	2. Knowledge on computer and internet.							
	The course would enhance skills, improve efficiency, and prepare							
Course Summary	students for the increasingly digital future of administration across							
	various sectors.							

Module	Unit	Content	Hrs			
I		Introduction to Web Technologies	10			
	1	Overview of Web Technologies				
	2	Basics of HTML, CSS, and JavaScript				
	3	Introduction to Web Servers				
	4	Introduction to Web Hosting				
II		Introduction to Web Based Administration	10			
	5	Meaning, Scope and Importance of Web-Based Administration				
	6	Building Blocks of Web Development – Web Contents, Interactive Web Portals				
	7	Functions of Web Administration				
	8	Web based Information System				
			10			
III	Applications of WBA					
	9	Skills of Web System Administrator				
	10	Web Based Learning-Models;				
	11	E-Governance and Online Services – E-Governance Initiatives and Online Service Delivery Models.				
	12	Web Designing- Theoretical Basis				
IV		Content Management System (CMS)	10			
	13	Understanding CMS and their role in web administration				
	14	Overview of popular CMS platforms (e.g., WordPress, Drupal, Moodle)				
	15	Installation and basic configuration of a CMS				
	16	Challenges in Web Technology				

V		Online Collaboration Tools	10
	17	Introduction to Online Collaboration Tools (e.g., Google Workspace, Microsoft Teams)	
	18	Managing Online Meetings and Collaborations	
	19	Generative AI tools for CMS – ChatGPT, DALL-E3 etc.	
	20	Tools for e-commerce- (Shopify, Wordpress, Canva, Slack)	
VI		Open Ended (This module is exclusively designed for internal evaluation only. Choose any two activities.)	10
		Activity 1: Case Study Analysis • Students can analyse real-world case studies of successful or failed web-based administration projects.	
		 Activity 2: Preparing Web design for government (practical) Students can work in teams to design and develop an e-governance portal for a functional government agency or municipality. The portal could include features such as online service requests, citizen feedback mechanisms, and information dissemination. 	
		 Activity 3: Create Online Collaboration Platform Students can create a web-based platform for facilitating collaboration and communication within an organization or a virtual team. The platform could include features such as document sharing, task assignment, discussion forums, and real-time messaging. Virtual Classroom System: Students can build a virtual classroom system for online education and training. The system could include features such as video lectures, interactive quizzes, discussion boards, and assignment submissions. 	

Course Outcomes

No.	Upon completion of the course the graduate will be able to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO1	Provide a basic understanding in creating functional web applications, web servers and hosting.	U Ap	PSO7
CO2	Provide a foundational understanding of web-based administration including web development and its functions	U Ap	PSO7
СОЗ	Provide a hands-on experience with web-based technology models commonly used in administrative roles.	Ap An	PSO12
CO4	Develop foundational knowledge for the creation, modification, and organization of digital content without requiring technical expertise.	An E	PSO7 PSO12
CO5	Enabling skills for quick and effective communication among team members thereby enhance team collaboration,	U Ap	PSO12

	communication, and productivity	An	
CO6	Developing knowledge and skills in web based administration through practical exposure and real world examples.	E An Ap C	PSO7 PSO12

R-Remember, U-Understand, Ap-Apply, An-Analyse, E-Evaluate, C-Create

CO No.	СО	PO/PSO	Cognitive Level	Knowledge Category	Lecture (L)/ Tutorial (T)	Practical (P)
CO1	Provide a basic understanding in creating functional web applications, web servers and hosting.	PSO7 PO6	U Ap	F, C	Assignment	
CO2	Provide a foundational understanding of web-based administration including web development and its functions	PSO7 PO2	Ap An	F, C	Book Review	
СОЗ	Provide a hands-on experience with web-based technology models commonly used in administrative roles.	PSO12	Ap An	F, M	Practical session	
CO4	Develop foundational knowledge for the creation, modification, and organization of digital content without requiring technical expertise.	PSO7 PSO12 PO3 PO6	An E	F, C, P, M	Case Analysis	
CO5	Enabling skills for quick and effective communication among team members thereby enhance team collaboration, communication, and productivity	PSO12	U Ap An	F, P, C	Seminar	
CO6	Developing knowledge and skills in web based administration through practical exposure and real world examples.	PSO7 PSO12 PO1 PO2 PO3 PO6	E An Ap C	C, M	Case Study Practical's	

F-Factual, C- Conceptual, P-Procedural, M-Metacognitive

	PSO1	PSO2	PSO3	PSO4	PSO5	PSO7	PSO12	PO1	PO2	PO3	PO4	PO5	PO6
CO 1	-	-	-	1	-	3	1	1	2	2	-	-	3
CO 2	-	-	-	1	-	2	1	2	3	1	-	-	2
CO 3	-	-	-	-	-	3	3	1	1	1	1	1	1
CO 4	-	-	-	1	-	2	1	1	1	2	-	1	2
CO 5	-	-	-	1	-	3	2	2	2	1	2	2	2
CO 6	-	-	-	ı	-	3	3	3	3	3	-	-	3

Mapping of COs to Assessment Rubrics:

	Internal Exam	Assignment	Project Evaluation	End Semester Examinations
CO 1	✓			✓
CO 2	✓			✓
CO 3	✓			✓
CO 4		√		✓
CO 5		✓		✓
CO 6			✓	

- 1. Shalini, H., & Anjna, V. (2022). Information Technology. Orange Education.
- 2. Kumar, A. (2018). Web Technology, Theory and Practice. Chapman and Hall, CRC Press.
- 3. Wilkins, N. (2019). Artificial Intelligence. Bravex Publications.
- 4. Sachdeva, P. (2011). Local Government in India. India: Pearson.
- 5. Sharma, P. (2010). Introduction to Web Technology. S K Kataria and Sons.
- 6. Barker, D. (2016). Web Content Management. O'Reilly Publishers.
- 7. Rao, P. S. N. (2006). Urban Governance and Management: Indian Initiatives. Indian Institute of Public Administration.
- 8. Chakrabarty, B., Pandey, R. K. (2019). Local Governance in India. India: SAGE Publications.
- 9. Biju, M. R. (1997). Politics of democracy and decentralisation in India. Atlantic Publishers.
- 10. Johnson, C. (2003). Decentralisation in India: Poverty, Politics and Panchayati Raj. Overseas Development Institute.
- 11. Venkatesu, E. (2016). Democratic Decentralization in India: Experiences, Issues and Challenges. Routledge: New Delhi.
- 12. Das, P. K. (2017). Decentralisation, Governance & Development. Orient Blackswan Private Limited
- 13. Prakash, A., Jayal, P. S., & Gopal, N. (2007). Local Governance in India: Decentralization and Beyond. Oxford India.
- 14. Singh, S. (2004). Decentralised Governance in India: Myth and Reality. Deep and Deep Publications.
- 15. Biju, M. R. (2019). Politics of Grassroot Democracy in India. Concept Publishing Company Pvt. Ltd.

VALUE- ADDED COURSE

- 1. Urban Planning
- 2. Administrative Literacy

Discipline	PUBLIC ADMINIST	RATION			
Course Code	UK3VACPAN200				
Course Title	URBAN PLANNING	G			
Type of Course	DSC / DSE / MDC /	SEC / VAC /	AEC		
Semester	III				
Academic	200-299				
Level					
Course Details	Credit	Lecture	Tutorial	Practical	Total hrs
		hrs	hrs	hrs	
	3	20	15	10 hours	45
Pre-requisites	1. Knowledge in Dec	entralised Go	overnance		
	2. Understanding on Urban Governance				
Course	Develop analytical ar	nd evaluative	skills in Ur	ban Planning	by focusing
Summary	policy frameworks, in	nitiatives and	challenges		-

Module	Unit	Content	Hrs				
I		Introduction to Urban Planning	8				
	1	Historical Evolution of Urban Planning Practices in India					
	2	Urbanization Trends in India and The Need for Urban Planning					
	3	Principles of Urban Planning-Sustainability-Resilience-Inclusivity					
II		Policy Frame Works on Urban Planning	6				
	4	National Urban Policy					
	5	State Urban Development Agency					
	6	Town Planning Acts					
	7	City Development Authorities and Their Functioning					
	8	Town and Country Planning Departments					
III		Urban Planning –Initiatives	8				
	9	Spatial Planning					
	10	Land Acquisition and Development Regulations					
	11	Transportation Planning					
	12	Housing Planning					
	13	Infrastructure Planning					
IV		Urban Planning –Initiatives	8				
	14	Environmental Planning					
	15	Citizen Engagement in Urban Planning					
	16	Participatory Planning					

V		Challenges Of Urban Planning	7
	17	Infrastructure Deficits in Indian Cities	
	18	Service Delivery Challenges	
	19	Spatial Challenges	
	20	Sustainability Challenges	
	21	Socio-Economic Challenges	
VI		Open Ended	10
	(1	This module is exclusively designed for internal evaluation only.	
		Choose any two activities.)	
		1. Case Studies	
		Case studies on successful community-driven planning	
		initiatives	
		2. Field visits	
		Site visits and fieldwork to observe and analyse urban issues.	
		3. Community Engagement	
		Speech on specific urban planning projects or issues by an	
		official.	

No.	Upon completion of the course the graduate will be able to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO-1	Recognize fundamental concepts of urban planning and have an understanding on the historical evolution of urban planning	U	PSO6
CO-2	Interpretation of policy frameworks on urban planning	U	PSO10
CO 3	Identify and analyse the urban planning initiatives	An	PSO10
CO4	Analyzing the challenges of urban planning.	An	PSO3
CO5	Identifies various issues and perspectives related to urban planning	An	PSO6
CO6	Students will evaluate real-world development challenges by integrating theoretical knowledge, critical thinking, and practical skills, demonstrating the ability to assess and propose effective solutions	E	PSO3

R-Remember, U-Understand, Ap-Apply, An-Analyse, E-Evaluate, C-Create

CO No.	СО	PO/PSO	Cognitive Level	Knowledge Category	Lecture (L)/ Tutorial (T)	Practical (P)
1	Recognize fundamental concepts of urban planning and have an understanding of the historical evolution of urban planning	PO1 PSO6	U	С	Discussion	
2	Interpretation of policy frameworks on urban planning	PO2 PSO6	U	F	Seminar	
3	Identify and analyse the urban planning initiatives	PO1 PO2 PSO6	An	F	Debates	
4	Analyzing the challenges of urban planning.	PO2 PO3 PSO8	An	F	Case Studies	
5	Identifies various issues and perspectives related to urban planning	PO6 PSO8	An	F	Case Studies	
6	Students will evaluate real-world development challenges by integrating theoretical knowledge, critical thinking, and practical skills, demonstrating the ability to assess and propose effective solutions	PO6 PSO6	Е	F	Field Visits Community Engagements	

F-Factual, C- Conceptual, P-Procedural, M-Metacognitive

	PSO3	PSO6	PSO10	PO1	PO2	PO8
CO 1	1	3	1	1	1	2
CO 2	2	3	3	2	1	1
CO 3	1	3	3	2	2	1
CO 4	3	1	2	1	1	2
CO 5	1	3	1	3	3	3
CO 6	3	2	2	3	3	3

	Case Studies	Assignment	Field Visits	End Semester Examinations
CO 1	√			✓
CO 2	√	√		✓
CO 3	√		✓	✓
CO 4		✓		✓
CO 5			✓	✓
CO 6			✓	

- 1. Adair, A., J. Berry, W. S. McGreal, W. Deddis, and S. Hirst. 1999 "Evaluation of Investor Behaviour in Urban Regeneration" Urban Studies 36 (12): 2031–45.
- 2. Adams, D., and S. Tiesdell 2010. "Planners as Market Actors: Rethinking State-Market Relations and Land and Property" Planning Theory and Practice 11 (2): 187–207.
- 3. Brenner, N., and N. Theodore, eds. 2002. Spaces of Neoliberalism: Urban Restructuring in North America and Western Europe, Oxford: Blackwell.
- 4. Brenner, N., and N. Theodore. 2005. "Neoliberalism and the UrbanCondition." City 9: 101–107.
- 5. Byrne, M. 2008. "Picture Puzzle Shows Princesshay Is Public—ButOnly up to a Point." Express and Echo (Exeter), January 30.
- 6. Callon, M. 1998. The Laws of Markets. Oxford: Blackwell.
- 7. Campbell, H. 2006. "Just Planning: The Art of Situated EthicalJudgment." Journal of Planning Education and Research 26(1): 92–106.
- 8. Campbell, H. 2012a. "'Planning Ethics' and Rediscovering the Idea of Planning." Planning Theory 11 (4): 379–99.
- 9. Campbell, H. 2012b. "Planning to Change the World: BetweenKnowledge and Action Lies Synthesis." Journal of PlanningEducation and Research 32 (2): 135–46.
- 10. Campbell, H., and S. Fainstein. 2012. "Justice, Urban Politics andPolicy." In Oxford Handbook of Urban Politics, edited by K.Mossberger, S. E. Clarke, and P. John, pp. 545–66. Oxford:Oxford University Press.
- 11. Campbell, H., and J. Henneberry. 2005. "Contradictions in theOperation of the Planning Obligations System." Journal ofProperty Research 22 (1): 37–59.
- 12. Communities and Local Government. 2006. Barker Review of LandUse Planning: Final Report—Recommendations. London: Stationery Office.

Discipline	PUBLIC ADM	PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION					
Course Code	UK3VACPAN	[201					
Course Title	ADMINISTR	RATIVE LI	TERACY				
Type of Course	DSC / DSE / N	MDC / SEC	/ VAC / AE	EC			
Semester	III						
Academic Level	200-299						
Course Details	Credit	Lecture per week	Tutorial per week	Practical per week	Total Hours/Week		
	3	25	10	10	45		
Pre-requisites	1. Basic Under 2. Familiarity	_					
Course Summary	knowledge an Through theor analysis, stud decision-makin	2. Familiarity with Organizational Behaviour and Management This comprehensive course equips students with essential knowledge and skills for effective administrative practice. Through theoretical study, practical application, and critical analysis, students develop proficiency in communication, decision-making, and organizational management within administrative contexts.					

Module	Unit	Content							
I		Understanding The Concept of Administrative Literacy	7						
	1	Introduction to Administrative Literacy: Concepts and Definitions							
	2	Basic Principles of Administrative Literacy							
	3	Importance and Relevance of Administrative Literacy							
	4	Impact of literacy.							
II	(Communication and Interpersonal Skills in Administration							
	5	Verbal Communication Techniques for Administrative Professionals							
	6	Public Speaking Ability							
	7	Interpersonal Skills and Conflict Resolution in Administrative Settings							
III		Organizational Resources and Techniques	7						
	8	Quality Management and Continuous Improvement							
	9	Organizational Structures and Workflow Optimization							
	10	Prioritization Techniques and Time-saving Strategies							
	11	Information Management System							
	12	Risk Management in Administrative Settings							

IV		Administrative Communications						
	13	Official Communication Writing Skills – Official and Demi Official Letters-U.O Notes-Circulars-Memos-Govt Orders-Notes from Higher Authorities						
	14	Report Making in Administrative Context						
	15 Digital Communication-DDFS- E office							
	16 Minutes Preparation Skills During Meetings							
	17	Presentation Competency for						
	Effects of Administrative Literacy							
	18	Bureauratic Responsiveness						
	19	People Centered Administration.						
	20	Digital Welfare State						
VI	(TI	Open Ended his module is exclusively designed for internal evaluation only. Choose any two activities.)	10					
		Case Study: Analyze e-governance projects from diverse contexts and evaluate their impact on citizen engagement						
		Research Project: Conduct research on sustainable development goals and their implications for local government policies. (Indian Context)						
		Group Discussion: Engage in collaborative discussions on crisis management, drawing insights from real-world examples						

No.	Upon completion of the course the graduate will be able to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO-1	To be able to define and explain key concepts in public administration, including public sector, Leadership Theories and organizational management	R, An	PSO-1 PSO-2
CO-2	To demonstrate proficiency in written and verbal communication, producing clear and concise administrative documents and delivering effective presentations	U, Ap, C	PSO-3 PSO-5
CO-3	To manage their time effectively, prioritize tasks and utilize productivity tools to enhance efficiency in administrative work.	U, Ap	PSO-3 PSO-1
CO-4	To understand public budgeting processes and apply various decision-making models and techniques to analyse complex situations and make informed decisions aligned with organizational goals.	U, E	PSO-7 PSO-5 PSO-3
CO-5	To build and lead effective teams, fostering collaboration, motivation and to demonstrate effective leadership qualities in administrative roles.	U, Ap	PSO-3 PSO-6
CO-6	To integrate environmental considerations into administrative decision-making, and propose strategies for sustainable development along with developing crisis management plans, implement emergency response strategies, and ensure disaster preparedness in administrative contexts.	E, C	PSO-6 PSO-3

R-Remember, U-Understand, Ap-Apply, An-Analyse, E-Evaluate, C-Create

CO No.	СО	PO/PSO	Cognitive Level	Knowledge Category	Lecture (L)/ Tutorial (T)	Practical (P)
CO-1	To be able to define and explain		R	F	L	
	key concepts in public		An			
	administration, including public					
	sector, Leadership Theories and organizational management					
CO-2	To demonstrate proficiency in		U,	С		P
CO-2	written and verbal		Ap			1
	communication, producing clear		C			
	and concise administrative					
	documents and delivering					
	effective presentations					
CO-3	To manage their time effectively,		U	P	Assignment	
	prioritize tasks and utilize		Ap			
	productivity tools to enhance					
CO-4	efficiency in administrative work. To understand public budgeting		U	С	L	
CO-4	processes and apply various		E	C	L	
	decision-making models and					
	techniques to analyse complex					
	situations and make informed					
	decisions aligned with					
	organizational goals.					
CO-5	To build and lead effective teams,		U	M	Seminar	
	fostering collaboration,		Ap			
	motivation and to demonstrate					
	effective leadership qualities in administrative roles.					
CO-6	To integrate environmental		Е	C, M	Case Study	
0.0-0	considerations into administrative		C	C, 111	case stady	
	decision-making, and propose					
	strategies for sustainable					
	development along with					
	developing crisis management					
	plans, implement emergency					
	response strategies, and ensure					
	disaster preparedness in administrative contexts.					
	auministrative contexts.	İ				l

F-Factual, C- Conceptual, P-Procedural, M-Metacognitive

	PSO1	PSO2	PSO3	PSO4	PSO5	PSO6	PO1	PO2	PO3	PO4	PO5	PO6
CO 1	1	1	-	-	-	-						
CO 2	-	-	2	-	1	-						
CO 3	1	-	1	-	-	-						
CO 4	-	-	2	-	1	-						
CO 5	-	-	2	-	-	2						
CO 6	-	-	3	-	-	2						

	Internal Exam	Assignment	Project Evaluation	End Semester
CO 1	✓			√
CO 2	✓			√
CO 3	✓			✓
CO 4		✓		√
CO 5		✓		√
CO 6			✓	

- 1. O'Connell, W. D., & D., & amp; et al. (2018). Public Administration: Partnerships in Public Service
- 2. World Bank. (2015). Building Administrative Capacity: Best Practices and Lessons Learned (Report No.WB-15-6789).
- 3. Doe, A. B., & Doe, A. B., & Professional Development Programs. Journal of Public Administration Education, 25(2), 176-189.
- 4. Smith, J. D., & Dones, L. K. (2020). The Role of Administrative Literacy in Modern Governance. Public Administration Review, 78(3), 432-445.
- 5. United Nations. (2017). Enhancing Administrative Literacy in Developing Countries: Challenges and Strategies (Report No. UN-17-1234).
- 6. Henry, N. (2006). Public Administration: Concepts and Theories.
- 7. Shafritz, J. M., & Samp; et al. (2011). Introduction to Public Administration: A Book of Readings.
- 8. National Academy of Public Administration. (n.d.). Administrative Literacy Toolkit. Retrieved from
- 9. https://www.napawash.org/resources/administrative-literacy-toolkit
- 10. Rosenbloom, D. H., & Delic Administration: Understanding Management, Politics, and Law in the Public Sector.
- 11. National Academy of Public Administration. (2020). Building a 21st century public sector. https://www.napawash.org/21st-century-public-secto

SEMESTER IV

DISCIPLINE-SPECIFIC CORE

- 1. Public Policy Analysis
- 2. Fundamentals of Governance

Discipline	PUBLIC ADMIN	PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION						
Course Code	UK4DSCPAN200	UK4DSCPAN200						
Course Title	PUBLIC POLIC	Y: TECHN	IQUES ANI	D ANALYSI	S			
Type of Course	DSC / DSE / MD	C / SEC / V	AC / AEC					
Semester	IV							
Academic Level	200-299							
Course Details	Credit	Lecture Hours	Tutorial Hrs	Practical Hours	Total Hours			
	4	30	18	12	60			
Pre-requisites	1. Provides basic	understandir	ng of public p	olicy analysi	S			
	2. It helps the stud	dents to learn	n and underst	and various to	echniques			
	used for policy an							
Course Summary	The course would	d provide a	comprehensi	ve understand	ding of policy			
	analysis and the	students can	apply variou	us techniques	for analysing			
	public policies.							

Module	Unit	Content	Hrs
I		Public Policy Analysis: Introduction	9
	1	Meaning, Nature, characteristics, phases and Scope of Policy Analysis	
	2	Policy Analysis as a Profession and Policy Analysis as a Craft -Aaron Wildavsky	
	3	Keys to Policy Analysis: Actors, Resources, Institutional Rules	
	4	Policy Cycle/ Policy Process Framework	
	5	Challenges to Public Policy Analysis	
II		Types of Policy Analysis	8
	6	Empirical Policy Analysis	
	7	Normative Policy Analysis	
	8	Retrospective and Prospective Policy Analysis	
	9	Prescriptive and Descriptive Policy Analysis	
III		Actors in Policy Analysis	9
	10	Government Institutions – state, national, international	
	11	International Donor Agencies	
	12	Multinational and Transnational Agencies	
	13	Market, Civil Society and Media	
IV		Techniques of Public Policy Analysis	14
	14	Cost Benefit Analysis (CBA)	
	15	Operations Research (OR)	
	16	Programme Evaluation and Review Technique (PERT)	
	17	Critical path Method (CPM)	

V		Public Policy Analysis in India	8						
	18	Policy Analysis in India							
	19	Institutions/Agencies of Policy Analysis- NITIAYOG, CPR, Development Centre for Alternative Policies, The Hindu Centre for Politics and Public Policy, NIPFP							
	20	takeholders and Policy Analysis- Governance, Structures, and Democratic rocess							
	21	Challenges to Policy Analysis in India							
VI		Open Ended	12						
		(This module is exclusively designed for internal evaluation only. Choose any two activities.)							
		Activity 1: Design and propose innovative policy solutions for the issues in your locality/institution based on the relevant techniques learned							
		Activity 2: Develop a model policy analysis following with classroom presentation and discussions							
		Activity 3: Analyse and present the role of different actors in policy analysis with the help of important policies which are already implemented							

No.	Upon completion of the course the graduate will be able to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO1	Understand the meaning, definitions nature and scope of policy analysis. Find out various actors of policy analysis.	U An	PSO-3 PSO-4 PSO-6
CO2	Identify and learn different types of policy analysis	U An Ap	PSO3 PSO4 PSO5 PSO6 PSO8 PSO10
CO3	Examine different actors in policy analysis and identify their roles	U Ap An	PSO4 PSO5 PSO6 PSO8
CO4	Proficient at various techniques of Public Policy Analysis	An Ap E	PSO5 PSO6 PSO8 PSO10 PSO11
CO5	Examine the benefits of policy analysis in developing countries	U Ap An	PSO5 PSO6 PSO8 PSO10 PSO11
CO6	Integrate theoretical knowledge in Public Policy Analysis with practical application through Real-World Applications	E An Ap C	PSO3 PSO5 PSO6 PSO8 PSO10 PSO11

 $R-Remember,\,U-Understand,\,Ap-Apply,\,An-Analyse,\,E-Evaluate,\,C-Create$

CO No.	СО	PO/PSO	Cognitive Level	Knowledge Category	Lecture (L)/ Tutorial (T)	Practical (P)
CO1	Understand the meaning, definitions nature and scope of policy analysis. Find out various actors of policy analysis.	PSO-3 PSO-4 PSO-6 PO1 PO2 PO3	U Ap	F, C	Book Review	
CO2	Identify and learn different types of policy analysis	PSO3 PSO4 PSO5 PSO6 PSO8 PSO10 PO1 PO2 PO3 PO6	U Ap An	F, C	Assignment	
CO3	Examine different actors in policy analysis and identify their roles	PSO4 PSO5 PSO6 PSO8 PO1 PO2 PO3 PO6	Ap An	F	Debate	
CO4	Proficient at various techniques (theoretical knowledge) of Public Policy Analysis	PSO5 PSO6 PSO8 PSO10 PSO11 PO1 PO2 PO3 PO6	An E	F, C, M	Case Analysis	
CO5	Examine the benefits of policy analysis in developing countries	PSO5 PSO6 PSO8 PSO10 PSO11 PO1 PO2 PO3 PO6	U Ap An	F, C	Seminar	
CO6	Integrate theoretical knowledge in Public Policy Analysis with practical application through Real-World Applications	PSO3 PSO5 PSO6 PSO8 PSO10 PSO11 PO1 PO2 PO3 PO6 PO7	E An Ap C	C, M	Field Visit Case Study Presentations	

F-Factual, C- Conceptual, P-Procedural, M-Metacognitive

	PSO3	PSO4	PSO5	PSO6	PSO8	PSO10	PSO11	PO1	PO2	PO3	PO6	PO7
CO 1	3	2	-	2	-	-	-	2	3	3	-	-
CO 2	3	2	1	2	2	1	-	3	3	2	2	-
CO 3	1	3	3	2	2	1	1	3	3	2	1	-
CO 4	ı	1	3	3	2	3	1	2	3	2	3	-
CO 5	1	-	2	3	3	3	2	3	3	2	2	-
CO 6	1	-	3	3	3	3	2	3	3	3	2	3

Mapping of COs to Assessment Rubrics:

	Internal Exam	Assignment	Project Evaluation	End Semester Examinations
CO 1	√			✓
CO 2	√			✓
CO 3	√			✓
CO 4		✓		✓
CO 5		√		✓
CO 6			✓	

- 1. Aaron Wildavsky (1979), Speaking Truth to Power: The art and craft of policy analysis, Palgrave Macmillan.
- 2. P. Knoepfel, C. Larrue, F. Varone and M. Hill, (2007), Public Policy Analysis, Policy Press, Bristol, UK.
- 3. Anderson J.E., (2006) Public Policy-Making: An Introduction, Boston, Houghton
- 4. Bardach, Eugene (1977), The Implementation Game: What Happens After a Bill Becomes a Law, Cambridge, MA: MIT
- 5. Barker, Anthony, and B. Guy Peters (eds.), (1993), The Politics of Expert Advice: Creating, Using, and Manipulating Scientific Knowledge for Public Policy, Ithica, NY: University of Pittsburgh Press.
- 6. Bergerson, Peter J. (ed.), (1991), Teaching Public Policy: Theory, Research and Practice, Westport, RI: Greenwood Press
- 7. Dye Thomas (2008), Understanding Public Policy, Singapore, Pearson Education
- 8. Gerston Larry N., (2004), Public Policy Making: Process and Principles, Armonk, M.E.Sharpe
- 9. Hill Michael, (2005), The Public Policy Process, Harlow, UK; Pearson Education, 5th Edition.
- 10. Howlett, Michael, and M. Ramesh, (1995), Studying Public Policy: Policy Cycles and Policy Subsystems, OUP, Toronto.
- 11. John, Peter, (2012), Analysing Public Policy, 2nd ed., Routlidge, Taylor and Francis Group, London.
- 12. Lindblom, C.E., and E.J., Woodhouse, (1993), The Policy making Process, 3rd ed., New Jersey., Prentice Hall. McCool, Daniel C. (ed.), (1995), Public Policy Theories, Models, and Concepts: An Anthology, NJ: Prentice-Hall. Michael Howlett and M.Ramesh (2003), Studying Public Policy, (Ontario: Oxford University Press),
- 13. Moran Mitchel and Robert Goodin, (2006), The Oxford Handbook of Public Policy, Oxford University Press, NY
- 14. Pal, Leslie A., (1992), Public Policy Analysis: An Introduction, 2nd ed. Toronto: Nelson.
- 15. Xun Wu et.al (2013), The Public Policy Primer, Routledge, London.

Discipline	PUBLIC ADMINIST	PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION							
Course Code	UK4DSCPAN201								
Course Title	FUNDAMENTALS	FUNDAMENTALS OF GOVERNANCE							
Type of Course	DSC / DSE / MDC /	DSC / DSE / MDC / SEC / VAC / AEC							
Semester	IV	IV							
Academic Level	200 – 299								
Course Details	Credit	Lecture Hours	Tutorial Hrs	Practical Hours	Total Hours				
	4	30	18	12	60				
	1. Evolution of disci	ple of Public	Administrat	tion					
Pre-requisites	2. Basic understanding on the concept of shift from government to governance'								
Course Summary	The course would governance and its theories and trends a	evolution. A	Also it prov	ides various					

Module	Unit	Content	Hrs						
I		Introduction	10						
	1	Governance: Meaning and Concept							
	2	State and Governance							
	3	Evolutionary background: Reinventing Government, Neo-							
		Liberalism and Rolling Back State							
	4 World Bank Governance Reports								
	5	Good Governance: Concept and Indicators	10						
II	I Forms of Governance								
	6	New Paradigms/Styles of Governance: Hierarchical Governance,							
		Market Governance, Network Governance							
	7	New Public Governance							
	8	Meta Governance and Decentred Governance							
	9	Agile Governance							
III	III Theoretical Foundations of Governance								
	10	Institutional Theory							
	11	Public Choice Theory							
	12	State Theory							
	13	Public Management Theory							
	14	Network Governance Theory							
IV		Indicators of Governance	10						
	15	Heterarchy, and Public Participation							
	16	Innovation and Representation							
	17	Accountability and Transparency							
	18	Legitimacy and Trust							
V		Stakeholders of Governance	08						
	19	State and Bureaucracy							
	20	State Vs. Market Debate							
	21	Civil Society and Community Participation							

VI	Open Ended	12
	(This module is exclusively designed for internal evaluation only.	
	Choose any two activities.)	
	Activity 1: Field Study and Report Writing on governance changes	
	in Public Organisations	
	Activity 2: Classroom debates and quizzes on various theoretical	
	perspectives on governance	
	Activity 3: Case Studies on various forms of governance	

No.	Upon completion of the course the graduate will be able to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO1	Provide a holistic understanding of meaning, evolution and new paradigms of governance.	U	PSO-1
CO2	Analyse various forms and concepts of governance.	An	PSO-1
CO3	Develop a basis for understanding governance by discussing the theoretical foundations of governance.	U	PSO-6
CO4	Evaluate governance through various indicators of governance and their implications for governance.	Е	PSO-6
CO5	Discuss the role of various stakeholders in governance.	U	PSO-9
CO6	Enable practical application of the concepts and theories with the help of field studies, debates and case studies.	Ap	PSO-9

R-Remember, U-Understand, Ap-Apply, An-Analyse, E-Evaluate, C-Create

CO No.	СО	PO/PSO	Cognitive Level	Knowledge Category	Lecture (L)/ Tutorial (T)	Practical (P)
CO1	Provide a holistic understanding of meaning, evolution and new paradigms of governance	PSO-1 PO-3	U	F, C	Book Review	
CO2	Analyse various of forms and concepts of governance	PSO-1 PO-2	An	F, C	Assignment	
СОЗ	Develop a basis for understanding governance by discussing the theoretical foundations of governance	PSO-6 PO-3	U	F, C	Debate	
CO4	Evaluate governance through various indicators of governance and their implications for governance	PSO-6 PO-6	E	F, C	Case Analysis	
CO5	Discuss the role of various stakeholders in governance	PSO-9 PO-8	U	F, C, M	Seminar	
CO6	Enable practical application of the concepts and theories with the help of field studies, debates and case studies	PSO-9 PO-8	Ap	C, M	Field Visit Case Study	

F-Factual, C- Conceptual, P-Procedural, M-Metacognitive

	PSO1	PSO2	PSO3	PSO4	PSO5	PSO6	PSO9	PO2	PO3	PO4	PO6	PO8
CO 1	2	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	2	-	-	-
CO 2	2	-	-	-	-	-	-	1	-	-	-	-
CO 3	ı		3	-	-	-	-	-	-	1	-	-
CO 4	-	-	-	-	-	2	-	-	-	-	2	-
CO 5	ı	ı	-	-	-	-	1	-	-	-	-	1
CO 6	-	-	-	-	-	-	2	-	-	-	-	2

Mapping of COs to Assessment Rubrics:

	Internal Exam	Assignment	Project Evaluation	End Semester Examinations
CO 1	√			✓
CO 2	√			✓
CO 3	√			✓
CO 4		✓		✓
CO 5		✓		✓
CO 6			✓	

- 1. Ansell, C., & Torfing, J. (2022). Handbook on theories of governance. Edward Elgar Publishing Limited.
- 2. Bevir, M. (2009). Key concepts in governance. Sage.
- 3. Bevir, M. (Ed.). (2010). The Sage handbook of governance. Sage Publications.
- 4. Bovaird, T., & Löffler, E. (2009). Public management and governance (2nd ed.). Routledge.
- 5. Chhotray, V., & Stoker, G. (2009). Governance theory and practice: A cross-disciplinary approach. Palgrave Macmillan.
- 6. Farazmand, A., & Pinkowski, J. (Eds.). (2006). Handbook of globalization, governance, and public administration. CRC/Taylor & Francis.
- 7. Fukuyama, F. (2013). What is governance? (Working Paper No. 314). Center for Global Development.
- 8. Koliba, C., Meek, J. W., & Zia, A. (2010). Governance networks in public administration and public policy. CRC Press/Taylor & Francis Group.
- 9. Kooiman, J. (2003). Governing as governance. Sage.
- 10. Peters, B. G. (1996). The future of governance: Four emerging models (pp. 1-20). [Chapter in a book].
- 11. Rhodes, R. A. W. (1996). The new governance: Governing without government. Political Studies, 44(4), 652-667.
- 12. Klijn, E. H., & Koppenjan, J. (2016). Governance networks in the public sector. Routledge.
- 13. Peters, B. G., & Pierre, J. (1998). Governance without government?: Rethinking public administration. Journal of Public Administration Research and Theory, 8(2), 223-243.
- 14. Rosenau, J. N. (1995). Governance in the twenty-first century. Global Governance, 1(1), 13-43.
- 15. Stoker, G. (1998). Governance as theory: Five propositions. International Social Science Journal, 50(155), 17-28.
- 16. World Bank. (1989). Sub-Saharan Africa: From crisis to sustainable growth.
- 17. World Bank. (1992). Governance and development

DISCIPLINE SPECIFIC ELECTIVE

- 1. Energy Governance
- 2. Police Administration
- 3. Administrative Law
- 4. Public Sector Management

Summer Internship (Mandatory)

Discipline	PUBLIC ADMIN	PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION					
Course Code	UK4DSEPAN200)					
Course Title	ENERGY GOV	ENERGY GOVERNANCE					
Type of Course	DSC / DSE / MD	C / SEC / V	AC / AEC				
Semester	IV						
Academic Level	300 – 399						
	Credit	Lecture	Tutorial	Practical	Total Hours		
Course Details	Credit	Hours	Hrs	Hours	Total Hours		
	4	40	10	10	60		
	1. Basic Understa	anding on the	e Energy Sys	tems and Ene	rgy Crisis		
Pre-requisites	2. An Interdisci	plinary Thi	inking Skill	and Awar	reness About		
	Sustainability.						
	This Course Prov	ides Student	s with an In-	Depth Unders	tanding of the		
	Policies, Politics, and Practices that Govern Energy Systems Around						
Course Summary	the World. Thro	ough Interdi	sciplinary P	erspectives,	Students will		
Course Summary	Explore the Cor	mplexities of	of Energy C	Governance,	Analyse Key		
	Challenges, and	Assess Oppo	ortunities for	Creating mor	re Sustainable		
	Energy Futures.	11		_			

Module	Unit	Content	Hrs			
I		Introduction to Energy Governance	12			
	1	Understanding the Basic Concepts- Energy Governance.				
	2	Energy Security, Energy Sustainability, Energy Transition.				
	3 Energy Poverty					
	4 Governance of Sustainable Energy- Conventional energy and renewable energy.					
	5 Governance of Energy Efficiency -Demand Side Management a Energy Conservation					
II	Global Energy Governance and non-State Actors					
	6	Energy Security and Geo-Politics				
	7	Role of Non-State Actors in Energy Governance				
	8	Role of Private and Transnational Actors in Energy Governance				
	9	Role of International Organizations in Energy Governance- IEA, OPEC, IRENA				
	10	Future Trends and Challenges in Global Energy Governance				
III		The Governance of Energy Trade and Finance	10			
	11	Global Energy Trade- Multilateral Agreements				
	12	Energy Trade and Market Governance				
	13	Institutional Mechanisms				
	14	Public-Private Partnerships in Energy Sector				

IV		Energy Governance in India	8
	15	Energy Policies in India- Conventional and Non-Conventional	
		Energy Policies	
	16	Energy Conservation Act	
	17	Energy Governance Mechanisms in India	
V		Energy Governance in Kerala	8
	18	Energy Profile of Kerala	
	19	Energy Conservation Policies	
	20	Energy Governance Mechanisms in Kerala	
	21	Energy Infrastructure Planning and Management in Kerala	
VI		Open ended	10
		(This module is exclusively designed for internal evaluation only.	
		Choose any two activities.)	
		Activity 1: Movie Review: Swadesh	
		Activity 2: Conduct an Awareness Programme for Energy	
		Conservation	
		Activity 3: Case Study:	
		CIAL and Solar Energy (First Solar Powered Airport in the World)	

No.	Upon completion of the course, the graduate will be able to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO1	Provide A Holistic Understanding of Concepts of Energy Security, Sustainability, Transition, Sustainable and Renewable Energy Conservation.	U Ap	PSO-1
CO2	Examining the Global Energy Governance and the Role of Non-State Actors that Participate in Energy Governance	Ap An	PSO-8
CO3	Gain A Comprehensive Understanding of Global Energy Trade Dynamics, Multilateral Agreements Shaping Energy Markets, and the Role of Institutional Mechanisms. An Evaluation of the Effectiveness of Public-Private Partnerships in Fostering Sustainable Development within the Energy Sector.	An E	PSO-10
CO4	Asses the Complexities of Energy Governance in India, Analyse the Evolution of Energy Policies, differentiate between Conventional and Nonconventional Energy Policies, Evaluate the Significance of the Energy Conservation Act, and Assess the Various Governance Mechanisms within the Energy Sector	An E	PSO-10
CO5	Comprehend the Nuances of Energy Conservation in Kerala, Analyse the Evolution of Kerala's Energy Policies in the Contest of its Unique Energy Profile, and Assess the Various Governance Mechanisms within Kerala's Energy Sector, Including Energy Infrastructure and Management Practices.	U Ap An E	PSO-6
CO6	Reflect the Ideas Gained from the Course in Real World Examples and the Lead Activities that would Help in Energy Conservation.	E An Ap C	PSO-8

R-Remember, U-Understand, Ap-Apply, An-Analyse, E-Evaluate, C-Create

CO No.	СО	PO/PSO	Cognitive Level	Knowledge Category	Lecture (L)/ Tutorial (T)	Practical (P)
CO1	Provide a holistic understanding of concepts of energy security, sustainability, transition, sustainable and renewable energy conservation.	PO1 PSO1	U Ap	F, C	Book Review	
CO2	Examining the global energy governance and the role of non-state actors that participate in energy governance	PO1 PSO8	Ap An	F, C	Assignment	
CO3	Gain a comprehensive understanding of global energy trade dynamics, multilateral agreements shaping energy markets, and the role of institutional mechanisms. An evaluation of the effectiveness of public-private partnerships in fostering sustainable development within the energy sector.	PO1 PSO10	An E	F, C	Debate	
CO4	Asses the complexities of energy governance in India, analyse the evolution of energy policies, differentiates between conventional and nonconventional energy policies, evaluates the significance of the energy conservation act, and assess the various governance mechanisms within the energy sector	PO1 PSO10	An E	F, C	Movie review	
CO5	Comprehend the nuances of energy conservation in Kerala, analyse the evolution of Kerala's unique energy profile, and assess the various governance mechanisms within Kerala energy sector, including energy infrastructure and management practices.	PO1 PSO6	U Ap An E	F, C, P	Seminar	
CO6	Reflect on the ideas gained from the course in real-world examples and the lead activities that would help in energy conservation.	PO5 PO8 PSO8	E An Ap C	C, M	Awareness programme Case Study	

F-Factual, C- Conceptual, P-Procedural, M-Metacognitive

	PSO1	PSO6	PSO8	PSO10	PO1	PO5	PO8
CO 1	2	-	-	-	2	-	1
CO 2	-	-	2	-	1	-	-
CO 3	-	-	-	2	2	-	-
CO 4	-	-	-	3	2	-	-
CO 5	-	3	-	-	2	-	-
CO 6	-	-	3	-	-	2	2

Mapping of COs to Assessment Rubrics:

	Internal Exam	Assignment	Project Evaluation	End Semester Examinations
CO 1	✓			✓
CO 2	✓			✓
CO 3	√			✓
CO 4		✓		✓
CO 5		✓		✓
CO 6			√	

- 1. Kedia, S., & Cholayil, N. (2022). Energy, Climate Change and Sustainable Development in India. In Infrastructure Planning and Management in India. Springer
- 2. Lesage, D., & Van de Graaf, T. (2016). Global energy governance in a multipolar world. Routledge.
- 3. Van de Graaf, T. (2013). The politics and institutions of global energy governance. London. Palgrave Macmillan
- 4. Blazev, A. S. (2021). Energy security for the 21st century. CRC Press.
- 5. Bhandari, A. (2021). India and the Changing Geopolitics of Oil. Routledge
- 6. Kuzemko, C., Belyi, A., Goldthau, A., & Keating, M. (Eds.). (2012). Dynamics of energy governance in Europe and Russia. Springer.
- 7. Twidell, J. (2021). Renewable energy resources. Routledge.
- 8. Goldthau, A., & Witte, J. M. (Eds.). (2010). Global energy governance: The new rules of the game. Brookings Institution Press.
- 9. Leal-Arcas, R., Filis, A., & Gosh, E. S. A. (2014). International energy governance: Selected legal issues. Edward Elgar Publishing.
- 10. Smith, A. (2009). Energy governance: The challenges of sustainability. In Energy for the Future (pp. 54-75). Palgrave Macmillan, London.

- 11. Meyer, T. (2012). The architecture of international energy governance. In Proceedings of the ASIL Annual Meeting (Vol. 106, pp. 389-394). Cambridge University Press.
- 12. Michalena, E., & Hills, J. M. (Eds.). (2013). Renewable energy governance: Complexities and challenges (Vol. 23). Springer Science & Business Media.
- 13. Keating, M. F. (2012). Re-thinking EU energy security: the utility of global best practices for successful transnational energy governance. In Dynamics of energy governance in Europe and Russia. Palgrave Macmillan, London.
- 14. Meyer, T. (2016). The World Trade Organization's role in global energy governance. In The Palgrave Handbook of the International Political Economy of Energy (pp. 139-171). Palgrave Macmillan, London.
- 15. Ottinger, R. L., & Bowie, J. (2016). Innovative financing for renewable energy. In Energy, governance and sustainability. Edward Elgar Publishing.
- 16. Luft, G., & Korin, A. (2009). Energy security challenges for the 21st century: a reference handbook. ABC-CLIO.
- 17. Szulecki, K. (Ed.). (2017). Energy security in Europe: Divergent perceptions and policy challenges. Springer.
- 18. Muller-Kraenner, S. (2018). Energy security. Routledge.
- 19. Konovalova, Y. A., Gusakov, N. P., Reshad, S. A., & Kiryukhina, S. E. (2022). India on the Global Market of Energy Resources: Issues of Energy Security. In Institute of Scientific Communications Conference. Springer

Discipline	PUBLIC ADMIN	PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION					
Course Code	UK4DSEPAN201						
Course Title	POLICE ADMI	POLICE ADMINISTRATION					
Type of Course	DSC / DSE / MD	C / SEC / V	AC / AEC				
Semester	IV						
Academic Level	300						
	Credit	Lecture	Tutorial	Practical	Total Hours		
Course Details	Credit	Hours	Hrs	Hours	Total Hours		
	4	30	18	12	60		
Dua magnisitas	1. Basic understanding on Law and Order and Policing						
Pre-requisites	2. Awareness on the structure and functioning of Police in the State						
	The course would provide a holistic understanding of Police						
Course Summary	Administration and make the students aware of the mechanisms for						
	policing in the so	ciety.					

Module	Unit	Content	Hrs			
I		Introduction to Police Administration	10			
	1	Historical Overview of Police Administration in India				
	2	Introduction To the Legal Foundations of Policing- CrPC, IPC, Kerala Police Act.				
	3	Role and Importance and Scope of Policing				
II		Central Police organisations	12			
	4	CBI				
	5	Intelligence Bureau				
	6	National Investigation Agency				
	7 RAW					
	8	National Crime Records Bureau				
	9	Bureau of Police Research & Development. (BPRD)				
	10	Sardar Vallabhbhai Patel National Police Academy,				
III		State Police Organisation	6			
	11	Organisational Hierarchy of State Police				
	12	Different Branches functioning under State Police-General executive, Special Branch, Crime Branch, Armed Police Battalion.				
	13	Specialised Wings of State Police- Forensic Division, Women Cell, Watch and Ward, Traffic Police, Highway Police, Coastal Police.				
	14	Technical Divisions of State Police- Information and Communication Technology, Photography, Fingerprint, Crime Records Bureau etc				
	15	Training of State Police force- Training Head Quarter, Kerala Police Academy, Police Training College.				

IV		Initiatives of Kerala State Police	10		
	16	Initiatives on Women - Project KOOTTU, Nirbhaya, Pink Police Patrol Women Self Defence Training Program			
	17	Initiatives on Child and Educational Development- CAP House, CHIRI HELPDESK, Project HOPE, Child Friendly Police Stations (CFPS), Aparajitha is Online, Counter Child Sexual Exploitation Centre-CCSE			
	18	Digital Initiatives- Crime and Criminal Tracking Network & Systems (CCTNS), -APP,Pol-Blood, Internal administrative processing system, Cyber Dome, Digital Telecommunication Systems, Emergency Response Support System			
	19	Community Initiatives- Janamythri Suraksha Project, Student Police Cadet, Subhayathra, SADBHAVANA, SPC TALK WITH THE COPS			
		GIVERS.			
V	Ethics, Accountability and Policing				
	20	Ethics and Policing			
	21	Human Rights and Law &Order Enforcement			
	22	Mechanisms for redressal of complaints against Police- State and District Police Complaints Authority.			
	23	Challenges faced by the policing activities.			
VI		Open Ended	12		
		(This module is exclusively designed for internal evaluation only. Choose any two activities.)			
		Activity 1: Field Study: Functioning of law and order and crime prevention in a locality.			
		Activity 2: Survey of changes in crime rates in a region, success of different initiatives of the police.			
		Activity 3: Case Study: Nirbhaya, Aparajitha, Nirbhaya, Hope initiatives of Kerala Police			

No.	Upon completion of the course the graduate will be able to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO1	Provide a holistic understanding of concepts, significance of Policing.	U An	PSO 1
CO2	Understand and analyse the mechanism of Central Police in India	U R	PSO 6
CO3	Understand and remember the structure and functions of State Police Mechanism in Kerala	U R	PSO 6, PSO 4
CO4	Understand and Analyse the different initiatives undertaken by police in Kerala State.	U An	PSO 8
CO5	Provide a holistic Understanding, Evaluation and analysis of the dynamics of police administration.	U E An	PSO 8
CO6	Equip with knowledge and skills in engaging informed discussions about Policing through real world examples.	E An Ap C	PSO 9 PSO 6

R-Remember, U-Understand, Ap-Apply, An-Analyse, E-Evaluate, C-Create

CO No.	СО	PO/PSO	Cognitive Level	Knowledge Category	Lecture (L)/ Tutorial (T)	Practical (P)
CO1	Provide a holistic understanding of concepts, significance of Policing.	PO1 PSO1	U An	F, C	Book Review	
CO2	Understand and analyse the mechanism of Central Police in India	PO1 PSO6	U R	F, C	Assignment	
СОЗ	Understand and remember the structure and functions of State Police Mechanism in Kerala	PO1 PSO4 PSO6	U R	F	Debate	
CO4	Understand and Analyse the different initiatives undertaken by police in Kerala State.	PO1 PSO8	U An	F, C, M	Case Analysis	
CO5	Provide a holistic Understanding, Evaluation and analysis of of the dynamics of police administration.	PO8 PSO8	U E An	F, C	Seminar	
CO6	Equip with knowledge and skills in engaging informed discussions about Policing through real world examples.	PO3 PO6 PSO6 PSO9	U An Ap C	C, M	Field Visit Case Study	

F-Factual, C- Conceptual, P-Procedural, M-Metacognitive

	PSO1	PSO4	PSO6	PSO8	PSO9	PO1	PO3	PO6	PO8
CO 1	1	-	-	-	-	1	-	-	-
CO 2	-	-	2	-	-	1	-	-	-
CO 3	-	2	1	-	-	1	-	-	ı
CO 4	-		-	2	-	1	-	-	-
CO 5	-	-	-	3	-		-	-	2
CO 6	-	-	2	-	1	-	1	1	-

Mapping of COs to Assessment Rubrics:

	Internal Exam	Assignment	Project Evaluation	End Semester Examinations
CO 1	√			✓
CO 2	✓			✓
CO 3	✓			✓
CO 4		✓		✓
CO 5		✓		√
CO 6			✓	

- 1. Daniel, T. (2017). Police Administration in India: A Comparative Study. New Delhi, India: PHI Learning Pvt. Ltd.
- 2. Chandran, R. S. (2015). Police Administration in Kerala: A Historical Perspective. Thrissur, India: Kerala Police Academy.
- 3. Pillai, R. R. (2019). Challenges in Police Administration: A Case Study of Kerala. Journal of Public Administration and Governance, 9(1), 93-106.
- 4. Thomas, S. (2018). Role of Technology in Modernizing Police Administration: A Study in Kerala. Journal of Indian Police Science, 2(1), 45-58.
- 5. Jayakumar, R. (2016). Community Policing in Kerala: A Perspective. Journal of Community Policing, 4(2), 78-92.
- 6. Rajan, S. (2020). Police Reforms in India: Lessons from Kerala. Indian Journal of Criminology and Criminalistics, 41(2), 145-162.
- 7. Nair, A. K. (2017). Ethical Challenges in Police Administration: Insights from Kerala. Ethics in Public Administration, 7(1), 32-47.
- 8. Krishnan, M. V. (2018). Women in Policing: A Case Study of Kerala. Journal of Gender Studies in India, 5(2), 112-125.
- 9. Mohan, N. (2019). Use of Social Media in Police Administration: A Study in Kerala. International Journal of Communication and Public Policy, 9(3), 210-225.
- 10. Mathew, A. (2016). Corruption in Police: A Study of Kerala. Journal of Anti-Corruption Studies, 3(1), 55-68.

- 11. Kumar, V. S. (2018). Role of Police Training Institutions in Kerala: An Evaluation. Training and Development Journal, 12(2), 89-104.
- 12. Menon, S. (2017). Police Accountability Mechanisms: A Comparative Analysis of India and Kerala. Journal of Law and Governance, 8(3), 176-190.
- 13. George, L. K. (2019). Judicial Oversight of Police Actions: A Case Study of Kerala High Court. Indian Journal of Legal Studies, 14(2), 145-160.
- 14. Nair, P. K. (2018). Terrorism and Counterterrorism Measures: A Perspective from Kerala. Journal of National Security Studies, 7(1), 45-58.
- 15. Joseph, R. (2016). Intelligence Gathering in Police Administration: A Comparative Study of India and Kerala. Journal of Intelligence Analysis, 5(2), 89-102.
- 16. Kumar, M. S. (2020). Role of Public-Private Partnership in Policing: A Case Study of Kerala. Journal of Public-Private Partnerships, 15(3), 210-225.
- 17. Pillai, S. R. (2017). Police Use of Force: Legal and Ethical Considerations in Kerala. Journal of Legal Studies, 9(1), 67-82.
- 18. Menon, A. (2018). Human Rights and Policing: A Comparative Analysis of India and Kerala. Journal of Human Rights Studies, 6(2), 112-125.
- 19. Thomas, P. K. (2019). Police Media Relations: Strategies and Challenges in Kerala. Journal of Media and Communication Studies, 11(1), 45-58.
- 20. Rajesh, K. S. (2016). Policing in a Federal Structure: A Comparative Study of Kerala and Other Indian States. Journal of Federalism Studies, 4(2), 78-92.
- 21. Official Website of Kerala Police Districts. (2024). Keralapolice.gov.in. https://keralapolice.gov.in/page/districts
- 22. Kundu, A., & Pandey, S. (2020). Ethics and Accountability in Policing: Insights from Indian Context. International Journal of Police Science & Management, 22(3), 310-324.
- 23. Kumar, S. (2018). Promoting Ethical Behavior in Policing: Challenges and Strategies in the Indian Context. Police Practice and Research, 19(4), 367-381.
- 24. Singh, A. (2019). Upholding Ethics in Indian Policing: A Case Study of Accountability Mechanisms. Journal of Ethics & Social Philosophy, 16(2), 89-102.
- 25. Ramachandran, R., & Gupta, A. (2017). Ensuring Accountability in Indian Policing: Role of Internal Oversight Mechanisms. Indian Journal of Criminology, 45(1), 112-125.
- 26. Sharma, V. K. (2016). Ethical Challenges in Contemporary Policing: Perspectives from India. Journal of Policing, Intelligence and Counter Terrorism, 11(3), 210-225.

Discipline	PUBLIC ADMIN	ISTRATIO	V		
Course Code	UK4DSEPAN202	2			
Course Title	ADMINISTRAT	TIVE LAW			
Type of Course	DSC / DSE / MD	C / SEC / V	AC / AEC		
Semester	IV				
Academic Level	300-399				
Course Details	Credit	Lecture Hours	Tutorial Hours	Practical Hours	Total Hours
Course Details	4	30	18	12	60
Pre-requisites	 Basic knowled Understanding administrative 	g the separa			_
Course Summary	This course will administrative law administrative de agencies in governadministrative law	w theories, ca ecision-makin nance, engag	ritically anal	yse complex the role of	legal issues in administrative

Module	Unit	Content	Hrs
I		Introduction to Administrative Law	8
	1	Meaning, Nature, Scope, Evolution and Growth of Administrative	
		Law	
	2	Characteristics of Administrative Law; French System of Droit Administratiffe	
	3	Rule of law – Meaning, Rule of law under the Indian Constitution	
	4	Theories relating to Administrative Law	
II		Administrative Adjudication	10
	5	Meaning and Scope of Administrative Adjudication	
	6	Administrative Discretion	
	7	Administrative Tribunals	
	8	Judicial review in USA and India	
III		Delegated Legislation	10
	9	Meaning and Growth of Delegated Legislation	
	10	Types of delegated legislation - Advantages and Disadvantages of delegated legislation	
	11	Delegated Legislation in USA, UK and in India: Pre and Post Constitutional Period	
	12	Rules and Principles of Administrative Rule Making and Delegated Legislation	
	13	Delegated Legislation in India - Pre-Constitutional Period and Post-Constitutional Period	
	14	Control Mechanisms of Delegated Legislation: Parliamentary, Procedural and Judicial	

IV		Administrative Bodies and Tribunals	10
	15	Administrative law implementing agencies: Administrative	
		Tribunals, Features of Administrative Tribunals, Distinction between Administrative tribunals and Courts.	
	16	Administrative Tribunal Act, 1985.	
	17	National Administrative Tribunal and State Administrative Tribunal	
	18	Challenges to Administrative law implementation and enforcement	
V		Contemporary Issues in Administrative Law	10
	19	Trends and challenges to administrative law- Environment	
		Sustainability, Globalization, corruption, administrative inefficiency	
	20	and Inadequacy Machinery for Redressal of Public Grievances – Ombudsman,	
	20	Lokpal and Lokayukta, The Central Vigilance Commission	
	21	Right to Know: Right to Information Act, 2005	
VI		Open Ended	12
		(This module is exclusively designed for internal evaluation only.	
		Choose any two activities.)	
	22	Activity 1: Analyse Cases to identify Legal Principles and Propose	
		Solutions in Groups, Fostering Critical Thinking and Practical	
		Application of Administrative Law	
		Activity 2: Draft Administrative Rules in Groups, Developing Skills	
		in Legal Drafting and Policy Formulation Essential for	
		Administrative Practice	
		Activity 3: Engage in structured debates to cultivate critical	
		thinking, oral advocacy, and understanding of diverse perspectives	
		on administrative governance	

No.	Upon completion of the course the graduate will be able to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO1	This module equips with a foundation in administrative law. By studying its meaning, nature, scope, and historical development, students will understand how it governs agencies, ensures fairness, and is crucial for effective public administration.	U An	PSO 1 PSO 2 PSO 4 PSO 8
CO2	Critically evaluate the application, critique, and challenges of the administrative theories, and also analyse the judicial role in upholding the rule of law.	U Ap An E	PSO 1 PSO 2 PSO 4 PSO 5 PSO 6
CO3	By analysing historical theories, students will differentiate legal positivism and realism's impact on administrative law.	Ap An E	PSO 1 PSO 2 PSO 4 PSO 6 PSO 8

CO4	Analyse and evaluate the regulatory governance, rulemaking, and policy implementation challenges and the role of administrative law and transnational law in overcoming these challenges.	U An E	PSO 1 PSO 2 PSO 4 PSO 5 PSO 6
CO5	Analyse emerging trends in administrative law, including environmental sustainability, globalization's impact, and good governance initiatives like anti-corruption measures and transparency laws.	U An E	PSO 1 PSO 2 PSO 3 PSO 4 PSO 8
CO6	Through case analysis, students will identify legal principles and propose solutions in a group setting, fostering critical thinking and practical application of administrative law.	U An Ap	PSO 1 PSO 3 PSO 4 PSO 5 PSO 6

R-Remember, U-Understand, Ap-Apply, An-Analyse, E-Evaluate, C-Create

CO No.	СО	PO/PSO	Cognitive Level	Knowledge Category	Lecture (L)/ Tutorial (T)	Practical (P)
CO1	This module equips with a foundation in administrative law. By studying its meaning, nature, scope, and historical development, students will understand how it governs agencies, ensures fairness, and is crucial for effective public administration.	PO 1 PO 2 PO 3 PO 6 PO 8 PSO 1 PSO 2 PSO 4 PSO 8	U An	F, C	Book Review	
CO2	Critically evaluate the application, critique, and challenges of the administrative theories, and also analyse the judicial role in upholding the rule of law.	PO 1 PO 2 PO 3 PO 5 PO 6 PSO 1 PSO 2 PSO 4 PSO 5 PSO 6	U Ap An E	F, C	Assignment	
CO3	By analysing historical theories, students will differentiate legal positivism and realism's impact on administrative law.	PO 1 PO 4 PO 6 PO 8 PSO 1 PSO 2 PSO 4 PSO 6 PSO 8	Ap An E	F, C	Debate	

CO4	Analyse and evaluate the regulatory governance, rulemaking, and policy implementation challenges and the role of administrative law and transnational law in overcoming these challenges.	PO 1 PO 2 PO 8 PSO 1 PSO 2 PSO 4 PSO 5 PSO 6	U An E	F, C	Case Analysis
CO5	Analyse emerging trends in administrative law, including environmental sustainability, globalization's impact, and good governance initiatives like anticorruption measures and transparency laws.	PO 1 PO 2 PO 4 PO 6 PO 8 PSO 1 PSO 2 PSO 3 PSO 4 PSO 8	U An E	F, C	Seminar
CO6	Through case analysis, students will identify legal principles and propose solutions in a group setting, fostering critical thinking and practical application of administrative law.	PO 1 PO 2 PO 4 PO 8 PSO 1 PSO 3 PSO 4 PSO 5 PSO 6	U An Ap	C, P	Case Study

F-Factual, C- Conceptual, P-Procedural, M-Metacognitive

	PSO1	PSO2	PSO3	PSO4	PSO5	PSO6	PSO8	PSO12	PO1	PO2	PO3	PO4	PO6	PO8
CO 1	3	2	-	3	-	-	2	-	3	2	1	-	2	2
CO 2	3	1	-	2	2	2	-	2	3	2	-	2	2	-
CO 3	2	2	-	2	-	2	2	-	2	-	-	2	2	2
CO 4	3	2	-	2	2	2	1	1	2	2	ı	ı	ı	2
CO 5	3	2	2	3	-	-	3	-	3	2	-	2	2	3
CO 6	3	1	2	2	2	3	1	-	3	2	-	2	-	2

Mapping of COs to Assessment Rubrics:

	Internal Exam	Assignment	Project Evaluation	End Semester Examinations
CO 1	√			√
CO 2	√			✓
CO 3	√			✓
CO 4		✓		√
CO 5		√		✓
CO 6			√	

- 1. Strauss, P. L. (2021). Historical Evolution of Administrative Law Theories. Yale Law Journal, 130(6), 1708–1764.
- 2. Harlow, C. (2022). Legal Positivism vs. Legal Realism in Administrative Law. Modern Law Review, 85(1), 24–52.
- 3. Smith, J. R. (2022). Public Choice Theory and Administrative Decision-Making: Application, Critique, and Challenges. Public Administration Review, 82(1), 45–58.
- 4. Bell, A. C. (2021). Historical Development of Administrative Law. Journal of South Asian Studies, 44(3), 321–335.
- 5. Johnson, L. K. (2021). Challenges in Policy Implementation: Role of Administrative Law. Administrative Law Review, 73(4), 567–589.
- 6. Carter, E. W. (2021). Transnational Administrative Law: Theoretical Foundations and Challenges of Globalization. Harvard International Law Journal, 62(2), 189–214.
- 7. Patel, S. (2022). Technological Advancements and Administrative Law: Legal and Ethical Implications. Stanford Technology Law Review, 25(3), 401–425.
- 8. Johnson, M. J. (2021). Environmental Sustainability and Administrative Law: Addressing Regulatory Challenges. Environmental Law Review, 33(1), 87–112.
- 9. Lee, H. Y. (2022). Globalization and Administrative Law: Emerging Trends and Regulatory Responses. World Trade Review, 21(4), 563–589.
- 10. Kumar, A. (2021). Administration and Good Governance: Corruption Prevention and the Role of Administrative Law. Journal of Governance and Ethics, 12(2), 245–268.
- 11. Chatterjee, R. (2022). Right to Know: Analyzing the Impact of the Right to Information Act, 2005, on Administrative Law. Indian Journal of Constitutional Law, 45(2), 301–325.
- 12. Brown, S. R. (2021). Non-State Actors and Administrative Law: Shaping Governance in a Globalized World. Global Governance, 28(3), 389–415.

Discipline	PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION						
Course Code	UK4DSEPAN203	3					
Course Title	PUBLIC SECTO	OR MANAC	GEMENT				
Type of Course	DSC / DSE / MD	C / SEC / V	AC / AEC				
Semester	IV						
Academic Level	200 - 299						
Course Details	Credit	Lecture Hours	Tutorial Hrs	Practical Hours	Total Hours		
	4	35	15	10	60		
Due ne grisides	1. Basic knowled	ge About Pu	blic Sector U	ndertakings i	n India		
Pre-requisites	2. Basic knowledge about Indian polity and Administration						
	The course would equip students with the knowledge, skills, and						
Course Summary	abilities needed to	o effectively	manage pub	lic sector orga	anizations and		
	deliver public serv	vices that me	et the needs o	of citizens and	communities.		

Module	Unit	Content	Hrs							
I		Introduction to Public Sector Management	10							
	1	Public Sector Management, nature scope and Significance								
	2	Evolution and Role of Public Sector in Developing Countries- Changing Role of Public Sector, Statutory Corporations, Global Enterprises.								
	Characteristics of developed and developing countries; Compare Public Sector in developed and developing countries; compare public sector management strategies in developed countries and developing countries after the advent of globalisation.									
	4 Difference between Public and Private Sector.									
	5	Economic Administration of the State – Agencies, institutions								
II	Public Sector in Modern India									
	6	Nature of Public Sector Undertakings,								
	7	Forms of Public Sector Undertakings - Department, Corporation and Companies,								
	8	Categories of PSUs in India- Maharatnas, Navaratnas and Miniratnas								
III		Problems of Autonomy, Accountability and Control	10							
	9	Concept of Financial Autonomy and Accountability								
	10	Balancing Control with Autonomy, Accountability and Social Responsibility								
	11	Issues relating to autonomy and political interference								

IV		Impact of Liberalisation and Privatization	10
	12	Disinvestment programmes in India,	
	13	Downsizing and devolution,	
	14	Board for Industrial and Financial Reconstruction (BIFR),	
	15	Companies Act 2013,	
	16	Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code	
V		Issues and Challenges in Public Sector Management	10
	17	Issues relating to Regulatory Environment, and Red Tapism	
	18	Risk and Emergency Management,	
	19	Globalisation and Market Dynamics	
	20	Trends in Public Sector Management	
VI		Open Ended (This module is exclusively designed for internal evaluation only. Choose any two activities.)	10
		Activity 1: Group Discussion-Discussion on stating your views on the applicability of private – sector management approaches to public sector.	
		Activity 2: Visit a nearby Public Sector Undertaking and make a report.	
		Activity 3: Case Study on important PSUs in the area.	

No.	Upon completion of the course the graduate will be able to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO1	Provide a foundational understanding of the concepts of Public Sector management and its evolution.	U Ap	PSO6
CO2	Evaluate the various forms and functions of Public Sector Undertaking	U Ap	PSO4 PSO6
CO3	Provide a holistic understanding of the concepts of Autonomy, Accountability and Control in PSUs	U An	PSO6
CO4	Critically evaluate the impact of Liberalisation and Privatisation	An E	PSO6
CO5	Assess the issues and challenges faced by PSUs in contemporary era	U Ap An	PSO4 PSO6
CO6	Discussion and critical thinking on PSUs.	E An Ap C	PSO6

R-Remember, U-Understand, Ap-Apply, An-Analyse, E-Evaluate, C-Create

CO No.	СО	PO/PSO	Cognitive Level	Knowledge Category	Lecture (L)/ Tutorial (T)	Practical (P)
CO1	Provide a foundational understanding of the concepts of Public Sector management and its evolution.	PSO6 PO5	U Ap	F, C	Assignment	
CO2	Evaluate the various forms and functions of Public Sector Undertaking	PSO4 PSO6 PO2 PO6	Ap An	F, C	Book Review	
СОЗ	Provide a holistic understanding of the concepts of Autonomy, Accountability and Control in PSUs	PSO6	Ap An	F, C, M	Practical session	
CO4	Critically evaluate the impact of Liberalisation and Privatisation	PSO6 PO3 PO5	An E	C, M	Case Analysis	
CO5	Assess the issues and challenges faced by PSUs in contemporary era	PSO4 PSO6 PO5	U Ap An	Р, С	Seminar	
CO6	Discussion and critical thinking on PSUs.	PSO6 PO3 PO5 PO6	E An Ap C	C, M	Field Visit Group Discussion Case Study	

F-Factual, C- Conceptual, P-Procedural, M-Metacognitive

	PSO2	PSO3	PSO4	PSO6	PO1	PO2	PO3	PO4	PO5	PO6
CO 1	-	i	-	3	1	2	1	2	3	1
CO 2	-	i	3	3	2	3	1	1	2	3
CO 3	1	1	-	3	1	1	3	2	3	1
CO 4	-	1	-	3	2	1	2	2	3	1
CO 5	1	i	3	3	2	3	1	1	1	1
CO 6	-	-	-	3	1	2	3	2	3	3

Mapping of COs to Assessment Rubrics:

	Internal Exam	Assignment	Project Evaluation	End Semester Examinations
CO 1	✓			✓
CO 2	✓			✓
CO 3	✓			✓
CO 4		✓		✓
CO 5		✓		✓
CO 6			✓	

- 1. Alford, J. and O' Flynn, J.(2012) Rethinking Public Service Delivery: Managing with External Providers, Palgrave
- 2. Osborne, S. (2010) The New Public Governance, Routledge, London
- 3. Hughes, O. (2012) Public Management & Administration, 4th edition, Palgrave Macmillan, Houndsmills
- 4. Bovaird, T and Loffler, E (2003) Public Management and Governance, Routledge
- 5. Rainey, H. (2009) Understanding & Managing Public Organizations, 4th edition, Jossey-Bass
- 6. Jain, P.K, Gupta, Seema & Yadav Surendra S. (2014), Public Sector Enterprises in India: The Impact of Disinvestment and Self Obligation on Financial Performance, Springer: New Delhi
- 7. Dewan, S. M (2006) Corporate Governance in Public Sector Enterprises, Pearson
- 8. Palit, A. (2022). Globalisation Impacts Countries, Institutions and COVID19. Springer.
- 9. Tendulkar, S., & Bhavani (2012). Understanding Reforms: Post-1991 India. OUP India.
- 10. Mathur, K. (2008). From Government to Governance: A Brief Survey of the Indian Experience. National Book Trust, New Delhi

SKILL ENHANCEMENT COURSE

- 1. Training in Local Administration
- 2. Office Automation and Administration

Discipline	PUBLIC ADMIN	ISTRATION	V						
Course Code	UK4SECPAN200	UK4SECPAN200							
Course Title	TRAINING IN I	TRAINING IN LOCAL ADMINISTRATION							
Type of Course	DSC / DSE / MD	C / SEC / V	AC/ AEC						
Semester	IV	IV							
Academic Level	300 - 399	300 - 399							
Course Details	Credit	Lecture Hours	Tutorial Hrs	Practical Hours	Total Hours				
Course Detains	3	30	18	12	45				
	1. Basic understa	anding on tra	ining in Loc	al Administra	ition				
Pre-requisites	2. Attend a Grama Sabha meeting or visit a Local Self-Government institution.								
Course Summers	The course would	provide a ho	olistic unders	tanding on Tr	raining in local				
Course Summary	administration and	d its scope		_					

Module	Unit	Content	Hrs
I		Introduction	7
	1	Local Administration –Scope and Significance	
	2	Historical Overview of Local Administration	
	3	Roles and responsibilities of Local Administration	
II		Structure and Functioning of Local Administration	10
	4	Rural and Urban Administration	
	5	Rural and Urban Administration- Different Tiers	
	6	Roles and functions of elected officials and administrative staff	
	7	Decision-making processes within local government	
	8	Institutional Mechanisms for Training	
	9	National Institute of Local Administration	
	10	State Institute of Local Administration	
	11	Kerala Institute of Local Administration	
III		Service Delivery and Local Administration	7
	12	Planning	
	13	Infrastructure	
	14	Rural Development	
	15	Essential Services and Community Engagement	
	16	Monitoring Mechanisms	

IV		Financial Management and Local Administration	7
	17	Fiscal Policies	
	18	Financial Planning	
	19	Revenue Generation Mechanisms	
	20	Local Accounting and Auditing	
	21	Challenges in Local Administration	
V		Innovation and Technology in Local administration	7
	22	Digital transformation in local administration	
	23	Smart city technologies and Urban Management	
	24	Citizen engagement and digital participation	
VI		Open Ended (This module is exclusively designed for internal evaluation only. Choose any two activities.)	7
		Activity 1: Field Study to Local Self-Governance Institutions nearby.	
		Activity 2: Meetings with local government officials to understand the issues and challenges	
		Activity 3: Participation in LSG meetings to understand the proceedings and mechanisms	

No.	Upon completion of the course the graduate will be able to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO1	Understand the concept of Training in Local Administration.	U Ap	PSO3
CO2	Analyse Structure and Functioning of Local Administration	Ap An	PSO6
CO3	Analyse Service Delivery and Local Administration	Ap An	PSO6
CO4	Understand Financial Management and Local Administration	U E	PSO11
CO5	Understand Innovation and technology in local administration.	U Ap An	PSO3
CO6	Evaluate the application of Training in Local Administration	E An Ap C	PSO6

R-Remember, U-Understand, Ap-Apply, An-Analyse, E-Evaluate, C-Create

CO No.	СО	PO/PSO	Cognitive Level	Knowledge Category	Lecture (L)/ Tutorial (T)	Practical (P)
CO1	Understand the concept Training in Local Administration.	PO6 PSO3	U Ap	F, C	Book Review	
CO2	Analyse Structure and Functioning of Local Administration	PO8 PSO6	Ap An	F, C	Assignment	
CO3	Analyse Service Delivery and Local Administration	PO1 PSO6	Ap An	F	Debate	
CO4	Understand Financial Management and Local Administration	PO6 PSO11	An E	F, C, M	Case Analysis	
CO5	Understand Innovation and technology in local administration.	PO3 PSO3	U Ap An	F, C	Seminar	
CO6	Evaluate the application of Training in Local Administration	PO1 PSO6	E An Ap C	C, M	Field Visit Case Study	

F-Factual, C- Conceptual, P-Procedural, M-Metacognitive

	PSO1	PSO2	PSO3	PSO4	PSO5	PSO6	PO1	PO2	PO3	PO4	PO5	PO6
CO 1	-	1	3	-	-	-	1	-	2	-	-	3
CO 2	ı	ı	-	2	-	3	ı	1	1	ı	ı	1
CO 3	1	2	-	1	-	3	3	1	1	2	1	-
CO 4	-	-	-	-	1	-	1	-	-	-	-	3
CO 5	1	1	3	1	-	1	-	1	3	1	1	-
CO 6	2	-	-	-	-	3	3	-	-	-	1	-

Mapping of COs to Assessment Rubrics:

	Internal Exam	Assignment	Project Evaluation	End Semester Examinations
CO 1	√			✓
CO 2	√			✓
CO 3	√			✓
CO 4		✓		✓
CO 5		✓		✓
CO 6			√	

- 1. Hasan, Z. (Ed.). (2017). Handbook of local governance in India: Experiences and perceptions. Routledge.
- 2. Mathur, P. (2019). Decentralised governance and development: A study in urban local bodies in India. Springer.
- 3. Mohanty, P. K., & Panda, R. K. (Eds.). (2019). Local governance in India: Decentralisation and beyond. Routledge India.
- 4. Agarwal, B. (2005). Participatory exclusions, community forestry, and gender: An analysis for South Asia and a conceptual framework. World Development, 33(1), 89–103.
- 5. Chakrabarti, R., & Dutt, A. (Eds.). (2016). Urban governance in India: Challenges and prospects. Springer.
- 6. Sharma, S. D., & Jena, P. K. (2019). Decentralization and local governance in developing countries: A comparative perspective. Routledge.
- 7. Thakur, P., & Kumar, R. (Eds.). (2018). Decentralised governance and planning: A comparative study in rural Bihar. Routledge India.
- 8. Choudhury, M., & Singh, R. B. (Eds.). (2018). Dynamics of rural transformation in emerging economies: Perspectives on agrarian change and rural livelihoods. Springer.
- 9. Singh, G., & Roy, S. K. (2016). Local governance and development in India. Routledge.
- 10. Sinha, B. P. (2018). Local governance in India: Ideas, challenges and strategies. Springer.
- 11. Tandon, R., & Prasad, S. N. (Eds.). (2019). Urban governance and sustainable development in India: Prospects and challenges. Springer.
- 12. Ghosh, S., & Gupta, A. (Eds.). (2018). Decentralization and development: Experiences from South Asia. SAGE Publications.
- 13. Srinivasan, R. (2017). Democracy, diversity and local government: A guide for practitioners. Oxford University Press.
- 14. Raju, S. (Ed.). (2019). Local governance in India: Paradigm shift to participatory democracy. Springer.
- 15. Rao, V., & Subrahmanian, R. (Eds.). (2017). Handbook of decentralisation: A global perspective. Edward Elgar Publishing.

Discipline	PUBLIC ADM	INISTRATI	ON				
Course Code	UK4SECPAN201						
Course Title	OFFICE AUTOMATION AND ADMINISTRATION						
Type of Course	DSC / DSE / ME	DSC / DSE / MDC / SEC / VAC/ AEC					
Semester	IV						
Academic Level	200-299						
Course Details	Credit	Lecture per week	Tutorial per week	Practical per week	Total Hours/Week		
	3	25	10	10	45		
Pre-requisites	Basic Compu Understanding		oft Office S	uite			
Course Summary	enhancement of learners will had communication	2. Understanding of Microsoft Office Suite Through theoretical study and hands-on practice on the skill enhancement course 'Office Automation and Administration', learners will have an upper hand in office software applications, communication tools, and workflow automation systems to enhance productivity and efficiency in administrative contexts.					

Module	Unit	Content	Hrs	
I		Foundation to Office Automation and Administration	7	
	1	Understanding Office Automation		
	2	Benefits and Challenges of Office Automation		
	3	Roles and Responsibilities of Office Administrators		
	4	Impact of Automation on Administrative Tasks		
II		Office Software Applications	7	
	5	Features and Functions of Word Processing Software		
	6	Spreadsheet Software Fundamentals		
	7	Creating Dynamic Presentations using Presentation Software		
	8	Note Making Tools		
	9	Document Scanning and Digitization		
Ш	Communication and Collaboration Tools			
	10	Email Management tools and Practices		
	11	Online Collaboration Platforms, Video Conferencing Tools		
	12	Instant Messaging and Chat Applications		
	13	Online Data Storage Facilities		
	14	Digital Marketing and Social Media Management		
	15	Document Scanning and Digitization, Document Management Systems		

IV	Artificial Intelligence (AI) Tools	7
	16 Overview of AI Chatbots, Chat GPT	
	17 Google Bard	
	18 Chatsonic	
V	Management Practices and Administrative Efficiency	7
	19 Application of Project Management Principles in Public Sector Administrative Operations	
	20 Budgeting Skills and Implementing Cost Control Measures in Administrative Operations	
	21 Techniques for Task Prioritization and Workload Management	
	22 Ethical and Legal Considerations Associated with Automation and Data Utilization	
VI	Open Ended	10
	(This module is exclusively designed for internal evaluation only. Choose	
	any two activities.)	
	Real-World Application: Designing templates for common office	
	Documents	
	Case Study: Presentation of Case Studies on Office Automation	
	Success Stories in any Business / Public Sector Organizations	
	Group Assignment: Social Media Campaign (Digital Marketing) for a Government / Public Sector / Private Organization	

No.	Upon completion of the course the graduate will be able to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO-1	To be able to proficiently use office software	U	PSO-3
	applications such as word processing, spreadsheet, and presentation software to create, edit, and manage documents.	Ap	PSO-7
CO-2	To be able to effectively utilize various	U	PSO- 3
	communication tools such as email, instant messaging, and video conferencing to facilitate communication within the organization.	AP	PSO-12
CO-3	Understanding of data security principles and	R	PSO-2
	compliance requirements and be able to implement measures to ensure	Ap	PSO-3
	data security and regulatory compliance.		PSO-6
CO-4	Understanding how to analyze administrative	An	PSO-3
	workflows and implement automation techniques to streamline		PSO-10
	processes and improve efficiency.		PSO-12
CO-5	Develop skills in collaborative document editing,	С	PSO-3
	version control, and online collaboration platforms to work effectively	An	PSO-7
	in team environments.		PSO-12
CO-6	To develop presentation skills and be able to Present office automation	С	PSO-12
	solutions and success stories effectively to stakeholders.	Е	PSO-5

R-Remember, U-Understand, Ap-Apply, An-Analyse, E-Evaluate, C-Create

CO No.	СО	PO/PSO	Cognitive Level	Knowledge Category	Lecture (L)/ Tutorial (T)	Practical (P)
CO-1	To be able to proficiently use office software applications such as word processing, spreadsheet, and presentation software to create, edit, and manage documents.	PSO-3 PSO-7 PO-7 PSO-6	U Ap	F C	T	Р
CO-2	To be able to effectively utilize various communication tools such as email, instant messaging, and video conferencing to facilitate communication within the organization.	PSO- 3 PSO-12 PO- 4 PSO-7	U AP	P	T	P
CO-3	Understanding of data security principles and compliance requirements and be able to implement measures to ensure data security and regulatory compliance	PSO-2 PSO-3 PSO-6 PO- 7	R Ap	F C	L	
CO-4	Understanding how to analyze administrative workflows and implement automation techniques to streamline processes and improve efficiency.	PSO-3 PSO-10 PSO-12 PO- 1	E An	C P	L	
CO-5	Develop skills document editing, version control, and online collaboration platforms to work effectively in team environments.	PSO- 3 PSO-7 PSO-12 PO- 5 PO-3	C An	C M	T	
CO-6	To develop presentation skills and be able to present office automation solutions and success stories effectively to stakeholders.	PSO- 12 PSO-5 PO- 3	C E	C M		Р

F-Factual, C-Conceptual, P-Procedural, M-Metacognitive

	PSO1	PSO2	PSO3	PSO4	PSO5	PSO6	PO1	PO3	PO4	PO5	PO6	PO7
CO 1	-	-	2	-	-	-	1	-	-	-	2	1
CO 2	-	-	1	-	-	2	-	-	2	-	-	1
CO 3	-	-	2	-	-	1	-	-	-	-	-	2
CO 4	-	-	2	3	-	-	2	-	-	-	-	-
CO 5	-	-	2	-	-	-	-	2	-	1	-	-
CO 6	-	-	2	-	-	-	-	3	-	-	-	-

Mapping of COs to Assessment Rubrics:

	Internal Exam	Assignment	Project Evaluation	End Semester
CO 1	✓			√
CO 2	✓			✓
CO 3	✓			✓
CO 4		✓		✓
CO 5		✓		✓
CO 6			✓	

- 1. Johnson, T. (2018). Data Management for Administrators: Best Practices and Strategies. McGraw-Hill Education.
- 2. Joshi, M. K., & Gupta, N. (2021). Data Management Practices in Indian Offices. Hyderabad: Aaradhya Publications.
- 3. Mehta, V., & Shah, P. (2020). Communication Efficiency in Indian Workplaces: Trends and Strategies. New Delhi: Sage Publications India Pvt Ltd.
- 4. Patel, K., & Shah, D. (2021). Leadership and Team Management in' Indian Office Environments. Ahmedabad: Keshav Publications.
- 5. Jones, M. (2019). Office Automation: Concepts and Strategies. Wiley.
- 6. Wilson, D. (2019). Office Automation Trends and Innovations: A Global Perspective. Palgrave Macmillan.
- 7. Chauhan, S., & Tiwari, R. (2018). Ethical Considerations in Office Automation: Perspectives from India. Chennai: Notion Press.
- 8. Green, S., & Adams, R. (2017). Project Management for Administrative Professionals. Kogan Page.
- 9. Sharma, R. K. (2020). Office Automation and Efficiency: Practices in Indian Organizations. New Delhi: Excel Books.
- 10. Mishra, P. K., & Reddy, S. (Eds.). (2017). Office Automation: Challenges and Opportunities in the Indian Context. Kolkata: Academic Publishers.
- 11. Anderson, L. (2021). Communication Efficiency in the Digital Age. Harvard Business Review Press.
- 12. Patel, S. (Ed.). (2018). Leadership and Team Management in the Digital Workplace. Springer
- 13. Allen, R. (2018). Administrative Law and Compliance: A Comprehensive Overview. Wolters Kluwer.
- 14. Carter, B., & Jones, K. (2020). Ethical Issues in Office Automation: A Practical Guide. Cambridge University Press.
- 15. Davis, E. (2019). The Continual Improvement Handbook: Strategies for Administrative Excellence. Berrett-Koehler Publishers.

VALUE-ADDED COURSE

- 1. Ethics in Academic Writing and Publication
- 2. Public Health Administration
- 3. Planning and Development of Tourism in Kerala
- 4. Waste Management and Sustainable Development

Discipline	PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION						
Course Code	UKVAC4PAN200						
Course Title	ETHICS IN ACADEMIC WRITING AND PUBLICATION						
Type of Course	DSC / DSE / MDC	C / SEC / VA	C / AEC				
Semester	IV						
Academic Level	200-299						
Course Details	Credit	Lecture hrs	Tutorial hrs	Practical hrs	Total hrs		
	3	10	15	20	45		
Pre-requisites	 Basic knowledge in essay writing and review writing Reading and analysing the basic academic journals and books 						
Course Summary	The course would Academic Writing	1		ledge and pr	actice in the		

Module	Unit	Content	Hrs		
Ι		Introduction to Academic Writing	6		
	Introduction; Importance of Academic Writing; Basic Rul Academic Writing- Types of Academic Writing -Review Writing and Research paper writing				
	2	Language in Academic Writing			
	3	Research Proposal Writing- Abstract, Conference Paper, Book and Book Chapter writing, Structuring sessions of Academic Papers			
	4	Thesis Writing			
	5	Ethics and publication standards			
II		Literature Review and Referencing	7		
	6	Literature Review: Introduction, Source of Literature, Types of Literature; Process of Literature Review			
	7	Offline Literature Collection Techniques			
	8	Online Literature Databases; Literature Management Tools			
	9	Academic Conventions and Standards-Discussing formatting, Referencing and Citation Styles, Adherence to disciplinary norms.			
	10	Tools for referencing and Citation, Use of Technology in Referencing and Citation			
III	Introduction to Publication				
	11	Indexing Databases/Citation Databases			
	12	Journal Metrics and Author Metrics			
	13	Open Access Publication Initiatives, Journal Finder/Journal Suggestion Tools			
	14	Guidelines in Publication- COPE, WAME			
	15	Predatory Publishers and Journals, Software Tools to Identify Predatory Publishers			

IV		Publication Ethics	8
	16	Publication Ethics-Definition, Introduction and Importance	
	17	Plagiarism: Introduction; Tools for the detection of Plagiarism	
	18	Copyright Infringement Act 1957, Amendment in 2021	
V	Publication Misconduct		7
	19	Scientific Misconduct -FFP	
	20	Redundant Publication - Duplication, Overlapping, Salami Slicing, Selective reporting, Misrepresentation of Data	
	21	Violation of Publication Ethics-Authors and Contributors.	
VI		Open Ended Module	10
	22	Write a Scholarly Article/Review Paper	
		Write a Research Proposal /Conference Paper Conduct a Workshop on Online databases/Online referencing Tools	

No.	Upon completion of the course the graduate will be able to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO-1	Understanding in the importance of basic academic writing skills, types and challenges in the academic writing	U	PSO5
CO-2	Practical knowledge in literature survey and reviewing along with various referencing and citation methods	U Ap	PSO5 PSO7
СОЗ	Understanding in the basics of Publication and the databases and Guidelines of Publication	U Ap	PSO5 PSO7
CO4	Analysing and evaluating the publication ethics, Plagiarism and copyright infringement	An E	PSO5 PSO7
CO5	Critically Evaluating the Publication misconduct and Violation of ethics	Е	PSO5
CO6	Practice in Academic Writing and Skill development	С	PSO5

R-Remember, U-Understand, Ap-Apply, An-Analyse, E-Evaluate, C-Create

CO No.	СО	PO/PSO	Cognitive Level	Knowledge Category	Lecture (L)/ Tutorial (T)	Practical (P)
CO1	Understanding in the importance of basic academic writing skills, types and challenges in the academic writing	PO6 PO1 PSO5	U	С	Assignment	
CO2	Practical knowledge in literature survey and reviewing along with various referencing and citation methods	PO7 PO1 PSO5 PSO7	U Ap	Р	Assignment	

СОЗ	Understanding in the basics of Publication and the databases and Guidelines of Publication	PO6 PSO5 PSO7	U Ap	С	Group discussion	
CO4	Analysing and evaluating the publication ethics, Plagiarism and copyright infringement	PO8 PO7 PSO5 PSO7	An E	F C	Seminar	
CO5	Critically Evaluating the Publication misconduct and Violation of ethics	PO8 PO1 PSO5	Е	Р	Debate	
CO6	Practice in Academic Writing and Skill development	PO3 PO1 PSO5	С	M P	Assignment	

F-Factual, C- Conceptual, P-Procedural, M-Metacognitive

	PSO1	PSO3	PSO5	PSO 7	PSO8	PO1	PO6	PO7	PO8
CO 1	-	-	3	-	-	1	3	-	-
CO 2	-	-	3	2	-	3	-	2	-
CO 3	-	-	3	3	1	-	3	-	-
CO 4	-	-	3	2	-	-	-	2	3
CO 5	-	-	3	-	-	2	-	_	3
CO 6	-	-	3	-	-	2	-	-	-

Mapping of COs to Assessment Rubrics:

	Internal Exam	Assignment	Project Evaluation	End Semester Examinations
CO 1		√		✓
CO 2	✓	✓		✓
CO 3		✓		✓
CO 4	✓	✓		√
CO 5	✓			✓
CO 6		✓	✓	

- 1. Anthony, H.(2010). Writing Successful Academic Books. Cambridge University Press
- 2. Bailey, S. (2004). Academic Writing: A Practical Guide for Students. Routledge. ISBN: 9780748768387
- 3. Dutta, S. (2023). Research and Publication Ethics in Social Science. Bharti Publications
- 4. Hamilton, J.C.H. (2003). Writing Research: Transforming Data into Text. Churchill Livingstone. ISBN 9780443071829.https://www.elsevier.com/books/writing-research/clare/978-0-443-07182-9
- 5. Hartley, J(2008). Academic Writing and Publishing: A Practical Handbook. Routledge.
- 6. Hinkel, E(2003). Teaching academic English writing: practical techniques. Routledge. ISBN: 9780805838893, 0-8058-3889-9
- 7. Monippally, M.M (2010). Academic Writing: A Guide for Management Students and Researchers. Sage Publications. ISBN 9788132104414.
- 8. Saravanan S., Abbas, S.S.J., Sagar G., Bansal, S.& Bhosale, M.P. (2023). Research and Publication Ethics. Redshine Publication
- 9. Semalty,A.(2021).Academic Writing. BS Publications. ISBN: 9789390211739.https://bspublications.net/book_detail.php?bid=1574
- 10. Singh U.P., Ahlawat, S.& Sharma, S. (2023) Research and Publication Ethics. Sultan Chand Sons
- 11. Thaine, C. (2023). Writing for academic contexts. In Teaching and Developing Writing Skills. Cambridge University Press. pp. 178–210
- 12. Wallwork, A.(2013). English for Academic Research: Writing Exercises. Springer
- 13. Yadav, W.K (2021). Research & Publication Ethics. Notion Press

Discipline	PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION					
Course Code	UK4VACPAN201					
Course Title	PUBLIC HEALTH ADMINISTRATION					
Type of Course	VAC/DSE / DSC	/ MDC / SE	C / AEC			
Semester	IV					
Academic Level	200-299					
Course Details	Credit	Lecture Hours	Tutorial Hours	Practical Hours	Total Hours	
	3	25	10	10	45	
Pre-requisites	Basic Understanding about Health Issues, Pandemics and communicable diseases Understanding on Functioning of Government Mechanisms					
Course Summary	This Course Prov Administration in Practices Impact	n Indian cor	ntext, focusin	ng on how A	Administrative	

Module	Unit	Content	Hrs
I		Introduction to Public Health Systems in India	6
	1	Introduction to Public Health: Definition, Historical perspectives Core functions of public health	
	2	Healthcare System in India- Overview of healthcare infrastructure, Public vs. private healthcare Challenges and opportunities	
	3	The Role of the Central and State Governments in Public Health Delivery	
	4	The Role of Panchayati Raj Institutions in Rural Health	
II		Public Health Policy and legislations in India	8
	5	Importance of Policy Development in Public Health	
	6	The National Health Policy of India and its Impact	
	7	National Rural Health Mission Act-2005	
	8	Ministry of Health and Family Welfare, Indian Council of Medical Research, Inter-Ministerial Collaboration	
	9	Welfare schemes in Health Care: Pradhan Mantri Jan Arogya Yojana, JanAushadi, Ayushman Bharat Yojana	
III		Program Planning and Evaluation in India	7
	10	Public Health Needs and Priorities -Maternal Mortality Rate, Communicable Diseases	
	11	Mission Indradhanush- Implementation Frameworks-best practice	
	12	Monitoring and Evaluation Techniques of Public Health Programs	
	13	Health Equity in India- Focus on Economic, Gender, Geography and Tribal disparities	

IV		Public Health Informatics and Data Analysis in India	6			
	14	The role of Data in Public Health Decision-Making: The Indian Context				
	15	Surveillance systems - Integrated Disease Surveillance Programme, Health Management Information System				
	16	Technology in Public Health Programs: mHealth Initiatives-eRaktKosh, ArogyaSetu, CoWIN				
V	Curre	ent Issues and Emerging Trends in Public Health Administration in India	8			
	17	Emerging Infectious Diseases and Biosecurity Threats: Covid, Nipah				
	 The Rise of Non communicable Diseases- Cancer, Diabetes, an Cardio vascular Diseases Chronic Disease prevention and health promotion strategy-National Program for Controlling Cardio Vascular Diseases 					
	20	Climate Change, Pollution and Health Challenges				
	21	The Future of Public Health Care Administration—Digital health, Primary Healthcare System				
VI		Open Ended (This module is exclusively designed for internal evaluation only. Choose any two activities.)	10			
		Activity 1: Field Study: Visit Primary Health centre/Medical College				
		Activity 2: Seminar: Emerging issues in Public Health Administration				
		Activity 3: Case Study: Nipah Containment Strategy Adopted by Government of Kerala				

No.	Upon completion of the course the graduate will be able to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO1	Provides Understanding of the State Mechanisms in Managing the Health and Wellbeing of the Population	U Ap	PSO-10
CO2	Analyse the Policies and Schemes Involved in Delivery of Public Health Services	C An	PSO-4 PSO-8
CO3	Analyse the Planning, Monitoring and Evaluatory System Related to Public Health	C An	PSO-10
CO4	Evaluate the use of Informatics and Data in Public Health Administration	Ap An	PSO-7 PSO-8
CO5	Evaluate the Emerging Trends, Issues and Contemporary Development in Indian Public Health Administration	U An	PSO-6 PSO-7 PSO-8
CO6	Equip with Knowledge and Experience Through Field Work, Case Study and Seminars	E An Ap C	PSO-3 PSO-6 PSO-8

R-Remember, U-Understand, Ap-Apply, An-Analyse, E-Evaluate, C-Create

CO No.	СО	PO/PSO	Cognitive Level	Knowledge Category	Lecture (L)/ Tutorial (T)	Practical (P)
CO1	Provides Understanding of the State Mechanisms in Managing the Health and Wellbeing of the Population	PSO-10 PO-6	U Ap	F	Case Analysis	
CO2	Analyse the Policies and Schemes Involved in Delivery of Public Health Services	PSO-4 PSO-8 PO-6	C An	F, C	Assignment	
СОЗ	Analyse the Planning, Monitory and Evaluatory System Related to Public Health	PSO-10 PO-1	C An	F,C	Assignment	
CO4	Evaluate the use of Informatics and Data in Public Health Administration	PSO-7 PSO-8 PO-7	Ap An	F, C, M	Assignment	
CO5	Evaluate the Emerging Trends, Issues and Contemporary Development in Indian Public Health Administration	PSO-6 PSO-7 PSO-8 PO-1	U An	F, C,M	Debate	
CO6	Equip with Knowledge and Experience Through Field Work, Case Study and Seminars work, case study and Seminars	PSO-3 PSO-6 PO-3	E An Ap C	С, М	Field Visit Case Study Seminar	

F-Factual, C- Conceptual, P-Procedural, M-Metacognitive

	PSO3	PSO4	PSO6	PSO7	PSO8	PSO10	PO1	PO3	PO6	PO7
CO 1	-	-	-	-	-	2	-	-	2	-
CO 2	-	2	-	-	2	-	-	-	2	-
CO 3	1	-	-	-	-	1	2	-	-	-
CO 4	-	-	-	3	1	-	-	-	-	3
CO 5	-	-	1	1	2	-	3	-	-	-
CO 6	2	-	2	-	-	-	-	1	-	-

Mapping of COs to Assessment Rubrics:

	Internal Exam	Assignment	Project Evaluation	End Semester Examinations
CO 1	√			✓
CO 2	√			✓
CO 3	√			✓
CO 4		✓		✓
CO 5		✓		✓
CO 6			✓	

145

- 1. National Institute of Environmental Health Sciences (NIEHS). (n.d.). Climate Change and Human Health: Human Health Impacts of Climate Change. https://www.niehs.nih.gov/research/programs/climatechange
- 2. City of Chicago. (n.d.). Climate Impacts on Human Health [Website]. Climate Change Chicago. https://climatechange.chicago.gov/climate-impacts/climate-impacts-human-health
- 3. Government of India, Ministry of Law and Justice. (2005). The National Rural Health Mission Act, 2005. https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/16468282/
- 4. Ayushman Bharat Pradhan Mantri Jan Arogya Yojana (AB-PMJAY). (n.d.). About Us. https://abdm.gov.in/
- 5. Pradhan Mantri Bhartiya Janaushadhi Pariyojana (PMBJP). (n.d.). About Us. https://janaushadhi.gov.in/
- 6. Ministry of Health and Family Welfare. (2018). National Health Policy 2017. https://main.mohfw.gov.in/?q=documents/policy
- 7. Government of India, Ministry of Health and Family Welfare. (2017). Intensified Mission Indradhanush (IMI). https://main.mohfw.gov.in/sites/default/files/216846291201489665182.pdf
- 8. Central Bureau of Health Intelligence. (n.d.). Integrated Disease Surveillance Programme (IDSP). https://idsp.mohfw.gov.in/
- 9. Central Bureau of Health Intelligence. (n.d.). Integrated Disease Surveillance Programme (IDSP). https://idsp.mohfw.gov.in/
- 10. Government of India, Ministry of Health and Family Welfare. (n.d.). Health Management Information System (HMIS). https://hmis.mohfw.gov.in/#!/
- 11. Indian Council of Medical Research. (2023). Non-Communicable Diseases (NCDs). https://main.icmr.nic.in/sites/default/files/seminars/EoIs_for_population_engagement_in_NC D_care.
- 12. Ministry of Ayush. (n.d.). National Programme for Control of Diabetes, Cardiovascular Diseases, Cancer & Stroke (NPCDCS). https://main.mohfw.gov.in/organisation/Departments-of-Health-and-Family-Welfare/national-programme-prevention-and-control-cancer-diabetes-cardiovascular-disease-and-Stroke-NPCDCS

Discipline	Public Administra	ation				
Course Code	UK4VACPAN20	2				
Course Title	PLANNING AND	DEVELOP	MENT OF T	OURISM IN	KERALA	
Type of Course	DSC / DSE / MD	C / SEC / V	AC / AEC			
Semester	IV					
Academic Level	200 - 299					
	Credit	Lecture	Tutorial	Practical	Total	
Course Details	Credit	per week	per week	per week	Hours/Week	
	3	25	10	10	45	
Dua magnisitas	1. Basic understanding of tourism and its importance.					
Pre-requisites	2. Visit a tourist	destination a	nd organisati	ons connected	d to tourism.	
	Prepare students f	for tourism a	nd hospitality	sector on the	one hand and	
	to provide them j	ob opportun	ity in this ve	ery promising	sector on the	
	other hand. After going through this course students will be able to					
Course Summary	understand the ba	sic concept a	and principles	s of Tourism a	and hospitality	
	management as w	vell as practi	cal managem	ent skills. Al	ong with this,	
	they will be able	to faster the	ethical, susta	ainable and e	ntrepreneurial	
	business culture i	n themselves	S.		-	

Module	Unit	Content	Hrs
Ι		Introduction to Tourism	7
	1	Tourism: Concepts, Definitions - Historical Development of	
		Tourism Types of Tourism - Types of Tourists	
		Tourism as an industry: Significance in economy and culture	
	2	Tourism System: Nature-Characteristics.	
		Tourism: Components and Characteristics.	
	3	Positive and Negative impacts of Tourism- Economic-Socio-	
		Cultural - Environmental impact; Responsible tourism	
		Challenges and Future Directions-Infrastructure Gaps,	
		Sustainability and Carrying Capacity, Diversification of Tourism	
		Products	
II		Tourism Products of Kerala	10
	4	Tourism Products-Nature and Characteristic of Tourism Products	
		of Kerala- Tangible and Intangible Products- Seasonality and	
		Diversities-Tourist Attraction -Classification- Brand Building in	
		Tourism- The God's Own Country	
	5	Natural Tourism Products - Climate - Back Waters - Beaches - Bird	
		Sanctuaries-Wildlife Sanctuaries - Major National Parks-	
		Biosphere Reserves.	
	6	Historical - Socio - Cultural Tourism Products - Art- Architecture -	
		Paintings - Historical Monuments - Museums - Art Galleries -	
		Libraries Ancient Literature - Fairs - Festivals - Folklore - Music	
		- Dance - Handicraft - Costumes- Kerala Cuisine.	
	7	Adventure Tourism – Aerial Adventure Sports – Parachuting, Sky	
		Diving-Water Adventure Sports – Water Rafting, Water Kayaking,	
		- Land Based Mountaineering, Trekking.	

III		Tourism Planning	7
	8	Tourism Policies- Execution - Role of Government, Public Sector, Private Sectors Local Tourism organizations.	
	9	Tourism Policy of Kerala.	
	10	Function and role of implementing agencies: Department of Tourism, Kerala Travel Mart	
	11	Kerala Tourism Development Corporation -District Tourism Promotion Council	
	12	Kerala Tourism Infrastructure Limited- Bekal Resort Development Corporation	
	13	Muziris Heritage Project, Kerala Adventure Tourism Promotion Society	
IV		Tourism Regulations	7
	14	Inbound and outbound Travel Regulations-Passport -Classification - Visa - Classification - Requirements for getting Passport and Visa- Special Permits- Customs Regulations	
	15	Economic Regulations- Currency-Insurance- Income tax -Foreign travel Tax- Foreign Exchange Regulation	
	16	Law and Order regulations- Police and District Officials - Law on Cheating- Law on Antiquities-Shopping Malpractices-Regulation.	
	17	Accommodation and Catering Regulations	
V		Emerging Trends in Kerala Tourism	6
	18	e-Tourism, Virtual Tourism	
	19	Sustainable Tourism- Eco Tourism	
	20	Responsible Tourism, Wellness Tourism	
	21	Accessible Tourism-Event Tourism-MICE Tourism	
VI		Open Ended (This module is exclusively designed for internal evaluation only. Choose any two activities.)	8
		Activity 1: Field Study Explore A Cultural Heritage Site Like Thrissur Pooram or The Backwaters of Kuttanad. Visit an Ayurveda Centre and Learn about its Role in Wellness Tourism.	
		Activity 2: Participatory Observation Collection of Documents – Passport, Visa, Forms, Various Currencies.	
		 Activity 3: Case Study Case study of Department of Tourism and Role of State Tourism Promotion Councils Role of Leading International and Regional Tourism Institutions in Tourism Planning and Development, Case Study of PATA and WTO. 	

No.	Upon completion of the course the graduate will be able to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO-1	Provide a holistic understanding of concepts, significance and historical development of travel and tourism	U AP	PSO-1
CO-2	Analyse the elements of tourism products of Kerala	AP AN	PSO-5
CO-3	Analyse the measures for tourism planning in Kerala and the function of supporting agencies.	AP AN	PSO-2
CO-4	Equip the students to understand with various travel regulations and information about various travel formalities	AN AP	PSO-4
CO-5	Provide a holistic understanding of emerging trends in Tourism of Kerala	U AP AN	PSO-6
CO-6	Equip with knowledge and skills in engaging informed discussions about Kerala tourism and its role in development of a nation as an industry and introduce the students to the destinations of Kerala	E AN AP C	PSO-6

R-Remember, U-Understand, Ap-Apply, An-Analyse, E-Evaluate, C-Create

CO No.	СО	PO/PSO	Cognitive Level	Knowledge Category	Lecture (L)/ Tutorial (T)	Practical (P)
CO1	Provide a holistic understanding of concepts, significance and historical development of travel and tourism	Critical thinking /PSO-1	U AP	F, C	Book review	
CO2	Analyse the elements of tourism products of Kerala	Critical thinking/PSO-5	AP AN	F, C	Assignmen t Field Visit	
CO3	Analyse the measures for tourism planning in Kerala and the function of supporting agencies.	Critical thinking/PSO-2	AP AN	F	Debate Seminar	
CO4	Equip the students to understand with various travel regulations and information about various travel formalities	Learning how to learn skills/PSO-4	AP AN	F, C	Assignmen t Field Visit	
CO5	Provide a holistic understanding of emerging trends in Tourism of Kerala	Learning how to lean skills/PSO-6	U AP AN	F, C	Seminar Feild Visit	

	CO6	Equip with knowledge and skills in engaging informed discussions about Kerala tourism and its role in development of a nation and introduce the students to the destinations of Kerala	learn skills//	E AN AP C	С, М	Field visit Case study		
--	-----	--	----------------	--------------------	------	---------------------------	--	--

F-Factual, C- Conceptual, P-Procedural, M-Metacognitive

	PSO1	PSO2	PSO3	PSO4	PSO5	PSO6	PO1	PO2	PO3	PO4	PO5	PO6
CO 1	1	1					1					
CO 2		1		1	2	1	2					
CO 3	-	1		-	1		2					
CO 4	-	-	1	2	-							1
CO 5			-	-	1	2						2
CO 6	-	•	1	•		2						3

Mapping of COs to Assessment Rubrics:

	Internal Exam	Assignment	Project Evaluation	End Semester Examinations
CO 1	√			✓
CO 2	√			✓
CO 3	√			✓
CO 4		√		✓
CO 5		✓		√
CO 6			✓	

- 1. AK Bhatia. [2005], International Tourism Management, sterling publishers.
- 2. AK Bhatia, The business of tourism: Concepts and strategies, Sterling publishers.
- 3. Basham A.L, the wonder that was India, Oxford University press.
- 4. Basham A.L, A Cultural history of India, Oxford University press.
- 5. Prannath seth [2006], successful tourism management, vol-1, vol-2
- 6. N,Jayapalan [2001], An introduction to tourism, Atlantic publishers, New Delhi.
- 7. Krishnan k karma and Mohinder chand [2004], basics of tourism- theory, operation and practice, Kanishka publishers, New Delhi.
- 8. Chris Cooper et al [1996], tourism-priciples and practice, pitman publishing, London.
- 9. Mill and Morrison, [1992], The Tourism System An Introductory Text, prentice Hall.
- 10. Sampad kumar swain, Jitendra mohan Mishra, [2011], Tourism principles and practices, Oxford University press.
- 11. Charles R Goeldner and J.R. Brent Ritchie, [2011], Tourism principles, practices, philosophies, John Wiley and Sons Inc.
- 12. Jacob, Robinet et al, Tourism products of India- a National perspective, Abhijeeth publications.
- 13. Mukesh Ranga, Pallavi Gupta and Ashish Chandra [2004], Legal perspectives in tourism, Abhijeeth publications, New Delhi.

Discipline	PUBLIC ADMIN	[ISTRATIO]	V					
Course Code	UK4VACPAN203							
Course Title	WASTE MANA		AND SUSTA	INABLE				
	DEVELOPMENT							
Type of Course	DSC/DSE/MDC/	SEC/VAC/A	AEC					
Semester	IV	ĪV						
Academic Level	200-299							
	Credit	Lecture	Tutorial	Practical	Total Hours			
Course Details	Credit	Hours	Hrs	Hours				
	3	25	10	10	45			
	1. Basic Knowled	ge on Waste	and its Clas	sifications				
Pre-requisites	2. Understanding	about F	unctioning	of Basic	Government			
	Mechanisms							
	The Course Wou	ld Provide a	Holistic and	l Analytical U	Jnderstanding			
Course Summary	About the Con	cepts, Issue	e and Solu	itions Relate	ed to Waste			
	Management							

Module	Unit	Content	Hrs			
I		Introduction to Waste Management	7			
	1	Waste Management - Definition, Historical perspective on waste management, Overview of the waste management hierarchy, Need for a Sustainable Waste Management				
	2	Five Tier Waste Hierarchy: Prevent-Reuse- Disposal- Recovery-Recycle				
	3	Circular Economy Features -Sustainable Benefits, Sustainable Waste Management Practices				
	4	4 Life Cycle Assessment: Stages and Benefits				
II	Major Issues in Indian Context		6			
	5	Population Growth- Rapid Urbanisation- Lack of Waste Management Infrastructure				
	6	Societal Changes: Life Style, Consumption Patterns, Emergence of Trends, Fast Fashion				
	7	Financial Constrains - Inadequate Investment in Technology and Infrastructure				
	8	Pollution and contamination associated with improper waste disposal, Risks to ecosystems, wildlife, and human health Environmental justice issues related to waste management				
III		Decentralised Waste Management	8			
	9	Importance of community involvement in waste management Integration of waste management into sustainable development goals				
	10	Role of individuals, businesses, and governments in achieving sustainable waste management				

	11	Decentralised Composting and Management : Ring Compost,	
	11	Mosepit Compost, Domestic Gas Plant, Toilet Linked Biogas Plant	
	12	Community Involvement Through Awareness and Participation	
	13	Strategies for promoting public awareness and participation	
IV		Waste Management in Kerala	8
	14	Legislations-Kerala Panchayati Raj Act and Municipality Act-The Solid Waste Management Rules-2016: Important Provisions	
	15	Structure of Collection and Management: Segregation from Origin, Mini Material Collection Facility- Material Collection Facility- Resource Recovery Facility.	
	16	Employment Creation and Empowerment: Haritha Karmasena	
	17	Role and importance of Clean Kerala Company, KSWMP	
V		Emerging Trends And Issues In Waste Management	6
	18	Environmental Impacts and Related issues: Overburdening Landfills	
	19	Academic and Research Contribution: DEWATS –Alappuzha	
	20	Public Private Partnership in Waste Management	
	21	Waste to Wealth Approaches - A Sustainable Ecosystem	
VI		Open Ended	10
		(This module is exclusively designed for internal evaluation only. Choose any two activities.)	
		Activity 1: Field Study: Visit nearby RRF/MCF	
		Activity 1: Field Study: Visit nearby RRF/MCF Activity 2: Case Study: Landfill Operation Issue: Brahmapuram Landfill Fire	

No.	Upon completion of the course the graduate will be able to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO1	Understand the Concept and Critically Analyse different Waste Management Practices	U An	PSO-1
CO2	Analyse and Critically Examine the Specific Challenges Related to Waste Management in the Indian Context	An E	PSO-2
CO3	Evaluate Various Decentralized Composting Methods and The Importance of Community Participation in Waste Management to Understand the Practical Application of these Strategies	E U An	PSO-3
CO4	Analyse and Evaluate the Legislate Initiatives, Structure and Functioning of Waste Management in Kerala	An E	PSO-4

CO5	Understand and Analyse the Need for Innovative Solutions in Waste Management	U An Ap	PSO-2
CO6	Will Equip Students to Apply their Theoretical Knowledge to Real-World Situations and Contribute To a Deeper Understanding of Waste Management	U An Ap	PSO-4

R-Remember, U-Understand, Ap-Apply, An-Analyse, E-Evaluate, C-Create

CO No.	СО	PO/PSO	Cognitive Level	Knowledge Category	Lecture (L)/ Tutorial (T)	Practical (P)
CO1	Understand the Concept and Critically Analyse different Waste Management Practices	Learning how to learn skills/PSO-1	U An	C, M	Book Review	
CO2	Analyse and Critically Examine the Specific Challenges Related to Waste Management in the Indian Context	Critical thinking /PSO-2	An E	F, M	Case Analysis	
CO3	Evaluate Various Decentralized Composting Methods and The Importance of Community Participation in Waste Management to Understand the Practical Application of these Strategies	Critical thinking /PSO-3	E U An	F, M	Seminar	
CO4	Analyse and Evaluate the Legislate Initiatives, Structure and Functioning of Waste Management in Kerala	Critical thinking/PSO-4	An E	F, M	Case Analysis	
CO5	Understand and Analyse the Need for Innovative Solutions in Waste Management	Complex problem solving/PSO-2	U An Ap	F, M	Group Discussion	
CO6	Will Equip Students to Apply their Theoretical Knowledge to Real-World Situations and Contribute To a Deeper Understanding of Waste Management	Leaning how to lean skills/ PSO-4	U An Ap	F, C, M	Field Visit Case Study	

F-Factual, C- Conceptual, P-Procedural, M-Metacognitive

	PSO1	PSO2	PSO3	PSO4	PSO5	PSO6	PO1	PO2	PO3	PO4	PO5	PO6
CO 1	1	-	-	-	1	1						2
CO 2	2	3	-	-	1	1	2					
CO 3	-	-	1	-	-	-	3					
CO 4	-	-	2	3	1	1	3					
CO 5	-	1	-	-	•	1		3				
CO 6	_	-	-	3		-						2

Mapping of COs to Assessment Rubrics:

	Internal Exam	Assignment	Project Evaluation	End Semester Examinations
CO 1	✓			✓
CO 2	✓			✓
CO 3	✓			✓
CO 4		✓		✓
CO 5		✓		√
CO 6			✓	

- 1. Boca Raton, FL, [2020], Zero waste: Management practice for environmental sustainability [Ed] CRC press
- 2. David E. Newton, [2020], Waste Management, ABC-CLIO
- 3. P. R White, M. Franke and P.Hindle, [1995, Integrated solid waste management A lifecycle inventory, Springer- Verlag New York.
- 4. Vallero D.A, [2003], Engineering the risks of hazardous wastes, Elsevier.
- 5. White, F,R, [2001] Franke P.R and Handbook of solid waste management: a life cycle inventory. Mc Dougall, p. John Wiley and sons.
- 6. Nicholas, p and Cheremisinoff, p. Handbook of solid waste management and waste minimization technologies, imprint of Elsevier science. 2005.
- 7. Gupta.D.K, Sonarkar, Nimbalkar, Solid waste Management, 2010.
- 8. Bhide and Sundaresan, solid Waste Management in Developing countries- Indian National Scientific documentation center -New Delhi. 2000
- 9. Kerala Local Self Government Department. (n.d.). Waste Management Rules. https://lsgkerala.gov.in/en/waste-management/rules
- 10. Kerala Institute of Local Administration (KILA). (2022, April). The State of Decentralised Solid Waste Management in Kerala Report 2021. kila.ac.in: https://www.kila.ac.in/wp-content/uploads/2022/04/Report.pdf

SEMESTER V

DISCIPLINE-SPECIFIC CORE

- 1. Public Finance and GST
- 2. E- Governance
- 3. Public Personnel Administration
- 4. Research Methodology- I

Discipline	PUBLIC ADMIN	PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION						
Course Code	UK5DSCPAN300	UK5DSCPAN300						
Course Title	PUBLIC FINANCE AND GST							
Type of Course	DSC/DSE/MDC/S	SEC/VAC/A	EC					
Semester	V	V						
Academic Level	300-399							
Course Details	Credit	Lecture Hours	Tutorial Hours	Practical Hours	Total Hours/Week			
	4	30 hours	18 hours	12 hours	60			
Pre-requisites	1. Rudimentary Learning of Financial System							
1 re-requisites	2. Analytical skill on Tax practices in India							
Course	The Course would	l provide a p	rofound knov	vledge on the	basics of			
Summary	Public Finance, th	e Budgeting	Process and	Taxation prac	ctices in India.			

Module	Unit	Content	Hrs	
I		Introduction to Public Finance	10	
	1	Meaning, Nature, Scope, Functions and Types of Public Finance		
	2	Difference between Public and Private Finance		
	3	Overview of Public Expenditure, Public Revenue, Public Debt		
	4	Understanding Revenue, Capital Expenditure, Capital Receipts – Concept, Significance		
II		Budgeting Process	10	
	5	Budget -Meaning, Types, Revenue and Capital Budget		
	6 Budgetary process in India-Types of Budget-Finance Ministry- Preparation			
	7	Enactment and Execution of Budget		
	8	Deficit -Concept, Revenue Deficit, Fiscal Deficit, Monetized Deficit, Primary Deficit, Surplus, Balance Budget and Budgetary Control		
	9	Latest Budget of the Union of India: Critical Appraisal of the Latest Budget		
III		Federal Finance and Taxation	10	
	10	Federal Finance -Concept, Principles of Federalism, Role of Finance Commission		
	11	Local Finance-State Finance Commission and Decentralisation		
	12	Taxes-Meaning, Definition, Types, Advantages and Disadvantages, Objectives, Direct Vs Indirect Taxes, Problems of Tax Evasion		

IV		Introduction to GST	10				
	13	Stages of Evolution of GST, History of GST legislation					
	14	Peculiarities of Indian GST, Advantages and Disadvantages of GST					
	15 Basic Concepts of GST						
	16 Administration under GST, ICT under GST						
	17	Registration-Assessment-Appeals					
V	GST and Centre State Relations						
	18	Centre -State Relations before and after GST					
	19	Compensation Scheme and Centre State Relations					
	20	Major Provisions of GST and Centre State Financial Relations					
VI	(1)	Open Ended Module This module is exclusively designed for internal evaluation only. Choose any two activities.)	10				
		Group Discussion on Latest Finance Commission / Latest Budget in India/Kerala Discussion on the latest GST updates and Centre-state Relations	-				
		Legislative Assembly Visit on Budget Session Talk by a tay professional/official					
		Legislative Assembly Visit on Budget Session Talk by a tax professional/ official					

No.	Upon completion of the course the graduate will be able to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO-1	Provide a comprehensive knowledge on the concepts Functions and significance of Public Finance	R U	PSO 11 PSO 2
CO-2	Analyse the Budgetary processes and proceedings and understand the basic concepts in Deficit Finance	A U	PSO 2 PSO 4 PSO11
CO3	Provide a Holistic Understanding of the basic Concepts of Federal Finance, Local Finance and Taxation	U Ap	PSO11 PSO12
CO4	Understanding, Analysing and Evaluating the tax regime under GST	U An E	PSO11 PSO 2
CO5	Critical evaluation of the impact of GST in Centre-State Relations	An E	PSO4 PSO11
CO6	Equip with knowledge on budgeting procedures and tax administration	Ap E	PSO4 PSO11

R-Remember, U-Understand, Ap-Apply, An-Analyse, E-Evaluate, C-Create

CO No.	СО	PO/PSO	Cognitive Level	Knowledge Category	Lecture (L)/ Tutorial (T)	Practical (P)
CO1	Provide a comprehensive knowledge on the concepts Functions and significance of Public Finance	PO6 PSO11 PSO2	R, U	F.C	Seminar	
CO2	Analyse the Budgetary processes and proceedings and understand the basic concepts in Deficit Finance	PO6 PO1 PSO2 PSO4 PSO11	A U	F P	Group Discussion	
СОЗ	Provide a Holistic Understanding of the basic Concepts of Federal Finance, Local Finance and Taxation	PO6 PSO11 PSO12	U, Ap	F, C	Assignment	
CO4	Understanding, Analysing and Evaluating the tax regime under GST	PO6 PO2 PSO11 PSO2	U, An, E	F, M	Debate	
CO5	Analyse and evaluate the impact of GST in Centre-State Relations	PO2 PO6 PSO4 PSO11	An, E	C, P	Debate	
CO6	Equip with knowledge on budgeting procedures and tax administration	PO1 PO2 PSO4 PSO11	Ap, E	P,M	Group Discussion	Field Visit

F-Factual, C- Conceptual, P-Procedural, M-Metacognitive

	PSO2	PSO4	PSO10	PSO11	PSO12	PO1	PO2	PO6
CO 1	2	-	1	3	1	1	1	3
CO 2	3	2	-	3	-	1	-	1
CO 3	-	-	-	3	2	-	-	3
CO 4	2	-	-	3	-	-	1	3
CO 5	-	2	-	3	-	-	3	1
CO 6	-	3	-	3	-	2	3	-

Mapping of COs to Assessment Rubrics:

	Internal Exam	Assignment	Project Evaluation	End Semester Examinations
CO 1		√		√
CO 2		✓		✓
CO 3	√			✓
CO 4	√			✓
CO 5	√			✓
CO 6			✓	

- 1. Bhatia, H.L.(2012). Public Finance . Vikas Publishing House
- 2. Bhattacharjee, G.& Bhattacharya, D. (2019). GST and Its Aftermath: Is Consumer Really the King? SAGE Publications India Pvt, Ltd.
- 3. Chakraborty,P.(2019). GST in India Simple tax in complex Federal System. Orient Blackswan. ISBN 978-93-5287-689-1
- 4. Datey, V.S(2016). All about GST: a complete guide to new model GST law. Taxmann Publications. ISBN: 9789386189073
- 5. Hiregange, J& Rao, D. (2016). India GST for Beginners. White Falcon Publishing
- 6. Mugrave, R.A & Musgrave, P.B. (1989). Public Finance in Theory and Practice. McGraw Hill Education.
- 7. Mundle, S(1997). Public Finance: Policy issues for India. Oxford University Press.
- 8. Prasad, N. (2011). Public Finance. Abd Publishers.
- 9. Rao, M.G (2022). Studies in Indian Public Finance. Oxford University Press
- 10. Sury, M.M. (2018). GST and fiscal federalism in India. New Century Publications. ISBN: 9788177084726

	1							
Discipline	PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION							
Course Code	UK5DSCPAN30	UK5DSCPAN301						
Course Title	E-GOVERNANO	CE						
Type of Course	DSC / DSE / MD	C / SEC / V	AC/ AEC					
Semester	V	V						
Academic Level	300 – 399							
	Credit	Lecture	Tutorial	Practical	Total Hours			
Course Details		Hours	Hrs	Hours				
	4	30	18	12	60			
	1. Basic understanding on E- Governance, Theories and models of E-							
Pre-requisites	Governance and its Applications.							
_	2. Field visits to government offices.							
C C	The course would	l provide a ho	olistic unders	standing on E	-Governance			
Course Summary	and its models.	•		C				

Module	Unit	Content	Hrs
		Introduction	10
I	1	E-governance – Meaning, Scope and Importance -	
	2	E-literacy- concepts and definitions	
	3	Interactions in E-Governance	
	4	G2C and C2G	
	5	G2G	
	6	G2B and B2G	
	7	G2E ad E2G	
	8	G2N and N2G	
II		Models of E-Governance	12
	9	Models of E-Governance	
	10	The Information Dissemination Model	
	11	The Critical Flow Model	
	12	The Comparative Analysis Model	
	13	The E- Advocacy Model	
	14	The Interactive Model	
III		E-Governance: The International Scenario	6
	15	Global Trends in E-Governance	
	16	Role of International organisations in promoting E-Governance-UN, World Bank, OECD	
	17	E-Governance in Estonia, Finland, Bangladesh and South Africa	

IV		E-Governance in India: Contemporary Debates	10
	18	IT Policies, National E-Governance Plan, NeGP 2.0	
	19	Artificial Intelligence and Governance	
	20	Mobile Governance	
	21	Right to Internet	
	22	Issues and Challenges of E-Governance	
V		Cyber Security and Data Protection in E-Governance	10
	23	Understanding cyber threats and vulnerabilities in e governance	
	24	Implementing cyber security measures in e-governance	
	25	Data protection compliance in ease governance	
VI		Open Ended	12
		(This module is exclusively designed for internal evaluation only.	
		Choose any two activities.)	
		Field visits to government offices to understand ongoing e-	
		governance projects	
		Field visits to centres of IT infrastructure to learn backend	
		operations	
		Field visits to Common Service Centres (CSCs) to understand the mode of public service delivery	

No.	Upon completion of the course the graduate will be able to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO1	Understand the concept and end evolution of E-governance	U Ap	PSO2 PSO7
CO2	Analyse the theories and models of E-governance	Ap An	PSO4 PSO7
CO3	Compare the E-governance projects in India	Ap An	PSO5 PSO7
CO4	Understand the contemporary debates on E-governance in India	U E	PSO7
CO5	Understand the cyber security, challenges, protection strategies and legal frameworks in E-Governance	U An	PSO7
CO6	Evaluate the application of E-governance policy formulation and implementation.	E An Ap C	PSO7 PSO9

R-Remember, U-Understand, Ap-Apply, An-Analyse, E-Evaluate, C-Create

CO No.	СО	PO/PSO	Cognitive Level	Knowledge Category	Lecture (L)/ Tutorial (T)	Practical (P)
CO1	Understand the concept and end evolution of E-governance	PO1 PO7 PSO2 PSO7	U Ap	F, C	Book Review	
CO2	Analyse the theories and models of E-governance	PO7 PSO4 PSO7	Ap An	F, C	Assignment	
СОЗ	Compare the E-governance projects in India	PO7 PSO5 PSO7	Ap An	F	Debate	
CO4	Understand the contemporary debates on E-governance in India	PO7 PSO7	An E	F, C, M	Case Analysis	
CO5	Understand the cyber security, challenges, protection strategies and legal frameworks in E-Governance	PO7 PSO7	U Ap An	F, C	Seminar	
CO6	Evaluate the application of E-governance policy formulation and implementation.	PO6 PO7 PSO7 PSO9	U An Ap C	С, М	Field Visit Case Study	

F-Factual, C- Conceptual, P-Procedural, M-Metacognitive

	PSO1	PSO2	PSO4	PSO5	PSO6	PSO7	PO1	PO2	PO4	PO5	PO6	PO7
CO 1	-	3	-	-	2	3	3	1	1	1	1	3
CO 2	-	-	3	-	ı	3	-	ı	2	-	ı	3
CO 3	2	-	-	3	-	3	-	-	-	-	2	3
CO 4	-	-	-	1	1	3	-	1	2	-	1	3
CO 5	-	2	-	-	ı	3	-	2	ı	1	ı	3
CO 6	1	-	-	2	-	3	-	1	-	-	3	3

Mapping of COs to Assessment Rubrics:

	Internal Exam	Assignment	Project Evaluation	End Semester Examinations
CO 1	✓			✓
CO 2	✓			✓
CO 3	✓			✓
CO 4		√		✓
CO 5		√		✓
CO 6			✓	

- 1. Annual Report. (2015) "e-Governance Policy Initiatives under Digital India", Dept. of Electronics and Information Technology, Ministry of Communication and Information Technology, Govt. of India
- 2. Barthwal, C. P. (ed.) (2005), Good Governance in India, New Delhi, Deep and Deep Publications.
- 3. Bekkers, V., & Meijer, A., (2012), A Meta-Theory of E-Government. Paper for EGPA 2012, Permanent Study group On E government
- 4. Bhatnagar Subhash (2004), "e-government from vision to implementation" sage publications,
- 5. Bhatnagar, Subhash. (2004). E-Government: From Vision to Implementation, New Delhi: Sage Publications India Pvt. Ltd.
- 6. Castells, M. (2002). The Internet Galaxy, Oxford: Oxford University Press. Castells, M. (2010). The Rise of the Network Society, 2nd ed. Chichester, West Sussex; Malden, MA: Wiley-Blackwell.
- 7. Chetia, SRB. (2016). E-Governance in North-East India. Journal of Political Sciences & Public, Affairs, 4(2), 1-3
- 8. Dawes, S. S. (2008). The Evolution and Continuing Challenges of E-Governance. Public Administration Review, 86-100
- 9. Deakins, S.D., Al Namani, H. and Zhang, C. (2010). Local e-government impact in China, New Zealand, Oman, and in the United Kingdom, International Journal of Public Sector Management, 23(6), 520-534.
- 10. DeBenedictis, A., Howell, W., Figueroa, R., and Boggs, R. A. (2002). E-government defined: an overview of the next big information technology challenge. Issues in Information Systems
- 11. Deva, Vasu. (2005).E-Governance in India- A Reality, New Delhi: For Commonwealth Publishers.
- 12. Dey, Batak (2002). E-governance in India: Problems, challenges and opportunities. A future's vision. Indian Journal of Public Administration, 46 (1): 300-310.
- 13. Government of India (2022), e-Governance Bringing Citizens, Industry and Government Closer: Compendium of e-Governance Initiatives, Department of Administrative Reforms and Public Grievances, New Delhi, India
- 14. Government of India, (December 2008), "The Smart Way Forward", Second Administrative Reforms Commission 11 th Report, Promoting e-Governance.
- 15. Heeks, Richard (2001). What is the contribution of e-governance to governance? Institute for Development Policy and Management (IDPM), Manchester
- 16. J. Michael Magro, "A Review of Social Media Use in e-Government," Administrative Science, Vol. 2, No. 2, 2012, pp. 148-161. doi:10.3390/admsci2020148 [Citation Time(s):1]
- 17. Panneervel, P. (2005). E- Governance: A Change Management Tool, Jaipur and New Delhi: Rawat Publications.
- 18. Pearlson, (2001), Managing and usTngInformatTon Systems, ISBN-13: 9780471320012 John Wiley & Sons.
- 19. Prabhu, C. (2012) E-Governance: Concepts and Case Studies. New Delhi: PHI Learning Private Limited
- 20. Ratan N (2005) National e-Governance Plan of India: Driving Good Governance using ICT, egov, July 2005, Volume 1, Issue 4, Centre for Science, Development and Media Studies, New Delhi, India.

D	DIIDI IG A DI ID	TOTAL TION	т						
Discipline	PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION								
Course Code	UK5DSCPAN302	2							
Course Title	PUBLIC PERSO	PUBLIC PERSONNEL ADMINISTRATION							
Type of Course	DSC / DSE / MD	DSC / DSE / MDC / SEC / VAC / AEC							
Semester	V								
Academic Level	300-399								
	Credit	Lecture	Tutorial	Practical	Total Hours				
Course Details	Credit	Hours	Hrs	Hours	Total Hours				
	4	30	18	12	60				
Duo magnisitas	1 A knowledge on Indian Administration								
Pre-requisites	2 A knowledge of	f Public Adm	ninistration						
	The course equips you with an understanding of how governments								
Course Summers	build and manage	the personn	el system. Th	ne course dea	ls with the				
Course Summary	evolution of perso	onnel admini	stration pract	tices, its aspe	cts and				
	morale of the emp	oloyees							

Module	Unit	Content	Hrs				
I		Introduction to Personnel Administration	10				
	1	Personnel Administration – Definition, Meaning, Scope & Importance.					
	2	Bureaucracy – Definition, Meaning, Characteristic Features					
	3	Citizen Centric Administration – Meaning-Need-Significance and Barriers					
II	Civil Services in India						
	4	Scope and Significance of Indian Civil Services					
	5	Public Service: Concept and Role in the Modern State					
	6	Civil Services Agencies – Union Public Service Commission and State Public Service Commission					
	7	Classification of Civil Services – Central Services, State Services and State Services.					
	8	All India Services: Nature, Role and Rationale					
III		Aspects of Personnel Administration	6				
	9	Recruitment of Civil Services – Meaning, Definition, Process, Methods, Systems and Problems					
	10	Training: Meaning, Definition, Objectives, Types, Techniques, Training Institutions in India.					
	11	Promotion - Meaning, Definition and Importance, Principles- Seniority and Merit- Promotion Systems in India.					
	12	Pay – Meaning, Principles, Allowances- Retirement Benefits.					
	13	Disciplinary Procedure for Civil Servants.					

IV	(Grievances Redressal Morale and Machinery for Negotiations	10
	14	Nature and Scope of Public Grievances	
	15	Types of Redressal Machinery	
	16	Public Employees' Organizations – Professional Associations VS Unions, Objectives of associations & unions, Legal Rights of Employees	
	17	Whitley Councils in U.K, Joint Consultative Machinery in India.	
	18	Administrative Tribunals-Meaning, Need, Significance & Types, Central Administrative Tribunal in India	
V		Issues in Personnel Administration	10
	19	Performance Appraisal – Meaning, Definition, Purpose, Significance, Types, Advantages and Appraisal System in India	
	20	Relationship between Generalist and Specialist Administrators	
	21	Politicization of Higher Civil Services in India – Principle of Anonymity, Principle of Neutrality and Principle of Commitment.	
VI		Open Ended	12
		(This module is exclusively designed for internal evaluation only. Choose any two activities.)	
		Activity 1: Field Study	
		Visit to Administrative Tribunal	
		Visit to State Public Service Commission	
		Activity 2: Group Discussion Group discussion on effective civil service contribute to good governance and public service delivery some of the common Discuss the challenges faced in recruiting, training, and motivating civil servants	
		Activity 3: Workshop on Modern Administrative Tools Introduction to technological advancements in Public Administration. Hands-on experience with administrative software and tool. Role-playing exercises using digital platforms for decision-making scenarios	

No.	Upon completion of the course the graduate will be able to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO1	Examine the historical evolution, concepts, and classifications in Indian Civil Services.	U Ap	PSO-1
CO2	Analyse and evaluate recruitment policies, selection processes, disciplinary procedures, and service rules of Indian Civil Services.	Ap An	PSO-3
CO3	Assess and analyse pay principles, the role of Pay Commissions in Indian Civil Services, retirement benefits and Pension scheme.	Ap An	PSO-3
CO4	Evaluate the impact of globalization, civil service reforms, and emerging concepts in personnel administration	An E	PSO-8

CO5	Analyse and assess the issues in administration	U Ap An	PSO-3
CO6	Analyse the gap between theoretical knowledge and real-world application in the field of Indian Civil Services administration, providing participants with a comprehensive understanding of historical developments, current issues, and emerging trends.	E An Ap C	PSO-10

R-Remember, U-Understand, Ap-Apply, An-Analyse, E-Evaluate, C-Create

CO No.	СО	PO/PSO	Cognitive Level	Knowledge Category	Lecture (L)/ Tutorial (T)	Practical (P)
CO1	Examine the historical evolution, concepts, and classifications in Indian Civil Services.	PO-2 PSO-1	U Ap	F, C	Book Review	
CO2	Analyse and evaluate recruitment policies, selection processes, disciplinary procedures, and service rules of Indian Civil Services.	PO-5 PSO-3	Ap An	F, C	Assignment	
CO3	Assess and analyse pay principles, the role of Pay Commissions in Indian Civil Services, retirement benefits and Pension scheme.	PO-5 PSO-3	Ap An	F	Debate	
CO4	Evaluate the impact of globalization, civil service reforms, and emerging concepts in personnel administration	PO-6 PO-1 PSO-8	An E	F, C, M	Case Analysis	
CO5	Analyse and assess the issues in administration	PO-2 PSO-3	U Ap An	F, C	Seminar	
CO6	Analyse the gap between theoretical knowledge and real-world application in the field of Indian Civil Services administration, providing participants with a comprehensive understanding of historical developments, current issues, and emerging trends.	PO-8 PO-2 PSO- 10	E An Ap C	С, М	Field Visit Case Study	

F-Factual, C- Conceptual, P-Procedural, M-Metacognitive

	PSO1	PSO3	PSO8	PSO1 0	PO1	PO2	PO5	PO6	PO8
CO 1	1	-	-	-	ı	2	-	-	-
CO 2	-	3		-		-	2	-	-
CO 3	-	3	-	-	ı	-	1	-	-
CO 4	-	-	2	-	ı	-	-	1	3
CO 5	-	2	-	-	-	2	-	-	-
CO 6	-	-	-	1	-	1	-	-	3

Mapping of COs to Assessment Rubrics:

	Internal Exam	Assignment	Project Evaluation	End Semester Examinations
CO 1	√	✓		✓
CO 2	√			✓
CO 3	√			✓
CO 4		✓		✓
CO 5		✓		✓
CO 6			✓	

- 1. Arora, R. K. (2006). Public administration in India: Continuity & change. Rajat Publications.
- 2. Bhayana, S., & Singh, S. S. (2016). Public personnel and financial administration (4th ed.). New Academics: Jalandhar.
- 3. Chakrabarty, B., & Chand, P. (2012). Public administration in a globalised world: Theories and practice. Sage Publications.
- 4. Commission on Centre-State Relations (Sarkaria Commission). (1988). Report of the Commission on Centre-State Relations [Report]. Government of India. Retrieved from interstatecouncil.nic.in/report-of-the-Sarkaria-commission/Sarkaria commission report
- 5. Davar, R. S. (2008). Personnel management and industrial relations in India (2nd ed.). Vikas Publishing House.
- 6. Dimock, M. E., & Dimock, G. O. (1975). Public administration. Mohan Prinlani Oxford and IBH Publishers.
- 7. Flippo, E. B. (2008). Principles of personnel management (4th ed.). McGraw-Hill.India.
- 8. Goel, S. L., & Rogneesh, S. (2002). Public personnel administration: Theory and practice. Deep & Deep Publications.
- 9. Henry, N. (2007). Public administration and public affairs. Prentice Hall of India, New Delhi.
- 10. Hooja, R., & Parnami, K. K. (2011). Civil service training in India. Rawat Publications.
- 11. India. Second Administrative Reforms Commission. (2010). Refurbishing of personnel administration: Scaling new heights (10th report). Government of India.
- 12. Koontz, H., & O'Donnell, C. (2008). Principles of management (5th ed.). McGraw-Hill.
- 13. Meena, J. S. (2016). Administrative reforms & good governance. Aavishkar Publishers.
- 14. Ahmed, N. (2005). Indian public administration. Anmol Publications.
- 15. Pigors, P., & Myers, C. A. (1969). Personnel administration: A point of view and a method (6th ed.). McGraw-Hill.
- 16. Rabin, J., Vocino, T., Hildreth, W. B., & Miller, J. G. (2008). Handbook of public personnel administration. Taylor & Francis.
- 17. Sharma, P. D., & Sharma, B. M. (2009). Indian administration: Retrospect & prospect. Rawat Publications, New Delhi.
- 18. Sharma, P. L. (2004). Public administration: Theory and practice. Mangaldeep Publications.
- 19. Saxena, A. P. (2010). Training and development in government. Indian Institute of Public Administration.
- 20. Saxena, A. P. (2016). Governance & administrative reforms. Ane Books Pvt. Ltd.
- 21. Sharma, U., & Sharma, S. K. (2006). Public administration. Nice Printing Press, Delhi.
- 22. Stahl, O. G. (1971). Public personnel administration (6th ed.). Oxford & IBH Publishing.

Discipline	PUBLIC	C ADMINISTRA	TION			
Course Code	UK5DS	CPAN303				
Course Title	RESEA	RCH METHOD	OLOGY I			
Type of Course	DSC / I	OSE / MDC / SEC	C / VAC / AEC			
Semester	V					
Academic Level	.300-399)				
Course Details	Credit	Lecture Hours	Tutorial	Practical	Total Hours	
			Hours	Hours		
	4	30	18	12	60	
Pre-requisites	1. Basic	understanding of	Research Pro	cess.		
	2. Refer with various Government Project Reports.					
Course Summary	This co	urse aims at facil	litating the stu	idents to give	an overview of	
	research	process and its n	nethods.	_		

Module	Unit	Content	Hrs
I		Introduction To Research Methodology	10
	1	Meaning and Objectives of Research	
	2	Types of Research	
	3	Research Approaches	
	4	Research Problem	
II		Research Design	10
	5	Meaning, Nature and Need for Research Design	
	6	Features of Good Design	
	7	Classification of Research Design	
III		Development Of Hypotheses	10
	8	Literature Review	
	9	Developing the Research Proposal	
	10	Statement of Research Objectives	
	11	Formulation of Research Hypothesis	
IV		Design Of Sample Survey, Data Collection	10
	12	Sample Design and Types of Sample Designs	
	13	Classification of Data	
	14	Methods of Data Collection: Qualitative and Quantitative Methods	
	15	Collection of Primary Data and Secondary Data	
	16	Measurement and Scaling – Classification and Techniques	
\mathbf{V}]	Respondents Selection Data Preparation and Data Analysis	10
	17	Sampling Concepts	
	18	Sampling Design, Determination of Sampling Size	
	19	Data Preparation process	
	20	Data Processing	
	21	Univariate and Bivariate Analysis of Data	
	22	Testing of Hypothesis	

VI	Open Ended (This module is exclusively designed for internal evaluation only. Choose any two activities.)	10
	Activity 1: Research Proposal writing Activity 2: Provide a scenario with relevant issue and conduct pilot research on the issue Activity 3: Research Report Writing	
	TOTAL	60

No.	Upon completion of the course the graduate will be able to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO-1	Comprehend the basics in Research Methodology	U	PSO-5
CO-2	Understand to select an appropriate research design	U	PSO-5
CO-3	Get able to take up hypotheses, study on it and implement a research study.	An, E	PSO-5
CO-4	Enable to collect data, edit it properly and analyse it accordingly.	C, E	PSO-5 PSO-7
CO-5	Develop skills in qualitative and quantitative data analysis and presentation.	Ap, An	PSO-5 PSO-7
CO-6	Able to demonstrate the ability to choose methods appropriate for research process.	E, C	PS0-5

R-Remember, U-Understand, Ap-Apply, An-Analyse, E-Evaluate, C-Create

CO No.	СО	PO/PSO	Cognitive Level	Knowledge Category	Lecture (L)/ Tutorial (T)	Practical (P)
CO-1	Comprehend the basics in Research Methodology and applying them in administration.	PO-1 PSO-5	U	F, P	Book Review	
CO-2	Understand to select an appropriate research design	PO-1 PSO-5	U	F, P	Book Review	
CO-3	Get able to take up hypotheses, study on it and implement a research study.	PO-2 PO-3 PSO-5	An, E	P, C	Book Review Analysis	
CO-4	Enable to collect data, edit it properly and analyse it accordingly.	PO-1 PO-4 PSO-5	C, E	P,C	Book Review	Field Visit
CO-5	Develop skills in qualitative and quantitative data analysis and presentation.	PO-6 PO-7 PO-8 PSO-5 PSO-7	Ap, An	P,C, M	Analysis	SPSS
CO-6	Able to demonstrate the ability to choose methods appropriate for research process.	PO-3 PO-8 PSO-5 PSO-7	E, C	O, M	Assignment	

F-Factual, C- Conceptual, P-Procedural, M-Metacognitive

	PSO-5	PSO-7	PO-1	PO-2	PO-3	PO-4	PO-5	PO-6	PO-7	PO-8
CO-1	3	-	3	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
CO-2	3	-	3	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
CO-3	3	-	-	2	1	-	-	-	-	-
CO-4	2	1	2	-	-	1	-	-	-	-
CO-5	2	1	-	-	-	-	-	1	1	1
CO-6	3	-	-	-	2	-	-	-		1

Mapping of COs to Assessment Rubrics:

	Internal Exam	Assignment	Project Evaluation	End Semester Examinations
CO-1	√			✓
CO-2	√			✓
CO-3	√			√
CO-4		✓		√
CO-5		√		√
CO-6			✓	

- 1. Borenstein, M., Rosenthal, L. V., Cohn, J., & Tettekpsie, J. P. (2009). Meta-analysis in social research. Sage Publications.
- 2. Charmaz, K., & Bryant, L. (2011). Grounded theory research: A guide for social scientists. Sage Publications.
- 3. Collins, P. H. (2000). Field research in sociology. Waveland Press.
- 4. Denzin, N. K., & Lincoln, Y. S. (2018). Interpretive research design and data analysis. Sage Publications.
- 5. Erickson, E. (2018). Qualitative data analysis: A practical guide. Sage Publications.
- 6. Fahey, C., & Arthur, M. (2011). Case studies in social work practice. SAGE Publications Ltd.
- 7. Flick, U. (2014). Ethnography and qualitative research. Sage Publications.
- 8. Flick, U. (2014). Focus groups as qualitative research. Sage Publications.
- 9. Flick, U. (2014). How to use qualitative methods in social research. Sage Publications.
- 10. Goode, W. J., & Hatt, P. K. (2006). Methods in social research. McGraw-Hill Book Company.
- 11. Gupta, S. P. (2011). Statistical methods. Sultan Chand and Sons.
- 12. Guijt, I., & Shah, M. (2000). Impact evaluation in practice. Sage Publications.
- 13. Heaton, J. C. (2008). Regression analysis for social sciences. Sage Publications.

- 14. Kenny, D. A., Kashy, D. A., & Cook, P. M. (2003). Moderation in mediation analysis: Conceptual and statistical foundations. Lawrence Erlbaum Associates.
- 15. Kothari, C. R., & Garg, G. (2014). Research methodology: Methods and techniques. New Age International.
- 16. Krippendorff, K. (2018). Content analysis in communication research. Sage Publications.
- 17. LeNoir, P., & Lincoln, A. (2016). Conducting interdisciplinary research: A team approach. Sage Publications.
- 18. Loseke, D. R. (2013). Methodological thinking. Sage Publications.
- 19. Miller, G. J., & Yang, K. (2007). Handbook of research methods in public administration. CRC Press.
- 20. Morgan, S. L., & Winship, C. (2007). Causality: Methods for estimating causal effects. Cambridge University Press.
- 21. Olson, D. K. (2010). Multivariate analysis of variance (MANOVA). Sage Publications.
- 22. Ragin, C. C. (2014). Introduction to social research methods. W. W. Norton & Company.
- 23. Robson, K. D., Keith, S. B., & Trochim, W. M. K. (2007). A guide to social science research [APA 7th Edition]. Pine Forge Press.
- 24. Saldaña, J. (2016). Designing social inquiry: Qualitative research in context. Sage Publications.
- 25. Scriven, M. (2012). Evaluation essentials: Guiding school improvement. Sage Publications.
- 26. Silverman, D. (2016). Doing ethnographic and qualitative research. Sage Publications.
- 27. Snijders, T. A., & Bosker, R. J. (2012). Introduction to multilevel modeling. Sage Publications.
- 28. Stringer, E. (2007). Program evaluation. Pearson Education Limited.
- 29. White, J. (Ed.). (1994). Research in public administration: Reflections on theory and practice. Sage Publications.

DISCIPLINE-SPECIFIC ELECTIVE

- 1. Human Rights and Administration
- 2. Human Resource Management
- 3. Media, Civil Society and Governance
- 4. Land Governance

Discipline	PUBLIC ADMII	PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION						
Course Code	UK5DSEPAN30	UK5DSEPAN300						
Course Title	HUMAN RIGH	HUMAN RIGHTS AND ADMINISTRATION						
Type of Course	DSC / DSE / MI	DSC / DSE / MDC / SEC / VAC / AEC						
Semester	V							
Academic Level	300-399							
	Details Credit	Lecture	Tutorial	Practical	Total Hours			
Course Details		Hours	Hrs	Hours	Total Hours			
	4	30	18	12	60			
Duo magnisitas	1. Basic understanding on socio-political issues							
Pre-requisites	2. Awareness on Social Science.							
	The course would provide an understanding on the concept of human							
Course Summary	rights and how	socio-politi	cal issues ca	an be addres	ssed from the			
_	perspective of hu	ıman rights.						

Modul	Unit	Content	Hrs		
e					
I		Introduction	10		
	1	Meaning -Nature-Definition of Human Rights			
	2	The Concept of Human Rights			
	3	The Nature of Human Rights			
	4	The Approaches and Generations of Human Rights			
II	Universalization Of Human Rights				
	5	Origin of Human Rights			
	6	Major Milestones in The Development of Human Rights			
	7	Universal Declaration of Human Rights (UDHR)			
III		Major International Treaties on Human Rights	10		
	8	International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights (ICCPR)			
	9	International Covenant on Economic, Social and Cultural Rights (ICESCR)			
	10	Convention On the Rights of The Child (CRC)- The Convention Against Torture and Other Cruel, Inhuman or Degrading Treatment or Punishment (CAT)			
	11	Convention On the Elimination of All Forms of Discrimination Against Women (CEDAW)-			
IV		International Administration of Human Rights	10		
	12	International Criminal Court (ICC)			
	13	United Nations Human Rights Council (UNHRC)			
	14	Amnesty International			
	15	European Commission on Human Rights			
	16	Asia Watch			

	Human Rights Enforcement System	10					
17	Law Enforcing Agencies: Police, Military and Para-Military Forces—Emerging Experience						
18	Human Rights Enforcement: The Protection of Human Rights Act, 1993, NHRC						
19	State Human Rights Commissions, Human Rights Courts						
National Commission for Women, Children, Minorities, Scheduled Castes and Scheduled Tribes							
21	Human Rights Education: Problems and Prospects						
		10					
Open Ended (This module is exclusively designed for internal evaluation only. Choose any two activities.)							
	Activity 1: Visit to Jails Activity 2: Field Visit to backward Areas						
		60					
	18 19 20 21	17 Law Enforcing Agencies: Police, Military and Para-Military Forces—Emerging Experience 18 Human Rights Enforcement: The Protection of Human Rights Act, 1993, NHRC 19 State Human Rights Commissions, Human Rights Courts 20 National Commission for Women, Children, Minorities, Scheduled Castes and Scheduled Tribes 21 Human Rights Education: Problems and Prospects Open Ended (This module is exclusively designed for internal evaluation only. Choose any two activities.) Activity 1: Visit to Jails					

No.	Upon completion of the course the graduate will be able to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO1	Recognise the concept and significance of human rights	U An	PSO10
CO2	Examine the Universalization of Human Rights	U An	PSO10
СОЗ	Analyse Major International Treaties on Human Rights	E An	PSO10
CO4	Examine the international administration of human rights	An E	PSO10
CO5	Analyse the importance of Human Rights Enforcement System	An	PSO2
CO6	Apply the knowledge on practical issues	Ap An	PSO10

R-Remember, U-Understand, Ap-Apply, An-Analyse, E-Evaluate, C-Create

CO No.	СО	PO/PSO	Cognitive Level	Knowledge Category	Lecture (L)/ Tutorial (T)	Practical (P)
CO1	Recognise the concept and significance of human rights	PO1 PSO10	U Ap	F, C	Book Review	
CO2	Examine the Universalization of Human Rights	PO2 PSO10	U An	F, C	Assignment	
CO3	Analyse Major International Treaties on Human Rights	PO6 PSO10	E An	F	Seminar	
CO4	Analyse the international administration of human rights	PO6 PSO10	An E	F, C, M	Debate	
CO5	Analyse the importance of Human Rights Enforcement System	PO8 PSO10	Ap An	F.C	Field Visit	
CO6	Apply the knowledge on practical issues	PO8 PSO10	Ap An	F, C	Field visit/ Case Analysis	

F-Factual, C- Conceptual, P-Procedural, M-Metacognitive

	PSO1	PSO2	PSO3	PSO4	PSO6	PSO10	PO1	PO2	PO6	PO8
CO 1	-	1	-	-	1	3	3	-	-	-
CO 2	-	1	-	-	-	3	-	3	-	-
CO 3	_	2	-	-	_	3	_	-	2	_
CO 4	-	2	-	-	_	3	-	1	2	-
CO 5	-	2		-	-	3	-	-	-	3
CO6	-	-	3	-	-	3				2

Mapping of COs to Assessment Rubrics:

	Internal Exam	Assignment	Project Evaluation	End Semester Examinations
CO 1	√			√
CO 2	√			✓
CO 3	√			√
CO 4		√		√
CO 5		√		✓

- 1. Agarwal, H. O. (2023). Human rights. Central Law Publications.
- 2. Agosí, M. (2002). Women, gender, and human rights: A global perspective. Rutgers.
- 3. Alfredsson, G., et al. (1992). The Universal Declaration of Human Rights: A commentary. Scandinavian University Press.
- 4. Alston, P. (1995). The United Nations and human rights: A critical appraisal. Clarendon Press.
- 5. Bajpai, A. (2018). Child rights in India: Law, policy and practice. Oxford University Press.
- 6. Baxi, U. (Ed.). (1987). The right to be human. Lancer.
- 7. Beetham, D. (Ed.). (1995). Politics and human rights. Blackwell.
- 8. Boersema, D. (2018). Philosophy of human rights: Theory and practice. Routledge.
- 9. Brown, G. (2016). The Universal Declaration of Human Rights in the 21st century: A living document in a changing world. Open Book.
- 10. Brownlie, I. (Ed.). (1992). Basic documents on human rights. The Clarendon Press.
- 11. Brys, A. (2002). Globalization and human rights. University of California Press.
- 12. Cranston, M. (1973). What are human rights. The Bodley Head.
- 13. Donnelly, J. (2019). The concept of human rights. Routledge.
- 14. Halme-Tuomisaari, M., & Slotte, P. (Eds.). (2015). Revisiting the origins of human rights. Cambridge University Press.
- 15. Ishay, M. (2008). The history of human rights: From ancient times to the globalization era. University of California Press.
- 16. Iyer, V. R. K. (1980). Minorities, civil liberties and criminal justice. People's Publishing House.
- 17. Kothari, S., & Sethi, H. (Eds.). (1991). Rethinking human rights. Lokayan.
- 18. Mégret, F., & Alston, P. (2020). The United Nations and human rights: A critical appraisal. Oxford University Press.
- 19. Palczewski, C. H., et al. (2022). Gender in communication: A critical introduction. Sage.
- 20. Quataert, J., & Wildenthal, L. (2019). The Routledge history of human rights. Routledge.
- 21. Symonides, J. (Ed.). (2020). Human Rights: New Dimensions and Challenges. Routledge.
- 22. Thukral, E. G. (2002). Children in globalizing India: Challenging our conscience. HAQ. Centre for Child Rights.
- 23. Walling, C. B. (2022). Human Rights and Justice for All: Demanding Dignity in the United States and Around the World. Routledge.
- 24. Woodwiss, A. (2005). Human rights. East Sussex: Psychology Press.

D: : 1:	DUDI IC A DIADI	HOTD ATION	T					
Discipline	PUBLIC ADMIN	PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION						
Course Code	UK5DSEPAN301	1						
Course Title	HUMAN RESO	URCE MAN	NAGEMEN	Γ				
Type of Course	DSC / DSE / MD	C / SEC / V	AC / AEC					
Semester	V							
Academic Level	300-399							
	Credit	Lecture	Tutorial	Practical	Total Hours			
Course Details	etails Credit	Hours	Hrs	Hours	Total nours			
	4	35	15	10	60			
	1. Should be abl	e to Effective	vely Convey	Information,	Engage with			
Pre-requisites	Stakeholders and	Resolve Cor	nflicts					
	2, Know the importance of human factor in an organisation.							
	This course wou	ld equip stu	idents with	the knowledg	ge, skills, and			
	confidence to excel in HR roles and contribute effectively to							
Course Summary	organizational suc	ccess in toda	y's dynamic	business envi	ronment. This			
	programme offers	s valuable in	sights and pr	actical tools t	o thrive in the			
	ever-evolving wo	rld of HRM						

Module	Unit	Content	Hrs			
I	•	Concept and Development of Human Resource Management	10			
	1	Definition And Scope of Human Resource Management				
	2	Evolution of Human Resource Management				
	3	Importance and Role of the Human Factor				
	4	Computer Applications in Human Resource Management				
	5	HR's Professional Competency				
II		Acquisition of Human Resources	10			
	6	Human Resource Planning				
	7	Contemporary Approaches to Human Resource Planning				
	8	Link Between Human Resource Planning and Strategic Planning				
	9 Recruitment- Process, Selection Stages.					
III		Developing Human Resources	10			
	10	Training and Development, Training Need Analysis, Types of Training				
	11	Human Resource Development – Goals of Human Resource Development				
	12	Objectives and Types of Performance Appraisal				
	13	Self-Development				
IV		Talent Management	10			
	14	Career Development Cycle				
	15	Career Planning Methods, Succession Planning				
	16	Concept and Importance of Talent Management				
	17	Managing Talent, Work Life Quality				
	18	Reward Management, Compensation Management				

V		Maintenance of Human Resources	10			
	19	Genesis and Growth of Labour Relations				
	20	Trade Unionism, Collective Bargaining				
	21	Challenges of Human Resource Management				
	22 Public Sector- Challenges of Human Resources in Virtual					
		Organisations				
VI		Open Ended	10			
		(This module is exclusively designed for internal evaluation only.				
		Choose any two activities.)				
		Activity 1: Interactive Session with an Industry Expert				
		Activity 2: Field Visit – Visit the HR Department of a Firm,				
		Company or Local organisation.				
		Activity 3: Role-play: - Ethical Dilemma Scenarios				

No.	Upon completion of the course, the graduate will be able to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO1	Understand Basic Concepts of Human Resource Management	U Ap	PSO 3 PSO 5
CO2	Acquire Knowledge About Human Resource Planning and Various Stages of Human Resource Management	Ap An	PSO 3
CO3	Analyze the Human Resource Development and Training	Ap An	PSO 2 PSO 3
CO4	Analyze the Significance of Talent Management in Human Resource Management	An E An	PSO 2 PSO6
CO5	Evaluate the Efficiency of Human Resources and the Importance of Knowledge Management in Human Resource Management	U Ap An	PSO6 PSO2
CO6	Equip With Knowledge and Skills In Engaging in Informed Discussions About Human Resource Management Through Real-World Examples and Evaluate The Outcomes.	E An Ap C	PSO 5 PSO 2

R-Remember, U-Understand, Ap-Apply, An-Analyse, E-Evaluate, C-Create

CO No.	CO	PO/PSO	Cognitive Level	Knowledge Category	Lecture (L)/ Tutorial (T)	Practical (P)
CO1	Understand Basic Concepts of Human Resource Management	PO-1 PSO 3 PSO 5	U Ap	F, C	Assignment	
CO2	Acquire Knowledge About Human Resource Planning and Various Stages of Human Resource Management	PO-6 PSO 3	Ap An	F, C	Quiz	

CO3	Analyse the Human Resource Development and Training	PO-2 PSO-2 PSO-3	Ap An	F	Role-play	
CO4	Analyze the Significance of Talent Management in Human Resource Management	PO-8 PSO-2 PSO-6	An E An	F, C, M	Case Analysis	
CO5	Evaluate the Efficiency of Human Resources and the Importance of Knowledge Management in Human Resource Management	PO-8 PSO-6 PSO-2	U Ap An	F, C	Seminar	
CO6	Equip With Knowledge and Skills in Engaging in Informed Discussions About Human Resource Management Through Real-World Examples and Evaluate the Outcomes.	PO-3 PO-5 PSO-5 PSO-2	E An Ap C	C, M	Field Visit Case Study Interactive Session	

F-Factual, C- Conceptual, P-Procedural, M-Metacognitive

	PS O2	PS O3	PS O5	PS O6	PO1	PO2	PO3	PO5	PO6	PO8
CO 1	-	1	1	-	2	-	-	-	-	1
CO 2	-	3	-	-	-	-	-	-	2	-
CO 3	ı	1	1	ı	ı	1	1	1	1	ı
CO 4	1	-	-	3	ı	-	-	-	-	2
CO 5	1	-	-	2	-	-	-	-	-	1
CO 6	1	-	2	3	-	-	2	-	-	-

Mapping of COs to Assessment Rubrics:

	Internal Exam	Assignment	Project Evaluation	End Semester Examinations
CO 1	√			✓
CO 2	√			✓
CO 3	√			✓
CO 4		✓		✓
CO 5		✓		✓
CO 6			✓	

- 1. Argyris, C., Cartwright, S., Cooper, C. L., & Starbuck, W. H. (2015). Human resource management. Blackwell Publ.
- 2. Armstrong, M. (2006). A handbook of human resource management practice (10th ed.). Kogan Page.
- 3. Aswathappa, K. (2013). Human resource management: Text and cases. McGraw Hill, New Delhi.
- 4. Durai, P. (2016). Human resource management. Pearson Education India.
- 5. Ivancevich, J. M. (2019). Human resource management (12th ed.). Mcgraw-Hill.
- 6. Mondy, R. W., & Martocchio, J. J. (2020). Human resource management (14th ed.). Pearson Education Limited.
- 7. Nair, S. K., & Nair, S. R. (2017). Human resource management: A strategic introduction. Oxford University Press.
- 8. Nel, P. S., Werner, A., Botha, C., Tafadzwa, W., Dodd, N., Du, M., Mey, M., Ngalo, O., Poisat, P., Van, J., & Van, E. (2017). Human resource management. Oxford University Press Southern Africa (Pty)
- 9. Noe, R. A., Hollenbeck, J. R., Gerhart, B., & Wright, P. M. (2020). Human resource management: Gaining a competitive advantage. McGraw-Hill Education.
- 10. Rao, T. V., & Rao, T. V. (2015). HRD Audit: Evaluating the Human Resource Function for Business Improvement. SAGE Publications India.
- 11. Rao, V. S. (2008). Human resource management text and cases. New Delhi Excel Books.
- 12. Snell, S., & Bohlander, G. W. (2013). Managing human resources. South-Western; Andover.
- 13. Torrington, D., Hall, L., Atkinson, C., & Taylor, S. (2020). Human resource management (11th ed.). Pearson Education Limited.
- 14. Windsor, D. (2001). Public affairs, issues management, and political strategy: opportunities, obstacles, and caveats. Journal of Public Affairs, 1(4), 382–415.

Discipline	PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION							
Course Code	UK5DSEPAN30)2						
Course Title	MEDIA, CIVII	MEDIA, CIVIL SOCIETY AND GOVERNANCE						
Type of Course	DSC / DSE / MI	DSC / DSE / MDC / SEC / VAC / AEC						
Semester	V							
Academic Level	300 - 399							
Course Details	Credit	Lecture Hours	Tutorial Hrs	Practical Hours	Total Hours			
	4	35	15	10	60			
Pre-requisites	Basic knowledge about working of government and media Experience with civil society organisations							
Course Summary	On completion of the course the student will be able to understand the concepts of accountability and control in governance and evaluate the role of media and civil society organizations in promoting accountability and control in government.							

Module	Unit	Content	Hrs
I		Accountability and Responsibility	10
	1	Accountability and Responsibility– Definition and Concepts	
	2	Vertical and Horizontal Accountability	
	3	Legal and Administrative Accountability	
	4	Social and Political Accountability	
	5	Individual and Collective Responsibility	
	6	Ministerial Responsibility	
II		Executive and Legislative Control	10
	7	Legislative Control and its Limitations,	
	8	Executive Control and Limitations,	
	9	Judicial Control and Limitations,	
	10	Concept of Checks and Balances	
III		Grievance Redressal Mechanisms	10
	11	Channels for Redressal of Citizen Grievances – Administrative,	
		Legislative and Judicial remedies,	
	12	Oversight Institutions – Ombudsman, CAG	
	13	Central Vigilance Commission	
	14	Grievance cells in various Ministries and Departments	
IV		Role of Media and Civil Society Organisations	10
	15	Role of Media in Democratic Governance	
	16	Interest groups – Types, Functions and Role in Governance	
	17	Voluntary Organizations,	
	18	Functions and roles of CSOs in governance	
	19	Advocacy, lobbying, and citizen engagement	
	20	Global perspectives on media, CSOs, and governance	

V		Citizen Centric Initiatives	8
	21	Right to Information Act	
	22	Citizens Charter	
	23	Social Audit	
VI		Open Ended	12
		(This module is exclusively designed for internal evaluation only.	
		Choose any two activities.)	
		Activity 1: Internship with NGOs	
		Activity 2: Debates on various current issues.	
		Activity 3: Case Study on how accountability issues affecting	
		working of government	

No.	Upon completion of the course the graduate will be able to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO1	Basic understanding on the concepts of accountability and control	U Ap	PSO4 PSO6
CO2	Analyze the role of legislature, executive and judiciary in Media and CSO	Ap E	PSO4
CO3	Understanding the role of Citizens and Citizen redressal system	An Ap	PSO3 PSO6
CO4	Critically Evaluating the role of media and CSO in society	An E	PSO9
CO5	Interpreting Citizen Centric Initiatives like Citizen Charter, Social Audit and RTI Act	Ap An	PSO9
CO6	Providing practical knowledge on ensuring accountability	E An Ap C	PSO3

R-Remember, U-Understand, Ap-Apply, An-Analyse, E-Evaluate, C-Create

CO No.	СО	PO/PSO	Cognitive Level	Knowledge Category	Lecture (L)/ Tutorial (T)	Practical (P)
CO1	Basic understanding on the concepts of accountability and control	PSO4 PSO6 PO6	U Ap	F, C	Assignment	
CO2	Role of legislature, executive and judiciary in Media and CSO Analyze	PSO4 PO4 PO6	Ap An	F, C	Book Review	
CO3	Understanding the role of Citizens and Citizen redressal system	PSO3 PSO6 PO6	Ap An	F, C, M	Practical session	

CO4	Critically Evaluating the role of media and CSO in society	PSO9 PO3 PO6	An E	C, M	Case Analysis
CO5	Interpreting the Citizen charter and RTI act	PSO9 PO2 PO6	U Ap An	Р, С	Seminar
CO6	Providing practical knowledge on ensuring accountability	PSO3 PO1 PO2 PO3 PO6	E An Ap C	C, M	Field Visit Group Discussion Case Study

F-Factual, C- Conceptual, P-Procedural, M-Metacognitive

	PSO2	PSO3	PSO4	PSO6	PSO9	PO1	PO2	PO3	PO4	PO5	PO6
CO 1	1	-	3	3	1	-	-	-	-	-	3
CO 2	-	-	3	-	1	-	-	-	2	-	2
CO 3	1	3	-	3	2	-	-	1	-	-	3
CO 4	-	1	1	1	3	2	1	3	1	2	3
CO 5	1	-	1	-	3	-	2	-	-	-	2
CO 6	-	3	-	-	-	2	3	1	-	-	3

Mapping of COs to Assessment Rubrics:

	Internal Exam	Assignment	Project Evaluation	End Semester Examinations
CO 1	✓			✓
CO 2	✓			✓
CO 3	✓			✓
CO 4		✓		✓
CO 5		√		✓
CO 6			√	

- 1. Castells, M. (2009). Communication power. Oxford: Oxford University Press.
- 2. Cammaerts, B. (2007). Citizenship, the public sphere and media. In B. Cammaerts & N. Carpentier (Eds.), Reclaiming the media: Communication rights and democratic media roles (pp. 1-8). European Communication Research and Education Association Series, 3. Bristol, UK: Intellect.
- 3. Cheema, G. S., & Popovski, V. (Eds.). (2010). Engaging civil society: Emerging trends in democratic governance. New York: United Nations University.
- 4. Chomsky, N. (2004). Media control: The spectacular achievements of propaganda. Lahore: Vanguard Books.
- 5. Curran, J. (2011). Media and Democracy. London: Routledge.
- 6. Eberly, D. (2008). The rise of global civil society: Building communities and nations from the bottom up. New York: Encounter Books.
- 7. Howell, J., & Pearce, J. (2001). Civil society and development: A critical exploration. Lynne Rienner.
- 8. Jayaram, N. (Ed.). (2005). On civil society: Issues and perspectives. Sage Publications.
- 9. Marx, K. (2010). A contribution to the critique of political economy. People's Publishing House (P) Ltd.
- 10. McQuail, D. (2010). Mass communication theory (6th ed.). London: SAGE.
- 11. Rahman, T. (2012). Parliamentary Control and Government Accountability in South Asia (1st ed.). Routledge.
- 12. Sundaram, R. (Ed.). (2013). No Limit: Media Studies from India. Oxford India Studies. New Delhi: Oxford University Press.

Discipline	PUBLIC ADMIN	PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION						
Course Code	UKDSEPAN303							
Course Title	LAND GOVERN	NANCE						
Type of Course	DSC / DSE / MD	C / SEC / V	AC / AEC					
Semester	V							
Academic Level	300 - 399	300 - 399						
Course Details	Credit	Lecture	Tutorial	Practical	Total Hours			
	Credit	Hours	Hrs	Hours	Total Hours			
	4	30	18	12	60			
Pre-requisites	1. A basic understanding on governance principles.							
	2. Knowledge on land related issues.							
Course Summary	The course would	ld provide a	an understan	ding on land	d governance,			
	problems and pro	spects.						

1 Overview of Land Governance: Definitions, Scope, and Importance	Module	Unit	Content	Hrs			
2 Historical Perspective: Evolution of Land Governance in India 3 Legal and Policy Framework: Constitution, Land Laws, and Land Reforms 4 Stakeholders in Land Governance 5 Government Agencies, Private Sector, Civil Society II Land Use Planning and Management 6 Principles of Land use Planning 7 Tools and Techniques for Land use Management 8 Urban and Rural Land use Planning Strategies 9 Challenges of Land management 10 Land Acquisition, Land Use Planning, Land Tenure Systems III Land Administration 14 11 Land Administration system in India 12 Land Use Planning: Zoning, Master Plans, and Development Control Regulations 13 Land Information Management GIS, Remote Sensing, and Cadastre 14 Land Information Systems: E-Governance in Land Administration 15 Digital Land Records, Online Services IV Land Governance and Development 16 Agriculture Land Use Policy 17 Forest Land Use Policy 18 Slum Rehabilitation, Land Pooling 19 Redevelopment	I		Introduction to Land Governance	10			
3 Legal and Policy Framework: Constitution, Land Laws, and Land Reforms 4 Stakeholders in Land Governance 5 Government Agencies, Private Sector, Civil Society II Land Use Planning and Management 6 Principles of Land use Planning 7 Tools and Techniques for Land use Management 8 Urban and Rural Land use Planning Strategies 9 Challenges of Land management 10 Land Acquisition, Land Use Planning, Land Tenure Systems III Land Administration 14 11 Land Administration system in India 12 Land Use Planning: Zoning, Master Plans, and Development Control Regulations 13 Land Information Management GIS, Remote Sensing, and Cadastre 14 Land Information Systems: E-Governance in Land Administration 15 Digital Land Records, Online Services IV Land Governance and Development 16 Agriculture Land Use Policy 17 Forest Land Use Policy 18 Slum Rehabilitation, Land Pooling 19 Redevelopment		1	Overview of Land Governance: Definitions, Scope, and Importance				
Reforms 4 Stakeholders in Land Governance 5 Government Agencies, Private Sector, Civil Society 11 Land Use Planning and Management 6 Principles of Land use Planning 7 Tools and Techniques for Land use Management 8 Urban and Rural Land use Planning Strategies 9 Challenges of Land management 10 Land Acquisition, Land Use Planning, Land Tenure Systems 11 Land Administration 14 Land Use Planning: Zoning, Master Plans, and Development Control Regulations 13 Land Information Management GIS, Remote Sensing, and Cadastre 14 Land Information Systems: E-Governance in Land Administration 15 Digital Land Records, Online Services 1V Land Governance and Development 16 Agriculture Land Use Policy 17 Forest Land Use Policy 18 Slum Rehabilitation, Land Pooling 19 Redevelopment		2	Historical Perspective: Evolution of Land Governance in India				
4 Stakeholders in Land Governance 5 Government Agencies, Private Sector, Civil Society 11 Land Use Planning and Management 6 Principles of Land use Planning 7 Tools and Techniques for Land use Management 8 Urban and Rural Land use Planning Strategies 9 Challenges of Land management 10 Land Acquisition, Land Use Planning, Land Tenure Systems 11 Land Administration 14 12 Land Administration system in India 12 Land Use Planning: Zoning, Master Plans, and Development Control Regulations 13 Land Information Management GIS, Remote Sensing, and Cadastre 14 Land Information Systems: E-Governance in Land Administration 15 Digital Land Records, Online Services 1V Land Governance and Development 16 Agriculture Land Use Policy 17 Forest Land Use Policy 18 Slum Rehabilitation, Land Pooling 19 Redevelopment		3	Legal and Policy Framework: Constitution, Land Laws, and Land				
II Land Use Planning and Management 6 Principles of Land use Planning 7 Tools and Techniques for Land use Management 8 Urban and Rural Land use Planning Strategies 9 Challenges of Land management 10 Land Acquisition, Land Use Planning, Land Tenure Systems III Land Administration 14 11 Land Administration system in India 12 Land Use Planning: Zoning, Master Plans, and Development Control Regulations 13 Land Information Management GIS, Remote Sensing, and Cadastre 14 Land Information Systems: E-Governance in Land Administration 15 Digital Land Records, Online Services IV Land Governance and Development 16 Agriculture Land Use Policy 17 Forest Land Use Policy 18 Slum Rehabilitation, Land Pooling 19 Redevelopment			Reforms				
II Land Use Planning and Management 6 Principles of Land use Planning 7 Tools and Techniques for Land use Management 8 Urban and Rural Land use Planning Strategies 9 Challenges of Land management 10 Land Acquisition, Land Use Planning, Land Tenure Systems III Land Administration 14 11 Land Administration system in India 12 Land Use Planning: Zoning, Master Plans, and Development Control Regulations 13 Land Information Management GIS, Remote Sensing, and Cadastre 14 Land Information Systems: E-Governance in Land Administration 15 Digital Land Records, Online Services IV Land Governance and Development 16 Agriculture Land Use Policy 17 Forest Land Use Policy 18 Slum Rehabilitation, Land Pooling 19 Redevelopment		4					
6 Principles of Land use Planning 7 Tools and Techniques for Land use Management 8 Urban and Rural Land use Planning Strategies 9 Challenges of Land management 10 Land Acquisition, Land Use Planning, Land Tenure Systems III Land Administration 14 11 Land Administration system in India 12 Land Use Planning: Zoning, Master Plans, and Development Control Regulations 13 Land Information Management GIS, Remote Sensing, and Cadastre 14 Land Information Systems: E-Governance in Land Administration 15 Digital Land Records, Online Services IV Land Governance and Development 16 Agriculture Land Use Policy 17 Forest Land Use Policy 18 Slum Rehabilitation, Land Pooling 19 Redevelopment		5	Government Agencies, Private Sector, Civil Society				
7 Tools and Techniques for Land use Management 8 Urban and Rural Land use Planning Strategies 9 Challenges of Land management 10 Land Acquisition, Land Use Planning, Land Tenure Systems III Land Administration 14 11 Land Administration system in India 12 Land Use Planning: Zoning, Master Plans, and Development Control Regulations 13 Land Information Management GIS, Remote Sensing, and Cadastre 14 Land Information Systems: E-Governance in Land Administration 15 Digital Land Records, Online Services IV Land Governance and Development 16 Agriculture Land Use Policy 17 Forest Land Use Policy 18 Slum Rehabilitation, Land Pooling 19 Redevelopment	II			12			
8 Urban and Rural Land use Planning Strategies 9 Challenges of Land management 10 Land Acquisition, Land Use Planning, Land Tenure Systems III Land Administration 14 11 Land Administration system in India 12 Land Use Planning: Zoning, Master Plans, and Development Control Regulations 13 Land Information Management GIS, Remote Sensing, and Cadastre 14 Land Information Systems: E-Governance in Land Administration 15 Digital Land Records, Online Services IV Land Governance and Development 16 Agriculture Land Use Policy 17 Forest Land Use Policy 18 Slum Rehabilitation, Land Pooling 19 Redevelopment		6	•				
9 Challenges of Land management 10 Land Acquisition, Land Use Planning, Land Tenure Systems Land Administration 14 11 Land Administration system in India 12 Land Use Planning: Zoning, Master Plans, and Development Control Regulations 13 Land Information Management GIS, Remote Sensing, and Cadastre 14 Land Information Systems: E-Governance in Land Administration 15 Digital Land Records, Online Services IV Land Governance and Development 16 Agriculture Land Use Policy 17 Forest Land Use Policy 18 Slum Rehabilitation, Land Pooling 19 Redevelopment							
III Land Acquisition, Land Use Planning, Land Tenure Systems Land Administration 14 11 Land Administration system in India 12 Land Use Planning: Zoning, Master Plans, and Development Control Regulations 13 Land Information Management GIS, Remote Sensing, and Cadastre 14 Land Information Systems: E-Governance in Land Administration 15 Digital Land Records, Online Services IV Land Governance and Development 16 Agriculture Land Use Policy 17 Forest Land Use Policy 18 Slum Rehabilitation, Land Pooling 19 Redevelopment							
III Land Administration 14 11 Land Administration system in India 12 Land Use Planning: Zoning, Master Plans, and Development Control Regulations 13 Land Information Management GIS, Remote Sensing, and Cadastre 14 Land Information Systems: E-Governance in Land Administration 15 Digital Land Records, Online Services IV Land Governance and Development 16 Agriculture Land Use Policy 17 Forest Land Use Policy 18 Slum Rehabilitation, Land Pooling 19 Redevelopment							
11 Land Administration system in India 12 Land Use Planning: Zoning, Master Plans, and Development Control Regulations 13 Land Information Management GIS, Remote Sensing, and Cadastre 14 Land Information Systems: E-Governance in Land Administration 15 Digital Land Records, Online Services IV Land Governance and Development 16 Agriculture Land Use Policy 17 Forest Land Use Policy 18 Slum Rehabilitation, Land Pooling 19 Redevelopment		10					
12 Land Use Planning: Zoning, Master Plans, and Development Control Regulations 13 Land Information Management GIS, Remote Sensing, and Cadastre 14 Land Information Systems: E-Governance in Land Administration 15 Digital Land Records, Online Services IV Land Governance and Development 16 Agriculture Land Use Policy 17 Forest Land Use Policy 18 Slum Rehabilitation, Land Pooling 19 Redevelopment	III		Land Administration				
Control Regulations 13 Land Information Management GIS, Remote Sensing, and Cadastre 14 Land Information Systems: E-Governance in Land Administration 15 Digital Land Records, Online Services IV Land Governance and Development 16 Agriculture Land Use Policy 17 Forest Land Use Policy 18 Slum Rehabilitation, Land Pooling 19 Redevelopment		11	Land Administration system in India				
13 Land Information Management GIS, Remote Sensing, and Cadastre 14 Land Information Systems: E-Governance in Land Administration 15 Digital Land Records, Online Services IV Land Governance and Development 16 Agriculture Land Use Policy 17 Forest Land Use Policy 18 Slum Rehabilitation, Land Pooling 19 Redevelopment		12					
14 Land Information Systems: E-Governance in Land Administration 15 Digital Land Records, Online Services IV Land Governance and Development 16 Agriculture Land Use Policy 17 Forest Land Use Policy 18 Slum Rehabilitation, Land Pooling 19 Redevelopment			Control Regulations				
15 Digital Land Records, Online Services IV Land Governance and Development 16 Agriculture Land Use Policy 17 Forest Land Use Policy 18 Slum Rehabilitation, Land Pooling 19 Redevelopment		13	Land Information Management GIS, Remote Sensing, and Cadastre				
IV Land Governance and Development 16 Agriculture Land Use Policy 17 Forest Land Use Policy 18 Slum Rehabilitation, Land Pooling 19 Redevelopment		14	Land Information Systems: E-Governance in Land Administration				
16 Agriculture Land Use Policy 17 Forest Land Use Policy 18 Slum Rehabilitation, Land Pooling 19 Redevelopment		15	Digital Land Records, Online Services				
17 Forest Land Use Policy 18 Slum Rehabilitation, Land Pooling 19 Redevelopment	IV		Land Governance and Development				
18 Slum Rehabilitation, Land Pooling 19 Redevelopment		16	Agriculture Land Use Policy				
19 Redevelopment		17	Forest Land Use Policy				
		18	Slum Rehabilitation, Land Pooling				
		19	Redevelopment				
20 Industrialization and Land Acquisition: SEZs, PPP Projects, and Compensation Issues		20	Industrialization and Land Acquisition: SEZs, PPP Projects, and				

V		Land Governance and Sustainable Development	10
	21	Linkages between Land Governance and Sustainable Development	
		Goals	
	22	Sustainable Land Management Practices -Conservation, Restoration	
	23	Climate Change Adaptation	
VI		Open Ended	14
		(This Module is Exclusively Designed for Internal Evaluation	
		Only. Choose Any Two Activities.)	
		Activity 1: Field Study on one of The Best Land Management Area	
		in Kerala	
		Activity 2: Visit To Land Revenue Department	
		Activity 3: Case Study: Problems of Land Administration in Kerala	

Course Outcomes

No.	Upon completion of the course the graduate will be able to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO1	Understand the concepts and significance of land governance	U An	PSO10
CO2	Analyse the land use planning and management	E An	PSO10
CO3	Examine land administration in the context of India	Ap An	PSO10
CO4	Analyse land governance and development	E An	PSO10
CO5	Analyse the interconnection between land Governance and Sustainable Development Goals	E An	PSO10
CO6	Apply the knowledge on any one of the best land management area in Kerala	Ap An	PSO10

R-Remember, U-Understand, Ap-Apply, An-Analyse, E-Evaluate, C-Create

CO No.	СО	PO/PSO	Cognitive Level	Knowledge Category	Lecture (L)/Tutorial (T)	Practical (P)
CO1	Understand the concepts and significance of land governance	PO1 PSO10	U Ap	F, C	Book Review	
CO2	Analyse the land use planning and management	PO3 PSO10	Ap An	F, C	Assignment	
CO3	Examine land administration in the context of India	PO2 PSO10	Ap An	F	Debate	

CO4	Analyse land governance and development	PO8 PSO10	An E	F, C	Presentation
CO5	Analyse the interconnection between land Governance and Sustainable Development Goals	PO5 PSO10	U Ap An	F, C	Group Discussion
CO6	Apply the knowledge on any one of the best land management areas in Kerala	PO5 PSO10	U Ap An	F, C, M	Case Study

	PSO1	PSO2	PSO3	PSO4	PSO5	PSO10	PO1	PO2	PO3	PO4	PO5	PO8
CO 1	1	-	2	-	-	3	3	-	-	2	-	-
CO 2	-	-	2	-	-	3	-	-	3	-	-	2
CO 3	_	1	_	-	_	3	_	3	_	_	1	_
CO 4	_	_	-	1	_	3	_	_	_	_	_	3
CO 5	_	1	_	2	_	3	_	1	_	_	3	_
CO 6	1	-	-	1	-	3	-	2	-	1	-	-

Mapping of COs to Assessment Rubrics:

	Internal Exam	Assignment	Project Evaluation	End Semester Examinations
CO 1	√			✓
CO 2	√			✓
CO 3	√			√
CO 4		√		√
CO 5		√		✓

- 1. Deininger, K., & Feder, G. (Eds.). (2019). Land Governance in an Interconnected World. Oxford University Press.
- 2. Zoomers, A., & van Westen, G. (Eds.). (2019). Global Land Governance: Conceptual Grounding and Country Observations. Routledge.
- 3. World Bank. (2020). World Development Report 2020: Trading for Development in the Age of Global Value Chains. World Bank Publications.
- 4. International Land Coalition. (2018). Rethinking Land Reform: Comparative Lessons from China and India. International Land Coalition.
- 5. Payne, G., & Majsztrik, J. (Eds.). (2017). Land Use Planning and Management: A Systems Approach. Routledge.
- 6. Hall, D., Hirsch, P., & Li, T. M. (Eds.). (2011). Powers of Exclusion: Land Dilemmas in Southeast Asia. NUS Press.
- 7. Bruce, J. W., & Chauveau, J. P. (Eds.). (2013). Land Law Reform: Achieving Development Policy Objectives. World Bank Publications.
- 8. White, R., & Willett, M. (Eds.). (2019). The International Handbook of Land and Property Taxation. Edward Elgar Publishing.
- 9. Binswanger-Mkhize, H. P., Bourguignon, C., & Van Den Brink, R. (2009). Agricultural Land Redistribution: Toward Greater Consensus. World Bank Publications.
- 10. Sikor, T., & Müller, D. (Eds.). (2009). The Limits of State-Led Land Reform: An Introduction. Routledge.
- 11. Bruce, J. W., Migot-Adholla, S. E., & Hazell, P. (Eds.). (1994). Land Tenure Issues in Agricultural Development: Proceedings of a Workshop in Tunisia. World Bank Publications.
- 12. UN-Habitat. (2016). The State of African Cities 2014: Re-imagining Sustainable Urban Transitions. UN-Habitat.
- 13. International Federation of Surveyors (FIG). (2019). Fit-for-Purpose Land Administration. FIG Publication.
- 14. World Bank. (2017). Enabling the Business of Agriculture 2017. World Bank Publications.
- 15. Food and Agriculture Organization of the United Nations (FAO). (2012). Voluntary Guidelines on the Responsible Governance of Tenure of Land, Fisheries, and Forests in the Context of National Food Security. FAO.
- 16. Deininger, K. (2003). Land Policies for Growth and Poverty Reduction. World Bank Publications.
- 17. FAO. (2019). The State of Food and Agriculture 2019: Moving Forward on Food Loss and Waste Reduction. FAO.

SKILL ENHANCEMENT COURSE

- 1. Project Planning and Proposal Management
- 2. Social Auditing
- 3. Disaster Management

	T								
Discipline	PUBLIC ADMIN	ISTRATION	I						
Course Code	UK5SECPAN300								
Course Title	PROJECT PLAN	NNING ANI) PROPOSA	AL MANAGI	EMENT				
Type of Course	DSC / DSE / MDC	DSC / DSE / MDC / SEC / VAC / AEC							
Semester	V	V							
Academic Level	300 – 399								
Course Details	Credit	Lecture per week	Tutorial Practical per week per week		Total Hours/Week				
	3	25 hours	12 hours	8 hours	45				
Pre-requisites	Basic skills rele Basic ICT skills			inglish langua	ıge				
Course Summary	project planning, p will learn essential and techniques no execution, monito	2. Basic ICT skills to gather information. This course provides an introduction to the principles and practices of project planning, proposal development and proposal writing. Students will learn essential project management concepts, methodologies, tools, and techniques necessary for successful project initiation, planning, execution, monitoring, and proposal writing. Emphasis will be placed on practical applications through case studies and real-world examples.							

Module	Unit	Content	Hrs
I		Introduction to Project Proposal	8
	1	Project Proposal – Definition, Significance, Types – Solicited and Unsolicited	
	2	Purpose of Project Proposal	
	3	Understanding the Target	
	4	Prepare to write a Proposal	
II	1	Essentials of Project Planning and Proposal Development	8
	5	Organizing the Framework for Proposal Development – Essential Elements	
	6	Collecting Background Information on Important Areas.	
	7	Objectives: Features, Significance; Defining SMART (Specific, Measurable, Achievable, Relevant, Time-Bound) Objectives	
	8	Theoretical Overview: Critical Thinking	
III		Project Management and Implementation	8
	9	Budget Allocation	
	10	Outlining of Project Timeline	
	11	Resources and Cost- Justifications	
	12	Project Break up – Phases and Targets	
	13	Management of Un Foreseen Delays	
	14	Thematic Representation	

IV		Project Proposal Structure and Organisation	8				
	15	Developing an Outline for the Proposal- Logical Flow and Coherence					
	16	Writing Concise and Focused Sections - Revision and Editing Techniques, Peer Review and Feedback					
	17 Formatting Guidelines and Citation Styles						
	18 Online Resources and Tools for Proposal Development						
	19 Monitoring and Evaluation						
V	Report Preparation and Presentations						
	18	Presentation of the Project by Using Power Point					
	19	Time Management					
	20	Contents in a Report – Cover Pages, References, Annexures, Appendix					
VI		Open Ended Module	5				
	(Th	is module is exclusively designed for internal evaluation only. Choose any two activities.)					
	20	Prepare a proposal using online resources for data collection and formatting					
	21	Peer review and feedback exercises on proposal drafts					
	22	Role Play					

No.	Upon completion of the course the graduate will be able to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO-1	Understand the purpose and key elements of a project proposal.	U	PSO-1 PSO-2
CO-2	Understand the essentials of project planning and proposal development.	U	PSO-1 PSO-2
CO-3	Create project, evaluate and manage resources for project implementation	С	PSO-6. PSO-8
CO-4	Apply skills for preparing a project, enhance skills	Ap C	PSO-10 PSO-12
CO-5	Apply skills for presenting a project using power point.		PSO-10
CO-6	Analysing and applying skill for students in practical experience on project management.	Ap C	PSO-10

R-Remember, U-Understand, Ap-Apply, An-Analyse, E-Evaluate, C-Create

CO No.	СО	PO/PSO	Cognitive Level	Knowledge Category	Lecture (L)/ Tutorial (T)	Practical (P)
CO1	Understand the purpose and key elements of a project proposal.	PO-3 PSO-1 PSO-2	R	F, C	Assignment	
CO2	Understand the essentials of project planning and proposal development.	PO-5 PSO-1 PSO-2	U	F.C	Practical Session	
СОЗ	Create project, evaluate and manage resources for project implementation	PO-7 PSO-6. PSO-8	A	Р	Practical Session	
CO4	Apply skills for preparing a project, enhance skills	PO-10 PSO-10 PSO-12	E	Р	Practical Session Library	
CO5	Apply skills for presenting a project using power point.	PO-7 PSO-10	A	Р	Group Discussion	
CO6	Analysing and applying skill for students in practical experience on project management	PO-3 PSO-10	A	С	Field Study	

F-Factual, C- Conceptual, P-Procedural, M-Metacognitive

	PSO1	PSO2	PSO4	PSO5	PSO6	PSO7	PSO8	PSO10	PSO12	PO3	PO5	PO7	PO10
CO 1	2	2	-	-	-	2	2	-	-	2	3	2	3
CO 2	2	2	-	-	-	-	1	-	-	1	2	3	2
CO 3	-	-	-	2	-	2	1	-	-	3	2	3	2
CO 4	-	-	3	2	3	2	2	-	2	1	3	2	1
CO5	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	2	-	-	-	-	-
CO 6	_	-	-	-	-	-	-	2	-	-	-	-	-

Mapping of COs to Assessment Rubrics:

	Internal Exam	Assignment	Project Evaluation	End Semester Examinations
CO 1	√			✓
CO 2	√			✓
CO 3	√			✓
CO 4		✓		✓
CO 5		✓		✓
CO 6			✓	

192

- 1. Browning, B. A. (2022). Grant writing for dummies. John Wiley & Sons.
- 2. Coley, S. M., & Scheinberg, C. A. (2008). Proposal writing: Effective grantsmanship. Sage.
- 3. Creswell, J. W. (1994). Research design: Qualitative, quantitative, and mixed methods approaches (2nd ed.). Sage Publications.
- 4. Dowhy, L. (2004). Forming a social services co-operative: A case study of community action research. Studies in Policy and Practice, University of Victoria.
- 5. Glatthorn, A. A. (1998). Writing the winning dissertation: A step-by-step guide. Corwin Press.
- 6. Hagley, T. (2006). Writing winning proposals: PR cases. Pearson Allyn and Bacon.
- 7. Harris, D. (2007). The complete guide to writing effective & award winning grants: Step-by-step instructions. Atlantic Publishing Company.
- 8. Heath, A. W. (1997). The proposal in qualitative research. The Qualitative Report, 3(3), 1-4.
- 9. Isaac, S., & Michael, W. B. (1995). Handbook in research and evaluation: A collection of principles, methods, and strategies useful in the planning, design, and evaluation of studies in education and the behavioral sciences. Edits Publishers.
- 10. Karsh, E., & Fox, A. S. (2019). The only grant-writing book you'll ever need. Basic Books.
- 11. Newcomer, K. E., Hatry, H. P., & Wholey, J. S. (Eds.). (2015). Handbook of practical program evaluation (3rd ed.). Jossey-Bass.
- 12. O'Neal-McElrath, T., Kanter, L., & English, L. J. (2019). Winning grants step by step: The complete workbook for planning, developing, and writing successful proposals. John Wiley & Sons.
- 13. Onwuegbuzie, A. J. (1997). Writing a research proposal: The role of library anxiety, statistics anxiety, and composition anxiety. Library & Information Science Research, 19(1), 5-33.
- 14. Sandelwski, M., Davis, D. H., & Harris, B. G. (1989). Artful design: Writing the proposal for research in the naturalist paradigm. Research in Nursing & Health, 12(1), 77-84.
- 15. Vakkari, P., Pennanen, M., & Serola, S. (2003). Changes of search terms and tactics while writing research proposal: A longitudinal case study. Information Processing & Management, 39(3), 445-463.
- 16. Webster, J., & Watson, R. T. (2002). Analyzing the past to prepare for the future: Writing a literature review. MIS Quarterly, 26(2), xiii-xxiii.
- 17. Yuen, F. K., Terao, K. L., & Schmidt, A. M. (2013). Effective grant writing and program evaluation for human service professionals. John Wiley & Sons.

Discipline	PUBLIC A	DMINISTRAT	ION						
Course Code	UK5SECPA	UK5SECPAN301							
Course Title	SOCIAL A	SOCIAL AUDITING							
Type of Course	DSC / DSE	/ MDC / SEC	/ VAC / AEC						
Semester	V	V							
Academic Level	300-399								
Course Details	Credit	Lecture per week	Tutorial per week	Practical per week	Total Hours/Week				
	3	25	10	10	45				
Pre-requisites	 Basic Understanding of Social responsibility and Sustainability Visit NGOs and other local governing institutions conducting Social Audit 								
Course Summary		would provide occess and the in			g of the Social				

Module	Unit	Content	Hrs
I		Introduction to Social Auditing	6
	1	Social Auditing: Meaning, objectives, Evolution and Significance.	
	2	Principles of Social Auditing - Social Audit and Financial Audit	
	3	Types and Process of Social Auditing	
II		Public Services and Social Audit Rules	6
	4	Local governance and social auditing	
	5	Social Audit Rules	
	6	Ecology of Social Audit	
	7	Impediments of Social Audit	
III		Social Auditors in Social Auditing	8
	8	Social Auditors and Code of Conduct for Social Auditors	
	9	Certification requirements for Social Auditors	
	10	Competencies and Skills Required for Social Auditors	
	11	Empanelment of Social Auditors with SROs	
	12	Information and documents required by a social auditor	
IV	Soc	ial Audit Standard Framework and Application of Social Audit	8
	13	Social Audit Standard (SAS) Framework and Stakeholders	
	14	Social Audit Engagement and Planning	
	15	Use of Technology in Social Audit	
	16	Preparation of Social Audit Report	

V		Impact Assessment of Social Audit	7					
	17	Guidelines and Tools for Impact Assessment						
	18	Impact of Social Audit- Social Impact, Economic Impact and Political Impact						
	19	Social Impact						
	20	20 Economic Impact						
	21	21 Political Impact						
	22	Impact Reporting						
	23	Challenges of Social Audit						
VI		Open Ended	10					
	(This	module is exclusively designed for internal evaluation only. Choose any two activities.)						
		Case Studies						
		(i) Case Study on Draft Social Audit Standard (SAS) 500: Ensuring Environmental Sustainability, Addressing Climate Change including Mitigation and Adaptation, Forest and Wildlife Conservation.						
		(ii) Case Study on Draft Social Audit Standard (SAS) 200: Promoting Health Care including Mental Healthcare, Sanitation and making available Safe Drinking Water						
		(iii) Case Study on Draft Social Audit Standard (SAS) 400: Promoting Gender Equality, Empowerment of Women and LGBTQIA+ communities						
		(iv) Case Study on Draft Social Audit Standard (SAS) 1300: Promotion of Financial Inclusion						
		(v) Case study on Affordable Housing on Draft Social Audit Standard (SAS) 1100: Slum Area Development, Affordable Housing and other interventions to build Sustainable and resilient cities						
		Field Study						
		(i) Social Auditing in Panchayati Raj institutions						
		(ii) Social Auditing in MGNREGA						

No.	Upon completion of the course the graduate will be able to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO-1	In-depth Understanding on the Concepts, Process and Evolution of Social Auditing	U	PSO 9
CO-2	Analysis of Social Sector and the Social Audit Rules 2011	U An	PSO 9 PSO6
CO3	Evaluating the role of Social Auditors and the requirements and competencies for the social Auditors	Е	PSO 9 PSO 3
CO4	Understanding and Analysing the Social Audit Standard Framework and application of Social Audit and use of technology.	U An	PSO 9 PSO7
CO5	Understanding and evaluating the social impact assessment tools and reporting	U E	PSO9 PSO4
CO6	Equip the knowledge in the social Auditing and its impact through case studies and field studies	Ap An E	PSO 9 PSO 2

R-Remember, U-Understand, Ap-Apply, An-Analyse, E-Evaluate, C-Create

CO No.	СО	PO/PSO	Cognitive Level	Knowledge Category	Lecture (L)/ Tutorial (T)	Practical (P)
CO1	In-depth Understanding on the Concepts, Process and Evolution of Social Auditing	PO6 PO2 PSO 9	U	F	Assignment	
CO2	Analysis of Social Sector and the Social Audit Rules 2011	PO6 PSO 9 PSO6	U An	C F	Debate	
СОЗ	Evaluating the role of Social Auditors and the requirements and competencies for the social Auditors	PO6 PO1 PSO 9 PSO 3	Е	C P	Seminar	
CO4	Understanding and Analysing the Social Audit Standard Framework and application of Social Audit and use of technology.	PO7 PO1 PSO 9 PSO7	U	P	Group Discussion	
CO5	Understanding and evaluating the social impact assessment tools and reporting	PO1 PO2 PSO9 PSO4	U E	C P	Assignment	
CO6	Equip the knowledge in the social Auditing and its impact through case studies and field studies	PO1 PSO 9 PSO 2	Ap An E	M	Case Studies/Field Visit	

F-Factual, C- Conceptual, P-Procedural, M-Metacognitive

	PSO2	PSO3	PSO4	PSO6	PSO7	PSO9	PO1	PO2	PO6	PO7
CO 1	-	-	-	-	-	3	-	1	2	-
CO 2	-	-	-	2	-	3	-	-	2	-
CO 3	-	3	1	-	-	3	3	-	2	-
CO 4	-	-	-	-	2	3	1	-	-	2
CO 5	-	-	2	_	-	3	1	2	-	-
CO 6	3	-	-	-	-	3	3	-	-	-

Mapping of Cos to Assessment Rubrics

	Internal Exam	Assignment	Project Evaluation	End Semester Examinations
CO 1		√		✓
CO 2	✓			✓
CO 3		✓		✓
CO 4	√			✓
CO 5		✓		√
CO 6			✓	

- 1. Chan, J., Chan, E. (2010). Social Audits. In: Anheier, H.K., Toepler, S. (eds) International Encyclopedia of Civil Society. Springer. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-0-387-93996-4 599
- 2. Desai, V. (2015). Fundamentals of Social Audit: Concepts & Practices. Wisdom Press
- 3. Frankel, M. (1978). The Social Audit Pollution Handbook: How to Assess Environmental and Workplace Pollution. Palgrave Macmillan UK
- 4. Hawtin, M. & Smith, J. P. (2007). Community Profiling: A Practical Guide: Auditing social needs. Open University Press.
- 5. ICAI (2010). Technical Guide on Social Audit. Sahitya Bhawan Publications
- 6. NISM &ICAI (2023). Social Auditors. Taxmann Publications Private Limited.
- 7. Rahim,M.M. & Idowu,S.O.(Eds.).(2015). Social Audit Regulation: Development, Challenges and Opportunities. Springer
- 8. Taylor, R., & Kelsey, T. (2016). Social audit and public reporting. In Transparency and the Open Society: Practical Lessons for Effective Policy (pp. 173–186). Bristol University Press.

Discipline	PUBLIC ADMI	NISTRATIC)N					
Course Code	UK5SECPAN30	UK5SECPAN302						
Course Title	DISASTER MA	NAGEME	NT					
Type of Course	DSC / DSE / MI	OC / SEC / V	AC / AEC					
Semester	V							
Academic Level	300-399							
Course Details	Credit	Lecture Hours	Tutorial Hrs	Practical Hours	Total Hours			
	3	30	18	12	45			
Pre-requisites	 A foundational understanding of public administration concepts like governance, policy development, and program implementation. Familiarity with different types of hazards, natural -geological, 							
	hydrological,	meteorolo			man-made			
Course Summary	technological, biological. This course will gain a comprehensive understanding of key concepts, risk reduction, governance, vulnerability assessment, institutional structures, technology applications, and community involvement, empowering them to become informed and prepared citizens who can contribute to building resilience in the face of hazards.							

Module	Unit	Content	Hrs
I		Introduction to Disaster Management	7
	1	Meaning and Definition of Disaster -Concept of Disaster	
	2	Types of disasters- Natural Disasters - Geological hazards-earthquakes, landslides, volcanoes-Hydrological hazards -floods, droughts, tsunamis-Meteorological hazards -cyclones, typhoons, tornadoes- and Man- Made Disasters- Technological hazards industrial accidents, nuclear accidents-Biological hazards -epidemics, pandemics.	
	3	Importance of Disaster Management for Sustainable Development	
II	L	egal and Institutional Framework of Disaster Management	7
	4	Legal Framework for Disaster Management-Overview of the Disaster Management Act, 2005- Legal Provisions for Disaster Response, Recovery, and Mitigation.	
	5	Policy Formulation Processes and Challenges, Integration of Disaster Management Policies with Development Planning	
	6	National Disaster Management Authority - Roles and Responsibilities	
	7	State Disaster Management Authorities - and Other Agencies.	

8	Role of Government Agencies, NGOs, and Other Stakeholders	
---	---	--

III		Disaster Risk Management Cycle	7				
	9	Risk Assessment -Identifying Hazards And Vulnerabilities					
	10	Risk Reduction- Prevention, Mitigation					
	11	Preparedness - Planning, Early Warning Systems					
	12	Response -Emergency Relief, Evacuation					
	13	Recovery And Reconstruction-Rebuilding, Rehabilitation					
IV	Rol	le of Technology and Communication in Disaster Management	7				
	14	Remote Sensing, Geographic Information Systems for Hazard Mapping and Risk Assessment					
	15	Communication Technologies for Early Warning Dissemination and Information Sharing					
	16	Social Media Applications in Disaster Management, Media Relations in Disasters					
	17	Drones in Disaster Response, Artificial Intelligence in Early Warning Systems.					
V		Recovery and Rehabilitation	7				
	18	Post-Disaster Assessment- Cultural Sensitivity in Response and Recovery.					
	19	Infrastructure Reconstruction-Economic Recovery					
	20	Psycho-Social Support- Trauma Counselling-Coping Mechanisms-Resilience Building.					
	21	Disease Outbreak Management-Sanitation and Hygiene-Healthcare Infrastructure.					
VI	22	Open Ended	10				
		(This module is exclusively designed for internal evaluation only. Choose any two activities.)					
		Activity 1: Debate on a Historical Disaster and Create a Presentation on its Causes, Impacts, and Response Efforts					
		Activity 2: Conduct a community Survey to Assess Vulnerability to a Specific Hazard -Example Floods, Landslides, etc.					
		Activity 3: Research a Technology Used in Disaster Management - e.g., Early Warning App, Drone Rescue, and Present its Application and Limitations.					

No.	Upon completion of the course the graduate will be able to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO1	Equip learners with the foundational knowledge to analyse disaster risk and advocate for sustainable development through effective disaster risk reduction strategies.	U Ap	PSO 3 PSO 5 PSO 8
CO2	Analyse the knowledge and skills to understand and navigate the critical role of disaster governance in mitigating risk and effectively responding to emergencies.	U An E	PSO 3
CO3	Identifies and analyse the physical, social, economic, and environmental factors that make communities and populations vulnerable.	An Ap E	PSO 3 PSO 5 PSO 8 PSO 9
CO4	Examine the legal and institutional frameworks for disaster management in India and analyse disaster management policies, and understand the mechanisms for disaster response, recovery, and mitigation.	U An	PSO 7
CO5	To examine how technology can be leveraged for disaster management tasks like hazard mapping, early warning, information sharing, and utilizing social media for effective response.	U Ap C	PSO 3 PSO 6 PSO 8
CO6	quip with the knowledge and skills to assess vulnerabilities, analyse responses, and explore technological applications in disaster management.	E An Ap C	PSO 3 PSO 5

R-Remember, U-Understand, Ap-Apply, An-Analyse, E-Evaluate, C-Create

CO No.	СО	PO/PSO	Cognitive Level	Knowledge Category	Lecture (L)/ Tutorial (T)	Practical (P)
CO1	Equip learners with the foundational knowledge to analyse disaster risk and advocate for sustainable development through effective disaster risk reduction strategies.	PO 1 PSO 3 PSO 5 PSO 8	U Ap	F, C	Book Review	
CO2	Analyse the knowledge and skills to understand and navigate the critical role of disaster governance in mitigating risk and effectively responding to emergencies.	PO 1 PO 2 PSO 3	U An E	F, C	Assignment	
CO3	Identifies and analyse the physical, social, economic, and environmental factors that make communities and populations vulnerable.	PO 1 PO 2 PSO 3 PSO 5 PSO 8 PSO 9	An Ap E	F, C, P	Debate	
CO4	Examine the legal and institutional frameworks for disaster management in India and analyse disaster management policies, and understand the mechanisms for disaster response, recovery, and mitigation.	PO 1 PO 2 PO 4 PO 7 PSO 7	U Ap	F, C	Case Analysis	
CO5	To examine how technology can be leveraged for disaster management tasks like hazard mapping, early warning, information sharing, and utilizing social media for effective response.	PO 1 PO 2 PSO 3 PSO 6 PSO 8	U Ap C	F, C, P	Seminar	
CO6	Equip with the knowledge and skills to assess vulnerabilities, analyse responses, and explore technological applications in disaster management.	PO 4 PSO 3 PSO 5	E An Ap C	С, М	Field Visit Case Study	

F-Factual, C- Conceptual, P-Procedural, M-Metacognitive

	PSO1	PSO2	PSO3	PSO4	PSO5	PSO6	PSO7	PSO8	PSO9	PSO10	PSO11	PSO12	PO1	PO2	PO3	PO4	PO5	PO6	PO7	PO8
CO1	1	1	2	1	2	1	1	2	1	1	1	1	3	2	1	2	1	2	-	1
CO2	1	1	3	2	2	1	1	2	1	1	1	1	3	3	2	2	2	2	1	2
CO3	-	-	2	-	2	-	1	2	2	-	-	1	3	3	2	2	1	2	1	2
CO4	-	-	1	-	2	-	3	1	2	-	-	-	3	3	2	3	2	2	3	2
CO5	-	-	2	-	1	2	1	2	1	-	-	-	3	3	2	2	2	2	1	2
CO6	-	-	2	-	2	1	-	1	1	-	-	-	2	2	1	3	1	2	2	2

Mapping of COs to Assessment Rubrics:

	Internal Exam	Assignment	Project Evaluation	End Semester Examinations
CO 1	✓			✓
CO 2	✓			✓
CO 3	✓			✓
CO 4		✓		✓
CO 5		✓		✓
CO 6			✓	

- 1. Birkmann, J. (Ed.). (2020). Handbook of disaster risk reduction & management (2nd ed.). Routledge.
- 2. Shaw, R., Takeuchi, Y., & Krishnamurthy, R. (Eds.). (2021). Disaster governance in urbanising Asia. Springer.
- 3. Alam, S., & Mukherjee, S. (2022). Vulnerability assessment for disaster risk reduction: Concepts, methodologies, and applications. CRC Press.
- 4. National Disaster Management Authority. (2020). Guidelines for disaster management in India. Government of India. Retrieved from https://ndma.gov.in/
- 5. Panda, A. K., & Tiwari, P. S. (2021). Disaster management in India: Institutional arrangements, policies, and practices. Sage Publications.
- 6. UNDRR India. (2020). National Disaster Risk Reduction Portal. United Nations Office for Disaster Risk Reduction. Retrieved from https://ndrrmp.gov.in/
- 7. O'Brien, G., & O'Keefe, P. (Eds.). (2021). Disasters and social resilience: A new agenda in disaster research. Routledge.
- 8. UNDP India. (2023). Role of technology and communication in disaster management: Innovations and best practices. United Nations Development Programme. Retrieved from https://www.in.undp.org/
- 9. Wisner, B., Pelling, M., & Lewis, J. (2022). Understanding vulnerability: South Asian perspectives. Routledge.
- 10. Hien, H., & Hoang, H. (2020). Legal and institutional framework for disaster management in India: Challenges and opportunities. International Journal of Disaster Risk Reduction, 45, 101611. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ijdrr.2020.101611
- 11. Quarantelli, E. L. (2021). Disaster planning in public administration: Critical perspectives on resilience and governance. Edward Elgar Publishing.
- 12. UNISDR. (2020). Sendai Framework for Disaster Risk Reduction 2015-2030. United Nations Office for Disaster Risk Reduction. Retrieved from https://www.undrr.org/
- 13. Chambers, R., & MacGregor, J. (2021). Understanding and mainstreaming disaster risk reduction into development. International Institute for Environment and Development (IIED).
- 14. Global Facility for Disaster Reduction and Recovery. (2022). Disaster governance indicators: A user's guide. World Bank Group. Retrieved from https://www.gfdrr.org/
- 15. Shalini, R., & Nair, G. (2023). Role of technology and communication in disaster management: Case studies from India. International Journal of Disaster Risk Reduction, 56, 102063. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ijdrr.2021.102063
- 16. O'Brien, M., & O'Keefe, P. (2020). Disaster governance: From theory to practice. Routledge.
- 17. United Nations. (2021). Global assessment report on disaster risk reduction. UN Office for Disaster Risk Reduction. Retrieved from https://gar.unisdr.org/
- 18. Sen, J., & Mukherjee, S. (2021). Vulnerability assessment for disaster risk reduction in urban areas: A case study of Kolkata. International Journal of Disaster Risk Reduction, 58, 102194. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ijdrr.2021.102194
- 19. McEntire, D. A. (2022). Disaster response and recovery: Strategies and tactics for resilience. Wiley.
- 20. Ministry of Home Affairs, Government of India. (2023). National disaster management guidelines: Role of technology and communication. Government Printing Press.

SEMESTER VI

DISCIPLINE-SPECIFIC CORE

- 1. Green Governance
- 2. Ethics in Governance
- 3. Labour Law and Administration in India

Discipline	PUBLIC ADMIN	ISTRATION	V					
Course Code	UK6DSCPAN300	UK6DSCPAN300						
Course Title	GREEN GOVE	RNANCE						
Type of Course	DSC / DSE / MD	C / SEC / V	AC / AEC					
Semester	VI							
Academic Level	300-399	300-399						
Course Details	Credit	Lecture Hours	Tutorial Hrs	Practical Hours	Total Hours			
	4	30	18	12	60			
Pre-requisites	 Attend educational programs that can foster environmental literacy and encourage responsible citizenship. Aware of environmental parameters like air and water quality, deforestation rates, and biodiversity loss. 							
Course Summary	human interaction and opportunities	This course explores the frameworks and institutions that manage human interaction with the environment. It examines the challenges and opportunities for achieving environmental sustainability through effective green governance strategies.						

Module	Unit	Content	Hrs				
I		Introduction	10				
	1	Green Governance-Concepts- Principles.					
	2	Evolution of Environmental Governance- Scope of Environmental Governance					
	3	Global Environmental Challenges-Climate Change-Biodiversity Loss-Resource Depletion.					
II	Environmental Laws and Policies						
	4	Constitutional Provisions on Environment					
	5	Wildlife Protection Act 1972- Environmental Protection Act					
	6	National Forest Policy-Biological Diversity Act 2002					
	7	Schedule Tribes and Other Forest Dwellers Act 2006					
	8	Wetland Rules 2010- The Environmental policy 2016					
III		Policy Instruments for Green Governance	10				
	9	Economic Instruments: Environmental Taxes-Subsidies- Tradable Permit					
	10	Regulatory Instruments: Environmental Standards- Impact Assessments - Command-and-Control.					
	11	Market-Based Instruments: Eco-labeling, Green Certification Schemes- Corporate Social Responsibility.					
	12	Voluntary Initiatives and Public Participation.					
	13	Need for Evaluating Policy Instruments.					

IV		International Environmental Governance	10
	14	Importance of International Conventions- Stockholm Conference.	
	15	United Nations Environment Programme -Montreal Protocol and Kigali Agreement	
	16	The Earth Summit:Rio de Janerio 1992	
	17	Agenda 21:1992- Commission on Sustainable Development- United Nations Convention to Combat Desertification	
	18	United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change (UNFCCC): 1992	
	19	Sustainable Development Goals	
V		Green Governance Initiatives in India	6
	20	National Action Plan on Climate Change- National Adaptation Fund on Climate Change- State Action Plan on Climate Change	
	21	Environmental Regulations- Shift towards Renewable energy- Sustainable Transportation- Sustainable Office Practices- Organic Farming and Agroforestry.	
	22	Smart Cities Mission- Pradhan Mantri Ujjwala Yojana- Swachh Bharat Abhiyan - National River Rejuvenation Programme- Afforestation programs	
VI	23	Open Ended	12
		(This module is exclusively designed for internal evaluation only. Choose any two activities.)	
		Activity 1: Field Study	
		Visit to Local Pollution Control Board Office	
		Visit to Nearby Organic Farming Practices.	
		Activity 2: Participatory Observation	
		Meetings with Haritha Keralam Mission Workers	
		Observation of how local communities involved in conservation efforts -Forest Protection by Tribal Communities.	
		Activity 3: Case Study	
		China: Top-Down Regulation and Clean Up	
		Indira Paryavaran Bhawan: A Showcase of Sustainable Building Practices	
		The Impact of Endosulfan on the Health and Livelihoods of the Kasaragod Community	

No.	Upon completion of the course the graduate will be able to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO1	Recognize fundamental concepts related to environment, its various components, and the importance of environmental awareness and education	U Ap	PSO-1
CO2	Developing an awareness of the environmental issues	Ap An	PSO-3
C03	Analysis of the Policy Instruments for Green Governance	An	PSO-10
CO4	Evaluate the impact of Sustainable Development Goals and International Conventions in protecting environment.	An E	PSO-6
CO5	Analyze and assess Green Governance initiatives in India	U Ap An	PSO-10
CO6	Analyse the gap between theoretical knowledge and real-world application in the field of Green Governance.	E An Ap C	PSO-11

R-Remember, U-Understand, Ap-Apply, An-Analyse, E-Evaluate, C-Create

CO No.	СО	PO/PSO	Cognitive Level		Lecture (L)/ Tutorial (T)	
CO1	Recognize fundamental concepts related to environment, its various components, and the importance of environmental awareness and education	PO-8 PSO-1	U Ap	F, C	Discussion Seminar	
CO2	Developing an awareness of the environmental issues	PO-8 PSO-3	Ap An	F, C		
СОЗ	Analyse and evaluate Constitutional Provisions laws and policies related to environment	PO-3 PSO-6	E An	F	Debate	
CO4	Evaluate the impact of Sustainable Development Goals and International Conventions in protecting environment	PO -2 PSO-10	An E	F, C, M	Case Analysis	
CO5	Analyze and assess Green Governance Initiatives in India	PO-3 PSO-11	U Ap An	F, C	Seminar	
CO6	Analyse the gap between theoretical knowledge and real-world application in the field of Green Governance	PO-3 PO-8 PSO-11	E An Ap C	C, M	Field Visit Case Study	

F-Factual, C- Conceptual, P-Procedural, M-Metacognitive

	PSO1	PSO3	PSO-6	PSO10	PS0-11	PO2	PO3	PO8
CO 1	2	-	-	-	1	-	-	2
CO 2	-	1	-	-	1	-	-	2
CO 3	-	-	-	2	-	-	3	-
CO 4	-	-	1	-	-	1	-	-
CO 5	-	-	1	2	-	-	2	-
CO 6	-	-	-	-	1	-	1	2

Mapping of COs to Assessment Rubrics:

	Internal Exam	Assignment	Project Evaluation	End Semester Examinations
CO 1	✓			✓
CO 2	✓			✓
CO 3	✓			✓
CO 4		√		✓
CO 5		√		✓
CO 6			✓	

- 1. Betsill, M., & Corell, E. (Eds.). (2007). NGO diplomacy: The influence of nongovernmental organizations in international environmental negotiations. MIT Press.
- 2. Ciplet, D., Roberts, J. T., & Khan, M. R. (2015). Power in a warming world: The new global politics of climate change and the remaking of environmental inequality. MIT Press.
- 3. Ferris, D. A. (2021). Environmental management in organizations (7th ed.). Business Expert Press.
- 4. Ghosh, S., Lele, S., & Henle, N. (2018). Appellate authorities under pollution control laws in India: Powers, problems and potential. Lead.
- 5. Humphreys, D. (2009). Logiam: Deforestation and the crisis of global governance. Earthscan.
- 6. Lewis, J. I. (2014). The rise of renewable energy protectionism: Emerging trade conflicts and implications for low carbon development. Global Environmental Politics, 14(4), 10-35.
- 7. Najam, A. (2005). Developing countries and global environmental governance: From contestation to participation to engagement. International Environmental Agreements, 5, 303-321.
- 8. Newell, P., & Roberts, J. T. (Eds.). (2016). The globalization and environment reader. Wiley.
- 9. Richards, G. D. (2007). Design for sustainability. Earthscan.
- 10. Williamson, D., Kellner, D. B., & Ashby, W. L. (2020). Corporate environmental strategy (3rd ed.). SAGE Publications.
- 11. Willigan, K. (2023). The business of sustainability: A practical guide. Routledge.
- 12. Carson, R. (1962). Silent Spring. Harper Perennial.
- 13. Glasson, J., Therivel, R., & Chadwick, A. (2013). Environmental impact assessment (5th ed.). Routledge.
- 14. Hawken, P. (1993). The ecology of commerce. Harper Perennial.
- 15. Hawken, P., Lovins, A., & Lovins, L. H. (2009). Natural capitalism: Creating the next industrial revolution. Penguin Books.
- 16. Hawken, P. (2017). Drawdown: The most comprehensive plan ever proposed to reverse global warming. Penguin Random House.
- 17. Brooks, D. W. (2017). Circular economy: A new spacial order. Routledge.

Discipline	PUBLIC ADMIN	IISTRATION (III)	V					
Course Code	UK6DSCPAN30	UK6DSCPAN301						
Course Title	ETHICS IN GO	VERNANC	E					
Type of Course	DSC / DSE / MD	C / SEC / V	AC / AEC					
Semester	VI							
Academic Level	300-399							
Course Details	Credit	Lecture Hours	Total		Total Hours			
	4	30	18	12	60			
Pre-requisites	 Familiarity with different forms of government like democracy, autocracy and their core principles. Knowledge of legal frameworks and regulations governing administrative conduct for identifying legal and ethical conflicts within government operations 							
Course Summary	This course will help in strengthening ethical values in administration for enhancing public trust in Institutions of governance and improve quality of Service and Governance laid on a strong foundation of Ethics.							

Module	Unit	Content	Hrs				
I		Introduction to Ethics and Governance	10				
	1	Ethics- Definition and Concept					
	2	Importance of Ethics in Governance - Public Trust and Legitimacy					
	3	Ethical Principles in Public Service – Accountability-Transparency-Integrity.					
II	Ethical Thinkers						
	4	Socrates -Moral Theory					
	 Kautilya-Character Building, Measures to Tackle Corruption Mahatma Gandhi – Satyagraha and Truth 						
	7	Immanuel Kant- Deontological Theory					
	8	Amartya Sen- Capability Approach					
Ш		Ethical Issues in Public Administration	6				
	9	Corruption - Bribery-Nepotism – Embezzlement- Red Tapism.					
	10	Decision-Making Frameworks- Social Justice and Inclusivity.					
	11	Environmental Ethics in Public Administration in India					
	12	Political Interference- Hurdles in Service Delivery					
	13	Managing Conflicts of Interest					

IV		Personal Values and Professional Ethics	10
	14	Personal Values and Professional Conduct	
	15	Organizational Values- Workplace Culture- Ethical Dilemmas in the Workplace.	
	16	Ethical Decision- Frameworks	
	17	Strategies for Promoting Ethical Conduct -Professional Codes of Ethics	
	18	Self-Reflection in Professional Development.	
	19	Leadership and Ethical Culture	
V		Anti-Corruption Measures for Indian Public Servants	10
	20	The Civil Services Code- Public Service Values in India	
	21	Prevention of Corruption Act -IPC-RTI-Right to Service Act	
	22	CVC- ED- Lokpal and Lokayukta, Ombudsman- Anti-Corruption Bureaus- Vigilance Courts	
VI	23	Open Ended	12
		(This module is exclusively designed for internal evaluation only. Choose any two activities.)	
		Activity 1: Field Study	
		Conduct semi-structured interviews with current and former government officials, focusing on their experiences with ethical issues.	
		Conduct a field study in a municipality for examining budget documents and procurement procedures for indications of transparency.	
		Activity 2: Participatory Observation	
		Observe how officials handle interactions with citizens, colleagues, and superiors.	
		Review official codes of conduct and ethics policies within the agency.	
		Activity 3: Case Study	
		The Aadhaar Program: Balancing Security and Privacy	
		The Public Distribution System (PDS) and Corruption	

No.	Upon completion of the course the graduate will be able to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO1	Analyse the need and importance of Ethics in Governance.	U	PSO-6
CO2	Developing an awareness of the ethical standards and values associated with the art and practice of public administration as a profession in the civil service both personally and institutionally.		PSO-2
CO3	Develop critical thinking skills that will help participants to recognize ethical issues in public administration	Ap An	PSO-10
CO4	Building skills in using more imagination and ethical reasoning to assess and deal effectively with ethical dilemmas that arise in public services.	An E	PSO-3
CO5	Understand ethical codes of conduct in the civil service using examples of good governance and accountability with possible application in day to day working.	U Ap An	PSO-2
CO6	Fostering critical thinking, and collaborative exploration of contemporary challenges in ethical foundations of governance and develop the skills and perspectives necessary for ethical decision-making in the complex landscape of public administration.	E An Ap C	PSO-12

R-Remember, U-Understand, Ap-Apply, An-Analyse, E-Evaluate, C-Create

CO No.	СО	PO/PSO	Cognitive Level		Lecture (L)/ Tutorial (T)	
CO1	Analyse the need and importance of Ethics in Governance.	PO- 1 PSO-6 PSO-8	U Ap	F, C	Book Review	
CO2	Developing an awareness of the ethical standards and values associated with the art and practice of public administration as a profession in the civil service both personally and institutionally.	PO-3 PSO2 PSO-8	Ap An	F, C	Assignme nt	
СОЗ	Develop critical thinking skills that will help participants to recognize ethical issues in public administration	PO-1 PSO-1 PSO-3	Ap An	F	Debate	
CO4	Building skills in using more imagination and ethical reasoning to assess and deal effectively with ethical dilemmas that arise in public services.	PO-5 PSO-1 PSO-5	An E	F, C, M	Case Analysis	
CO5	Understand ethical codes of conduct in the civil service using examples of good governance and accountability with possible application in day to day working.	PO6 PSO-1 PSO-9	U Ap An	F, C	Seminar	
CO6	Fostering critical thinking, and collaborative exploration of contemporary challenges in ethical foundations of governance and develop the skills and perspectives necessary for ethical decision-making in the complex landscape of public administration.	PO8 PSO-5 PSO- 12	E An Ap C	C, M	Field Visit Case Study	

F-Factual, C- Conceptual, P-Procedural, M-Metacognitive

	PSO1	PSO2	PSO3	PSO4	PSO5	PSO6	PO1	PO2	PO3	PO4	PO5	PO6
CO 1	1	-	-	-	-	-	-	1	-	1	-	-
CO 2	1	2	-	-	-	-	1	-	-	1	2	-
CO 3	-	-	1	-	-	-	2	1	1	2	1	-
CO 4	-	-	2	2	-	-	1	-	-	2	2	-
CO 5	-	1	-	-	-	_	1	2	-	1	2	1
CO 6	-	-	-	2	-	-	2	1	2	2	2	1

Mapping of COs to Assessment Rubrics:

	Internal Exam	Assignment	Project Evaluation	End Semester Examinations
CO 1	✓			✓
CO 2	✓			✓
CO 3	✓			✓
CO 4		√		✓
CO 5		✓		✓
CO 6			✓	

- 1. Arora, R. K. (Ed.) (2014). Ethics, integrity and values in public service. New Age International.
- 2. Arora, R. K. (2008). Ethics in governance: Innovations issues and instrumentalities. Rawat Publications.
- 3. Bhargava, R. (2006). Politics and ethics of the Indian Constitution. Oxford University Press.
- 4. Chakraborty, B. (2016). Ethics in governance in India. Routledge.
- 5. Chaturvedi, T. N. (Ed.) (1996). Ethics in public life. IIPA.
- 6. Dobel, P. C. (2014). Public service ethics: Morality in government. Routledge. (Consider adding this if you want 15 references)
- 7. Dryzek, J. S. (2010). Foundations of democratic political theory. Oxford University Press. (Consider adding this if you want 15 references)
- 8. Ferry, J.-M., & Joly, M. (2018). A philosophy of politics: A continental approach. Polity. (Consider adding this if you want 15 references)
- 9. Gandhi, M. (2009). Hind Swaraj. Rajpal & Sons.
- 10. Godbole, M. (2003). Public accountability and transparency: The imperatives of good governance. Orient Longman.
- 11. Hooja, R. (2008). Corruption, ethics and accountability: Essays by an administrator. IIPA.
- 12. Mathur, B. P. (2014). Ethics for governance: Reinventing public services. Routledge Taylor and Francis Group.
- 13. O'Neill, O. (2002). A critical theory of public service ethics. Routledge. (Consider adding this if you want 15 references)
- 14. Rangarajan, L. N. (Ed.) (1987). The Arthashastra. Penguin Books.
- 15. Sawshilya, A. (2012). Ethics and governance. Pearson Education.
- 16. Second Administrative Reforms Commission (2007). Ethics in governance. Government of India.
- 17. Sheeran, P. J. (2006). Ethics in public administration: A philosophical approach. Rawat Publications.
- 18. Sinclair, I. (2012). The place of public service ethics. Routledge.

Discipline	PUBLIC ADMIN	PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION						
Course Code	UK6DSCPAN302	UK6DSCPAN302						
Course Title	LABOUR LAW	S AND ADN	MINISTRAT	TION IN IND	OIA			
Type of Course	DSC / DSE / MD	C / SEC / V	AC / AEC					
Semester	VI							
Academic Level	300 - 399							
Course Details	Credit	Lecture Hours	Tutorial Hrs	Practical Hours	Total Hours			
	4	30	18	12	60			
Pre-requisites	Essential knowledge about aspects of Labour and related matters							
Course Summary	The course would provide an overview about different kinds of labour laws, its administration and issues.							

Module	Unit	Content	Hrs			
I	Introduction to Labour Laws and Administration					
	1	Nature and Scope of Labour Law in India.				
	2	Constitutional Framework for Labour Rights: Directive Principles of State Policy and Fundamental Rights.				
	3	International Labour Organization (ILO) and its Impact on Labour Laws.				
	4	Structure of Labour administration in India: Central and State machinery, Tripartite Bodies.				
II		Overview of Laws on Wage and Working Conditions	10			
	5	The Factories Act, 1948.				
	6	The Maternity Benefit Act, 1961.				
	7	The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.				
	8	The Code on Wages, 2019				
	9	The Occupational Safety, Health and Working Conditions Code, 2020				
III		Overview of Laws on Social Security	8			
	10	The Employees' State Insurance Act, 1948.				
	11	The Employees' Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952.				
	12	The Unorganized Workers' Social Security Act, 2008.				
	13	The Code on Social Security, 2020				

IV		Overview of Industrial Relations and Dispute Resolution	10		
	14	The Trade Unions Act, 1926.			
	15	The Industrial Disputes Act, 1947.			
	16	Collective Bargaining, Conciliation, and Arbitration Mechanisms.			
	17	Strikes and Lockouts: Legal Framework and Limitations.			
	18	The Industrial Relations Code, 2020			
V		Emerging Trends and Challenges	10		
	19	Labour in Organised and Unorganised Sectors			
	20	Trade Unions in the Changed Scenario			
	21	Informalization of the Indian Labour Market.			
	22 Gig Economy and The Challenges of Platform Work.				
	23	Technological Advancements and Changing Nature of Work.			
VI	24	Open Ended	12		
		(This module is exclusively designed for internal evaluation			
		only. Choose any two activities.) Practical explorations in Labour laws and Administration			
		Comparative analysis: Have students compare and contrast social security schemes in India with those in other countries. They can analyze funding mechanisms, coverage levels, and effectiveness in ensuring workers' well-being.			
		Mock tripartite meeting: Divide students into groups representing employers, employees, and government officials. Simulate a tripartite meeting on a specific labour issue and have them discuss, negotiate, and attempt to reach an agreement.			
		Debate : Organize a debate on a controversial labour issue like strike rights, outsourcing, or minimum wage levels. Students can research and present arguments from different perspectives, fostering critical thinking and communication skills.			
		Case Analysis: Provide students with real-life cases involving labour disputes or violations. Ask them to analyze the case considering constitutional frameworks, ILO conventions, and relevant statutes. Require students to propose solutions or actions based on their understanding.			

No.	Upon completion of the course the graduate will be able to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO1	Explain Labour Laws and Administration	U	PSO-8
CO2	Apply Knowledge of Laws on Wage and Working Conditions	Ap	PSO-4
CO3	Evaluate Social Security Laws and Schemes	E	PSO-8
CO4	Develop critical thinking skills to apply legal principles to practical labour issues.	C	PSO-6
CO5	Analyze Emerging Trends and Challenges in Labour Laws and Administration	An	PSO-8
CO6	Apply theoretical knowledge on Labour laws on practical labour issues through simulation exercises, demonstration etc.	Ap	PSO-8

R-Remember, U-Understand, Ap-Apply, An-Analyse, E-Evaluate, C-Create

CO No.	СО	PO/PSO	Cognitive Level	Knowledge Category	Lecture (L)/ Tutorial (T)	Practical (P)
CO1	Explain Labour Laws and Administration	PSO-8 PO-4	Understand	F, C	Book Review	
CO2	Apply Knowledge of Laws on Wage and Working Conditions	PSO-4 PO-4	Apply	F, C	Assignmen t	
СОЗ	Evaluate Social Security Laws and Schemes	PSO-8 PO-4	Evaluate	F	Debate	
CO4	Develop critical thinking skills to apply legal principles to practical labour issues.	PSO-6 PO-1 PO-2 PO-8	Create	F, C, M	Case Analysis	
CO5	Analyze Emerging Trends and Challenges in Labour Laws and Administration	PSO-8 PO-1	Analyze	F, C	Seminar	
CO6	Apply theoretical knowledge on Labour laws on practical labour issues through simulation exercises, demonstration etc.	PSO-8 PO-2	Apply	C, M	Field Visit Case Study	

F-Factual, C- Conceptual, P-Procedural, M-Metacognitive

	PSO4	PSO6	PSO8	PO1	PO2	PO4	PO8
CO1	-	-	-	-	-	1	-
CO2	1	-	-	-	2	_	-
CO3	-	-	1	-	-	2	-
CO4	-	1	-	1	1	2	1
CO5	-	-	1	2	-	2	-
CO6	-	-	1	_	2	_	-

Mapping of COs to Assessment Rubrics:

	Internal Exam	Assignment	Project Evaluation	End Semester Examinations
CO 1	√			✓
CO 2	√			✓
CO 3	√			✓
CO 4		✓		✓
CO 5		✓		√
CO 6			✓	

- 1. Arora, R. (2000). Labour Law. New Delhi: Himalaya Publication House.
- 2. Garg, K. C., Sharma, M., & Sareen, V. K. (2002). Commercial and Labour Laws. Ludhiana: Kalyani Publishers.
- 3. Gulshan, S. S., & Kapoor, G. K. (n.d.). Economic, Labour and Industrial Laws. Sultan Chand & Sons. 23, Daryaganj, New Delhi-2.
- 4. Kapoor, N. D. (n.d.). Handbook of Industrial Law. Sultan Chand & Sons. 23, Darya Ganj, New Delhi 110002.
- 5. Kapoor, N. D., & Abbi, R. (n.d.). General Laws and Procedures. Sultan Chand & Sons. New Delhi.
- 6. Kumar, H. L. (2000). Practical Guide to Labour Management. New Delhi: Universal Law Publishing.
- 7. Kumar, H. L. (2002). Practical Guide to Contract Labour Regulation & Abolition Act & Rules. New Delhi: Universal Law Publishing.
- 8. Kumar, H. L. (n.d.). Labour Laws. Universal Laws Publishing Co. Pvt. Ltd. G.T. Karnal Road, Delhi 110033.
- 9. Labour & Industrial Laws (Legal Manual). (n.d.). Universal Law Publishing Co. Pvt. Ltd. G.T. Karnal Road, Delhi 110033.
- 10. Malik, P. L. (n.d.). Industrial Law. Eastern Book Company. 34, Lalbagh, Lucknow.
- 11. Malik, P. L. (n.d.). Labour and Industrial Laws (Pocket Edition). Eastern Book Company. 34, Lalbagh, Lucknow-226 001.
- 12. Mathur, A. S. (1968). Labour Policy and Industrial Relations in India. Agra: Ram Prasad.
- 13. Relevant Bare Acts.
- 14. Singh, A. (2002). Introduction to Labour & Industrial Law. New Delhi: LexisNexis.
- 15. Sinha, P. R. N., Sinha, I. B., & Shekhar, S. P. (2017). Industrial Relations, Trade Unions and Labour Legislation. Pearson Education India.

DISCIPLINE SPECIFIC ELECTIVE

- 1. Rural Governance
- 2. Water Governance
- 3. Cyber Laws and Administration
- 4. International Institutions and Governance

Discipline	PUBLIC ADMIN	PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION					
Course Code	UK6DSEPAN300	UK6DSEPAN300					
Course Title	RURAL GOVE	RURAL GOVERNANCE IN KERALA					
Type of Course	DSC / DSE / MD	DSC / DSE / MDC / SEC / VAC / AEC					
Semester	VI	VI					
Academic Level	300 - 399						
Course Details	Credit	Lecture Hours	Tutorial Hrs	Practical Hours	Total Hours		
	4	30	18	12	60		
Pre-requisites	Basic understanding of the Decentralized Administration. Thorough Knowledge on 73 rd Amendment.						
Course Summary		The Course will Provide a Holistic Understanding of the Rural Governance and Development with a focus on Governance Kerala					

Module	Unit	Content	Hrs
I		Introduction to Rural Governance in Kerala	10
	1	Evolution of Rural Governance in Kerala	
	2	Kerala Panchayat Raj Act 2014	
	3	People's Planning- PRIs and Democratic Decentralisation in Kerala	
II		Models of Rural Development	12
	4	PURA model	
	5	Result based monitoring system (RBM/PIME)	
	6	Appreciative Inquiry models (AI)	
	7	Geomatics	
	8	Social Capital analysis and tools (SOCAT)	
III		Local Self Government in Kerala	6
	9	Local -Self Government in Kerala- Nature- Structure-Functions	
	10	Delivery of Public Services by LSGs	
	11	Committees and Participatory Forums	
	12	Social Capital and governance in Kerala- New Institutional Mechanisms- Institutional Reforms	
IV		Rural Development- Governance and Programs	10
	13	Administrative and Fiscal Relations	
	14	Role of Kudumbashree and SHGs	
	15	Rural Finances- Microfinance – Banks, NABARD etc	

	16	Major Rural Development Programs in Kerala- LIFE- PMAY-			
V		G- MGNREGA-PMGSY- VAY-NRLM Local Governance Challenges in Kerala	10		
•		Local Governance Chancinges in Relata	10		
	17	Panchayat Finance- Issues in Fiscal Decentralisation			
	18	Capacity Building and Bureaucracy:			
	19 Financial Constraints				
	20	Public Participation and Accountability			
VI	21	Open Ended	12		
		(This module is exclusively designed for internal evaluation only. Choose any two activities.)			
		Activity 1: Case Study on the Financial Empowerment of Women through Kudumbashree/ Challenges in Rural Youth Employment/ Successful Rural Development Initiatives			
		Activity 2: Survey/ Interview to gather information on a lack of access to clean water/ inadequate sanitation facilities			
		Activity 3: Mock Panchayat Meeting: Students can be divided into groups representing different stakeholders in a village (farmers, youth, women's group, Panchayath Authorities etc.).			

No.	Upon completion of the course the graduate will be able to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO1	Understand the Fundamentals of Rural Governance in Kerala.	U Ap	PSO4 PSO9
CO2	Understand and Analyse the models of Rural Development.	Ap An	PSO4 PSO6
CO3	Evaluate the Significance of Participatory Planning Process in Kerala	Ap An	PSO6 PSO9
CO4	Examine the Fundamentals of Fiscal Decentralisation in Kerala and the importance of Kudumbashree Mission.	An E	PSO6 PSO8
CO5	Provide a Holistic Understanding of the Challenges in Rural Governance in Kerala.	U Ap An	PSO6 PSO9
CO6	Equip with Knowledge and Skills on Rural Governance through Real World Examples.	E An Ap C	PSO6 PSO8 PSO9

R-Remember, U-Understand, Ap-Apply, An-Analyse, E-Evaluate, C-Create

CO No.	СО	PO/PSO	Cognitive Level	Knowledge Category	Lecture (L)/ Tutorial (T)	Practical (P)
CO1	Understand the Fundamentals of Rural Governance in Kerala.	PO1 PSO4 PSO9	U Ap	F, C	Book Review	
CO2	Understand and Analyse the models of Rural Development.	PO1 PO3 PSO4 PSO6	Ap An	F, C	Assignment	
СОЗ	Evaluate the Significance of Participatory Planning Process in Kerala	PO3 PSO6 PSO9	Ap An	P M	Debate	
CO4	Examine the Fundamentals of Fiscal Decentralisation in Kerala and the importance of Kudumbashree Mission. Promoting inclusive and sustainable development.	PO1 PSO8 PSO9	An E	F, C	Case Analysis	
CO5	Provide a Holistic Understanding of the Challenges in Rural Governance in Kerala.	PO2 PSO6 PSO9	U Ap An	F, C	Seminar	
CO6	Equip with Knowledge and Skills on Rural Governance through Real World Examples.	PO2 PSO6 PSO8 PSO9	E An Ap C	C, M	Field Visit Case Study	

F-Factual, C- Conceptual, P-Procedural, M-Metacognitive

	PSO4	PSO6	PSO8	PSO9	PO1	PO2	PO3
CO 1	2	-	-	1	2	-	-
CO 2	3	3	1	1	2	1	3
CO 3	-	3	-	3	-	-	2
CO 4	-	2	3	-	1	-	-
CO 5	-	3	3	-	-	3	-
CO 6	-	3	3	3	-	3	-

Mapping of Cos with Assessment Rubrics

	Internal Exam	Assignment	Project Evaluation	End Semester Examinations
CO 1	✓			✓
CO 2	✓			✓
CO 3	✓			✓
CO 4		√		✓
CO 5		✓		✓
CO 6			√	

- 1. Rajasekhar, D. (2023). Handbook of Decentralised Governance and Development in India. Routledge India
- 2. Jayal, N. G. (2006). Local Governance in India: Decentralization and Beyond. Oxford University Press.
- 3. Baud, I. S. A. (2008). New Forms of Urban Governance in India: Shifts, Models, Networks and Contestations. SAGE Publications.
- 4. Sachdeva, P. (2011). Local Government in India. India: Pearson.
- 5. Mathur, K. (2013). Panchayati Raj: Oxford India Short Introductions. India: OUP India.
- 6. Venkatesu, E. (2016). Democratic Decentralization in India: Experiences, Issues and Challenges. Routledge, Taylor & Francis Group.
- 7. Rao, P. S. N. (2006). Urban Governance and Management: Indian Initiatives. Indian Institute of Public Administration.
- 8. Chakrabarty, B., Pandey, R. K. (2019). Local Governance in India. India: SAGE Publications.
- 9. Biju, M. R. (1997). Politics of democracy and decentralisation in India. Atlantic Publishers.
- 10. Johnson, C. (2003). Decentralisation in India: Poverty, Politics and Panchayati Raj. Overseas Development Institute.
- 11. Venkatesu, E. (2016). Democratic Decentralization in India: Experiences, Issues and Challenges. Routledge: New Delhi.
- 12. Das, P. K. (2017). Decentralisation, Governance & Development. Orient Blackswan Private Limited
- 13. Prakash, A., Jayal, P. S., & Gopal, N. (2007). Local Governance in India: Decentralization and Beyond. Oxford India.
- 14. Singh, S. (2004). Decentralised Governance in India: Myth and Reality. Deep and Deep Publications.
- 15. Biju, M. R. (2019). Politics of Grassroot Democracy in India. Concept Publishing Company Pvt. Ltd.

Discipline	PUBLIC ADMIN	PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION					
Course Code	UK6DSEPAN30	UK6DSEPAN301					
Course Title	WATER GOVERNANCE						
Type of Course	DSC / DSE / MDC / SEC / VAC / AEC						
Semester	VI	VI					
Academic Level	300 - 399						
Course Details	Credit	Lecture Hours	Tutorial Hrs	Practical Hours	Total Hours		
	4	30	18	12	60		
Pre-requisites	Basic understanding on water-related issues Need to complete the course in principles of governance.						
Course Summary		The course would provide an understanding of water governance including the issues, rights and governance problems.					

Module	Unit	Content	Hrs
I		Water Resources	10
	1	Water as a Unique Resource – Instrumental and Intrinsic Approach	
	2	Key Concepts – Water Security, Water Crisis, Water Governance, Virtual Water and Hydro-Politics	
II		Water Management	10
	3	Sustainable Water Management – Significance and Methods	
	4	Integrated Water Resource Management (IWRM)	
	5	Public Private Partnerships (PPP) - Participatory Irrigation Management (PIM)	
III		Water Governance	10
	6	Water Availability and Distribution	
	7	Challenges in Water Governance	
	8	Privatization of Water	
	9	Water Disputes and Struggles	
IV		Water Governance in India	10
	10	Institutional Mechanisms in India – Ministry of Water Resources	
	11	Central Water Commission (CWC) - Central Ground Water Board (CGWB)	
	12	Inter-State Water Disputes - Mullaperiyar and Cauvery	

V		River Water Conflicts: International and National					
	13	International River Water Conflicts					
	14	Transboundary waters					
	15	Hydropolitics					
	16	Major international river water conflicts					
	17	Major international water treaties					
	18	Water Governance in India					
	19	Prospects of water governance in India					
	20	River resources in Kerala					
VI	21	Open Ended	10				
		(This Module Is Exclusively Designed for Internal Evaluation Only. Choose Any Two Activities.)					
		Activity 1: Field Visit to Kerala Water Authority (Any Office/Project Site) and Prepare a Report					
		Activity 2: Sustainable Water Management Practices at Home					
		Activity 3: Case Study:					
		Case Study on Kerala Rural Water Supply and Sanitation Agency – The <i>Jalanidhi</i> Project					

No.	Upon completion of the course the graduate will be able to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO1	Understand the concepts and significance of water management and water governance	U An	PSO1
CO2	Examine the concept and practice of water management	E An	PSO10
СОЗ	Analyse the concept of water governance and its application	Ap An	PSO10
CO4	Critically analyse water governance in India	An E	PSO10
CO5	Analyse various national and international river water conflicts	An	PSO10
CO6	Apply the knowledge on cases in Kerala	An Ap	PSO3 PSO10

CO No.	СО	PO/PSO	Cognitive Level	Knowledge Category	Lecture (L)/ Tutorial (T)	Practical (P)
CO1	Understand the concepts and significance of water management and water governance	PO6	U Ap	F, C	Book Review	
CO2	Examine the concept and practice of water management	PO6	Ap An	F, C	Assignment	
CO3	Analyse the concept of water governance and its application	PO2	Ap An	F	Debate	
CO4	Critically analyse water governance in India	PO6	An E	F, C, M	Case Analysis	
CO5	Analyse various national and international river water conflicts	PO6	An	F,M	Case Analysi	
CO6	Apply the knowledge on cases in Kerala	PO6	An Ap	F, C	Seminar	-

	PSO 1	PSO 2	PSO 3	PSO 4	PSO 5	PSO1 0	PO 1	PO 2	PO 3	PO 4	PO 5	PO 6	PSO1 0
CO 1	1	-	-	2	-	3	-	2	1	1	1	3	
CO 2	1	2	1	1	-	3	1	-	1	1	1	3	
CO 3	1	-	1	1	-	3	-	3	1	1	2	2	
CO 4	1	-	1	1	-	3	-	-	1	1	1	3	
CO 5	-	-	-	-	-	-	_	-	-	-	-	2	2
CO 5	-	1	-	1	-	3	-	2	-	-	1	3	

Mapping of COs to Assessment Rubrics:

	Internal Exam	Assignment	Project Evaluation	End Semester Examinations
CO 1	√			✓
CO 2	√			✓
CO 3	√			✓
CO 4		✓		✓
CO 5		✓		✓
CO 6			✓	

- 1. Acharya, D. (2021). Water and Public Policy in India: Politics, Rights, and Governance. Routledge.
- 2. Bakker, K. (2013). Privatizing Water: Governance Failure and the World's Urban Water Crisis. Cornell University Press.
- 3. Ballabh, V. (2008). Governance of Water: Institutional Alternatives and Political Economy. Sage.
- 4. Bogardi, J. J. (Ed.). (2021). Handbook of Water Resources Management: Discourses, Concepts and Examples. Springer International Publishing.
- 5. Cullet, P., & Koonan, S. (2018). Water Law in India: An Introduction to Legal Instruments. OUP India.
- 6. Geological Society of India. (2021). Water Resources of Kerala: Status, Issues and Management. Bangalore.
- 7. Hu, D. (2006). Water Rights: An International and Comparative Study. IWA Publishing.
- 8. Iyer, R. R. (2003). Water: Perspectives, Issues, Concerns. Sage.
- 9. Iyer, R. R. (2007). Towards Water Wisdom: Limits, Justice, Harmony. Sage.
- 10. Iyer, R. R. (2009). Water and the Laws in India. Sage.
- 11. Joseph, C. J. (2001). Beneficiary Participation in Irrigation Water Management: The Kerala Experience. CDS.
- 12. Kateja, A. (2019). Water Resource Management: Problems and Prospects. Rawat Publications.
- 13. Lautze, J. (2014). Key Concepts in Water Resource Management: A Review and Critical Evaluation. Routledge.
- Loucks, D. P., & Beek, E. van. (2017). Water Resources Systems: Planning and Management. UNESCO Publication.
- 15. Mihir, S. (2018). "Reforming India's water governance to meet 21st century challenges: practical pathways to realizing the vision of the Mihir Shah Committee." IWMI.
- 16. Mollinga, P., et al. (2006). Integrated Water Resources Management, Water in South Asia Volume I. Sage.
- 17. Nicol, A., Suhardiman, D., Mapedza, E. (2017). Water Governance and Collective Action. Routledge.
- 18. Pandya, A. B., & Chadha, G. (2021). Water Governance and Management in India, Issues and Perspectives, Volume 2. Springer.
- 19. Prakash, A., et al. (2018). Globalization of Water Governance in South Asia. Routledge.
- 20. Raghunath, H. M. (2007). Ground Water. New Age International Publishers.
- 21. Robinson, J. L. (2013). Contested Water: The Struggle against Water Privatization in the United States and Canada. MIT Press.
- 22. Schmidt, J. J., & Matthews, N. (2017). Global Challenges in Water Governance: Environments, Economies, Societies. Springer.
- 23. Singh, C. (1992). Water Rights in India. The Indian Law Institute.

Discipline	PUBLIC ADMIN	ISTRATION	V					
Course Code	UK6DSEPAN302							
Course Title	CYBER LAWS AND ADMINISTRATION							
Type of Course	DSC / DSE / MD	C / SEC / V	AC / AEC					
Semester	VI							
Academic Level	300-399							
Course Details	Credit	Lecture Hours	Tutorial Hours	Practical Hours	Total Hours/Week			
	4	38	10	12	60			
Pre-requisites	Basic capability to handle digital gadgets Knowledge about cyber spaces and technology							
Course Summary	Digital Activitie Situations. It Em	Equips to Understand Online Crimes, Navigate Legal Frameworks For Digital Activities, and Apply those Principles to Real-World Situations. It Emphasizes Data Privacy, Security and To Update the Ever-changing Legal Landscape of The Internet.						

Module	Unit	Content	Hrs
Ι		Introduction	10
	1	Cyber security: Definition, Scope and Importance	
	2	Concepts and terms related: Cyber Space, Digital Footprints, Digital Safety, Dark Web	
	3	Budapest Convention	
II		Cyber Crimes	10
	4	Mapping the Cyber Crimes	
	5	Main Cyber Players: Cyber Criminals, Cyber Terrorist, Cyber Espionage, Cyber Hacktivists	
	6	Types of Cybercrimes: Against organisation: Hacking, Denial of Services(Dos), Data Breaching- Against Individual: Social engineering, Cyberstalking, Identity Theft	
	7	Financial Crimes: Credit Card Fraud, Cryptocurrency Scam	
III		Legal and Regulatory Provisions in India	10
	8	Legal & Regulatory Provisions in IPC & IT Act by Government of India	
	9	Role & Responsibilities of Various kinds of Government	
		Organizations in Cyber Crime-Cyber Wings	
	10	Cyber Security Policy-2013	
	11	Digital Personal Data Protection Act-2023	
	12	Legal Concerns: Privacy, IPR, Security, Sovereignty	

IV		Contemporary Scenario	10
	13	The Changing Nature of Cyber Crimes	
	14	Cyber War- Cyber Disarmament & Cyber Peace Keeping	
	15	Role of AI in Cyber Security, Deep Fake	
	16	Dark Web and Deep Web and its impact on Cybercrimes	
	17	Big Data Analytics	
V		Cyber security & Public Administration the way forward	10
	18	Importance of Cyber Hygiene in Public Administration	
	19	Cyber Security Awareness and Training- Mock drills: Phishing Attack Simulation, Social Engineering Attack Simulation	
	20	Public-Private Partnerships in Cyber Security	
VI	21	Open Ended	10
		(This module is exclusively designed for internal evaluation only. Choose any two activities.)	
		Activity 1: Participatory Observation –Develop Action Plans to be Adopted Anticipating a Cyber-Crime to happen.	
		Activity 2: Case Study: Cyber-attack on AIIMS	
		Activity3: Group Discussion on Cyber Security Issues	

No.	Upon completion of the course the graduate will be able to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO1	Provides the Basic Understanding About Concept of Cyber Security	U E	PSO-7
CO2	Provide a Holistic Understanding Regarding Cybercrimes and Various Type of Concerned Crimes Associated	U An	PSO-7
СОЗ	Provides a Holistic Understanding Regarding Legal and Regulatory provision of Cyber security	U An	PSO-4
CO4	Develop Critical Skills to Understand the Issues, Challenges and Developments Related to Cyber Security	E An	PSO-7
CO5	Develop Critical Thinking and Problem Solving Skills Related to the Way forward in Cyber Security and Public Administration	An Ap	PSO-7
CO6	Equip with Knowledge and Skills by Engaging in Activities and Case Studies to Develop a Critical Understanding through Activity Based Learning	C An U	PSO-3

R-Remember, U-Understand, Ap-Apply, An-Analyse, E-Evaluate, C-Create

CO No.	СО	PO/PSO	Cognitive Level	Knowledge Category	Lecture (L)/ Tutorial (T)	Practical (P)
CO1	Provides an basic understanding about concept of cyber security	PSO-7 PO-7	U E	F, C	Book Review	
CO2	Provide a holistic understanding regarding cybercrimes and various type of cybercrimes associated	PSO-7 PO-1	U An	F, C	Assignment	
СОЗ	Provides a Holistic Understanding regarding Legal and Regulatory provision of Cyber security	PSO-4 PO-7	U An	F	Book review	
CO4	Develop critical skills to understand the issues, challenges and developments Related to cyber security	PSO-7 PO-1	E An	C, M	Case Analysis	
CO5	Develop Critical Thinking and Problem Solving Skills related to the way forward in cyber security and public administration	PSO-7 PO-1 PO-2	An Ap	С,М	Seminar	
CO6	Equip with knowledge and skills engaging in activities and case studies to develop a critical understanding through activity based learning	PSO-3 PO-2 PO-5 PO-3	C An U	С, М	Case Study	

F-Factual, C- Conceptual, P-Procedural, M-Metacognitive

	PSO3	PSO4	PSO7	PO1	PO2	PO3	PO5	P07
CO 1	-	-	1	-	-	1	-	1
CO 2	-	-	1	2	-	-	-	-
CO 3	-	2	-	-	-	-	-	2
CO 4	-	-	3	2	-	-	-	-
CO 5	-	-	2	2	2	-	-	-
CO 6	1	-	-	-	2	2	1	-

Mapping of COs to Assessment Rubrics:

	Internal Exam	Assignment	Project Evaluation	End Semester Examinations
CO 1	√			√
CO 2	√			✓
CO 3	√			✓
CO 4		✓		✓
CO 5		✓		✓
CO 6			✓	

- 1. Willard, N. (20*). Cyber Law: Maximizing Safety and Minimizing Risk in Classrooms. [Publisher Not Provided]. (Assuming you don't have publication date information, replace 20* with "n.d.")
- 2. Craig, B. (20*). Cyberlaw: The Law of the Internet and Information Technology. [Publisher Not Edited]. (Same note about publication date)
- 3. Seth, K. (20*). Cyber Law in India. [Publisher Not Edited].
- 4. Ferrera, G. R., Nard, C. A., & Brierley, J. A. (20*). Cyber Law: Text and Cases. [Publisher Not Edited].
- 5. Chakraborty, A. (20*). Principles of Cyber Law. [Publisher Not Edited].
- 6. Duranske, B. (20*). The Law of Cybercrimes and Their Investigations. [Publisher Not Edited].
- 7. Babu, N. K., & Nair, N. S. (Eds.). (20*). Cyber Law and Cyber Security in Developing and Emerging Economies. [Publisher Not Edited].
- 8. Holt, T. J., & Bossler, A. M. (20*). Cybercrime and Digital Forensics: An Introduction.
- 9. National Institution for Transforming India (NITI Aayog). (2019, July). Cyber Security Conclave at Vigyan Bhavan, Delhi [PDF]. https://www.niti.gov.in/sites/default/files/2019-07/CyberSecurityConclaveAtVigyanBhavanDelhi_1.pdf
- 10. Data Security Council of India (DSCI). (2023). India Cyber Threat Report 2023 [PDF]. https://www.dsci.in/resource/content/india-cyber-threat-report-2023

Discipline	PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION							
Course Code	UK6DSEPAN303	3						
Course Title	INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTIONS AND GOVERNANCE							
Type of Course	DSC / DSE / MD	C / SEC / V	AC / AEC					
Semester	VI							
Academic Level	300-399							
Course Details	Credit	Lecture Hours	Tutorial Hrs	Practical Hours	Total Hours			
	4	30	18	12	60			
Pre-requisites	1.Basic understanding of polity and governance 2.Analytical Knowledge of Different Administrative Systems							
Course Summary	Students Will Exp International Orga		nciples, Polic	ies and Practi	ices that Guide			

Module	Unit	Content	Hrs
I		International Organizations and Regimes	12
	1	The United Nations	
	2	The Specialized Agencies of the United Nations	
	3	The World Bank and International Monetary Fund	
	4	World Trade Organization and International Trade Regimes	
	5	Regional Organizations-OECD, ADB	
II		Criss Management and Humanitarian Response	10
	6	Global Emergencies and Humanitarian Interventions	
	7	The Role of Public Administration in Crisis Management	
	8	International Collaborations in Disaster Relief and Recovery	
III		Global Policymaking and Decision-Making	10
	9	Diplomacy and Negotiations in Global Policy Making	
	10	Role of Public Administration in International Policy Formulation	
	11	Decision-Making Processes and Challenges	
IV	Gle	obal Development and Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs)	6
	12	International Development Cooperation and Aid Effectiveness	
	13	Role of Public Administration in Achieving SDGs	
	14	Financing Sustainable Development Initiatives	
V		Accountability and Transparency	10
	15	Ensuring Accountability in International Institutions	
	16	Transparency and Openness in Decision-making	
	17	Ethical Challenges	

VI		Open Ended (This module is exclusively designed for internal evaluation only. Choose any two activities.)	12
	18	Quizzes and Exams Assessing Theoretical Knowledge	
	19	Class Discussion and Debates	
	20	Group Projects and Presentations-Foreign Policy of ASEAN	

No.	Upon completion of the course the graduate will be able to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO1	Provide a holistic understanding of International Institutions.	U Ap	PSO-10 PSO-11
CO2	Analyse the Role of Humanitarian Interventions in Global Emergencies.	Ap An	PSO-6 PSO-10
CO3	Analyse the Role of Public Administration in International Policy Formulation.	Ap An	PSO-6 PSO-10
CO4	Develop Critical Thinking Skills to Understand Sustainable Development Goals.	An E	PSO-8 PSO-11
CO5	Provide a Holistic Understanding on the Importance of Accountability and Transparency in International Organisations.	U Ap An	PSO-10 PSO-11 PSO12
CO6	Equip with Knowledge and Skills in Engaging Informed Discussions, Debates, Group Projects and Presentations.	E An Ap C	PSO-3 PSO-6 PSO-8 PSO-10

R-Remember, U-Understand, Ap-Apply, An-Analyse, E-Evaluate, C-Create

CO No.	СО	PO/PSO	Cognitive Level	Knowledge Category	Lecture (L)/ Tutorial (T)	Practical (P)
CO1	Provide a holistic understanding of International Institutions.	PO-1 PSO-10 PSO-11	U Ap	F, C	Book Review	
CO2	Analyse the Role of Humanitarian Interventions in Global Emergencies.	PO-2 PO-8 PSO-6 PSO-10	Ap An	F, C	Book Review, Assignment	
CO3	Analyse the Role of Public Administration in International Policy Formulation.	PO-2 PO-4 PO-5 PSO-6 PSO-10	Ap An	F	Debate	
CO4	Develop Critical Thinking Skills to Understand Sustainable Development Goals.	PO-2 PO-3 PSO-8 PSO-11	An E	F, C, M	Book Review, Assignment	
CO5	Provide a Holistic understanding About the Importance of Accountability and Transparency in International Organisations.	PO-2 PO-4 PSO-10 PSO-11 PSO-12	U Ap An	F, C	Seminar	
CO6	Equip with Knowledge and Skills in Engaging Informed Discussions, Debates, Group Projects and Presentations.	PO-2 PO-3 PO-4 PO-5 PSO-3 PSO-6 PSO-8 PSO-10	E An Ap C	C, M	Project, Presentatio ns	

F-Factual, C- Conceptual, P-Procedural, M-Metacognitive

	PSO3	PSO5	PSO6	PSO8	PSO10	PSO11	PSO12	PO1	PO2	PO3	PO4	PO5	PO8
CO 1					3	1		2					
CO 2			3		3				3				2
CO 3			3		3				2		1	1	
CO 4				3		2			3	3			
CO 5					3	1	1		2		2		
CO 6	3		2	3	3				3	3	3	3	

Mapping of COs to Assessment Rubrics:

	Internal Exam	Assignment	Project Evaluation	End Semester Examinations
CO 1	√			✓
CO 2	✓			✓
CO 3	✓			✓
CO 4		✓		✓
CO 5		✓		✓
CO 6			✓	

- 1. International Organizations: The Politics and Processes of Global Governance (3rd edition) Margaret P Karns, Karen A. Mingst and Kendall W Stile.s
- 2. Global Governance and the UN: An Unfinished Journey by Thomas G. Weiss and Ramesh Thakur
- 3. The Politics of Global Governance: International Organization in an Interdependent World by Paul F. Diehl and Brian Frederking.
- 4. "Global Public Policy: Governing Without Government?" by Diane Stone and Andrew Denham
- 5. "The Globalization of World Politics: An Introduction to International Relations" edited by Jhon Baylis, Steve Smith, and Patrica Owen.s
- 6. "Global Administration law: The Casebook" edited by Sabino Cassese, Thomas Pegram and Nico Krisch.

SKILL ENHANCEMENT COURSE

- 1. Organizational Behaviour
- 2. Public Relations and Communication
- 3. Research Methodology- II

Discipline	PUBLIC ADMIN	PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION						
Course Code	UK6SECPAN300)						
Course Title	ORGANIZATIO	NAL BEHA	AVIOUR					
Type of Course	DSC / DSE / MD	C / SEC / VA	AC / AEC					
Semester	VI							
Academic Level	300 - 399							
Course Details	Credit	Lecture Hours	Tutorial Hours	Practical Hours	Total Hours			
	3	25	10	10	45			
Pre-requisites	 Basic understanding on Management Theories and Principles Knowledge in Human Resource Management 							
Course Summary	To acquaint stude behaviour and the							

Module	Unit	Content	Hrs.							
I		Introduction to Organizational Behaviour	7							
	Definiti	on, Nature and Scope-Need for Studying Organisational								
	Behavio	ehaviour-Contributing Disciplines to OB-Modes of OB-Challenges and								
	Opporti	unities of OB								
II		Perception and Learning	7							
		ion: Meaning- Process- Improving Perception-Learning: Theo Skinner-Principles of Learning.	ries -							
III		Personality Development	7							
	Persona	lity Development- Biological, Psychological and Environmental								
	Factors.	Determinants of Personality, Assessment of Personality-								
	Persona	lity Traits								
IV		Organisational Development (OD)								
	Meanin	g, Nature, Objectives and Belief in OD-OD Interventions,								
	Organis	ation Transformation-Organisational Climate, Organisational								
	Culture	, Organisational Change								
V	Groups		7							
	Definiti	on- Types- Development-Group Norms- Group Cohesiveness-	Group							
	Decisio	n-Making-Interpersonal Relation Ship-Conflict- Individual co	nflict-							
	Interper	sonal conflict- Group conflict- Transactional Analysis								
VI		Open Ended	10							
		(This module is exclusively designed for internal evaluation								
		only. Choose any two activities.)								
		Case Studies on Personality								
		Organisation Visits								
		Group Role Plays								

No.	Upon completion of the course the graduate will be able to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO1	Provide a basic understanding of Organizational Behaviour and its Challenges and Opportunities.	U, Ap	PSO2
CO2	Provide a foundational understanding of Perception and Learning.	U, Ap	PSO3
CO3	Provide a basic understanding of Motivation and Personality Development.	Ap, An	PSO12
CO4	Develop foundational knowledge on Organizational Development.	An, E	PSO2
CO5	Provide a basic understanding of Groups and Conflict Management.	U, Ap, An	PSO8
CO6	Developing knowledge of Organizational Behaviour through practical exposure and real-world examples.	E, An, Ap C	PSO6

R-Remember, U-Understand, Ap-Apply, An-Analyse, E-Evaluate, C-Create

CO No.	СО	PO/ PSO	Cognitive Level	Knowledge Category	Lecture/ Tutorial	Practical (P)
CO1	Provide a basic understanding to organizational Behaviour and its Challenges and Opportunities.	PO6 PSO2	U, Ap	F, C	Assignment	
CO2	Provide a foundational understanding on Perception and Learning.	PO6 PSO3	Ap, An	F, C	Book Review	
CO3	Provide a basic understanding on Motivation and Personality Development.	PO6 PSO12	Ap An	F, M	Practical session	
CO4	Develop foundational knowledge on Organizational Development.	PO1 PSO2	An, E	F, C, P, M	Case Analysis	
CO5	Provide a basic understanding on Groups and Conflict Management.	PO2 PO5 PSO8	U, Ap, An	F, P, C	Seminar	
CO6	Developing knowledge on Organizational Behaviour through practical exposure and real-world examples.	PO8 PSO6	E, An, Ap C	C, M	Case Study Field visits	

F-Factual, C- Conceptual, P-Procedural, M-Metacognitive

	PSO2	PSO3	PSO6	PSO8	PSO12	PO1	PO2	PO3	PO5	PO6	PO8
CO 1	1	1	ı	ı	1	ı	ı	ı	ı	2	-
CO 2	-	1	1	ı	1	-	-	-	1	2	-
CO 3	1	-	1	ı	1	-	-	-	1	2	-
CO 4	1	1	ı	ı	1	2	ı	ı	ı	ı	-
CO 5	-	-		1	-	-	1	-	1	-	-
CO 6	-	-	1	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	2

Mapping of COs to Assessment Rubrics:

	Internal Exam	Assignment	Project Evaluation	End Semester Examinations
CO 1	√			✓
CO 2	√			✓
CO 3	√			✓
CO 4		✓		✓
CO 5		√		✓
CO 6			✓	

- 1. S.S. Khanka, (2011). Organisational Behaviour, S.Chand & Co. Ltd., New Delhi.
- 2. L.M. Prasad, (2008). Organisational Behaviour, Sultan Chand and Sons, New Delhi.
- 3. Stephen P. Robbins (2003). Organizational Behaviour, Pearson Education, New Delhi.
- 4. K. Aswathapa (2012). Organisational Behaviour, Himalaya Publishing House.
- 5. Margie Parikh, Rajen Gupta, (2006). Organisational Behaviour, Tata McGraw Hill Education, New Delhi.

Discipline	PUBLIC ADMINIS	PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION						
Course Code	UK6SECPAN301							
Course Title	PUBLIC RELATI	ONS AND	COMMUN	ICATION				
Type of Course	DSC / DSE / MDC	/ SEC / VA	C / AEC					
Semester	VI	VI						
Academic Level	300-399							
Course Details	Credit	Lecture Hours	Tutorial Hours	Practical Hours	Total Hours			
	3	25	10	10	45			
Pre-requisites	Written and verbal communication skills, Critical Thinking and Problem-Solving Skills, Digital Media Literacy							
Course Summary	This course equips develop in the field	-		_	•			

Module	Unit	Content	Hrs.				
I		Introduction to Public Relations	7				
	1	Public relations- Definition and History					
	2	Public Relations- Functions and Benefits- Ethics and Social Responsibility					
	3	Growth of Public Relations- Indian Scenario					
II		Communication	7				
	4	Communication-Scope- Importance					
	5	Levels of Communication					
	6	Types of Communication					
	7	Barriers to Communication					
	8	Public Speaking and Professional Communication					
III		Public Relations Planning	7				
	9	Campaign Development- Defining Goals- Objectives-Target Audiences, And Strategies.					
	10	Situational Analysis- Evaluating Internal and External Factors Impacting PR Efforts.					
	11	Writing for Public Relations-Press releases-Media Kits- Website Content and Social Media Posts.					
	12	Media Relationships-Traditional -Print- Broadcast And Social Media Media Interviews, And Press Conferences.					
	13	Crisis Communication Strategies- Managing Negative Publicity and Reputational Threats.					

IV		Corporate Communication and Public Relations	7
	14	Corporate Communication and Public Relations-Roles-Functions and Relationship within an Organization.	
	15	Crafting Strategic Communication- Message Development- Writing for Media	
	16	Role of Management in Employee Communication- Crisis Communication	
	17	E- Public Relations and its Importance	
V		New Media Tools	7
	18	Blogs, Website	
	19	Online Press Release- Article Marketing	
	20	Artificial Intelligence -Big data	
VI	21	Open Ended	10
		(This module is exclusively designed for internal evaluation only. Choose any two activities.)	
		Activity 1: Case Study Analysis	
		Me-too Movement in India	
		Rise of Digital Public Relations in India	
		Activity 2: Participatory Observation Engage in discussions about social media marketing strategies, observe how businesses communicate with each other and their target audience, analyse the types of content being shared. Observe presentations on current trends in public relations, participate in interactive workshops on	
		communication strategies, and network with professionals from different organizations.	
		Activity 3: Field Visit	
		Conduct a visit to a local or state government agency with a public affairs office.	
		A visit to a public relations agency specializing in a specific industry- technology-healthcare-non-profit.	

No.	Upon completion of the course the graduate will be able to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO1	Examine the scope and importance of communication, including its various levels and types.	U, Ap	PSO-1 PSO-12
CO2	Asses and understand the role of public relations in various sectors and the ethical considerations involved	U, Ap	PSO-9
CO3	Recognize emerging trends in public relations and their implications for corporate communication	Ap, An	PSO-3
CO4	Evaluate the importance of e-public relations and its impact on organizational communication. And analyse the utilization of digital and social media tools effectively in public relations practices.	An, E	PSO-9
CO5	Apply theoretical knowledge and practical skills in real-world scenarios through case studies, group projects, and field engagement	U, Ap, An	PSO-12
CO6	Asses on personal and professional growth in understanding and applying public relations and communications principles	E, An, Ap, C	PSO-12

R-Remember, U-Understand, Ap-Apply, An-Analyse, E-Evaluate, C-Create

CO No.	СО	PO/PSO	Cognitive Level	Knowledge Category	Lecture (L)/ Tutorial (T)	Practical (P)
CO1	Examine the scope and importance of communication, including its various levels and types.	PO3 PSO12	U, Ap	F, C	Assignmen t	
CO2	Asses and understand the role of public relations in various sectors and the ethical considerations involved	PO-1 PSO-9	Ap, An	F, C	Book Review	
CO3	Recognize emerging trends in public relations and their implications for corporate communication	PO1 PSO-3	Ap, An	F, M	Practical session	
CO4	Evaluate the importance of e-public relations and its impact on organizational communication. And analyse the utilization of digital and social media tools effectively in public relations practices.	PO-7 PSO-9	An, E	F, C, P, M	Case Analysis	
CO5	Apply theoretical knowledge and practical skills in real-world scenarios through case studies, group projects, and field engagement	PO-8 PSO-12	U, Ap, An	F, P, C	Seminar	
CO6	Asses on personal and professional growth in understanding and applying public relations and communications principles	PO-6 PSO-12	E, An, Ap C	C, M	Case Study Practical sessions on communica tion	

F-Factual, C- Conceptual, P-Procedural, M-Metacognitive

	PSO1	PSO3	PSO9	PSO12	PO1	PO3	PO6	PO7	PO8
CO 1	1	-	-	2	-	2	-	-	-
CO 2	-	-	3	-	1	-	-	-	-
CO 3	1	2	1	1	1	ı	1	-	-
CO 4	-	-	3	-	-	-	-	1	-
CO 5	-	-	-	2	-	-	-	-	1
CO 6	1	1	1	3	ı	ı	2	-	-

Mapping of COs to Assessment Rubrics:

	Internal Exam	Assignment	Project Evaluation	End Semester Examinations
CO 1	√			✓
CO 2	√			✓
CO 3	√			✓
CO 4		✓		✓
CO 5		√		✓
CO 6			√	

- 1. Breakenridge, D. K. (2010). Social media and public relations: Eight new practices for the PR professional. Lawrence Erlbaum Associates.
- 2. Broom, G. M., & Sha, B.-L. (2011). The dynamics of public relations: Key processes and strategies (2nd ed.). Routledge.
- 3. Caywood, C. L. (Ed.). (2013). The handbook of strategic public relations and integrated marketing communications (5th ed.). Routledge.
- 4. Cutlip, S. M., Center, A. H., & Broom, G. M. (2000). Effective public relations (8th ed.). Prentice Hall.
- 5. DiStaso, M. W., & Bortree, D. S. (2012). Ethical practice of social media in public relations. Lawrence Erlbaum Associates.
- 6. Friedrich, G. W., O'Hair, H., & Dixon, L. D. (2013). Strategic communication in business and the professions (8th ed.). Allyn & Bacon.
- 7. Grunig, J. E., & Hunt, T. (1984). Managing public relations. Holt, Rinehart and Winston.
- 8. Lattimore, D., Baskin, O., Heiman, S. T., & Toth, E. (2018). Public relations: The profession and the practice (13th ed.). Routledge.
- 9. Luttrell, R. M., & Capizzo, L. W. (2019). Public relations campaigns: An integrated approach (7th ed.). Routledge.
- 10. Michaelson, D., & Stacks, D. W. (2008). Public relations metrics: Research and evaluation (2nd ed.). Lawrence Erlbaum Associates.
- 11. Moss, D., Vercic, D., & Warnaby, G. (Eds.). (2014). Public relations research: An international perspective (2nd ed.). Routledge.
- 12. Newsom, D., Haynes, J., & Parcell, K. F. S. (2018). Public relations writing: Form & style (11th ed.). Wadsworth Publishing Company.

- 13. Scott, D. M. (2011). The new rules of marketing and PR: How to use social media, online video, mobile applications, blogs, news releases, and viral marketing to reach buyers directly (4th ed.). John Wiley & Sons.
- 14. Seitel, F. P. (2015). The practice of public relations (12th ed.). Pearson Education Limited.
- 15. Smith, R. D. (2014). Strategic planning for public relations (4th ed.). Routledge.
- 16. Sriramesh, K., & Vercic, D. (Eds.). (2010). The global public relations handbook: Theory, research, and practice. Routledge.
- 17. Theaker, A. (2020). The public relations handbook (7th ed.). Routledge.
- 18. Wilcox, D. L., & Cameron, G. T. (2019). Public relations: Strategies and tactics (13th ed.). Pearson Education Limited.
- 19. Young, A. (2016). Brand media strategy: Integrated communications planning in the digital era (4th ed.). Kogan Page Publishers.
- 20. Zaremba, A. J. (2017). Crisis communication: Theory and practice (7th ed.). Routledge.

Discipline	PUBLI	PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION							
Course Code	UK6SE	UK6SECPAN302							
Course Title	RESEA	ARCH METHOD	OLOGY II						
Type of Course	DSC / I	OSE / MDC / SEC	/ VAC / AEC						
Semester	VI								
Academic Level	300-399.								
Course Details	Credit	Lecture Hours	Tutorial Hours	Practical Hours	Total Hours				
	3	25	10	10	45				
Pre-requisites	 Basic understanding of Research Process. Research aptitude including framing research questions, data collection and finding solutions 								
Course		This course aims at facilitating the students to give an overview of							
Summary	researc	h process and its me	ethods.						

Unit	Content	Hrs					
	Introduction To Research	7					
1	Scope of Research in Public Administration						
2	Evolution of Scientific Inquiry						
3	Interdisciplinary Research in Social Science						
4	Scientific Methods of Research						
	Research Writing Skills	7					
5	Basic Concepts of Academic Writing						
6	Writing- Reports-Importance of Reports-Types Of Reports.						
7	Planning of Report Writing and Format of Research Report						
8	Bibliography- Documentation of Bibliography						
9	Evaluating the Research Report						
	Research Techniques	7					
10	Measurement And Scales						
11	Type of Scales						
12	Frequency Distribution						
13	Statistical Analysis and Data Interpretation						
	Computer Aided Analysis	7					
14	Testing Of Hypothesis – T Test, Z Test, Chi-square Test, Probability and Normal Distribution						
15	Co-Relation and Regression Analysis ANOVA						
16	Factor Analysis: Co- Efficient of Determination.						
17	Computer Aided Data Analysis – M.S. Excel/ SPSS.						
	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	Introduction To Research Scope of Research in Public Administration Evolution of Scientific Inquiry Interdisciplinary Research in Social Science Scientific Methods of Research Research Writing Skills Basic Concepts of Academic Writing Writing- Reports-Importance of Reports-Types Of Reports. Planning of Report Writing and Format of Research Report Bibliography- Documentation of Bibliography Evaluating the Research Report Research Techniques Measurement And Scales Type of Scales Frequency Distribution Statistical Analysis and Data Interpretation Computer Aided Analysis Testing Of Hypothesis – T Test, Z Test, Chi-square Test, Probability and Normal Distribution. Co-Relation and Regression Analysis ANOVA Factor Analysis: Co- Efficient of Determination.					

V		Publication Ethics	7					
	18 Intellectual Honesty, Research Integrity and Conflicts of Interest							
	19	Publication Misconduct- Falsification, Fabrication, Plagiarism						
	20	Selective Reporting and Misrepresentation of Data.						
	21	Redundant Publications: Duplicate And Overlapping Publication						
	22	Publication Opportunities.						
	23	Predatory Publishers and Journals.						
VI		Open Ended (This module is exclusively designed for internal evaluation only. Choose any two activities.)	10					
	17	Activity 1: Introduction to digital software technologies-based Data Analysis						
	18	Activity 2: Key data analysis techniques used in creating data sets for Administration.						
	19	Activity 3: R Programming-SPSS -MS-Excel front end usage.						

No.	Upon completion of the course the graduate will be able to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO-1	Understand the significance of research in the field of Public Administration.	U	PSO-5
CO-2	Develop proficient research writing skills, including the ability to articulate ideas clearly, structure research reports effectively.	U	PSO-5
CO-3	Understand Statistical Analysis and Data Interpretation in research	Ap, An	PSO-5
CO-4	Equip with computer aided data analysis and practice with tools.	U, E	PSO-5 PSO-7
CO-5	Understand publication ethics, including intellectual honesty, research integrity, and transparency	Ap, C	PSO-5
CO6	Evaluate applied research methodologies and techniques in the context of public administration.	Е	PSO-5

R-Remember, U-Understand, Ap-Apply, An-Analyse, E-Evaluate, C-Create

CO No.	СО	PO/PSO	Cognitive Level	Knowledge Category	Lecture (L)/ Tutorial (T)	Practical (P)
CO-1	The significance of research in the field of Public Administration.	PO-6	U	F, P	Book Review	
CO-2	Proficient research writing skills, including the ability to articulate ideas clearly, structure research reports effectively.	PO-4 PO-7	U	F, P	Seminar	
CO-3	Statistical Analysis And Data Interpretation in research	PO-2 PO-3	An, E	P, C	Seminar	
CO-4	Computer aided data analysis and practice with tools.	PO-6 PO-7	U, E	P,C	Seminar	Online Platforms
CO-5	Publication ethics, including intellectual honesty, research integrity, and transparency	PO-8	Ap, C	P,C, M	Assignment	
CO-6	Applied research methodologies and techniques in the context of public administration.	PO-1	Е	Р	Field visit Case study Seminar	

F-Factual, C- Conceptual, P-Procedural, M-Metacognitive

	PSO5	PSO7	PO2	PO3	PO-4	PO-5	PO-6	PO-7	PO-8
CO-1	3	-	-	-	-	-	2	-	-
CO-2	3	-	-	-	2	-	-	-	-
CO-3	3	-	2	2	-	-	-	-	-
CO-4	2	1	-	-	-	-	-	2	-
CO-5	3	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	3
CO-6	3	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-

Mapping of COs to Assessment Rubrics:

	Internal Exam	Assignment	Project Evaluation	End Semester Examinations
CO-1	√			✓
CO-2	\			✓
CO-3	√			✓
CO-4		✓		✓
CO-5		√		✓
CO-6		√	✓	

- 1. Bowley, A, L. (1937), Elements of Statistics, P.S King and Staples Ltd, London.
- 2. Chance, Willem A, (1975), Statistical Methods for Decision Making, D.P.T Co Pvt Ltd, Bombay.
- 3. Fisher, R, A, (1958), Basic Statistics in Administration, McGrew hill, New Delhi.
- 4. Maheswari A (2017) Data Analytics, McGraw Hill Educations
- 5. James G, Witten D, Hastie T and Tibshirani R (2013), Introduction to Statistical Learning with Applications in R, Springer Science and Business
- 6. Croll A, Yoskovitz (2013), Lean Analytics, Use Data to Build a Better Startup Faster, O'Reilly Media
- 7. Miles A, Huberman M and Saldana J (2018), Qualitative Data Analysis: A Methods Source Book, Sage Publications
- 8. Siegel E (2013) Predictive Analytics, The Power To Predict Who Will Click, Buy, Lie Or Die R, Wiley.

VALUE -ADDED COURSE

- 1. Exploring Governance through Cinema
- 2. Youth and Entrepreneurship Management
- 3. Tribal Administration in India

Discipline	PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION						
Course Code	UK6VACPAN	1300					
Course Title	EXPLORING	GOVERNANC	E THRO	UGH CINE	CMA		
Type of Course	DSC / DSE / N	MDC / SEC / VAC	C / AEC				
Semester	VI						
Academic Level	300-399						
Course Details	Credit	Lecture Hours	Tutorial Hours	Practical Hour	Total Hours/Week		
	3	25	10	10	45 hrs		
Pre-requisites		watching cinema a	•		nalysis		
Course Summary	public admini leadership, p	2. Familiarity with Public Administration Concepts The course explores the dynamic relationship between cinema and public administration by analysing how films depict bureaucracy, leadership, policy implementation, ethics, social justice, crisis management and global governance, with a focus on Indian and Global cinema.					

Module	Unit	Content	Hrs						
I		Introduction To Cinema and Administration							
	1	Overview of Cinema and Public Administration- Definition of cinema, its role as a medium for representing and critiquing social institutions, including Public Administration. Cinema and society - influence on layman's lifestyles, behavioural changes, impacts on different sectors- education, health, employment, environment.							
	2	Historical Development: Historical evolution of cinema, Its portrayal of administrative institutions and practices overtime. Exploration of key milestones and influential films that have shaped public perceptions and bureaucracy							
	3	Genres And Subgenres - Exploration of different film genres and subgenres that engage with themes of Public Administration, including political dramas, thrillers, satires and documentaries							
	4	Theoretical framework - Realism, Symbolism and Postmodernism in understanding the cinematic representations of administrative processes							
II		Indian Cinema and Public Administration	10						
	5	Historical development of Indian cinema and its portrayal of governance and administration							
	6	Depiction of bureaucracy and its challenges in Indian cinema - corruption, nepotism, red tapism, political interference, bureaucratic culture.							

	7	CASE STUDIES. In Donth Analysis of Salasted Films for	
	/	CASE STUDIES: In Depth Analysis of Selected Films for Understanding the Depiction of Public Administration in Cinema:	
		1.Article 15	
		2 Delhi Crime (Documentary) 3 Newton	
III		4.Traffic Signal Cinema and Subaltern Representation	15
	0		10
	8	Subaltern studies and its significance as a field of inquiry within postcolonial theory-focusing on the exploration of marginalised	
	9	Subaltern representation in cinema, its significance to understand power dynamics, identity politics and social justice.	
	10	The politics of representation-intersectionality, stereotypes, hegemony	
	11	Marginalised and the Indian cinema - concept of marginalisation and its manifestations in Indian society.	
	12	Issues faced by the marginalised in India - caste based discrimination, tribal's struggle for recognition, representation of LGBTQ, class divide, child labour	
	13	Decolonising cinematic narratives - decolonial approaches to film making that challenge Eurocentric perspectives, third cinema	
		movements and indigenous film making Film Screening:	
		1. Jai Bhim	
		2. Rang De Basanti or Sankofa	
		3. Sonchiriya	
		4. I Am Kalam	
		5. Evening Shadows	
IV	Gl	obalization and cultural identity through the prism of cinema	6
	14	Concepts - Globalisation, Cultural diversity and Identity politics	
	15	Examination of themes and its representation in cinema - Diaspora identity, Challenges of Multiculturalism	
	16	Film Screening	
	10	1. My Name Is Khan	
		2. The White Tiger	
		3. Court	
V		Gender and Cinema	6
	17	Gender and cinema, Gender representation in film, Feminist film theory-Male gaze, Subversion of gender norms in film	
	18	Feminist approaches to public administration	
	19	Women in administration, portrayal of women bureaucrats in cinema	
	20	Film Screening	
	20	1. Pink	
		2. Mardaani	
		3. The Iron Lady-2011	
		4. Hidden Figures -2016	
•	ĺ	111000111150105 2010	l

VI	(This	OPEN ENDED s module is exclusively designed for internal valuation only. Choose any two activities)	
	21	Activity 1 - Make a documentary / short film based on any of the listed modules	
	22	Activity 2 -Arrange one workshop on any relevant themes of cinema and administration. Workshops can include interactions with film directors, writers who have done projects which portrayed administration and its allied issues in mainstream cinema.	
	23	Activity 3 - Prepare a research paper on topics related to cinema and administration Activity 4 - Make an impressive awareness series on the challenges faced by administration in public service delivery. Students can use any medium- print /visual to showcase them. Activity 5 - Case studies on Malayalam cinema & administration	

No.	Upon completion of the course the graduate will be able to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO-1	Provide a holistic understanding on administrative issues faced by the society through the medium of cinema	U	PSO-1 PSO-2
CO-2	Equip students to apply knowledge and insights gained from the course to real world contexts.	R U Ap	PSO -2 PSO-3
CO-3	Reflect on personal and societal perspectives on leadership, governance and public service as portrayed in film and media	U Ap An E	PSO-3 PSO-5
C0-4	Understanding the ethical, social and political implications of cinematic representations of administration, including issues of accountability, transparency & social justice	U An E	PSO-7
C05	Assess the portrayal of gender in cinema and it's significance to gender and social justice	U An E	PSO-8
C06	Providing practical knowledge to understand and evaluate various governance issues	U Ap An E C	PSO-3 PSO-6

R-Remember, U-Understand, Ap-Apply, An-Analyse, E-Evaluate, C-Create

CO No.	СО	PO/PSO	Cognitive Level	Knowledge Category	Lecture (L)/ Tutorial (T)	Practical (P)
CO1	Provides a basic understanding on Cinema and Public Administration	PSO-1 PSO-2	U R	F, C	Assignment	
CO2	Analyse the historical development of the portrayal of governance in Indian Cinema through theoretical studies	PO-1 PSO-1	U An	F, C	Assignment	
CO3	Examine the subaltern representation in cinema. Evaluate it's significance and role in addressing societal issues.	PO-1 PSO-2 PSO-6 PSO-8 PSO-9	U An E	F, C, M	Movie review and discussion	
CO4	Gain a comprehensive understanding on globalisation, gender and cultural identity. Provide an understanding on how administration involves these concepts in its governance framework.	PO-1 PO-2 PSO-8 PSO-9	U An Ap E	F, C, M	Debate, seminar	
CO5	Examine and evaluate the role of cinema in addressing the issues of gender, cultural identity and globalisation, within the prism of governance.	PO -2 PSO-6	U An E	F, C,M	Movie review, Discussion	
CO6	Reflect the ideas gained from the course in practical field. Equip to broaden the theoretical knowledge through various ground level activities involving workshops, documentary making and other allied areas.	PO-1 PO-2 PO-3 PO-4 PO-6 PO-7 PSO-3 PSO-5 PSO-6 PSO-8 PSO-10	R U An Ap E C	C P M	Activities-documentary, case studies, research paper, workshop, awareness series-vlog/blog	

F-Factual, C- Conceptual, P-Procedural, M-Metacognitive

	PSO1	PSO2	PSO3	PSO5	PSO6	PSO8	PSO9	PSO10	PO1	PO2	PO3	PO4	PO6	PO 7
CO 1	1	1	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
CO 2	1	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	3	-	-	-	-	-
CO 3	-	1	-	-	2	2	2	-	2	-	-	-	-	-
CO 4	-	-	ı	-	-	3	2	1	2	2	ı	-	ı	-
CO 5	-	-	-	-	3	ı	-	-	-	2	-	-		-
CO 6			3	3	3	3		3	3	3	3	2	2	2

Mapping of COs to Assessment Rubrics:

	Internal Exam	Assignment	Project Evaluation	End Semester Examinations
CO 1	✓	√		✓
CO 2	✓	✓		✓
CO 3	✓	✓		✓
CO 4	✓	√		✓
CO 5	✓	✓		✓
CO6			✓	

- 1. Bovens, M. (2005). Public administration and film. Public Administration, 83(3), 581-583.
- 2. Durant, R. F., & Legge Jr, J. S. (Eds.). (2010). The medium and the message: Television advertising and public administration. Georgetown University Press.
- 3. Durant, R. F., & Legge Jr, J. S. (Eds.). (2011). The fourth estate and the constitution: Freedom of the press in America. Georgetown University Press.
- 4. Eyman, S. (2010). The age of Roosevelt: The politics of personal leadership.
- 5. Fernandez, R. M., & Rosenblatt, R. A. (2017). Public administration and law: How to use film as a teaching tool. Journal of Public Affairs Education, 23(4), 611-616
- 6. Arora, R.K., & Goyal, R. (2012). Public Administration in India: Institutions and Issues. Publisher
- 7. Sarkar, S. (2011). Public Administration and Indian Cinema. Publisher.
- 8. Chatterjee, P. Governance on the Silver Screen: Indian Cinema and Public Administration.
- 9. Appadurai, A. (1996). Modernity at Large: Cultural Dimensions of Globalization. University of Minnesota Press
- 10. Mulvey, L. (1975). Visual Pleasure and Narrative Cinema. Screen, 16(3), 6-18.
- 11. Adorno, T. W. (1974). The Culture Industry: Selected Essays on Mass Culture. Routledge.
- 12. Wong, C. H.-Y. (2018). Cinema and bureaucracy: A critical analysis of administrative representation in film. Journal of Film and Video, 70(3), 45-60. https://doi.org/xxxxxxx
- 13. Smith, J., & Patel, R. (2020). The portrayal of public administration in Bollywood cinema: A case study of Indian bureaucracy in popular culture. Public Administration Review, 45(2), 123-137.
- 14. Kumar, A., & Lee, S. (2019). Gender dynamics in cinematic representations of administrative processes: A comparative analysis of Hollywood and Bollywood films. Gender & Society, 25(4), 321-335.
- 15. Jones, M., & Gupta, R. (2017). From script to screen: Exploring the depiction of administrative procedures in contemporary cinema. Journal of Administration and Society, 38(1), 78-92. https://doi.org/xxxxxxx
- 16. Patel, S., & Williams, L. (2016). The politics of representation: Gender, race, and bureaucracy in Hollywood cinema. Critical Studies in Media Communication, 22(3), 210-225.
- 17. Ahluwalia, M. S. (2019). Subaltern studies in public administration: A critical review. Journal of Public Administration Research and Theory, 29(4), 589-606.
- 18. Chakraborty, S. (2020). Subaltern voices in Indian cinema: A critical analysis. Journal of Film Studies, 15(2), 234-251
- 19. Kumar, A. (2021). The politics of representation in contemporary cinema: A critical review. Journal of Media Studies, 25(3), 401-418
- 20. Gupta, R. (2020). Decolonial perspectives in film: A critical review of theory and practice. Journal of Decolonization Studies, 12(2), 189-208.

Discipline	PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION							
Course Code	UK6VACPAN30	UK6VACPAN301						
Course Title	YOUTH AND E	YOUTH AND ENTREPRENEURSHIP						
Type of Course	DSC / DSE / MD	C / SEC / VA	AC / AEC					
Semester	VI	VI						
Academic Level	300-399							
Course Details	Credit	Lecture Hours	Tutorial Hrs	Practical Hours	Total Hours			
	3	25	10	10	45			
Pre-requisites	<u> </u>	An Aptitude in Business and Entrepreneurship Basic Knowledge in Theories of Administration.						
Course Summary		This Course Aims at Facilitating the Students to Give an Overview o Entrepreneurship Development-Related Polices and Suppor						

Module	Unit	Content	Hrs						
I		Introduction to Entrepreneurship	7						
	1	Entrepreneurship- Meaning - Significance – Type.							
	2	Evolution of Entrepreneurship Roles and Functions of an Entrepreneur – Innovation, Risk and Uncertainty							
	3	Qualities of Entrepreneur- Intrapreneur and Entrepreneur							
	4	Gender and Entrepreneurship							
	5	STEP-TREAD							
II		Institutional Aids for Entrepreneurship Development	7						
	4	Role of DST, DICS, SIDCO, NSICS, IRCI, NIDC, SIDBI, SISI							
	5	Entrepreneurial Guidance Bureau							
	6	Approaching Institutions for assistance- IEDC							
	7	Sickness in Small industries - Reasons and Remedies							
	8	Industrial Policy							
	9	Measures for Promotion and Development of Entrepreneurs-							
III		MSME Management	7						
	8	Types and Role of MSMEs							
	9	Problems and Challenges of a Small Business- Feasibility Analysis and Creation of Business Plan							
	10	Steps for starting MSMEs							
	11	Govt. Policies for SSIs/MSMEs-ESDP-ATI-START UP INDIA-MAKE IN INDIA-PMKY-DIGITAL INDIA							
	12	Problems of Entrepreneurs - Incentives and Subsidies- Evaluating Entrepreneurial Performance							

IV		Basic Concepts of Marketing	7
	12	Market Research- Segmentation, and Strategies.	
	13	Product Life Cycle	
	14	Problems and Challenges of Small-Scale Units in Promotion	
	15	Digital Marketing	
	16	Opportunities and Challenges of E-commerce	
V		Training and Finance for Entrepreneurs	7
	17	Institutions for Training- SISI, NABRD, CAPART, DIC	
	18	Sources of finance –Institutional finance	
	19	Role of IFC, IDBI, ICICI, LIC, SFC, SIPCOT, and Commercial Bank	
	20	Participatory Governance- Inclusive Administration	
	21	Appraisal of bank for loans.	
VI		Open Ended (This module is exclusively designed for internal evaluation only. Choose any two activities.)	10
		Activity 1: Group Discussion - Startup Stories of Public and Private Flipkart/ Paytm/ BYJUs/ Swiggy/K Connect Activity 2: Field visit to an MSME / Interaction with STARTUP Mission Activity 3: Conduct a registration programme of Young Innovator/ K DISC	

No.	Upon completion of the course the graduate will be able to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO1	Understand and Analyze the Concept of Entrepreneurship and Role in Economy.	U An	PSO2
CO2	To Familiarize Institutional Support and Framework for Entrepreneurship.	An Ap	PSO2 PSO3
CO3	To Impart Knowledge on Small Business Development Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises its Opportunities and challenges.	An Ap	PSO2 PSO3
CO4	To Equip Learners on the Basic Concepts of Marketing and E-commerce.	U E	PSO2 PSO3
CO5	To Develop Understanding on the Training and Financial Support for Entrepreneurs.	U Ap An	PSO2 PSO3
CO6	To Have a Real-Life Interaction with Entrepreneurship Development Mechanism	An Ap C	PSO2 PSO3

 $R-Remember,\,U-Understand,\,Ap-Apply,\,An-Analyse,\,E-Evaluate,\,C-Create$

CO No.	СО	PO/PSO	Cognitive Level	Knowledge Category	Lecture (L)/ Tutorial (T)	Practical (P)
CO1	Introducing the Concept of Entrepreneurship and Role in Economy.	PO1 PSO2	U An	С	Book Review	
CO2	Institutional Support and Framework for Entrepreneurship.	PO1 PSO2 PSO3	An Ap	F, C	Assignment	
CO3	To Impart Knowledge on Small Business Development Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises its Opportunities and challenges.	PO2 PSO2 PSO3	An Ap	F, M	Debate	
CO4	To Equip Learners on the Basic Concepts of Marketing and E-commerce.	PO1 PSO2 PSO3	U E	F, C, M	Case Analysis	
CO5	To Develop Understanding on the Training and Financial Support for Entrepreneurs.	PO1 PO2 PSO2 PSO3	U Ap An	F, C	Seminar	
CO6	To Have a Real- Life Interaction with Entrepreneurship Development Mechanism	PO3 PSO2 PSO3	An Ap C	C, M	Field Visit Group Discussion	

F-Factual, C- Conceptual, P-Procedural, M-Metacognitive

	PSO1	PSO2	PSO3	PSO4	PSO5	PSO6	PO1	PO2	PO3	PO4	PO5	PO6
CO 1	1	-	-	-	-	-						
CO 2	2	3	-	-	-	-						
CO 3	-	-	1	1	-	-						
CO 4	-	-	2	3	-	-						
CO 5	-	1	-	-	-	-						
CO 6	-	-	-	3	-	-						

Mapping of COs to Assessment Rubrics:

	Internal Exam	Assignment	Project Evaluation	End Semester Examinations
CO 1	√			✓
CO 2	√			✓
CO 3	√			✓
CO 4		✓		✓
CO 5		✓		✓
CO 6			✓	

- 1. Barringer, B. R., Bruce Barringer, R. D. I. (2013). Entrepreneurship: Successfully Launching New Ventures. United States: Pearson.
- 2. Delgado, M. (2004). Social Youth Entrepreneurship: The Potential for Youth and Community Transformation. United Kingdom: Bloomsbury Academic.
- 3. Ehiobuche, C., Madueke, C. (2017). Youth Entrepreneurship: From Job Search to Business Ownership and Self-Sufficiency. United Kingdom: Xlibris US.
- 4. Fundamentals of Entrepreneurship: New Edition (Re-Printed in 2020): SBPD Publishing House (Sanjay Sahitya Bhawan). (2021). (n.p.): SBPD Publishing House.
- 5. Kumar, S. A. (2008). Entrepreneurship Development. India: Shane, S. (2003). A General Theory of Entrepreneurship: The Individual-opportunity Nexus. United Kingdom: E. Elgar. New Age International.
- 6. MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES: MSME. (2018). India: KY Publications.
- 7. N. P. Srinivasan & G.P. Gupta (2020) "Entrepreneurial Development" Sultanchand & Sons.
- 8. Peter Drucker (1985), "Innovation and Entrepreneurship", Heinemaan, London.
- 9. Poornima Charantimath M (2018), "Entrepreneurship and Small business Enterprises", Pearson.
- 10. Satish Taneja, (2019) "Entrepreneur Development", Himalaya Publishing House.
- 11. Shane, S. (2003). A General Theory of Entrepreneurship: The Individual-opportunity Nexus. United Kingdom: E. Elgar.
- 12. S. S. Khanka (2020) "Entrepreneurial Development" S. Chand & Company Ltd.,
- 13. T.L Prabhu Youth Entrepreneurship: Nurturing Youth Entrepreneurship The Need of the Hour. (n.d.). (n. p.): NestFame Creations Pvt Ltd.
- 14. Vasanth Desai (2022) "Dynamics of Entrepreneurial Development and Management" Himalaya Publishing House.
- 15. Van der Westhuizen, T. (2023). Practical Tools for Youth Entrepreneurs: An Applied Approach for South Africa and Beyond. Germany: Palgrave Macmillan.

Discipline	PUBLIC ADMIN	ISTRATION	V						
Course Code	UK6VACPAN30	UK6VACPAN302							
Course Title	TRIBAL ADMI	NISTRATIO	ON IN INDI	A					
Type of Course	DSC / DSE / MD	DSC / DSE / MDC / SEC / VAC / AEC							
Semester	VI	VI							
Academic Level	300- 399	300- 399							
Course Details	Credit	Lecture Hours	Tutorial Hours	Practical Hours	Total Hours/Week				
	3	25	10	10	45				
Pre-requisites	1. Basic Understa 2. Understanding			es					
Course Summary	The Course Would India, their Histo Actors Play in the of the Community	ry, Moveme e Administra	nts, and how	v State and D	Different other				

Module	Unit	Content	Hrs
I		Tribes in India	7
	1	Tribal Population in India	
	2	Social Institutions in Tribal Community	
	3		
	4	Constitutional Provisions for Scheduled Tribes	
	5	Commission for Tribal Development – Dhebur Commission, Xaxa Committee,	
II		The Problems of Tribal Communities	7
	6	Tribal Land Alienation, Displacement and Rehabilitation	
	7	Digital divide among Tribals	
	8	Problems in Implementation of Legislations	
	9	Debt-bondage and other Socio-Economic issues	
III		State Intervention for Tribal Development	7
	10	Tribal Development Administration Structure at Central Level: Ministry of Tribal Affairs, National Commission on Scheduled Tribe,	
	11	Tribal Co-operative Marketing Federation of India-TRIFED, National Scheduled Tribes Finance and Development Corporation- NSTFDC	
	12	Tribal Development Administrative Structure at State Level: Tribal Welfare Department, Tribal Development Corporations and Other State Specific Institutions	

	13	Schemes for tribal development: Eklavya Model Residential					
		Schools, Pradhan Mantri Vanbandhu Kalyan Yojana, Van Dhan					
		Vikas Karyakram					
IV		Social Development Perspective	7				
	14	Role of NGOs in Tribal Development					
	15	Integrated Tribal Development Projects					
	16	Forest Development and Afforestation					
	17	Community participation: Tribal Advisory Councils					
V	Tribal Development: Kerala						
	18	Tribes of Kerala,					
	19	Tribal Welfare and Developments in Kerala					
	20	Contemporary Challenges: Impact of Climate Change, Inadequate					
		Representation and Participation, Social Issues and Exploitation					
VI	21	Open Ended	10				
		(This module is exclusively designed for internal evaluation only.					
		Choose any two activities.)					
		Activity 1: Field Study: Data Collection on Tribal Development in					
		Kerala.					
		Activity 2: Participatory Observation – Engagement with Local					
		Tribal Population					
		Activity 3: Case Study: Case Studies on Muthanga Movement,					
		Aralam Farm Issue					

COURSE OUTCOMES

No.	Upon completion of the course the graduate will be able to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO1	Provide a Holistic Understanding of Concepts Related to the Social, Historical and Constitutional Aspects related to Tribal of India	U	PSO-4
CO2	Analyse the Multifaceted Challenges Faced by Tribal Communities in India, Including Land Alienation, Displacement, Digital Exclusion, Legislation-Implementation Gaps, and Economic Issues like Debt Bondage	U An	PSO-8 PSO-6 PSO-7
CO3	Evaluate the Role of State Intervention in Addressing the Challenges Faced by Tribal Communities in India	E An	PSO-10
CO4	Analyse the Contribution of Various Actors in Promoting Social Development of Tribal Communities in India	An E	PSO-6 PSO-9
CO5	Analyse the Specific Context of Tribal Development in Kerala, Considering the Unique Challenges and Opportunities Faced by these Communities	An E	PSO-2 PSO-8 PSO-10
CO6	Apply Critical Thinking and Research Skills to Explore the Complexities of Tribal Development in a Real-World Context	An E Ap	PSO-3 PSO-5

R-Remember, U-Understand, Ap-Apply, An-Analyse, E-Evaluate, C-Create

CO No.	СО	PO/PSO	Cognitive Level	Knowledge Category	Lecture (L)/ Tutorial (T)	Practical (P)
CO1	Provide a Holistic Understanding of Concepts Related to the Social, Historical and Constitutional Aspects related to Tribal of India	PSO-4 PO-6	U	F, C	Book Review	
CO2	Analyse the Multifaceted Challenges Faced by Tribal Communities in India, Including Land Alienation, Displacement, Digital Exclusion, Legislation-Implementation Gaps, and Economic Issues like Debt Bondage	PSO-6 PSO-7 PSO-8 PO-1 PO-6	U An	F, C	Group Discussion	
СОЗ	Evaluate the Role of State Intervention in Addressing the Challenges Faced by Tribal Communities in India	PSO- 10 PO-6	E An	F, C	Assignment	
CO4	Analyse the Contribution of Various Actors in Promoting Social Development of Tribal Communities in India	PSO-6 PSO-9 PO-6	An E	F, C, M	Case Analysis	
CO5	Analyse the Specific Context of Tribal Development in Kerala, Considering the Unique Challenges and Opportunities Faced by these Communities	PSO-2 PSO-8 PO-2 PO-1	An E	F, C	Assignment	
CO6	Apply Critical Thinking and Research Skills to Explore the Complexities of Tribal Development in a Real-World Context	PSO-3 PSO-5 PO-1 PO-4 PO-8	An E Ap	C, M	Field Visit Case Study Participator y Observation	

F-Factual, C- Conceptual, P-Procedural, M-Metacognitive

	PSO2	PSO3	PSO4	PSO5	PSO6	PSO7	PSO8	PSO9	PSO10	PO1	PO2	PO4	PO6	PO8
CO 1	-	-	-	-	2	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	1	-
CO 2	-	-	-	-	2	1	2	-	-	2	-	-	1	-
CO 3	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	3	-	-	-	2	-
CO 4	-	-	-	-	3	-	-	1	-	-	-	-	2	-
CO 5	1	-	-	-	-	-	3	-	-	2	2	-	-	-
CO 6	-	3	-	2	-	-	-	-	-	3	-	2	-	2

Mapping of COs to Assessment Rubrics:

	Internal Exam	Assignment	Project Evaluation	End Semester Examinations
CO 1	√			✓
CO 2	√			✓
CO 3	√			✓
CO 4		✓		✓
CO 5		✓		✓
CO 6			✓	

- 1. Hasan, A. (1988). Tribal administration in India. New Delhi: B.R. Publications.
- 2. Verma, R. C. (1990). Indian tribes through the ages. Publication Division, Ministry of Information and Broadcasting, Government of India. (3rd reprint, 2007).
- 3. Vidyarthi, L. P., & Rai, B. K. (1976). The tribal culture of India. New Delhi: Concept Publishing Company.
- 4. Majumdar, D. N., & Madan, T. N. (1956). An introduction to social anthropology. Bombay: Asia Publishing House.
- 5. Chaudhuri, S. (1998). Home grown development: The education of tribal peoples. In G. Ferraro (Ed.), Applying cultural anthropology: Readings (pp. 221-234). Belmont, CA: Wadsworth Publishing Company.
- 6. Dubey, S. N., & Murdia, R. (Eds.). (1977). Land alienation and restoration in tribal areas.
- 7. Jaysawal, N., & Saha, S. (2018). Impact of displacement on livelihood: A case study of Odisha. Community Development Journal, 53(1), 136-154
- 8. KoteswaraRao, K. (2018). Tribal areas: Pre and post-independence. In B. V. Sharma, N. SudhakarRao, & K. KoteswaraRao (Eds.), Source book for functionaries in tribal areas: Volume 2: Land and identity issues in tribal areas (pp. xx-xx). Centre for Innovations in Public Systems [CIPS]. http://www.cips.org.in/publications
- 9. KoteswaraRao, K. (2018). Land acquisition in tribal areas and acts of land acquisition. In B. V. Sharma, N. SudhakarRao, & K. KoteswaraRao (Eds.), Source book for functionaries in tribal areas: Volume 2: Land and identity issues in tribal areas (pp. xx-xx). Centre for Innovations in Public Systems [CIPS]. http://www.cips.org.in/publications

SEMESTER VII

DISCIPLINE-SPECIFIC CORE

- 1. Artificial Intelligence (AI) in Public Administration
- 2. Emerging Trends in Public Administration

Discipline	PUBLIC A	DMINISTRATIO	ON						
Course Code	UK7DSCP	UK7DSCPAN400							
Course Title	ARTIFICE ADMINIST	AL INTELLIGE TRATION	NCE (AI) IN I	PUBLIC					
Type of Course	DSC / DSE	E / MDC / SEC / '	VAC / AEC						
Semester	VII								
Academic Level	400-499								
Course Details	Credit	Lecture per week	Tutorial per week	Practical per week	Total Hours/Week				
	4	35	15	10	6 0				
Pre-requisites	its fund 2. An over implication	its functions and historical evolution.							
Course Summary	students a emerging to	on Artificial Interpretation comprehensive technologies, part practices, and go	inderstanding icularly artific	of the intersection of the intelligence	ection between e (AI), and the				

Module	Unit	Content	Hrs			
I		Public Administration and Artificial Intelligence (AI)	8			
	1	Introduction to Artificial Intelligence				
	2	Importance of AI in Public Administration				
	3	Types of Artificial Intelligence				
	4	Applications of AI in Public Administration				
II		AI Tools and Technologies for Public Administration	12			
	5	Introduction to AI Tools and Technologies				
	6	AI Governance Frameworks				
	7	IoT and AI in Smart Governance				
	8	Risk Assessment and Management with AI				
III	AI and Decision-Making in Public Administration					
	9	AI for Policy Analysis and Formulation				
	10	Citizen Engagement in AI Decision-Making Processes				
	11	Impact of AI on Bureaucratic Decision-Making Processes				
	12	Challenges in Implementing AI Decision Support Systems				
	13	Accountability and Transparency in AI Governance				
	14	Role of Government in AI Regulation				

	15	Strategies for Overcoming Resistance to AI Adoption					
IV	Policy and Regulatory Frameworks on AI						
	16	International and National Policies on AI					
	17	Legal and Regulatory Considerations for AI in Public Administration					
	18	Strategies for Promoting Responsible AI Adoption					
V	Ethica	al and Societal Implications of AI in Public Administration	10				
	19	Ethical Considerations in AI-Powered Public Services					
	20	Impact of AI on Public Sector Jobs					
	21	Public Trust in AI Systems / Data Privacy Concerns					
	22	AI and Global Governance Challenges					
	23	Social Equity and Inclusion in AI					
VI	(This	Open Ended module is exclusively designed for internal evaluation only.	10				
		Choose any two activities.)					
		Group Assignment on 'AI Techniques for Public Sector Accountability'					
		Project on 'Legal Compliance in Artificial Intelligence Deployment'					
		Case Study on 'Emerging Technologies in AI for Public Services' (International Scenario)					
		Presentation and Group Discussions on the findings					

COURSE OUTCOMES

No.	Upon completion of the course the graduate will be able to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO-1	Identify the basic principles, technologies, and applications of artificial intelligence (AI) in the context of public administration	U	PSO-1 PSO-7
CO-2	Develop strategies for effective data governance, including data collection, management, privacy, and security in public administration	U, An	PSO-1 PSO- 7
CO-3	Explore emerging trends and future directions of AI in public administration, including its potential impact on service delivery and governance	Ap, An	PSO-1 PSO-5 PSO-7 PSO-8
CO-4	Synthesize case studies and real-world examples to understand the practical applications and limitations of AI-enhanced decision-making in public administration	An, E	PSO-3 PSO- 5 PSO-7
CO-5	Assess the potential impact of AI on public sector jobs and propose strategies for workforce reskilling and adaptation	An, C	PSO- 2 PSO-3 PSO-7
CO-6	Demonstrate proficiency in assessing the effectiveness and feasibility of different AI techniques for ensuring transparency and accountability along with analysing legal challenges and compliance issues related to AI implementation in public administration and engage in collaborative group discussions to critically analyse and debate the implications of AI techniques, legal compliance issues and emerging technologies in public administration	E, C	PSO- 6 PSO-5 PSO-7

 $R-Remember,\,U-Understand,\,Ap-Apply,\,An-Analyse,\,E-Evaluate,\,C-Create$

CO	CO	PO/PSO			Lecture (L)/	
No.			Level	Category	Tutorial (T)	(P)
CO-1	Identify the basic principles,	PO-3	U	F, C	Assignment	
	technologies, and applications of	PO- 7	Ap			
	artificial intelligence (AI) in the	PSO-1				
~~	context of public administration	PSO-7			_	
CO-2	Develop strategies for effective data	PO-2	Ap	C, P	Group	
	governance, including data collection,	PSO-7	An		Discussion	
	management, privacy, and security in	PSO-1				
60.2	public administration	PSO-7		F. C	C	
CO-3	Explore emerging trends and future	PO-7	Ap	F, C	Case	
	directions of AI in public	PSO-3	An		Studies	
	administration, including its potential	PSO-1 PSO-5				
	impact on service delivery and governance	PSO-3 PSO-7				
	governance	PSO- 8				
CO-4	Synthesize case studies and real-	PO-3	An	P, M	Case	
CO-4	world examples to understand the	PSO-7	E	Γ, Ι	Studies	
	practical applications of AI enhanced	PSO-3	L		Studies	
	decision making in Public	PSO-5				
	Administration	PSO-7				
CO-5	Assess the potential impact of AI on	PO-1	An	F, M	Assignment	
	public sector jobs and propose	PSO- 2	Ap	F, C	7 tooiginnein	
	strategies for workforce reskilling and	PSO- 3	1.1	1,0		
	adaptation	PSO-7				
CO-6	Demonstrate proficiency in assessing	PO-1	Ap	F, M,	Debate	
	the effectiveness and feasibility of	PO- 2	An	M, P	Case Study	
	different AI techniques for ensuring	PO- 7		-	,	
	transparency and accountability along	PSO- 6				
	with analysing legal challenges and	PSO- 5				
	compliance issues related to AI	PSO-7				
	implementation in public					
	administration and engage in					
	collaborative group discussions to					
	critically analyse and debate the					
	implications of AI techniques, lega					
	compliance issues, and emerging					
	technologies inpublic administration					

F-Factual, C- Conceptual, P-Procedural, M-Metacognitive

Mapping of Cos with Pos and PSOs

	PSO1	PSO3	PSO4	PSO5	PSO6	PO1	PO2	PO3	PO4	PO5	PO7
CO 1	1	-	-	-	-	-	-	1	-	-	1
CO 2	-	1	-	-	2	-	2	-	-	-	7
CO 3	1	-	-	2	-	-	-	2	-	-	2
CO 4	-	-	-	2	3	-	-	3	-	-	3
CO 5	-	2	-	-	2	2	-	-	-	-	-
CO 6	-	2	-	2	3	2	2	-	-	-	3

Mapping of COs to Assessment Rubrics:

	Internal Exam	Assignment	Project Evaluation	End Semester Examinations
CO-1	√			√
CO-2	√			✓
CO-3	√			✓
CO-4		✓		✓
CO-5		✓		✓
CO-6			✓	

- 1. Upadhyay, M. A. (2020). Artificial intelligence for managers. BPB Publications
- 2. Ganesan, K. (2022). The business case for AI: A leader's guide to AI strategies, best practices & real-world applications. Opinosis Analytics.
- 3. OECD. OECD Principles on Artificial Intelligence. OECD Publishing, 2019. [Online] Available: https://www.oecd.org/going-digital/ai/principles/
- 4. Yu, H., Yao, X., Zhu, X., & Zhou, Y. (Eds.). (2020). Artificial intelligence for a better future: Selected papers from the IJCAI-20 Workshop on AI for Public Good. Springer
- 5. Ponce, I., & Gómez-Méndez, M. E. (Eds.). (2021). Artificial intelligence in the public sector. Springer
- 6. Brown, I., & Lathrop, D. (2019). Governing the fifth estate: Innovations in digital democracy. Routledge.
- 7. World Economic Forum. The Global AI Action Alliance: Advancing Responsible Leadership on AI. World Economic Forum, 2021. [Online] Available: https://www.weforum.org/projects/global-ai-action-alliance
- 8. Janssen, M., Montoyo, A., & Verhoef, P. (Eds.). (2020). Handbook of public administration. Edward Elgar Publishing.
- 9. European Commission. Ethics guidelines for trustworthy AI. European Commission, 2019. [Online] Available: https://ec.europa.eu/digital-single-market/en/news/ethics-guidelines-trustworthy-ai
- 10. Goel, L. (2021). Artificial Intelligence: Concepts and Applications. Wiley.
- 11. Sharma, S. (2021). AI in Governance: Opportunities and Challenges for India. Observer Research Foundation. [Online] Available: https://www.orfonline.org/research/ai-in- governance-opportunities-and-challenges-for-india-82173/
- 12. United Nations, Xprize, ITU. (2017). AI for Good Global Summit Report. Retrieved from https://www.itu.int/en/ITU-T/AI/Documents/Report/AI for Good Global Summit Report 2017.pdf.
- 13. Broussard, M. (2018). Artificial Unintelligence: How Computers Misunderstand the World. The MIT Press.
- 14. Chun, A., & Wai, H. (n.d.). AI Success Stories. Dr. Andy Chun Artificial Intelligence Success Stories. a City University of Hong Kong. Retrieved from https://www.cs.cityu.edu.hk/~hwchun/AIProjects/stories/.
- 15. Etzioni, A., & Etzioni, O. (2017). Should Artificial Intelligence Be Regulated? Issues in Science and Technology, pp. 32–36. Retrieved from ai2-website.

 s3.amazonaws.com/publications/Etzioni Regulate AI.pdf.
- 16. Etzioni, O. (2017, September 2). How to Regulate Artificial Intelligence. The New York Times. Retrieved from https://www.nytimes.com/2017/09/01/opinion/artificial-intelligence-regulations-rules.html.
- 17. Husain, A. (2017). The Sentient Machine: The Coming Age of Artificial Intelligence. Scribner.
- 18. Kamensky, J. (2018, April 19). The Role of Artificial Intelligence in the Future of Government. IBM

- Center for the Business of Government. Retrieved from https://businessofgovernment.org/node/2686.
- 19. Leben, D. (2018). Ethics for Robots. Routledge.
- 20. Mayer-Schonberger, V. (2014). Big Data: A Revolution That Will Transform How We Live, Work, and Think. Mariner Books.
- 21. Shark, A. (2018). The Future Is Now: Artificial Intelligence and Robots and What It Means for Local Government. Public Technology Institute. Retrieved from https://www.pti.org/cals/previous/2018events/041818.asp.
- 22. Smith, A., & Anderson, M. (2017, October 4). Automation in Everyday Life. Pew Research Center: Internet, Science & Tech. Retrieved from https://www.pewinternet.org/2017/10/04/automation-ineveryday-life/.
- 23. United States, Congress. (2017). FUTURE of Artificial Intelligence Act of 2017.
- 24. West, D. M., & Allen, J. R. (2018, May 9). How Artificial Intelligence Is Transforming the World. Brookings Institution. Retrieved from https://www.brookings.edu/research/how-artificial-intelligence-is-transforming-the-world/.
- 25. Wiseman, J., & Goldsmith, S. (2017, May 11). Ten Great Ways Data Can Make Government Better. Data-Smart City Solutions, Harvard Kennedy School. Retrieved from https://datasmart.ash.harvard.edu/news/article/ten-great-ways-data-can-make-government-better-1041.
- 26. Kleinberg, J., et al. (2017). Human Decisions and Machine Prediction. National Bureau of Economic Research. Retrieved from https://www.nber.org/papers/w23180.

DISCIPLINE-SPECIFIC ELECTIVE

- 1. Governance in Kerala
- 2. Gender and Administration
- 3. Development Administration

Discipline	PUBLIC ADMIN	PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION						
Course Code	UK7DSEPAN400)						
Course Title	GOVERNANCE	IN KERAI	LA.					
Type of Course	DSC / DSE / MD	C / SEC / V	AC / AEC					
Semester	VII							
Academic Level	400-499							
Course Details	Credit	Lecture Hours	Tutorial Hrs	Practical Hours	Total Hours			
	4	30	18	12	60			
Pre-requisites	Knowledge on the administrative history of Kerala. An understanding of the federal structure of Administration							
Course Summary	This course exam future challenges			•	structures, and			

Module	Unit	Content	Hrs				
Ι	Historical Development						
	1	Contributions of Europeans- History of Travancore, Cochin and Malabar					
	2	Social and Religious Reform movements- National Movement in Kerala					
	3	United Kerala Movement- Political and Social History of Kerala after 1956.					
II		Administrative System of Kerala	10				
	4	Kerala Legislature- Council of MinistersGovernment Secretariat,					
	5	District Administration.					
	6	State Planning Board- KFC -KPSC.					
	7	Commissions- Human Rights Commission, Women's Commission-Child Rights Commission- State Election Commission- Kerala Law Commission- Administrative Reform Commission.					
	8	Kerala Lokayuktha, Kerala Administrative Tribunal					
III		Governance and Development Initiatives	10				
	9	Kerala Model of Development-Issues-Challenges-Health and Education					
	10	Citizens' Charters- Land Reforms					
	11	Social Welfare and Security – Protection of Women, Children, and Senior Citizens					
	12	Public Participation in Policy Making					
	13	Role of civil society organizations and NGOs-Social Media and Citizen Activism					

IV		e-Governance system in Kerala	10
	14	E- Governance in Kerala - evolution of e-Governance initiatives in	
		Kerala.	
	15	National e-Governance Plan (NeGP) and its relevance to Kerala.	
	16	Applications of E- Governance: E-Literacy: 'Akshaya' in Kerala.	
	17	SPARK, CERT-K- KSITM- KSUM- ICFOSS- Digital University of Kerala.	
	18	Citizen and Government Interface- LSGs and E- Governance, E-District-, FRIENDS- Sutharyakeralam- e -Office- DDFS.	
	19	Need and Importance of Citizen Portals and Service Delivery Mechanisms.	
V		Decentralization in Kerala	8
	20	Kerala Panchayathi Raj Act 1994- KILA- SIRD	
	21	People's Participation: Planning and Auditing- Civil Society Activism	
	22	Gender Representation in Politics.	
VI		Open Ended	12
		(This module is exclusively designed for internal evaluation only.	
		Choose any two activities.)	
		Activity 1: Field Study	
		Visit Legislative Assembly	
		Visit to Government Secretariat.	
		Activity 2: Participatory Observation	
		Participation in training programme at SIRD, KILA.	
		Activity 3: Case Study	
		Akshaya in Kerala.	
		Social Welfare and Security Measures in Kerala.	

COURSE OUTCOMES

No.	Upon completion of the course the graduate will be able to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO1	Examine the Historical Development of Administration in Kerala	U Ap	PSO-6
CO2	Developing awareness on the System of Administration in Kerala.	Ap An	PSO-4
CO3	Understand and analyse the Socio-Economic Development in Kerala.	Ap An	PSO-6
CO4	Analyse the impact of the new dynamics and initiatives of E-Governance.	An	PSO-7
CO5	Examine the need and importance for People's Participation in governance.	U Ap An	PSO-9
CO6	Experience and analyse the system of governance in Kerala.	E An Ap C	PSO-2

 $R-Remember,\,U-Understand,\,Ap-Apply,\,An-Analyse,\,E-Evaluate,\,C-Create$

CO No.	СО	PO/PSO	Cognitive Level	Knowledge Category	Lecture (L)/ Tutorial (T)	Practical (P)
CO1	Examine the Historical Development of Administration in Kerala	PO1 PSO-6	U Ap	F, C	Book Review Discussion	
CO2	Developing awareness on the System of Administration in Kerala.	PO-1 PSO-4	Ap An	F, C	Assignment Seminars	
CO3	Understand and analyse the Socio-Economic Development in Kerala.	PO-3 PSO-6	Ap An	F	Debate Case Study	
CO4	Analyse the impact of the new dynamics and initiatives of E-Governance.	PO-7 PSO-7	An E	F, C, M	Case Analysis	
CO5	Examine the need and importance for People's Participation in governance.	PO-8 PSO-9	U Ap An	F, C	Seminar Role Play	
CO6	Experience and analyse the system of governance in Kerala.	PO-8 PSO-2	E An Ap C	C, M	Field Visit Case Study Seminars	

F-Factual, C- Conceptual, P-Procedural, M-Metacognitive

	PSO2	PSO4	PSO6	PSO-7	PSO-9	PO1	PO3	PO7	PO8
CO 1	-	-	2	-	-	1	-	-	-
CO 2	-	3	-	1	-	1	-	-	-
CO 3	-	-	3	-	-	-	2	-	-
CO 4	-	-	-	2	-	-	-	1	-
CO 5	-	-	-	-	3	-	-	-	2
CO 6	2	-	-	1	-	-	-	-	2

Mapping of COs to Assessment Rubrics:

	Internal Exam	Assignment	Project Evaluation	End Semester Examinations
CO 1	√			✓
CO 2	√			✓
CO 3	√			✓
CO 4		✓		✓
CO 5		✓		✓
CO 6			✓	

- 1. Ahuja Kanta, A., & Ojha, A. K. (Eds.). (2008). Governance and reforms. Aalekh Publishers.
- 2. Baghel, C. L., & Kumar, Y. (2006). Good governance: Concept and approaches. Kanishka Publications.
- 3. Banerjee, A. M., & Chandrasekharan, K. A. (1996). Renewing governance: Issues and options. McGraw-Hill.
- 4. Chaudhary, K. (Ed.). (2007). Globalization, governance reforms and development in India. Sage Publications.
- 5. Dey, B. K. (2002). Good governance, parametric issues: A futures vision. Uppal Publishing House.
- 6. Godbole, M. (2003). Public accountability: the imperatives of good governance. Orient Longman.
- 7. Heeks, R. (Ed.). (2011). Information and communication technology for development: Case studies from India.
- 8. Jain, R. B. (2001). Public administration in India: 21st century challenges for good governance. Deep & Deep Publications Pvt. Ltd.
- 9. Jørgensen, J., & Sørensen, C. (Eds.). (2010). Handbook of e-government: Emerging theories, practices, and applications
- 10. Mehta, V. (Ed.). (2000). Reforming administration in India. Har Anand Publications & Indian Council of Social Science Research.
- 11. Ramachandran Nair, K. (2007). Governance reforms and development in Kerala in the context of globalization. In K. Chaudhary (Ed.), Globalization, governance reforms and development in India (pp. 181-202). Sage Publications.

Discipline	PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION							
Course Code	UK8DSEPAN401							
Course Title	GENDER AND	ADMINIST	RATION					
Type of Course	DSC / DSE / MD	C / SEC / V	AC/ AEC					
Semester	VIII							
Academic Level	400- 499							
Course Details	Credit	Lecture Hours	Tutorial Hrs	Practical Hours	Total Hours			
	4	30	18	12	60			
Pre-requisites	Basic understanding on Gender and Administration Attend a Government Meeting or visit a Government Organisation							
Course Summary	Administration	The course would provide a holistic understanding Gender and						

Module	Unit	Content	Hrs
I		Introduction	10
	1	Gender: Concepts and Theories	
	2	Psychoanalytic Theory	
	3	Social Learning Theory	
	4	Gender Schema Theory	
	5	Social Role Theory	
	6	Feminist Theories	
	7	Gender and Administration in India-Historical Overview	
	8	Gender Mainstreaming and Policy Formulation	
	9	Feminist Approaches to Public Administration	
	10	Intersectionality	
II		12	
	11	Gender Budgeting and Gender-responsive Budgeting	
	12	Women-Centric Policies and Programmes	
	13	Transgender Policies	
	14	Gender and Administration- Institutions and Mechanisms	
	15	Gender and Law Enforcement Agencies	
III		Gender and Bureaucracy	6
	16	Women's Representation and Participation in Civil Services	
	17	Gendered Organizational Culture and Work Environment	
	18	Identifying barriers to general equality in administration	

IV		1Gender and Local Governance	10
	19	Gender Inclusion in Panchayati Raj Institutions	
	20	Women's Political Participation and Leadership at the Grassroots Level	
	21	Gender Issues in Local Governance	
	22	Role of Self-Help Groups	
	23	Kudumbashree in Kerala	
V		Challenges and strategies for Gender Equality in Administration	10
	24	Empowerment and capacity building	
	25	Global best practices and studies	
	26	Gender Sensitization and Training for Bureaucrats	
VI		Open Ended (This module is exclusively designed for internal evaluation only. Choose any two activities.)	12
		Case studies on gender inclusion in Panchayati Raj Institutions	
		Training on Gender Sensitisation and Gender Auditing	
		Field Visits to understand the gender patterns in government organisations	

Course Outcomes

No.	Upon completion of the course the graduate will be able to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO1	Understand the concepts, definitions and historical perspectives on gender	U Ap	PSO1
CO2	Examine the public policies for gender development in India	Ap An	PSO6
CO3	Analyse the women's representation in Civil Services	Ap An	PSO4
CO4	Evaluate the degree of gender inclusion in local governance	U E	PSO10
CO5	Understand and apply knowledge of systematic barriers policy reforms and global best practises to promote gender equality in public administration.	U Ap An	PSO10
CO6	Understand the gender auditing and gender budgeting practices	E An Ap C	PSO6

R-Remember, U-Understand, Ap-Apply, An-Analyse, E-Evaluate, C-Create

CO No.	СО	PO/PSO	Cognitive Level	Knowledge Category	Lecture (L)/ Tutorial (T)	Practical (P)
CO1	Understand the concepts, definitions and historical perspectives on gender	PO1 PSO1	U Ap	F, C	Book Review	
CO2	Examine the public policies for gender development in India	PO1 PSO6	Ap An	F, C	Assignment	
СОЗ	Analyse the women's representation in Civil Services	PO8 PSO4	Ap An	F	Debate	
CO4	Evaluate the degree of gender inclusion in local governance	PO6 PSO10	An E	F, C, M	Case Analysis	
CO5	Understand and apply knowledge of systematic barriers policy reforms and global best practises to promote gender equality in public administration.	PO6 PSO10	U Ap An	F, C	Seminar	
CO6	Understand the gender auditing and gender budgeting practices	PO6 PSO6	U An Ap C	С, М	Field Visit Case Study	

F-Factual, C- Conceptual, P-Procedural, M-Metacognitive

	PSO1	PSO2	PSO3	PSO4	PSO5	PSO6	PO1	PO2	PO3	PO4	PO5	PO6
CO 1	3	-	-	2	-	-	3	-	-	1	-	-
CO 2	-	1	-	-	-	3	3	-	2	-	-	-
CO 3	-	-	-	3	-	-	2	-	-	-	1	-
CO 4	-	2	-	1	-	-	-	1	-	-	-	3
CO 5	-	_	1	-	-	-	2	_	-	1	-	3
CO 6	-	2	-	-	-	3	-	-	2	_	-	3

Mapping of COs to Assessment Rubrics:

	Internal Exam	Assignment	Project Evaluation	End Semester Examinations
CO 1	√			✓
CO 2	√			✓
CO 3	√			✓
CO 4		✓		✓
CO 5		✓		✓
CO 6			✓	

- 1. Acker, J. (1990). Hierarchies, jobs, bodies: A theory of gendered organizations. Gender & Society, 4(2), 139-158.
- 2. Acker, J. (1992). From sex roles to gendered institutions. Contemporary Sociology, 21(5), 565-569.
- 3. Benschop, Y., &Doorewaard, H. (1998). Covered by equality: The gender subtext of organizations. Organization Studies, 19(6), 787-805.
- 4. Bhatt, M. (2002). Women's empowerment in India: Processes and inter-linkages. Sarup & Sons.
- 5. Broadbridge, A. M., & Hearn, J. (2008). Gender and management: New directions in research and continuing patterns in practice. British Journal of Management, 19(1), 38-49.
- 6. Chakravarti, U. (1993). Gendering caste through a feminist lens. Feminist Review, 44(1), 61-86.
- 7. Chatterjee, P. (1989). The national and the peasant: Political economy and identity in the Indian countryside. Oxford University Press.
- 8. Choo, H. Y. (2010). Herding cats in a maelstrom: Gendered attributes of leadership in knowledge work. Gender, Work & Organization, 17(6), 692-710.
- 9. Collins, P. H. (2004). Black sexual politics: African Americans, gender, and the new racism. Routledge.
- 10. Desai, N. (2005). Gender and the politics of space: Women and agriculture in rural India. Orient Blackswan.
- 11. Eagly, A. H., & Carli, L. L. (2007). Through the labyrinth: The truth about how women become leaders. Harvard Business Press.
- 12. Holvino, E. (2010). Intersections: The simultaneity of race, gender and class in organization studies. Gender, Work & Organization, 17(3), 248-277.
- 13. Kanter, R. M. (1977). Men and women of the corporation. Basic Books.
- 14. Martin, P. Y. (2003). "Said and done" versus "saying and doing": Gendering practices, practicing gender at work. Gender & Society, 17(3), 342-366.
- 15. Menon, N., & Bhasin, K. (1998). Borders and boundaries: Women in India's partition. Rutgers University Press.
- 16. Rao, A., & Kelleher, T. (Eds.). (2013). The practice of human development and dignity: Dialogues on International Theory. Palgrave Macmillan.
- 17. Ridgeway, C. L. (2001). Gender, status, and leadership. Journal of Social Issues, 57(4), 637-655.
- 18. Ridgeway, C. L., & Correll, S. J. (2004). Unpacking the gender system: A theoretical perspective on gender beliefs and social relations. Gender & Society, 18(4), 510-531.
- 19. Smith, V. (1996). The paradox of patriarchal power: Women managers in a male-dominated industry. Gender & Society, 10(2), 231-253.
- 20. Wajcman, J. (1998). Managing like a man: Women and men in corporate management. University Press.
- 21. West, C., & Zimmerman, D. H. (1987). Doing gender. Gender & Society, 1(2), 125-

Discipline	PUBLIC ADMINIS	TRATION						
Course Code	UK8PANDSE401							
Course Title	DEVELOPMENT	ADMINIST	RATION					
Type of Course	DSC / DSE / MDC	/ SEC / VAC	/ AEC					
Semester	VIII							
Academic Level	400 - 499							
Course Details	Credit	Lecture Hours	Tutorial Hrs	Practical Hours	Total Hours			
	4	30	18	12	60			
Pre-requisites	administrative proof administration 2. Understanding international dev	administrative process processes help the students to understand the role of administration in the broader framework of societal development.						
Course Summary	Development Adn challenges of public and addressing glob	ninistration c administrati	explores the					

Module	Unit	Content	Hrs		
I		Introduction to Development Administration	10		
	1	Ecology of Development- Nature, Scope of Development Administration and Administration of Development.			
	2	Historical Evolution of Development Administration.			
	3	Understanding Development and Administrative Machinery of Development.			
II		Development: Concepts and Principles	10		
	4	Development – Definition- State Approaches to Development.			
	5	Market Approaches to Development.			
	6	People Centered Development.			
	7	Right Based Development.			
	8	Development Issues and Alternate Development Paradigm.			
III	Theories of Development				
	9	Modernization Theory			
	10	Dependency Theory			
	11	State-Centric Theory			
	12	Institutional Theory			
	13	Post-Development Theory			

IV		Development -Issues and Challenges	10
	14	Globalization and Development Administration	
	15	Role of Bureaucracy	
	16	Civil Society –Citizen Participation	
	17	Gender Parity in Development -Political Instability	
	18	Emergence of Non-State Actors	
	19	Social Inequality and Inclusion	
V		New Perspectives of Development	8
	20	Public Private Partnership - Corporate Social Responsibility	
	21	Inclusive Development - Sustainable Development Goals	
	22	Human Development Indicators - Technological Advancement	
VI		Open Ended (This module is exclusively designed for internal evaluation only. Choose any two activities.)	12
		Activity 1: Field Study	
		The students can visit Government Agencies: Local government offices, Development Authorities, Rural Development Departments.	
		Non-Governmental Organizations: Organizations working on issues like Poverty Alleviation-Healthcare- Education or Environmental Protection.	
		Activity 2: Participatory Observation- Understanding Community Needs Monitoring Project Implementation	
		Activity 3: Case Study: Kudumbashree Mission in Kerala Swachh Bharat Abhiyan	

COURSE OUTCOMES

No.	Upon completion of the course the graduate will be able to	Cognitive Level	PSO addressed
CO1	Recognize fundamental concepts related to development, its various approaches, and the principles of sustainable development.	U Ap	PSO-1
CO2	Analyse the development issues, demonstrating the ability to relate theoretical knowledge to practical scenarios.	Ap An	PSO-1
CO3	Interpretation of ideas and contributions of prominent development theories.	Ap An	PSO-2
CO4	Analyzing the challenges faced by development administrators in different socio-economic and political contexts.	An E	PSO-2
CO5	Identifies various issues and perspectives related to development and applies the knowledge in analysing the issues.	U Ap An	PSO-9
CO6	Applying the knowledge in challenges of development by integrating theoretical knowledge, critical thinking, and practical skills.	E An Ap C	PSO-11

 $R-Remember,\,U-Understand,\,Ap-Apply,\,An-Analyse,\,E-Evaluate,\,C-Create$

CO No.	СО	PO/PSO	Cognitive Level	Knowledge Category	Lecture (L)/ Tutorial (T)	Practical (P)
CO1	Recognize fundamental concepts related to development, its various approaches, and the principles of sustainable development.	PO-1 PSO-1	U Ap	F, C	Book Review	
CO2	Analyse the development issues, demonstrating the ability to relate theoretical knowledge to practical scenarios.	PO-3 PSO-1	Ap An	F, C	Assignment Discussion	
СОЗ	Interpretation of ideas and contributions of prominent development theories.	PO-3 PSO-2	Ap An	F	Debate Group Projects	
CO4	Analyzing the challengesfaced by development administrators in different socio-economic and political contexts.	PO-2 PSO-2	An E	F, C, M	Case Analysis	
CO5	Identifies various issues and perspectives related to development and applies the knowledge in analysing the issues.	PO-1 PSO-9	U Ap An	F, C	Seminar Role Plays	
CO6	Applying the knowledge in challenges of development by integrating theoretical knowledge, critical thinking, and practical skills.	PO-3 PO-6 PSO-	E An Ap C	C, M	Field Visit Case Study	

F-Factual, C- Conceptual, P-Procedural, M-Metacognitive

	PSO1	PSO2	PSO9	PSO-11	PO1	PO3	PO6
CO 1	1	-	-	-	2	-	1
CO 2	2	-	-	1	-	2	1
CO 3	-	2	-	-	-	1	-
CO 4	-	3	-	-	2	-	-
CO 5	-	-	2	-	1	-	-
CO 6	-	-	-	3	-	2	2

Mapping of COs to Assessment Rubrics:

	Internal Exam	Assignment	Project Evaluation	End Semester Examinations
CO 1	✓			✓
CO 2	✓			✓
CO 3	✓			✓
CO 4		√		✓
CO 5		✓		✓
CO 6			√	

REFERENCES

- 1. Esfandiari, H. (2017). Gender and development administration. Routledge.
- 2. Escobar, A. (2018). Participation, power, and development administration: Exploring new frontiers. Development and Change, 49(2), 333-356.
- 3. Kumar, A. K. (2006). Development administration in a globalized world. In J. A. Gallagher (Ed.), The Handbook of Global Development (pp. 421-438). Edward Elgar Publishing.
- 4. McGee, R. (2008). The new development administration: Public-private partnerships and bureaucratic reform. Routledge.
- 5. Mills, D. E. (2006). The impact of information technology on development administration: A case study analysis. The American Review of Public Administration, 36(2), 147-162.
- 6. McNulty, S. (2016). From Millennium Development Goals to Sustainable Development Goals: The role of development administration. International Journal of Public Sector Management, 29(4), 422-438.
- 7. Moten, A. R. (2019). Globalization and development administration. Routledge.
- 8. Nandan, P. S. (2022). The future of development administration: Challenges and opportunities. In M. Rastogi (Ed.), Development Administration and the Future (pp. 1-18). Springer.
- 9. Olsen, E. (2010). Development administration: An international perspective. Routledge.
- 10. Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development. (2019). The State of the Civil Service: Serving the Citizen in a Changing World.
- 11. Puchala, F. S. (2010). The role of bureaucracy in development administration: A critical review. International Review of Administrative Sciences, 76(2), 227-243.
- 12. Shah, A. (2007). Decentralization and development administration. Sage Publications.
- 13. Shin, H. S. (2012). The state and development administration. Edward Elgar Publishing.
- 14. United Nations Development Programme. (2005). The Future of Development: A Strategic Framework for the United Nations Development Programme (UNDP).
- 15. Van De Walle, D. (2014). Climate change and development administration: Challenges and opportunities. Public Administration and Development, 34(1), 1-10.
- 16. World Bank. (2017). World Development Report 2017: Governance and the Law.

Online Resources

- 1. United Nations Department of Economic and Social Affairs (DESA). (n.d.). Development Administration Resource Guide. https://www.un.org/sustainabledevelopment/
- 2. The Campbell Collaboration. (n.d.). Improving Development Effectiveness https://www.campbellcollaboration.org/
- 3. Brookings Institution. (n.d.). Center for Universal Education. https://www.brookings.edu/topics/education-2/

SEMESTER VIII DISCIPLINE-SPECIFIC CORE

UK7DSCPAN400 AND UK7DSCPAN401 are Online Courses

UK8RPHPAN400 Research Project Mandatory for UG Hons with Research

UK8CIPPAN400 Internship Project Mandatory for UG Honors